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Introduction 

The Department of Health and Environmental Control (DHEC) provides health and 
environmental programs and services which affect the health and well-being of all 
South Carolinians. This Executive Summary of the FY 1987 Annual Report contains 
information about the programs and services which DHEC provided in fulfilling its 
broad responsibilities for protecting public health and the environment. 

This summary is organized into three sections - health protection, environ
mental quality control and health facilities and services regulation. Within each 
area, the accomplishments of the department's programs and services are indicated. 
More detailed descriptions of these activities are contained in the FY 1987 Annual 
Report. Inquiries for further clarification or information about specific depart
mental activities can be directed to the appropriate program or the Office of 
Program Management. 
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HEALTH PROTECTION 

DHEC's deputy commissioner for health protection oversees the personal health 
programs that serve the citizens of South Carolina. DHEC's health services are 
provided directly through 15 health district offices and 46 county health depart
ments. 

Bureau of Preventive Health Services 

The Bureau of Preventive Health Services was formed in 1985 to incorporate 
into one unit activities concerning communicable disease, chronic disease and 
environmental health hazards. This organizational unit provides for better sur
veillance, intervention, treatment, and monitoring of communicable, chronic, and 
environmentally-related diseases. 

Division of Sexually Transmitted Diseases 

Gonorrhea, syphilis and other sexually transmitted diseases are a major public 
health problem in South Carolina. In FY 87, there were 18,343 cases of gonorrhea 
(civilian) for a rate of 512.0 per 100,000 population; 704 cases of infectious 
syphilis for a rate of 20.5 per 100,000 population; and 63 new cases of the 
Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) for a rate of 1.9 per 100,000 popula
tion. Although the incidence rates for syphilis and gonorrhea in the state have 
been decreasing, provisional data indicate that S. C. ranks 6th for new cases of 
syphilis and gonorrhea, respectively, in the nation for calendar year 87. To 
combat this problem, DHEC has special clinics in each county to screen and treat 
infected individuals. Specially trained counselors interview patients to identify 
their contacts so they can be located and treated. STD education and awareness 
programs are conducted. Consultation and diagnostic services are available to all 
physicians. 

Division of Tuberculosis Control 

Tuberculosis is still a personal and public health problem even though it is 
now curable and preventable with drug therapy. There were 593 new cases reported 
for a case rate of 17.4 per 100,000 population in FY 87. S. C. has ranked 
consistently among the top 10 states with the greatest number of new cases per 
100,000 population. Based on epidemiologic assessment, 180,000 South Carolinians 
are infected (indicating exposure in the past). This "reservoir of infection" 
produces about 80 percent of the new cases along with recently infected contacts 
and in persons who have a relapse of their previous disease. DHEC provides diag
nostic, treatment, prevention and contact examination services in clinics at the 
state's 46 county health departments. 
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Division of Immunization 

The Immunization Program provides vaccines for all childhood 
vaccine-preventable diseases to all public health departments, neighborhood health 
centers and Early and Periodic Screening, Detection and Treatment (EPSDT) eligible 
private physicians. Preventable childhood diseases include: diphtheria, pertussis 
(whooping cough), tetanus (lockjaw), polio, measles, rubella and mumps. The 
immunization program provides several monitoring services: 1) enforces the S. C. 
Mandatory School Immunization law; 2) maintains a surveillance system to investi
gate and provide control measures when cases of vaccine-preventable diseases occur, 
and 3) provides a recall system for children served in the health departments who 
fall behind in their immunizations. Considerable numbers of South Carolina's 
children between 2 months and 2 years of age do not receive their basic series of 
childhood immunization on schedule, leaving them unprotected or partially protected 
against such diseases. 

Total Doses of Vaccine Administered 
in Public Health Clinics by Antigen 

Antigen 

Diphtheria, Tetanus, Pertussis 
Tetanus-Diphtheria (Adults) 
Trivalent Oral Polio Vaccine (Sabin) 
Inactivated Poliovirus Vaccine (Salk) 
Measles, Mumps, Rubella 
Measles 
Rubella 

Division of Chronic Disease Control 

FY 87 

124,243 
21,016 

106,651 
679 

29,328 
502 
704 

An estimated one million South Carolinians suffer from chronic diseases, many 
of which could be prevented by personal lifestyle decisions to reduce or eliminate 
self-created risks to health. The Division of Chronic Disease provides detection, 
surveillance, education, and treatment services to reduce the prevalence and 
severity of the problems associated with chronic diseases. The activities of the 
division include prevention, screening, and educational services addressing hyper
tension, diabetes and cancer. In addition, diagnostic and treatment services are 
available for indigent patients with cancer. 

In FY 87 Health Risk Appraisals (HRA) were administered to 3,496 individuals. 
State-Aid Cancer Clinic services were provided to 4,228 indigent patients. Blood 
pressure screening was provided to 14,755 individuals. Support services were 
provided for 615 individuals with diabetes and 1,125 individuals with high blood 
pressure. Periodic monitoring services were provided to 16,077 patients with known 
high blood pressure and 4,705 patients with known diabetes through the 46 county 
health departments. 
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Bureau of Drug Control 

All South Carolina physicians, dentists, veterinarians, pharmacists, whole
salers, manufacturers, hospitals, and researchers who handle controlled substances 
(drugs) are required to register with the DHEC Bureau of Drug Control before they 
can legally handle these drugs in the State. There were 8,200 registrations in FY 
87. Periodically, inspectors check the registered offices to assure that all drugs 
and narcotics under their control are accounted for. The bureau has the legal 
authority to suspend the license of registrants violating the law, seize unlawful 
drugs, or initiate criminal prosecutions. There were 100 thefts in which 119,849 
individual dosage units were taken during FY 87. 

Bureau of Environmental Sanitation 

Sanitarians in county health departments throughout the state inspect hotels, 
motels, restaurants, campgrounds, dairies and soft drink plants. They review 
proposals for septic tank systems and issue permits, check sanitary conditions at 
mobile home parks, state parks, migrant labor housing, and state and penal institu
tions. 

Table I 
Field Activity 

FY 87 

Dairy Foods and Bottled Products 
Food Protection 
General Sanitation 

Table II 
Septic Tank Program Activities 

Sites Evaluated 
Sites Acceptable for 
Conventional Systems 

Sites Acceptable for 
Alternative Systems 

Sites Not Acceptable for 
Any System 
(Percent Not Acceptable) 

Conventional Installations 
Alternative Installations 

Bureau of Maternal and Child Health 

Inspections 
FY 87 

4,252 
5-9,748 

134,464 

FY 87 

27,889 

22,383 

4,106 

997 
3.6% 

18,509 
2,661 

The Bureau of Maternal and Child Health offers a variety of health programs to 
mothers, potential mothers and children to improve their health. Family planning 
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services to men and women wanting to choose the number and spacing of children are 
also provided. 

South Carolina has one of the highest infant mortality rates in the nation. 
The infant death rate in South Carolina for Calendar year 1986 was 13.2 per 1,000 
live births compared to 14.2 in Calendar year 1985. The nonwhite rate dropped 
from 21.4 per 1,000 live births in Calendar year 1985 to 17.9 in Calendar year 
1986. The percent of decrease in the nonwhite infant mortality is the largest in 
over 25 years. The lower rate means that there were 70 fewer nonwhite babies that 
died in Calendar year 1986 than in Calendar year 1985. The national infant 
mortality rate was 10.6 per 1,000 live births for Calendar year 1985. 

Division of Maternal Health 

All pregnant women receiving services in county health departments through 
maternity clinics or the Women, Infants and Children (WIC) supplemental food 
program are screened for risk factors and conditions associated with poor pregnancy 
outcomes. The women are then channeled to the type of care appropriate for their 
risk status, such as the High Risk Perinatal program, Low Birthweight program, or 
Low Risk Maternity Clinic. Prenatal services available in maternity clinics 
include: 

1. Health history 
2. Physical examinations/appraisals 
3. Blood pressure and weight check 
4. Laboratory tests 
5. Prenatal counseling (nursing, social, nutritional, etc.) 
6. Referral to other medical resources as appropriate 
7. Drugs and biologicals as indicated. 
8. Physician services normally given in physician's office 
9. Immunizations 
10. Health education 

The maternity clinics provided complete prenatal care to 10,477 women, 995 
women were admitted to monitoring services and 11,393 to support services. The 
High Risk Perinatal Program also served 1,550 high risk patients during the year 
and an additional 1,818 prenatal patients at risk for preterm labor. 

Family Planning program services include patient education, counselling, 
medical services, contraceptive methods, and referral follow-up. One hundred six 
thousand, two hundred forty seven clients (106,247) were provided family planning 
services in FY 87. 

Division of Children's Health 

In FY 87, there were 194,887 children served by child health programs. Public 
health nurses, nutritionists, social workers and educators provide health develop
mental and nutrition assessments, vision, hearing and metabolic screening, and 
laboratory testing. They also provide immunizations, health education and refer
rals. 
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The children's rehabilitative services program serves approximately 8,043 
physically handicapped children suffering from congenital heart defects, orthopedic 
handicaps, deafness, epilepsy, sickle cell disease, cystic fibrosis, hemophilia, 
cleft palate and other birth defects. Services are provided through special 
clinics throughout the state. Pediatricians and other medical specialists provide 
diagnostic examinations and treatment. 

Women, Infants and Children (WIC) Program 

WIG is a supplemental food program for women, infants and children to age 
five. In addition to rece1v1ng vouchers for supplemental foods necessary for 
proper nutrition, WIG participants receive nutrition education, health assessment, 
and access to other health and social service programs. To receive WIG benefits, a 
person must be both income eligible and be determined to be in medical need by a 
health care provider. In FY 87, the S. C. WIG program served 155,875 clients. 
This program is entirely paid for by the federal government. 

Bureau of Home Health Services and Long Term Care 

Division of Home Health Services 

Home Health Services provides intermittent skilled and restorative care for 
homebound patients. Physicians prescribe home care for their patients and deter
mine the treatment plan. Services may include skilled nursing, home health aide, 
physical, speech and occupational therapy, dietary counseling and medical social 
services. Home Health Services are available in all counties in South Carolina. 
21,459 persons were served and 430,526 visits were made in FY 87. 

Personal Care Aide Services Program 

The Personal Care Aide Services Program was implemented in April 1985 to 
ensure the statewide availability of personal care services to elderly and disabled 
adults eligible for community-based services sponsored by the Connnunity Long Term 
Care program (CLTC). Persons must be at the intermediate or skilled level of care 
and financially eligible for Medicaid sponsored nursing home benefits to receive 
assistance from the CLTC program. There were 2,190 patients served by this program 
in FY 87. 

Bureau of Laboratories 

DHEC's Bureau of Laboratories scientists tested 655,551 specimens for the 
diagnosis, prevention, and surveillance of infectious diseases, congenital dis
orders, food products, and environmental hazards. The laboratory staff also 
provide training and consultation to laboratory workers across the state. 
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ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY CONTROL 

The Department's Environmental Quality Control activities are provided through 
seven administrative bureaus. They are: Water Pollution Control; Water Supply and 
Special Programs; Solid and Hazardous Waste; Air Quality Control; Radiological 
Health; EQC Laboratories and District Services .. EQC plays a vitally important role 
in South Carolina's growth and development. Charged with protecting the environ
ment and promoting economic development, EQC must regulate and permit activities 
which touch every citizen of the state through drinking water supply; sewage 
collection, treatment and discharge; air quality; the disposal of solid and 
hazardous wastes and the exposure of citizens to radiation. Twelve EQC district 
offices are located throughout the state and are open for inquiries and reports of 
violations of environmental laws. 

Bureau of Water Pollution Control 

The Bureau of Water Pollution Control makes sure that proposed sewage treat
ment facilities use the best available technology to comply with state and federal 
regulations. The bureau reviews applications for permits from industries, cities, 
town and subdivisions to construct treatment facilities and to discharge treated 
wastewater into nearby streams. Once discharges begin, the bureau audits monthly 
monitoring and surveillance reports to ensure that none of the treated wastewater 
which is discharged by these facilities will pollute the state's waterways. 

Field Activity 

Discharge Monitoring Reports Reviewed 
Compliance Inspection Reports Reviewed 
Notices of Violation Issued for: 

Permit Violation 
Order Violation 

Referrals to State Attorney General 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 

System Permits Issued 

Bureau of Water Supply 

FY 87 

14,662 
208 

475 
69 
16 

355 

The water supply program is responsible for ensuring the safety of public 
drinking water statewide. An estimated 76% of the population of South Carolina is 
provided drinking water by a public water supply system, and private wells supply 
water for the remaining populace. The bureau ensures the safety of public drinking 
water by reviewing plans for all proposed public water systems, inspecting them 
during construction and after they are in operation, and by conducting a routine 
monitoring program for bacteriological, organic and inorganic chemical and radio
logical contamination. 
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Table I 
Program Activities 

Projects Submitted 
Construction Permits 
Inspections During Construction 
Operating Approvals 

Table II 
Activities to Insure Safe Operation 

of Existing Facilities 

Operation and Maintenance Inspections 
Fluoridation Surveys 
Sanitary Surveys 
Bacteriological Monitoring 
Chemical Monitoring 
Fluoride Monitoring 
Turbidity Monitoring 

Bureau of Solid and Hazardous Waste Management 

FY 87 

1,492 
1,457 

437 
1,371 

FY 87 

1,142 
114 

58 
1,545 

823 
878 
930 

Every human activity produces waste. Domestic waste, or garbage, tradi
tionally is trucked to landfills for burial. Waste products produced from commer
cial activities which involve hazardous or toxic materials can more seriously 
impact the environment and human health. Negligent and sometimes criminal disposal 
of these materials has proven to be a rising issue of importance in South Carolina. 
The Bureau of Solid and Hazardous Waste Management is charged with the responsibil
ity of regulating these activities, enforcing solid and hazardous waste law aimed 
at protecting the environment and health of South Carolinians, and assuring the 
prosecution of those who willingly break the law and endanger public health. 

The Remedial Response Section is responsible for coordinating and implementing the 
Federal and State Superfund programs. This involves responsible party searches, 
procurement of services, contract administration of cleanup contractors, on-site 
technical supervision and cost auditing. 
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Program Activities 
FY 87 

Landfills Sanitary 

70 

Industrial 

Operating 
Monitoring 
Number closed 

70 
50 

Bureau of Air Quality Control 

Emergency Responses 

Preliminary Site 
Assessments 60 

Site Inspections 16 
Site Cleanup Operations 6 
Spills 364 

81 
22 

111 

The Air Quality Control program implements the South Carolina Air Pollution 
Control Act as well as the Federal Clean Air Act in South Carolina. The bureau 
designs air emission control regulations which limit discharge of pollutants from 
their sources, and monitors all new and expanded sources to prevent air pollution 
problems before they start. 

Table I 
Program Activities 

Permits Issued 
Source Tests 
Source Evaluations 
Major Point Source Inspections 
National Source Performance 

Standard Inspections 
National Emission Standards for 
Hazardous Air 
Pollutants Inspections 

Continuous Monitor Inspections 
Samples Collected 
Laboratory Analyses Performed 
Continuous Monitor Readings 
Administrative Orders Issued 

14 

FY 87 

552 
485 
182 
367 

36 

11 
92 

7,599 
18,511 

127,175 
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Bureau of Radiological Health 

The bureau licenses and inspects facilities which produce or use radioactive 
material to ensure compliance with regulations. Hospitals, industrial users, 
academic institutions, and the Chem-Nuclear low level waste disposal facility are 
among the facilities licensed. The bureau issued 252 permits for the transporta
tion of radioactive waste and routinely inspected 2,831 shipments of waste. The 
bureau response team is on call 24 hours a day to respond to 1) accidents involving 
radioactive material, 2) detect and evaluate radioactive contamination, and 3) 
provide advice and recommendations on courses for dealing with the situation. 

HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REGULATIONS 

Since 1947, DHEC has established standards for hospitals and nursing homes, 
supervised their inspection and licensing and planned and allocated state and 
federal funds for building or modernizing hospitals, nursing homes and health 
centers. More recently, the Department has been given responsibility for licensing 
other types of health facilities and services, such as hearing aid dealers, resi
dential care facilities and ambulatory surgical facilities. 

Bureau of Health Facilities and Services Development 

Division of Planning and Certification of Heed 

This division is responsible for the development and annual update of a State 
Health Plan: Volume II, that is used by DHEC as the basis for determining needed 
health care facilities across the state; and administration. of a State Certificate 
of Need Program. A total of 151 projects were received under the Certificate of 
Need program during FY 87. One hundred nine projects with capital expenditures 
of $142,313,886 were approved while thirty-four projects with capital expenditures 
of $93,693,141 were denied. Normal review activities include consultation with the 
applicant (s), determinations concerning the applicability of the program to 
specific projects, and analysis of applications for content and completeness. 

Division of Primary Care 

South Carolina's rural health program provided health care services to 681 
migrant farm workers in FY 87. DHEC contracts with private physicians, hospital 
outpatient clinics and emergency rooms to serve the migrant workers. There were 16 
health professionals with service obligations to the federal government because of 
scholarship grants placed in rural underserved areas of South Carolina. The 
Division of Primary Care provided funding for rape services and rape prevention 
programs to rape crisis centers around the state. 
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Bureau of Health Facilities Construction, 
Licensing and Certification 

Division of Health Licensing and Certification 

DHEC issues new and renewed licenses for hospitals, nursing homes, home health 
agencies, ambulatory surgical facilities, community residential care facilities and 
hearing aid dealers. Licensing staff visits each facility at least once a year and 
makes follow-up visits when necessary to assess safety and health standards. If 
the facilities maintain quality standards, licenses are granted or renewed. 

Certification staff within the bureau surveyed 215 health care facilities in 
the state that wanted to participate in the Medicaid and Medicare programs. Survey 
staff concentrated on the health care requirements (such as nursing care) that must 
be met if a facility is to receive Medicaid and/or Medicare payment for services to 
its patients. 

Field Activities 
FY 87 

1. New Health Facilities/Activities Licensed 115 
2. Expanded Health Facilities/Activities Licensed 84 
3. New Hearing Aid Dealers Licensed 24 

Number of Licenses Renewed 

1. Hospitals and Infirmaries 
2. Long Term Care Facilities 
3. Home Health Agencies and Hospices 
4. Ambulatory Surgical Facilities, 

Acupuncture Clinics, Health Maintenance 
Organizations, Adult Day Care Centers, 
Alcohol and Chemical Dependency 
Outpatient Facilities 

5. Community Residential Care Facilities 
6. Hearing Aid Dealers 

Division of Emergency Medical Services 

89 
216 
47 

83 
333 

95 

The Division of Emergency Medical Services regulates and licenses ambulance 
services, inspects ambulance vehicles, trains and certifies emergency medical 
services personnel, and coordinates emergency medical services with the communica
tions system. 
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Field Activities 
FY 87 

Advanced EMT's Certified 
Initial and Refresher Basic 

EMT Courses Monitored 
EMS Providers Inspected 
Ambulances Inspected 
Regional EMS Systems Assisted 
with Development 

17 

212 

160 
194 
503 
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BRIEF HISTORY AND STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

The Department of Health and Environmental Control was created in 1973 
by the General Assembly through an act which merged the State Board of 
Health (created in 1878) and the Pollution Control Authority, which 
was made a separate state agency in 1971. 

The Department is under the supervision of the Board of Health and 
Environmental Control, which has seven members, one from each Congres
sional district and one at large, who are appointed by the Governor 
upon the advice and consent of the Senate. The Board is empowered to 
make, adopt, promulgate and enforce reasonable rules and regulations 
for the promotion of the public health and the abatement, control and 
prevention of pollution. 

The position of Commissioner, the executive head of the Department was 
established by the 1973 act. The organizational structure of the 
agency, as reflected on the adjoining chart, includes four major 
deputy areas, 15 health districts comprised of the forty-six county 
health departments, and 12 environmental quality control districts. 

The Department is the sole advisor to the State in matters pertaining 
to the public health and has the authority to abate, control and 
prevent pollution. Statutory authority is primarily provided in 
Titles 44 and 48 of the S. C. Code, 1976. 
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SOOTH CAROLINA IEPAR.'l'MEBT OF HEALTH AND EBVIRORMEBTAL CONTROL 

Agency Philosophy 

The South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control serves 

the people as the authority, guardian and advocate in all matters relating to 

public health. The department's definition of public health includes main-

taining and promoting the full scope of environmental protection as well as 

personal health services that affect everyone's well being. 

Public heal th is involved in the life of the community in three ways: 

regulation, education and service. The health of the community as a whole is 

protected by regulatory activities related to potential environmental health 

hazards and communicable diseases. Education teaches individuals about environ

mental factors and personal habits or characteristics that influence their 

health and enables them to make informed choices. When health services people 

need are not available or accessible in the private sector, public health 

provides services to fill the gaps. 

The mission of public health and of the department is to prevent health 

problems at three levels. The first, or primary, level of prevention aims to 

avoid the beginning of health problems. Activities that protect the environ-

ment, make people immune from disease, and avoid high risk pregnancies are 

examples of primary prevention. 

Secondary prevention aims to detect health problems early, when they can 

be corrected, reversed or controlled. Environmental monitoring and screening 

for personal health problems focus on secondary prevention. 

When a health problem or hazard exists, the third or tertiary level of 

prevention attempts to stop its progress, to prevent complications and to help 

people cope with illness or disability in their own homes and communities. 
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DHEC LEGISIATION PASSED 
1986-87 

(H 2324) ACT No. 11 

An Act to amend the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, by adding 
Article 7 to Chapter 5 of Title 43 so as to enact a special supplemen
tal food program for pregnant and breastfeeding women, infants, and 
children to be administered by the Department of Health and Environ
mental Control which provides nutritional education and supplemental 
food to eligible persons and to provide a penalty for violation of the 
Article. 

(S 341) ACT No. 87 

An Act to amend Section 20-7-1790, as amended, Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, 1976, relating to the issuance and filing of amended birth 
certificates, so as to provide a procedure in adoptions for the Family 
Court to determine the date and place of birth when the adoptee is not 
born in the United States and not a citizen of the United States at 
birth and to amend Section 44-63-140, relating to supplementary or 
amended birth certificates for adoptees, so as to revise the procedure 
for issuing the certificates. 

(H 2775) ACT No. 94 

An Act to repeal Chapter 57 of Title 44, Code of Laws of South Caro
lina, 1976, relating to bedding. 

(H 2811) ACT No. 99 

An Act to provide for the regulation of birthing centers and to 
provide a penalty. 

(S 018) ACT No. 149 

An Act to amend Section 33-55-210, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 
1976, relating to recovery against a charitable organization, so as to 
provide that a health care provider who agrees to provide medical 
service voluntarily and without compensation to any person at a 
hospital, public school, nonprofit organization, or agency of the 
state is not liable for civil damages except for gross negligence or 
willful misconduct. 

(S 306) ACT No. 220 

A Joint Resolution to approve regulations of the Department of Health 
and Environmental Control, relating to classified waters, designated 
as Regulation Document Number 653, pursuant to the provisions of 
Article 1, Chapter 23, Title 1 of the 1976 Code. 
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FISCAL YEAR 1987 REGUIATIONS 
PROMULGATED, AMENDED, OR REPEALED 

REGUIATION 

R.61-16: Hospitals 
and Institutional 
General Infirmaries 

R.61-63: Radioactive 
Materials (Title A) 

R.61-69: Classified 

R.61-79: Hazardous 
Waste Management 

R.61-86: Friable 
Asbestos Materials 
in Schools 

R.61-94: Women, 
Infants and Children 
Vendors 

SUBJECT EFFECTIVE DATE 

Amendments relating February 27, 1987 
to management; medical 
staff; accommodations 
for patients; emergency 
psychiatric and chemical 
and substance abuse treat-
ment services; and patient 
rooms 

Amendments to maintain 
compatibility with 
federal law and agree
ment states 

Amendments reclassify
ing various rivers 
and creeks 

Amendment of Section 
261.4, "Exclusions," 
and correction of 
typographical errors 

Amendments to main
tain compatibility 
with federal law 

New regulation to 
implement special 
supplemental food 
program 
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CHRONIC DISEASE 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source Ainount 

Federal: Health and Human Services .......................... $1,094,042 

State: Line item appropriations ........................... 2,539,156 

Other: Earned income ..................................... . 66,512 

$3,699,710 TOTAL 

II. LEGISIATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

Hypertension Services 
Section 1904 Public 
Health Service Act 
(42-USC-300 W-3) 

Diabetes Control Project 
Section 301 (a) Public 
Health Service Act 
(42-USC-241) 

Cardiovascular Disease 
Prevention Project 
Section 301(a) Public 
Health Service Act 
(31-USC-6301) 

Occupational Safety and 
Health Surveillance Project 
Section 301 Public Health 
Service Act (29-USC-669) 

Health Education/Risk Reduc
tion Services Section 1904 
Public Health Service Act 
(42-USC-300-W-3) 

Behavioral Risk Factor 
Surveillance Program 
Section 317(L) Public 
Health Service Act 
(42-USC-241) 

Responsibility 

Provide blood pressure control services 
including detection, follow-up, and 
education. 

Conduct diabetes control demonstration 
projects to reduce morbidity and morta
lity associated with diabetes. 

Conduct a community based project to 
reduce the prevalence of cardiovascular 
disease and associated risk factors. 

Develop and implement a statewide occu
pational health and safety surveillance 
system to detect, monitor, and investi
gate occupationally-related illnesses, 
injuries, and deaths. 

Assist state and local health agencies 
in initiating, strengthening, and deli
vering health education/risk reduction 
programs. 

Conduct a telephone survey to collect 
epidemiologic data on behavioral risk 
factors including smoking, seat belt 
usage, alcohol consumption, and exer
cise patterns. 
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Authority 

Cancer Program Title 44, 
Chapter 35, S.C. Code 

III. PROBLEM 

Responsibility 

Furnish aid to indigent cancer patients 
to the extent of and within available 
funds. 

Chronic diseases affect an estimated 1.5 million South Carolinians-
nearly half of the state's population--and are among the major causes of 
death and disability in the state. On an annual basis, chronic diseases 
are responsible for nearly three-fourths of the deaths and half of the 
hospitalizations in the state. Many South Carolinians are at increased 
risk because of failure to use preventive health practices which could 
prevent or delay the onset of chronic diseases and/or related complica
tions. 

Heart Disease: Heart disease is the leading cause of death in South 
Carolina. Annually, heart disease accounts for nearly 10,000 deaths and 
over 100,000 hospitalizations in the state. Diseases of the heart 
represent 40% of all deaths in South Carolina and require millions of 
dollars expended for hospitalizations and rehabilitative procedures. It 
is estimated that 45% of cases of heart disease are preventable through 
risk reduction activities focusing on hypertension, smoking, diet, and 
weight control. 

Cancer: Cancer is the second leading cause of death in South Carolina 
and accounts for nearly 5,000 deaths and over 25,000 hospitalizations 
each year. There are nearly 11,000 new cases of cancer in South 
Carolina annually. The most significant types of cancer problems 
include lung cancer, breast cancer, uterine cancer, colo-rectal cancer, 
and cancers of the digestive system. As many as 80% of these cases may 
be preventable through risk reduction activities focused on smoking, 
diet, alcohol and exposure to occupational and environmental hazards. 

Stroke: Stroke is the third leading cause of death in South Carolina 
and accounts for over 2,400 deaths and 15,000 hospitalizations annually. 
Uncontrolled hypertension is the major contributor to stroke, or 
cerebrovascular disease. Approximately 31% of adult South Carolinians, 
or 776,000 people, have hypertension (blood pressure exceeding 140/90 mm 
Hg). While 66% of adult hypertensives are aware that they have high 
blood pressure, only 49% of these are under treatment for their 
condition and only 20% of those being treated are under control. The 
National Heart, Lung, and Blood Institute estimates that 85% of strokes 
could be prevented through risk reduction activities, primarily 
hypertension control. 

Diabetes: There are an estimated 160,000 persons with diabetes in South 
Carolina and the prevalence of this illness is increasing. Diabetes is 
the seventh leading cause of death in the state and is responsible for 
25,000 hospitalizations annually. People with diabetes are prone to 
blindness, kidney disease, heart disease, and gangrene (which often 
leads to amputations). While many cases of non-insulin dependent 
diabetes may be preventable through weight control as a primary pre-
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ventive measure, the acute and long-term complications also can be 
reduced or eliminated with proper care and management of the disease. 

IV. GOAL 

To prevent illness, disability and premature deaths attributable to 
chronic diseases, including heart disease, cancer, stroke, and diabetes . 

. V. OBJECTIVES 

A. HEALTH SUPPORT 

Objectives: 

1. Provide individual or 
patients with newly 
pressure. 

group health support services to 920 
diagnosed or uncontrolled high blood 

2. Provide individual or group health support services to 1,150 
patients with newly diagnosed or uncontrolled diabetes. 

Evaluation: 

1. Number receiving hYPertension Health Support 
Number planned 

615 
920 

67% 

2. Number receiving diabetes Health Support 

Number planned 

Narrative: 

1125 

1150 

98% 

Objective A.l. was not met. Some districts have had difficulty 
interesting clients and physicians in this service for 
hypertensives. The 615 clients served in this year is slightly 
below the 620 who were served in FY 86. Objective A.2. was met 
within acceptable limits. The program has been more successful in 
attracting diabetic clients to Health Support, possibly due to 
client perceptions about the relative seriousness of these con
ditions. There was an increase of 119 clients served this year 
compared to FY 86, from 1006 to 1125. 

B. HEALTH RISK APPRAISAL (HRA) 

Objective: 

1. Provide Health Risk Appraisal to 3,330 individuals at risk of 
developing chronic disease(s); provide appropriate follow-up and 
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counselling to at least 85% of individuals who receive this 
service. 

Evaluation: 

l.a. Number receiving HRA 
Number planned 

l.b. % receiving follow-up 
% planned 

Narrative: 

3496 
3330 

88% 
85% 

105% 

104% 

This objective was met and exceeded. The Health Risk Appraisal 
provides awareness of individual health status and makes recommenda
tions about positive lifestyle changes. Staff has been successful 
in promoting HRA among employers, church groups, and civic organiza
tions. The number of HRAs administered almost doubled in FY 87 as 
compared to FY 86. Table I shows the district totals for this 
objective for FY 86 and FY 87. 

Table I: Individuals Receiving Health Risk Appraisal· 
by District 

FY 86 and FY 87 

District Number of HRAs % Change 

FY 86 FY 87 

Appalachia I 0 24 New 
Appalachia II 0 277 New 
Appalachia III 0 43 New 
Catawba 0 139 New 
East Midlands 574 266 -54% 
Edisto 85 35 -59% 
Low Country 60 210 +250% 
Lower Savannah 123 1,108 +801% 
Pee Dee I 80 318 +298% 
Pee Dee II 174 136 -22% 
Trident 0 437 New 
Upper Savannah 503 25 -95% 
Waccamaw 104 277 +166% 
Wateree 140 144 +3% 
West Midlands 20 57 +185% 
Total 1,863 3,496 +88% 

C. STAFF TRAINING AND PLANNING 

Objectives: 

1. Ensure that 60 professional staff who provide Chronic Disease 
services attend at least 60% of five (5) training programs, with 

27 



topics to include cervical cancer, hypertension, diabetes, 
teaching techniques, and marketing skills. 

2. Ensure that 35 clerical staff who provide Chronic Disease ser
vices attend at least 50% of two (2) training programs, with 
topics to include overview of chronic disease and associated 
risk factors. 

Evaluation: 

1. Number 
Number 

2. Number 
Number 

Narrative: 

of professional staff trained 
planned 

of clerical staff trained 
planned 

64 107% 
60 

49 140% 
35 

This objective was met and exceeded. Staff development is important 
to ensure that staff maintain skill levels and have a clear under
standing of program goals and objectives. This was a new objective 
this year. 

D. MONITORING 

Objectives: 

1. Provide periodic monitoring services 
known high blood pressure. 

2. Provide periodic monitoring services 
known diabetes. 

Evaluation: 

1. Number monitored for blood pressure 
Number planned 

2. Number monitored for diabetes 
Number planned 

Narrative: 

to 5,800 patients with 

to 1,500 patients with 

16079 
5800 

4705 
1500 

277% 

314% 

The objective has been exceeded due to the popularity of the service 
in many communities. Staff has been encouraged to limit this ser
vice to devote time to higher priority services. However, local 
health departments must respond to community expectations and 
requests for services. This was a new objective this year. 
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E. SCREENING 

Objective: 

1. Provide cervical cancer screening services to 1,800 individuals, 
targeted such that at least 10% of those screened have abnormal 
readings; complete follow-up and referral for at least 85% of 
those with abnormal results. 

2. Provide breast cancer screening services and teach breast self
examination to 100% of individuals who received Pap smears; 
complete follow-up and referral for at least 85% of those with 
abnormal results. 

3. Provide blood pressure screening services to 14,000 individuals, 
targeted such that at least 20% of those screened have elevated 
readings; complete follow-up and referral for at least 85% of 
those with abnormal results. 

Evaluation: 

l.a. Number screened for cervical cancer 2001 111% 
Number planned 1800 

l.b. % abnormal 07% 70% 
% planned 10% 

l.c. % of referrals comEleted 75% 88% 
% planned 85% 

2.a. Number screened for breast cancer 1927 96% 
Number planned 2001 

2.b. % of referrals comEleted 91% 107% 
% planned 85% 

3.a. Number screened for high blood Eressure 14755 105% 
Number planned 14000 

3.b. % abnormal 13% 65% 
% planned 20% 

3.c. % referrals comEleted 74% 87% 
% planned 85% 

Narrative: 

Two parts of Objective E.l. were achieved within acceptable limits. 
The percent of abnormal findings was lower than expected. Staff 
have been encouraged to seek high risk groups to screen. However, 
these groups are difficult to find and mass screenings in community 
settings do not always reach the high risk groups. Due to changing 
program priorities de-emphasizing screening, the number screened for 
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cervical cancer decreased by 51% 
compares the district totals for 
and FY 87. 

as compared to FY 86. Table 
cervical cancer screening in FY 

II 
86 

Objective E.2. was achieved within acceptable limits. As with the 
cervical cancer screening objective, the number screened showed a 
51% decline from the number screened in FY 86. 

Two parts of Objective E.3. were achieved within acceptable limits. 
The percentage of abnormal results detected was lower than planned. 
Staff is encouraged to screen populations most likely to have 
undetected high blood pressure. In keeping with changing program 
priorities, the number screened for high blood pressure decreased 
76% as compared to FY 86. Table III compares district blood 
pressure screening activities in FY 86 and FY 87. 

Table II: Individuals Screened for Cervical Cancer by District 
FY 86 and FY 87 

District Number Screened % Change 

FY 86 FY 87 

Appalachia I 192 70 -64% 
Appalachia II 60 71 +18% 
Appalachia III 604 222 -63% 
Catawba 686 97 -86% 
East Midlands 219 161 -26% 
Edisto N/A N/A N/A 
Low Country N/A N/A N/A 
Lower Savannah 353 N/A N/A 
Pee Dee I 285 210 -26% 
Pee Dee II 694 452 -35% 
Trident 57 5 -91% 
Upper Savannah 197 108 -45% 
Waccamaw 88 114 +30% 
Wateree 458 331 -28% 
West Midlands 147 160 + 9% 
Total 4,040 2,001 -51% 

*N/A = Not Applicable. District did not plan to provide this service. 
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Table III: Individuals Screened for High Blood Pressure 
by District - FY 86 and FY 87 

District Number Screened % Change 

FY 86 FY 87 

Appalachia I 1,775 1,045 -41% 
Appalachia II 8,230 2,379 - 71% 
Appalachia III 2,975 772 -74% 
Catawba 3,880 147 -96% 
East Midlands 3,327 1,402 -58% 
Edisto 3,148 1,330 -58% 
Low Country 3,355 746 -78% 
Lower Savannah 3,498 139 -96% 
Pee Dee I 1,680 323 -81% 
Pee Dee II 2,789 2,078 -26% 
Trident 7,123 2,427 -66% 
Upper Savannah 3,416 1,201 -65% 
Waccamaw 2,862 327 -89% 
Wateree 1,474 291 -80% 
West Midlands 802 148 -82% 
Heart Association 12,030 ~ 

62,364 14,755 -76% 
*N/A = Not Applicable 

F. CANCER PROGRAM 

Objective: 

Provide or arrange for clinical outpatient care for 4450 medically 
indigent individuals with cancer. 

Evaluation: 

Number receiving services 
Number planned 

Narrative: 

4228 
4450 95% 

Achievement of this objective was within acceptable limits. 
State-Aid Cancer Clinic services were provided to 4,228 patients in 
FY 87 - 1,254 new and 2,974 continuing patients. This is 306 (7%) 
fewer patients than served in FY 86. This decrease is attributed to 
(1) a 3.9 percent reduction in patient care funds due to budget 
cuts, (2) no funds available for hospitalization, and (3) strict 
monitoring and adherence of financial eligibility and discharge 
criteria. Table IV compares Cancer Clinic activities in FY 86 and 
FY 87. 
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Table IV: Cancer Clinic Activities 
FY 86 and FY 87 

FY 86 FY 87 

Number of new patients admitted 1,313 1,254 
Number of continuing patients 3,221 2,974 
Total number of patients served 4,534 4,228 
Number of patient visits 17,388 16,996 
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COMMUNICABLE DISEASE SURVEILLANCE AND CONTROL 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source Amount 

Federal: 
Health and Human Services $2,004,480 

State: 
Line Item Appropriation 3,775,407 

Other: 
American Lung Association of South Carolina 21,000 

Total $5,800,887 

II. LEGISIATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

Sections 44-1-80, 
44-1-110, 44-1-140, 
44-29-10, 44-29-40, 
44-29-170, 44-29-180, 
47-5-50, and 47-5-150, 
S.C. Code (1976) 

Sections 44-29-60 through 
44-29-140, S.C. Code 
(1976); Section 518, 
Public Health Service Act 
(42 USC 247c) 

Title 44, Chapter 31, S.C. 
Code (1976) 

Sections 517 and 518, 
Public Health Service 
Act, Amended by P.L. 
92-449 and P.L. 94-517 

P.L. 97-55 Title V-SSA, 
45 CFR 96 

Responsibility 

Study and control communicable 
diseases. 

Study and control venereal diseases. 

To take action in all matters relating 
to the control, prevention, and 
treatment of tuberculosis. 

To assist states and communities in 
establishing and maintaining immunization 
programs for the control of vaccine
preventable diseases (measles, rubella, 
polio, diphtheria, tetanus, and mumps). 

To assure quality health care for mothers 
and children. 
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III. PROBLEM 

Communicable diseases are major public health problems in South Carolina. In 
1987, the State had 593 new cases of tuberculosis(TB) reported (case rate of 
17.4 per 100,000 population). Of increasing concern is the occurrence of TB 
in children, with 13% of the total number of cases occurring in children 
under 15 years of age. The percentage increases to 17% for the 0-19 year old 
age group. An estimated 180,000 South Carolinians have tuberculosis 
infection, and are at lifelong risk of developing active disease with the 
potential for transmitting infection to others. 

Rabies in animals is now endemic in nearly the entire State. Prompt 
prophylaxis is required to prevent an almost always fatal disease in persons 
exposed to rabies. On an annual basis, the Department estimates that 150-200 
people are exposed to potentially rabid animals and require prophylactic or 
preventive treatment. The average cost of the vaccine is $400 per person, 
excluding shipment, administration and counseling. 

An unacceptably large number (30%) of preschool children do not receive the 
recommended immunization series prior to two years of age. In the most 
recent immunization level survey conducted on a random sample of two-year old 
children (1983), only 70% of the children in the sample had completed the 
basic immunization series. Results of this survey were: 71% had four or more 
DPT shots; 81% had three or more doses of polio vaccine; 88% had measles 
vaccine; 88% had mumps and 88% had rubella vaccine. 

Outbreaks of other diseases, such as 
shigellosis, require prompt investigation 
to prevent further spread of diseases. 
reported of 21 different diseases. 

hepatitis, salmonellosis, and 
and institution of control measures 
In 1985, there were 3,187 cases 

Gonorrhea, syphilis and sexually transmitted diseases are a major public 
health problem in South Carolina. In FY 87, there were 18,343 cases of 
gonorrhea (civilian) for a rate of 512.0 per 100,000 population; 704 cases of 
infectious syphilis for a rate of 20.5 per 100,000 population; and 63 new 
cases of the Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) for a rate of 1.9 per 
100,000 population. Although the incidence rate for syphilis and gonorrhea 
in the state has been decreasing, provisional data indicate that S. C. ranks 
6th for new cases of syphilis and gonorrhea, respectively, in the nation for 
calendar year 87. 

IV. GOAL 

To reduce the occurrence of communicable diseases. 

V. OBJECTIVES 

A. To ensure that the case rate for tuberculosis does 
not exceed 17 cases per 100,000 population. 
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EVALUATION: 

A. 1. 

2. 

3. 

NARRATIVE: 

No. of TB patients adhering 
to chemotherapy regimens 
No. of TB patients with 
chemotherapy prescribed 

Jul-Dec 

368 
370 

99% 

Jan-June 

275 = 99% 
277 

No. of TB patients completing 
prescribed chemotherapy by FY 87 434 
No. of TB patients with chemotherapy 448 
prescribed in FY 85 

No. of contacts examined 4934 
No. of contacts identified 5218 

95% 

97% 

The objectives were essentially met. The data for Measure 1 cannot be 
combined due to the dynamics of the register. 
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TABLE I 
Tuberculosis Data for South Carolina 

FY 86 and FY 87 

Newly reported cases 
New case rate per 100,000 population 

Contacts Identified 
Examined 
% examined 
% Started on preventive 
treatment (Infected) 

FY 86 
566* 

17.l* 

6,747 
6,517 

97% 

75% 

Summary of cases in the register as of June 30 
Total 342 

2 Hospitalized for TB 
Hospitalized or institutionalized 
not primarily for TB 

At home 
% Cases with recommended bacteriology 
% Total cases (hospitalized, 
institutionalized, and at home) 
on recommended treatment 

Therapy Completion 
% Cases completing recommended 

treatment within two years 
% Contacts completing recommended 
treatment within one year 

% Others at risk completing recommended 
treatment within one year 

Mortality 
Tuberculosis deaths 
Tuberculosis death rate 
(per 100,000 population) 

* Calendar Year 1985 Data 
** Calendar Year 1986 Data 

9 
331 

97% 

99% 

98% 

83% 

74% 

19* 

0.6* 

B. To prevent the occurrence of rabies in humans. 

EVALUATION: 

B. No. surviving rabies exposure 
No. exposed to rabies 

NARRATIVE: 

The objective was met. 
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177 
177 

FY 87 
593** 

17.4** 

5,218 
4,934 

95% 

71% 

212 
3 

5 
204 

96% 

99% 

97% 

83% 

70% 

22** 

0.6** 

100% 



C. 1. To raise the percentage of children completing 
the basic immunization series in health 
department clinics by age two years from 80% to 
84%. 

2. To maintain at 98% the number of students, 
grades kindergarten through twelve, receiving 
the required immunizations. 

EVALUATION: 

C. 1. % 2 year old with completed basic 
immunization series in DHEC clinics 
% Planned (84%) 

2. % students grades K-12 with 
completed immunization series 
% Planned (98%) 

NARRATIVE: 

67% 
84% 

99% 
98% 

80% 

100% 

While the level of completion for two year old children was 
less than projected, the level of school age children 
who have completed the immunization series was met, 
helping to ensure against vaccine-preventable disease 
outbreaks in the schools of the state. 

TABLE II 
REPORTED INCIDENCE OF VACCINE-PREVENTABLE DISEASE 

FY 86 AND FY 87 

Disease FY 86 FY 87 

Diphtheria 0 0 
Measles 287 3 
Mumps 14 9 
Pertussis 8 9 
Poliomyelitis 0 0 
Rubella 0 0 
Tetanus 0 0 
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TABLE III 
TOTAL DOSES OF VACCINE ADMINISTERED 
IN PUBLIC HEALTH CLINICS BY ANTIGEN 

FY 86 AND FY 87 

Antigen 

Diphtheria-Tetanus-Pertussis 
Tetanus-Diphtheria (Adult) 
Oral Polio Vaccine (Sabin) 
Inactivated Polio Vaccine 
Measles-Mumps-Rubella 
Measles-Rubella 
Measles 
Mumps 
Rubella 

FY 86 

144,735 
25,472 

117,434 
676 

39,686 
2,320 
2,325 

376 
1,280 

FY 87 

124,243 
21,016 

106,651 
679 

29,328 
551 
502 
241 
704 

D. To carry out surveillance and investigation of 95% 
of outbreaks of other communicable diseases, and to 
provide recommendations to control 100% of the 
outbreaks requiring such services. 

EVALUATION: 

D. 1. Number of outbreaks investigated 
Number of outbreaks x .95% 

7 
6.7 

2. No. outbreaks 

NARRATIVE: 

provided control services 
No. outbreaks 
requiring control services 

The objective was met. 
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Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD), chiefly syphilis and gonorrhea, 
have been major health problems in South Carolina. The Venereal 
Disease Control Division has developed a five-year plan (1985-1990) 
using a planning/management strategy developed by the Health Analysis 
and Planning Branch, Center for Professional Development and Training, 
Centers for Disease Control. This is year two of a five year planning 
cycle that used identification of health problems as the basis for 
plan development. This system utilizes related long term objectives, 
intermediate objectives, and short term objectives to determine 
outcome. The outcome objective is directed at achieving a change in 
health status through a combination of educational activities and 
targeted medical service care for the patient. This plan is designed 
to shift resources as health problems and health needs change. By 
understanding the relationship between the magnitude of a health 
problem and the availability of resources, realistic and measurable 
objectives are then projected for various levels of program activity. 
Since the format of the plan and its objectives are different from 
this, the plan and evaluation are presented at the end of this docu
ment. 

PROBLEM STATEMENT 

In 1987, South Carolina had a gonorrhea rate of 512 per 100,000 and a 
syphilis rate of 21.4 per 100,000. 

Determinants of the STD problems are: Sex with an 
infected person; (non-use of condoms and multiple 
sex partners). 

Contributing factors of these problems are: Lack of 
knowledge among high risk groups of transmission, 
pathology, and prevention methods of sexually 
transmitted diseases (STDs), inconvenient/unacceptable/ 
unavailable prevention methods, lack of treatment 
compliance, incomplete naming and referral of 
contacts, increased sexual activity at young ages, 
lack of social activities among lower social-economic 
groups, alcohol/drug use prior to sex, asymptomatic 
infection in females, and lack of employment 
opportunities. 

Outcome Objectives 

By July 1, 1990, the gonorrhea 
rate in South Carolina will be 
450-500/100,000. 
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IMPACT OBJECTIVE: 

1. By July 1, 1987 the case rate of gonorrhea will be 543/100,000. 

EVALUATION: 

Planned case rate 
Actual case rate 

NARRATIVE: 

543 
512 

106% 

The case rate for gonorrhea continued to decrease at a rate which 
was greater than expected, as a result of screening and follow up 
efforts in several of the larger health districts. The most 
significant decreases in the case rates occurred in Appalachia 
II, Trident, Wateree, and West Midlands Health Districts. Over
all, only five districts had increased case rates from FY 86, 
while there were ten districts where a decline occurred, as 
displayed in Table V. 

PROCESS OBJECTIVE: 

1. A. By July 1, 1987, the contact index for males treated for 
gonorrhea will average 1 per case interviewed. 

EVALUATION: 

NARRATIVE: 

Actual contact index 
Planned contact index 

1.45 
1.00 

145% 

The objective was met as a result of intensive interviewing of 
resistant gonorrhea cases--a high program priority in the control 
of the gonorrhea case rate. 

PROCESS OBJECTIVE: 

1. B. By July 1, 1987, reduce the PID rate in South Carolina 
from 20/100,000 to 15/100,000. 

EVALUATION: 

NARRATIVE: 

Planned PID case rate 
Actual PID case rate 

15.0 = 217% 
6.9 

The actual rate is at a much lower than projected level for 
several reasons: the lowering of the overall gonorrhea case rate, 
thereby reducing the at-risk group for PID; and the reduced 
resources available for follow up of PID cases as a result of the 
increased numbers of treatment-resistant gonorrhea cases. 
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Outcome Objective 

By July 1, 1990, the primary 
and secondary syphilis rate 
for S.C. will be 10-15/100,000. 

IMPACT OBJECTIVE: 

Evaluation 

Planned 10-15/100,000 
Actual rate 

1. By July 1, 1987, the case rate of primary and secondary 
syphilis cases will be reduced to 17/100,000 (revised). 

EVALUATION: 

NARRATIVE: 

Planned case rate 
Planned case rate 

17.0 
21.4 

79% 

Outbreaks in West Midlands, Lower Savannah, Waccamaw, and Pee Dee 
I Health Districts prevented the attainment of the objective. 
Although the case rate increased by approximately 4% from FY 86, 
significant decreases in the case rate occurred in East Midlands, 
Edisto, and Upper Savannah Health Districts. Overall, the case 
rate increased in eight health districts, while declining in 
seven, as displayed in Table V. 

PROCESS OBJECTIVE: 

1. A. By July 1, 1987, 85% of patients diagnosed with early 
syphilis will be interviewed within 3 days of diagnosis. 

EVALUATION: 

NARRATIVE: 

Actual interviewed within 3 days 
Planned% interviewed (85%) 

94% = 111% 
85% 

The planned level for the process objective was set too low, even 
though allowances were made for rural areas along with outbreak 
situations. 

PROCESS OBJECTIVE: 

1. B. By July l, 1987, 95% of early syphilis contacts will be 
examined; 75% will be examined within 3 days of interview; 
85% within 7 days. 

EVALUATION: 

1. B.l. Actual% examined 
Percent Planned (95%) 
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1. B.2. Actual% examined within 3 days 53% 70% 
Percent planned (75%) 75% 

1. B.3. Actual% examined within 7 days 71% 83% 
Percent planned (85%) 85% 

NARRATIVE: 

Outbreak situations along with local demographics make it diffi
cult at best to achieve this level on a statewide basis; while 
this level is acceptable in metropolitan areas, the level should 
be only 65% in rural areas. 

PROCESS OBJECTIVE: 

1. C. By July 1, 1987, 70% of syphilis reactors will 
be dispositioned within 3 calendar days; 85% 
within 7 days. 

EVALUATION: 

1. C. l. Actual disEositioned within 3 days 59% 84% 
Planned within 3 days (70%) 70% 

1. C. l. Actual disEositioned within 7 days 74% 87% 
Planned within 7 days (85%) 85% 

NARRATIVE: 

It is extremely difficult to achieve a statewide level of 
closure("disposition") of 70% of positive syphilis serologies 
within 3 calendar days and 85% within 7 calendar days; while 
these levels are achievable for metropolitan areas, present 
resources do not permit the achievement of this goal for rural 
areas. 

PROCESS OBJECTIVE: 

1. D. By July 1, 1987, interviewing of early syphilis cases will 
produce a disease intervention index of .80 (case brought 
to treatment or contact prevented from being infected by 
preventive treatment). 

EVALUATION: 

Actual disease intervention index 0.68 85% 
Planned disease intervention index (0.80) 0.80 

NARRATIVE: 

The objective was not met because of the outbreak situations,as 
well as local demographics making it difficult to achieve this 
level on a statewide basis. 
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PROCESS OBJECTIVE: 

1. E. By July 1, 1987, 25% of infectious syphilis patients 
treated in STD clinics will present within 7 days from the 
onset of symptoms. 

EVALUATION: 

Actual% presenting within 7 days 16% = 64% 
% Planned(25%) 25% 

NARRATIVE: 

Although the objective was not met, it should be noted that 28% 
of those patients who were diagnosed as being infected with 
primary syphilis presented within 7 days of the reported onset of 
symptoms. Only 9% of those infected with secondary syphilis 
presented within 7 days of the onset of secondary manifestations. 

TABLE IV 
SYPHILIS AND GONORRHEA CASES BY HEALTH DISTRICT 

FY 86 AND FY 87 
INFECTIOUS TOTAL TOTAL 

HEALTH SYPHILIS SYPHILIS GONORRHEA 
DISTRICT FY 86 FY 87 FY 86 FY 87 FY 86 FY 87 

APPALACHIA I 14 3 28 16 803 647 
APPALACHIA II 52 40 108 98 3107 2077 
APPALACHIA III 49 58 78 128 1105 1224 
CATAWBA 26 21 43 so 897 922 
EAST MIDLANDS 186 163 314 276 2791 2671 
EDISTO 35 23 83 63 1350 1270 
LOW COUNTRY 21 26 36 47 513 534 
LOWER SAVANNAH 16 42 26 71 733 695 
PEE DEE I 37 57 80 124 1040 1192 
PEE DEE II 8 6 15 22 520 406 
TRIDENT 49 73 106 153 3073 2393 
UPPER SAVANNAH 52 30 94 65 956 979 
WACCAMAW 91 103 200 206 1021 886 
WATEREE 42 52 81 91 1776 1511 
WEST MIDLANDS 12 35 24 64 500 352 

OTHER: 
INSTITUTIONS 9 11 37 35 1 0 
MILITARY 5 5 10 18 956 584 

STATE TOTAL: 704 748 1363 1527 21144 18343 
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TABLE V 
SYPHILIS AND GONORRHEA CASE RATES BY HEALTH DISTRICT 

FY 86 AND FY 87 

HEALTH 
DISTRICT 
APPALACHIA I 
APPALACHIA II 
APPALACHIA III 
CATAWBA 
EAST MIDLANDS 
EDISTO 
LOW COUNTRY 
LOWER SAVANNAH 
PEE DEE I 
PEE DEE II 
TRIDENT 
UPPER SAVANNAH 
WACCAMAW 
WATEREE 
WEST MIDLANDS 

STATE 

INFECTIOUS 
SYPHILIS 
FY 86 FY 87 

7.2 2.0 
13.3 10.1 
17.3 20.3 
12.7 10.1 
60.6 52.3 
29.7 19.3 
13.5 15.9 
10.9 28.1 
20.1 30.6 

5. 8 4. 3 
9.9 14.3 

28.5 16.2 
41. 8 45. 0 
22.6 27.4 
6.3 17.8 

TOTAL 
SYPHILIS 

FY 86 FY 87 
14.3 8.0 
27.6 24.7 
27.6 44.9 

· 21.1 24.0 
102.2 88.6 

70.4 52.8 
23.1 28.8 
17.7 47.5 
43.5 66.6 
10.9 15.9 
21.5 30.0 
51.5 35.1 
91. 8 89. 9 
43.6 48.0 
12.5 32.5 

20.6 21.4 39.9 43.5 
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TOTAL 
GONORRHEA 

FY 86 FY 87 
410.4 324.1 
794.8 523.5 
390.8 429.0 
439.3 442.6 
908.8 857.6 

1145.4 1063.6 
329.7 326.8 
500.0 464.7 
565.8 640.4 
379.6 293.8 
623.8 469.1 
523.4 529.0 
468.5 386.7 
955.4 797.5 
261.2 178.9 

595.1 512.0 



DRUG CONTROL 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source: 

State: 
Line item appropriation 

Other: 
Earned Revenue 

Total: 

Amount 

$403,772 

$440,242 

$844,014 

II. LEGISIATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

Section 44-53-290, 
S.C. Code of Laws 

Section 44-53-370, 
S.C. Code of Laws 
Section 44-53-380, 
S.C. Code of Laws 
Section 44-53-480, 

III. PROBLEM 

Responsibility 

To register every person who 
manufactures, distributes, or 
dispenses any controlled substances. 

To take administrative or criminal 
action in all matters relating to 
the control of the legal use of 
controlled substances through the 
investigation of the various 
forms of diversion and to perform 
periodic Laws inspections and audits on the 
controlled substance stocks and records of 
registrants. 

Drug abuse results in psychological and physiological dependence and 
constitutes one of the major public health and sociological maladies 
in the United States today. It is a significant contributing agent to 
such public health problems as serum hepatitis, malnutrition; venereal 
disease, mental and emotional deterioration and death by overdose. 
Frequently, criminal activity such as larceny, prostitution, armed 
robbery and homicide are directly attributable to the individual's need 
to gratify his or her drug dependence or addiction. 

IV. GOAL 

To substantially reduce and ultimately eliminate drug abuse within the 
State by effecting and maintaining a system of closed distribution for 
controlled substances. 
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V. OBJECTIVE 

To obtain major decreases in the incidence of diversion from regis
trants to the individuals who are not legally authorized to possess or 
use controlled substances. 

EVALUATION: 

No. inspections made 
No. inspections planned 

No. of audits made 
No. of audits planned 

NARRATIVE: 

1101 
1000 

70 
64 

110% 

109% 

The objective for the number of inspections performed has been met. 

As seen in Table I, there has been an increase in the total number of all 
registrants of 2% over FY 1986. 

Table II shows there were 30 fewer registrant thefts and 103,271 fewer 
dosage units diverted during FY 1987 as compared to FY 1986. 

TABLE I NUMBER OF REGISTRATIONS BY TYPE 

Number of Registrants 

Change 
Type of Registrant FY 86 FY 87 Number Percent 

Pharmacies 928 930 +2 0.2% 
Physicians 5390 5254 -136 2.5% 
Dentists 1339 1327 -12 0.9% 
Veterinarians 322 324 +2 0.6% 
Distributors 9 10 +l 11.1% 
Manufacturers 1 1 0 0.0% 
Hospital/Clinic 263 246 -17 6.5% 
Others 107 108 +l 0.9% 
TOTALS 8359 8200 -159 1. 9% 
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TABLE II 

NUMBER OF THEFTS AND INDIVIDUAL DOSAGE UNITS TAKEN BY TYPE OF REGISTRANT 

FY 84 FY 87 

Type Number of Thefts Individual Dosage Units Taken 

Registrant FY 84 FY 85 FY 86 FY 87 FY 84 FY 85 FY 86 FY 87 

Pharmacy 75 72 93 70 96,054 142,592 182,882 110,533 
Physicians 6 7 7 6 137 1,187 158 258 
Dentists 4 3 4 3 271 20 0 349 
Veterinarians 2 1 2 0 0 0 1,025 0 
Hospital/Clinic 16 16 18 14 12,648 1,827 783 3,011 
All Others 1 2 6 7 100 300 38,245 5,671 

Total 104 101 130 100 109,210 145,926 223,093 119,822 

There were 31% more prosecutions and 83% more registrations revoked, sus
pended, restricted, etc. for FY 1987 as compared to FY 1986. 

The movement toward closing the distribution system, along with continued 
updating of personnel training and registrant cooperation, should allow for 
a positive trend in dealing with the diversion problem. 
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ENVIRONMENTAL SANITATION 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source: Amount 

Federal: 
United States Department of Agriculture 
Maternal and Child Health Block Grant (Lead) 

$ 33,035 
60,347 

State: 
Line item appropriation 
Budget reductions during FY 87, 
Net line item appropriation for FY 87 

2,711,019 
(248,317) 

2,462,702 

Other: 
Sale of small items 
Typhus revolving fund 
Environmental sanitation fees 
Total 

22,650 
155,504 
174,415 

$2,908,653 

II. LEGISLATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

S. C. Code of Laws: 
Section 44-1-140 

Section 44-1-140 
Section 39-37-120 

Section 44-1-140 Section 
44-55-210, et seq. Section 
44-55-610, et seq. Section 
47-5-10, et seq. 

Responsibility 

To promulgate and enforce 
regulations regarding sanita
tion of all public and pri
vate food service establish
ments and retail food stores. 

To promulgate and enforce 
regulations regarding the 
production, processing, sto
ring, labeling, transporta
tion, and selling of milk and 
milk products, and bottling 
plants, and frozen desserts. 

To promulgate and enforce 
regulations regarding the 
sanitation of hotels, camps, 
schools, ice plants, adult 
day care facilities, mobile 
home parks, methods of on
site disposal and treatment 
of sewage, approval of sub
divisions and the control of 
rabies. 
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Section 44-1-140 

Section 44-1-110 
Section 44-1-140 

III. PROBLEM 

To promulgate and enforce 
regulations of the control of 
disease bearing insects. 

To protect the health and 
well being of the people of 
S. C. from accidental injury 
and hazards in the home and 
school environment. 

The health and well being of the people of South Carolina is 
affected by insanitary conditions associated with individual 
water supplies, individual waste disposal systems, food service 
establishments, markets, food vending machines, camps, schools, 
day and residential care facilities, hotels, mobile home parks, 
dairy farms, milk pasteurization plants and soft drinks; by the 
adulteration or contamination of food, milk, milk products and 
soft drinks; by insect and other animal vectors and by hazardous 
conditions, and hazardous products. 

IV. GOAL 

To protect the people of South Carolina from communicable disease 
and environmental hazards; to insure that food, milk, milk 
products and soft drinks provided on a retail basis for human 
consumption are safe, wholesome and sanitary; to protect the 
populace from those illnesses and nuisances associated with 
insect and animal vectors and lead and to protect their health 
and well-being from accidental inJury and hazards in the 
non-occupational home and school environment. 

V. OBJECTIVES 

A. To insure compliance with the rules and regulations related 
to dairy foods and bottled products. 

1. To conduct 4,300 inspections, investigations and other field 
activities, issue and suspend permits as necessary at dairy 
farms, pasteurization plants, ice cream plants, milk distri
bution stations, single service container plants and soft 
drink bottling plants. 

2. To collect 11,500 samples to be used in grading the facili
ties regulated. 
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EVALUATION: 

A.l. 

A.2. 

NARRATIVE: 

No. field activities completed 
No. planned 

No. samples collected 
No. planned 

4252 
4300 

10,495 
11,500 

99% 

91% 

The evaluations of Objectives A.l. and A.2. were within acceptable 
limits. 

TABLE I ACTIVITIES - DAIRY FOODS 
AND BOTTLED PRODUCTS 

FY 86 
Dairy Farms 
Number of Farms 325 
Number of Field Activities 2784 

Average Field Activities/Farm 8.57 
Permits Suspended 15 

Pasteurization Plants 
Number of Plants 15 
Number of Field Activities 747 

Average Field Activities/Plant 49.80 

Frozen Dairy Food Plants 
Number of Plants 5 
Number of Field Activities 95 

Average Field Activities/Plant 19.00 

Soft Drink Bottling Plants 
Number of Plants 18 
Number of Field Activities 90 

Average Activities/Plant 5.00 

FY 87 

278 
2722 
9.79 

27 

15 
731 

48.73 

5 
93 

18.60 

16 
90 

5.63 

%Change 

- 14% 
2% 

+ 14% 
+ 80% 

2% 
2% 

2% 
2% 

- 11% 

+ 13% 

B. To insure compliance with rules and regulations related to 
food service. 

1. To insure that inspections and other field activities are 
done (61,470 planned), permits issued and necessary legal 
action taken at retail markets and convenience stores, 
food service establishments (permanent, temporary and 
mobile), food vending sites and in meat transportation 
vehicles and in so doing to meet eighty-four percent 
(84%) of the identified need. 

2. To evaluate sanitary conditions in food service estab
lishments and administrative procedures by a state 
survey. 
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EVALUATION: 

B.1.a. No. field activities completed 
No. planned 

NARRATIVE: 

59,748 
61,470 

97% 

The evaluation of Objective B.l.a. was within the acceptable 
limits. 

The permits of twenty-five food service establishments or retail 
markets were suspended for poor sanitary conditions which repre
sented potential health hazards. 

EVALUATION: 

B.l.b. Percent of need met 
Percent planned 

NARRATIVE: 

90 = 107% 
84 

Through the activities listed in Objective B.l. it was planned to 
meet 84% of the identified needs related to food service. Actual 
performance resulted in 90% of the need being met for a performance 
evaluation of 107%. 

TABLE II ACTIVITIES - FOOD PROTECTION 

Permanent Food Service 
Number of Establishments 
Number of Field Activities 
Average of Field Activities/ 

Establishment 

Retail Markets 
Number of Markets 
Number of Field Activities 
Average Field Activities/Market 

Convenience Stores 
Number of Stores 
Number of Field Activities 
Average Field Activities/Store 

Other Food Protection Field Activities 
Vending 
Temporary Food Service 
Meat Transportation 

FY 86 

10,268 
49,984 

4.87 

1,259 
5,450 
4.33 

1,452 
2,237 
1.54 

226 
3,105 

358 

NOTE: FIGURES ABOVE DO NOT INCLUDE CITY C 
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FY 87 

10,700 
48,308 

4.51 

1,228 
5,048 
4.11 

1,260 
2,230 
1. 77 

63 
3,463 

239 

i...UMBIA 

Percent 
Change 

+ 4% 
3% 

7% 

3% 
7% 
5% 

- 13% 
.3% 

+ 15% 

- 72% 
+ 12% 
- 33% 



C. To insure that inspections and other field activities (10,428 
planned) are done, permits issued and suspended and other 
legal action taken that assures compliance with the rules and 
regulations governing camps, hotels, ice plants, schools, and 
mobile home parks and in so doing to meet fifty-eight percent 
(58%) of the identified need. 

EVALUATION: 

C.1. No. of field activities completed 
No. of field activities planned 

NARRATIVE: 

8,205 
10,428 

79% 

Activities related to this objective are of a lower priority than 
others, notably B. 1. and D. In order to meet the demand for 
services (Objective D.) and perform needed food related inspec
tions, activities planned for this objective were not done. 

EVALUATION: 

C.2. Percent of need met 
Percent planned 

NARRATIVE: 

45 = 78% 
58 

Through the activities listed in Objective C.1. it was planned to 
meet 58% of the identified needs related to the facilities regulated. 
Actual performance resulted in only 45% of the need being met for a 
performance evaluation of 78%. 
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TABLE III ROUTINE ACTIVITIES - GENERAL SANITATION 

Camps 
Number of Camps 
Number of Field Activities 
Average Field Activities/Camp 

Hotels-Motels 
Number of Hotels-Motels 
Number of Field Activities 
Average Field Activities/ 

Hotels-Motels 

Ice Plants 
Number of Ice Plants 
Number of Field Activities 
Average Field Activities/Plant 

Schools 
Number of Schools 
Number of Field Activities 
Average Field Activities/School 

Mobile Home Parks 
Number of Mobile Home Parks 
Number of Field Activities 
Average Field Activities/Mobile 

Home Park 

FY 86 

320 
458 

1.43 

1,091 
1,060 

.97 

35 
35 

1.00 

1,203 
2,122 
1. 76 

3,675 
7,219 

1. 96 

FY 87 

322 
382 

1.19 

1,125 
1,020 

.91 

34 
29 

.85 

1,200 
1,912 

1.59 

2,854* 
4,862 

1. 70 

Percent 
Change 

+ 1% 
17% 
17% 

+ 3% 
3% 

+ 6% 

3% 
- 18% 
- 15% 

- 10% 
- 10% 

- 22% 
- 32% 

- 13% 

*A FY 87 Regulation change no longer requires mobile home parks 
with 5 or fewer spaces to be permitted. 

D. Upon request, insure that an estimated 122,347 inspections and 
other field activities are conducted, permits issued and legal 
action taken to assure compliance with rules and regulations 
in the areas of individual on-site waste disposal, sub
divisions, private water supplies, day care facilities, and 
foster homes. 

EVALUATION: 

D. No. of field activities completed 
No. of field activities planned 

NARRATIVE: 

131,464 
122,347 

107% 

The evaluation of this objective was within acceptable limits. The 
activities actually accomplished were beyond those planned and 
occurred primarily in connection with the septic tank program. The 
seven percent overage (9,117 activities) represents approximately 
8.25 man-years of effort on this program above that planned. 
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TABLE IV SEPTIC TANK PROGRAM ACTIVITIES 

FY 86 FY 87 % Change 

Sites Evaluated 26,286 27,889 + 6% 
Sites Acceptable for 

Conventional Systems 21,515 22,383 + 4% 
Sites Acceptable for 

Alternative Systems 4,568 4,106 -10% 

Sites Not Acceptable for 
Any System 1,061 997 - 6% 

(Percent Not Acceptable) 4.0% 3.6+ -10% 

Conventional Installations 17,404 18,509 + 6% 
Alternative Installations 3,339 2,661 -20% 

In order to overcome site conditions that prevented conventional 
septic tank systems from being approved, staff designed and ap
proved for use thirty-one different types of alternative systems 
for 2,661 sites. 

TABLE V NON-ROUTINE ACTIVITIES - GENERAL SANITATION 

Day Care/Foster Home/Other 
Institutions 

Septic Tank 
Subdivisions 
Private Water 

EVALUATION: 

D.2. Percent of need met 
Percent planned 

NARRATIVE: 

105 
97 

FY 86 

3,561 
114,093 

4,552 
3,129 

108% 

FY 87 

3,584 
117,181 

5,222 
2,530 

% Change 

+ 1% 
+ 3% 
+ 15% 
- 20% 

The activities related to Objective D. are performed as a result of 
requests from the public. Planning is based on projections and 
estimates. All of the activities related to Objective D. are 
considered high priority. This year requested activities exceeded 
planned expectations by 7% (Objective D. 1.). Staff was able to 
respond to more requests than anticipated; however not all requests 
could be met within our standards for timeliness. Response to 
service requests were provided at the expense of routine services 
related to other objectives. 
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EVALUATION: 

E. To protect from the possibilities of rabies outbreaks by 
promoting and establishing rabies immunization clinics and by 
conducting animal bite investigations, taking legal actions 
and other field activities. 

EVALUATION: 

E.1. No. field activities completed 
No. planned 

E.2. Percent of need met 
Percent planned 

Rabies Clinics Promoted 

NARRATIVE: 

Objectives were met. 

X 

24,176 
20,684 

94 = 106% 
89 

Yes 

117% 

No 

F. To provide technical information, services, vector control 
support and resources at the state, district and local levels 
and to insure that inspections and other field activities 
(21,218 planned) are conducted related to local vector control 
problems. 

EVALUATION: 

F.l.a. No. of field activities completed 
No. planned 

F.1.b. Percent of need met 
Percent planned 

NARRATIVE: 

96 
76 

126% 

22,698 
21,218 

107% 

The evaluation of Objective F. was within acceptable limits. 
Trucks, mosquito light traps, and hand larvicide cans were supplied 
to approved local programs. There were 72 trucks, 95 light traps 
and 80 hand spray cans in use. This equipment is used to encourage 
the development of effective mosquito control programs. Malathion 
for mosquito control programs was distributed to local programs. 
The vectorborne disease action plan was updated. Requests for 
service or information related to entomological problems, vector 
problems, and rodent and fly problems were answered. Ten people 
received training related to flies and fly control. There were 15 
service requests involving flies. 
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TABLE VI ACTIVITIES- VECTOR CONTROL 

FY 86 FY 87 % Change 

Malathion Distributed (gallons) 13,311 10,034 - 25% 
Service Requests 705 700 1% 
Information Requests 1,980 2,040 + 3% 
Summer Vector Control Workers 

Assigned 13 0 -100% 
Public Notice Permits Reviewed 620 1,022 + 65% 

G.l. To conduct a public information campaign designed to inform 
the people of South Carolina ~f accident problems and poten
tially hazardous products. 

EVALUATION: 

G.1.a. No. of field activities completed 
No. planned 

G.1.b. Percent of need met 43 102% 
Percent planned 42 

2,026 = 82% 
2,464 

Through the activities listed in Objective G.1., it was planned . to 
meet 42% of the identified needs related to the problems described. 
Actual performance resulted in 43% of the need being met for a 
performance evaluation of 102%. 

NARRATIVE: 

The evaluation of all Objectives were within the acceptable limits. 

H. To conduct 2,967 investigations of premises related to elevated 
blood lead levels. 

EVALUATION: 

H.1.a. 

H.1.b. 

No. of field activities completed 
No. planned 

Percent of need met 
Percent planned 

NARRATIVE: 

2,166 
2,967 

72 
77 

73% 

94% 

Requests for inspections of day care centers for lead hazards 
declined through the year as staff completed a review of all 
centers. Although objective H.1. was not within the standard we 
has set, all necessary inspections were made within the appropriate 
program time limits. 
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HEALTH HAZARD EVALUATION 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source 

Federal: 
Hazardous Waste Management Cooperative 

Agreement (EPA) 

State: 
Personnel and Classified 

Total: 

II. LEGISLATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Amount 

$22,000 

$165,969 

$187,969 

The General Assembly has appropriated funds specifically for this 
program. 

III. PROBLEM 

The potential for exposure to hazardous environmental substances 
exists in occupational, community and recreational settings and 
raises the issue of possible adverse health effects for 
individuals in those settings. For many years, attention has 
been focused primarily on risks associated with 
occupationally-related exposures. However, medical and 
regulatory authorities have become increasingly aware of the need 
to investigate and assess potential risk to individuals in all 
settings. This process is often complicated by the absence of 
standards establishing acceptable limits of exposure. The general 
public also has become more aware of potential adverse health 
effects related to exposure. The presence of commercial 
landfills, toxic waste sites, incinerators, a substantial 
chemical industry and nuclear reactors in South Carolina, and the 
impact they might have on the environment, are matters of concern 
to its citizens. The staff of the Division of Health Hazard 
Evaluation is called upon, more and more, to address community 
and occupational concerns, assess the impact on health, and to 
act in the public interest to ensure safety. 

IV. GOAL 

To assess the adverse health effects potentially 
hazardous environmental substances in order to 
eliminate unnecessary exposures to the public. 
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V. OBJECTIVES 

A. To identify, 
health risks 
substances. 

evaluate, 
created by 

and respond 
environmental 

to real 
exposure 

or 
to 

potential 
hazardous 

B. To conduct state-wide surveillance needed to investigate and 
analyze the potential health risk associated with exposure 
to environmental hazards. 

C. To act as an information resource for those groups concerned 
with potential health effects associated with hazardous 
substances. 

Al. 

EVALUATIONS: 

No. of reported exposures to the public from toxic 
substances which were responded to 
No. of reported exposures to the public from toxic 
substances which required a response 

2. No. of toxicological/health assessments on reported 
adverse health effects 
No. of reported adverse health effects 

3. No. of field investigations conducted 
No. of hazardous exposures requiring a field 
investigation 

Bl. Development of a Statewide Toxicological Program 

Cl. No. of consultations provided 

C2. No. of presentations made 

NARRATIVE: 

The Objectives for FY87 were met. 

284 - 100% 
284 

27 
27 

22 
24 

36 

107 

100% 

92% 

During FY86 and FY87, activities of this Division increased 
3-fold as members of the general public, academia, industry, and other 
state and federal agencies became aware of the services it provides. 

Based on present day concerns for the quality 
and its impact on the public's health, the current 
is expected to increase in the years to come. 
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LABORATORY 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source Amount 

State: 
Line item appropriation ••••••••••••••••••• $3 .032.460 

Other: 
Earned revenue - private sector and other 

State Agencies•••••••••••••••••••••••••• 716.139 
1.034.446 

$4. 783 .045 
Intra Agency Program Assessments ••••••••••• 
Total . ........ • •... • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 

II: LEGISLATIVE OR CO~RESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

Section 44-1-80, 
s.c. Code 

Section 44-1-110, 
s.c. Code 

Section 44-1-140. 
s.c. Code 

Section 44-1-180, 
s.c. Code 
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Responsibility 

Shall investigate the reported 
causes of communicable or epidemic 
disease. 

Investigate the causes. character 
and means of preventing such 
epidemic and endemic diseases as 
the State is liable to suffer from. 

Make. adopt. promulgate and enforce 
reasonable rules and regulations 
••• for the control of disease
bearing insects ••• for the control 
of industrial plants. including the 
protection of workers from fumes, 
gases and dust ••• for the care. 
segregation and isolation of per
sons having any communicable, con
tagious or infectious disease ••• for 
the thorough investigation and 
study of the causes of all disease, 
epidemic and othenrise, in this 
State, the means for the preven
tion of contagious disease and the 
publication and distribution of 
such information as may contribute 
to the preservation of the public 
health and the prevention of 
disease. 

••• establish charges for physi
cians. laboratory technicians and 
other professional and sub-profes
sional health workers. 



Section 44-29-120, 
S.C. Code 

Section 44-33-10, 
S.C. Code 

Section 44-37-30, 
S. C. Code 

I II. PROBLEM 

Serological blood tests for preg
nant women, ••• shall submit such 
sample to an approved lab for a 
standard serological test for.sy
philis, rubella, Rh factor and a 
hemoglobin determination.~ ••••••• 

••• initiate a sickle cell education 
and prevention program ••• which 
shall provide laboratory testing of 
black citizens. 

Every child born in this State 
shall have neonatal testing to 
detect inborn metabolic errors ••• 
and hemoglobinopathies. 

Infectious diseases are the leading cause of morbidity in the United 
States. As some diseases are being controlled, new infectious agents 
are being recognized. Sixty-seven (67) cases of AIDS have been 
identified in South Carolina. While syphilis and gon;~;hea continue to 
cause illness, venereal diseases such as chlamydia and herpes are on 
the increase. Laboratory testing is essential for accurate diagnosis. 
In 1985, 566 new cases of TH were reported in South Carolina. 
Laboratory support is needei to identify new cases and monitor 
patients on therapy. Gonorrhea strains resistant to commonly used 
antibiotics have emerged in South Carolina. Laboratory testing 
provides information for effective drug therapy. 

The number of humans exposed to suspected rabies increased 
dramatically. Laboratory testing of the suspect animal for rabies can 
reduce the risk and cost of unnecessary treatment. 

Vaccine programs require laboratory support to determine population at 
risk, and measure vaccine efficiency. 

Laboratory evaluation is essential to identify environmental hazards, 
i.e .• asbestos, so that proper removal or containment procedures can 
be initiated. 

Surveillance of dairy and food products is needed to assure that the 
public is protected from infectious and noxious agents in the food 
supply. Laboratory testing is an integral part of this program. 

Laboratory investigation and surveillance supports OSHA regulatory 
programs to assure safe working conditions for South Carolinians .. 

Metabolic Disorders, i.e •• PKU, hypothyroidism and sickle cell anemia 
can cause permanent disability or death if not detected and treated 
soon after birth. Laboratory. 
disorders. 
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Lead ingestion is a major cause of anemia in children 1-6 years of 
age. Laboratory testing is essential to establish etiology. 

Alcohol and drug treatment centers require laboratory support to 
determine effectiveness of treatment. 

IV. GOAL 

Reduce incidence of illness and death among South Carolinians by 
providing laboratory support to agency programs, other government 
health care providers, and the private medical community for the 
accurate diagnosis, prevention and surveillance of infectious and 
chronic disease, congenital disorders and environmental hazards. 

V. OBJECTIVE 

A. Provide testing for 620,000 specimens for the detection, 
diagnosis, prevention and surveillance of infectious diseases, 
congenital disorders, and environmental hazards. 

EVALUATION: 

A. 1. No. of tests performed 
No. projected 

655,551 = 106% 
620,000 

2. Lab Licensed. Yes X No 

NARRATIVE 

This objective was met and exceeded. 

The Bureau of Laboratories examined 655,551 specimens during FY-87. 
There was a major shift in certain tests where new technology was 
substituted for older methods (Table 1). These new tests were more 
sensitive, more specific, more economical or less labor intensive. 
Newer technologies reduced Work-Time-Units (WTU) in some sections, 
thus allowing time for additional investigations of disease incidence, 
innovative work-flCM and expl~ring other new procedures. 

Herpes cultures decreased 16% as they were replaced by the more 
economical fluorescence antibody (FA) slide technique which increased 
2,860% without additional personnel. Similarly, chlamydia cultures 
were replaced by a much less costly serological identification of the 
virus (EIA), making possible the examination of more than 12,000 
Maternal and Child Health patients for chlamydia infections. Over 
2,040 or 17% were found to be positive and effective treatment 
instituted. The confirmary test for syphilis, the Fluorescent 
Treponemal Antibody (FTA) test has been replaced by the MHATP at a 
cost reduction of $6.00 per test. These examples of effective 
management demonstrate why total laboratory expenditures increased 
only 2.1% last year despite an increase of 3.9% in salaries and an 
annual inflation rate for medical supplies of 6.8%. 
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The number of rubella diagnostic tests decreased 53% during FY-87. 
This is a reflection of the return to normal levels of this disease 
after the nationwide recurrence of German measles during recent years. 

The number of animals submitted for rabies exams increased 24% this 
year with a concomitant increase of 66% in rabid animals. The 
laboratory found 50/1530 animals were positive (3.3%) in FY-86 and 
83/1900 (4.4%) in FY-87. 

TABLE 1, CENTRAL LABORATORY AND DISTRICT LABORATORIES ACTIVITIES 
FY-87 

NUNBER OF SPECINENS IIORK TlNE UNITS 

FY 86 FY 87 FY 86 FY 87 

BACTERIOLOGY 144,611 133,125 817,986 834,336 
NYC0BACTERIOL06Y 11,657 11,101 383,254 371,492 
NYCOLOSY 2,166 1,525 193,289 132,013 
VIROLOGY 27,435 33,790 616,038 393,801 
PARASITOLOGY 6,819 7,252 74,126 72,260 
INNUNOLOSY 102,165 101,094 433,249 378,615 
TOXICOL06Y 78,023 81,214 597,679 560,582 
ENVIRON. EPIDENIOLOGY 14,352 12,373 317,975 291,441 
NETABOLIC DISORDERS 136,447 131,275 357,150 429,470 
DAIRY PRODUCTS/FOOD 14,285 12,022 598,951 384,747 
CLIN.CHEN/HENATOLOSY 122,507 130,780 1,249,687 1,237,179 

-----------------------------------------------------
TOTALS 660,467 655,551 5,639,384 5,085,936 

=========================================-----=------
X CHANGE -n -101 

Increasing concern over Acquired ImmU11e_Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) 
and the etiologic agent. the Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) 
has had a profound effect on the activities of the Bureau of Labora
tories personnel during the past fiscal year. The test for HIV 
antibody detection was available at the Bureau of Laboratories on 
the day the procedure was licensed by the Food and Drug Administra
tion (FDA) in FY-85. During FY-86, the supplemental test, Western 
blot, was made available in the Bureau of Laboratories. This pro
cedure remains the "gold sta,:idard" for HIV testing. During FY-87, 
antigen detectioa wa? incorporated as another tool in the armanen
tarium against AIDS. Ground work was also established for isola
tion of HIV whi.ch should be implemented during FY-88. 

From March 1985 until June 1987 0 the Bureau of Laboratories has 
examined 11.390 serum specimens for HIV antibody. One thousand. 
two hundred fifty seven (11%) were positive. Each positive patient 
has been identified by repeatedly reactive EIA tests confirmed by 
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the Western blot. 

Based on these experiences, the Bureau of Laboratories has determined 
the sero-prevalence of HIV in high risk populations in South Carolina 
(Table 2). Although these are limited studies, they give an indica
tion of the yield to be expected from these patient groups in South 
Carolina and can be of value for directing legislation to control 
this disease. 

Table 2. SEROPREVALENCE OF HIV IN SELECTED POPULATIONS FROM 
SOUTH CAROLINA 

RISK GROUP 

Tuberculosis Clinic 
Sexually Transmitted Disease 
VD Contact Tracing 
Maternal Health Clinic 

Red Cross Blood Donors* 
Military Recruits* 

NUMBER OF SPECIMENS 
EXAMINED POSITIVE 

300 
7~ 
105 
250 

2 
12 
13 

0 

*South Carolina Residents, from National Statistics 

PERCENT 
POSITIVE 

0.6 
1.5 

12.0 
0 

0.04 
0.15 

Bureau of Laboratories personnel have made numerous presentations to 
other state agencies faced with the problem of management of patients 
or materials potentially contaminated with HIV. At the request of 
the State Law Enforcement Division (SLED), consultation was provided 
to the State Crime Laboratory concerning safety procedures to be 
followed with potentially contaminated materials at crime sites and 
in the laboratory. 

Extensive procedures for developing the chain-of-custody for samples 
to be used in forensic situations have been developed. This task was 
undertaken in cooperation with the Attorney General's office. The 
primary impetus for this procedure has been the asbestos abatement 
program for state buildings which is being implemented by the Division 
of General Services. The Bureau of Laboratories signed a $50,000 
contract with the Division of General Services to provide this testing 
during FY-88. 
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In August 1986, the Bureau of Laboratories began performing the alph
fetoprotein screening for maternity patients at the USC School of 
Medicine (Richland Memorial Hospital) Clinic. Although that clin~c 
receives DHEC Genetic Grant money, they refused to provide alpha
fetoprotein testing as the other two Genetic Centers do for their 
patients. The Bureau of Laboratories agreed to absorb this cost 
within the existing budget. Testing of all pregnant women is endorsed 
by the American College of Obstetrics. 

The Bureau of Laboratories is licensed by the United States Department 
of Health and Human Services {CLIA 1967), by the Bureau of 
Radiological Health, DHEC; certified by the Department of Health and 
Human Services under Medicare and accredited by the American 
Industrial Hygiene Association and FDA. It continues to be one of the 
most progressive state public health laboratories in the nation. 

VI. OBJECTIVE: 

B. Assure technical proficiency of personnel performing tests for 
medical and environmental health. 

EVALUATION: 

B. 1. No. of Nurses participating 
No. of Nurses enrolled 

909 = 107% 
850 

2. No. of county health department/clinic visits 
No. scheduled 

NARRATIVE: 

This objective was met. 

345 =103% 
334 

The Laboratory Quality Assurance Program for Agency's Nursing 
Personnel was implemented in 1986. During FY-87, two shipments of 
proficiency testing samples were distributed to nursing personnel enrolled 
in the program. Participation of personnel fluctuated during the year. 

Samples for hematocrits, hemoglobin, blood glucose, pregnancy tests 
and urinalysis were sent to 909 participants in November 1986 and to 876 
participants in May 1987. Test results were reported by 764 (84%) of the 
participants receiving samples in November and by 680 (78%) of those 
receiving samoles in Mav~ The program was expanded in FY-87 to include 
shipments of Gram-stP.ined urethral smears for reading and interpretation by 
the nurses in Ehe STD clinics. Shipments were sent to 177 participants in 
August 1986 and to 174 participants in January 1987. For each shipment, 
reports were returned by 150 participants. 

Evaluation of performance is based on a comparison of the 
participant's test results with the expected results established by the 
manufacturers of the test material and with the results obtained on the 
samples by the Clinical Chemistry Section and the District Laboratories 
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which serves as reference laboratories. A participant's performance of 
Proficiency is measured as the percent.agreement between the participant's 
results and the expected results. 

Through the proficiency testing component of the program, tr~ining 
needs were identified. To address these needs, during FY-87, the Section 
staff placed major emphasis on developing and presenting in-service 
workshops for the nurses. The workshops were designed to present a review 
of laboratory test methods, proper use and maintenance of equipment, 
technical procedures for each test being performed and appropriate quality 
control procedures. Participants were given the opportunity to perform all 
procedures during the training sessions. 'Iwo or more in-service workshops 
were presented in each health district. Forty-two training sessions were 
presented and were attended by 424 nurses. 

The Laboratory Quality Assurance Program for the nursing personnel has 
been well received by the District Nursing Directors and the individual 
nurses who participate in the program. As a result of the program, quality 
control measures have been widely adopted. 

The Instrument Maintenance Section travelled 23,823 miles and made 340 
on-site visits: performed preventive maintenance or corrective maintenance 
on 4,936 pieces of equipment. A total of 19 additional trips were made for 
emergency repair services. The Instrument Maintenance staff participated 
in 40 in-service workshops for nurses. The five staff members in the 
Instrument Maintenance Section worked a total of 2,814 hours on equipment. 
Labor charges calculated on ~rade level per technician salary amounted 
to $35,259. This has been a savings of $232,071 to the Agency, as the 
average service call for this type equipment would cost the Agency 
approximately $95 per hour x' 2,Gl4 nours for a total labor cost of 
$267,330. A total of $10,141 was spent for parts to repair the equipment 
throughout the State. 

OBJECTIVE: 

C. Serve as resource for information, evaluation and recommendation 
on new test procedures to assure that South Carolinians have 
available the most appropriate, accurate, reliable and cost 
effective laboratory services. 

EVALUATION: 

c. 1. 

NARRATIVE: 

No. of test procedures evaluated 
No. planned (6) 

7 = 117% 
6 

C.l. This goal was met and exceeded by 17%. A total of 7 procedures 
were evaluated. 
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a. The Immunology Section tested cytomegalovi~us determination 
kits manufactured by two companies (Abbott Laboratories and 
M.A. Bioproducts). Both procedures were for the rapid, 
sensitive detection of cytomegalovirus immune status and 
detection of current infection utilizing the enzyme 
immunoassay technique. Both procedures appear to be useful 
and will likely be adopted as replacements for the 
cumbersome, time consuming and relatively insensitive 
complement fixation procedure which has been the mainstay. 

b. The Immunology Section evaluated the Murex SUDS rubella 
antibody detection kit. In this evaluation, over 400 serum 
specimens were tested using this technology and results 
were compared with previously performed tests using standard 
techniques. This procedure appears to be a sensitive and 
specific procedure for the detection of rubella immune 
status. The Murex procedure offers no advantage over the 
latex agglutination procedure currently in use, and it is 
unlikely that it will be adopted. 

c. The Immunology Section evaluated the QUIK-SEP Column 
manufactured by lsolab, Inc. for the fractionation of serum 
to permit quantitation of IgM antibody to toxoplasma without 
the confounding effects of the presence of lgG. This 
procedure was found to be especially useful in making 
apparent IgM antibody which was not previously noted because 
of the masking effect of lgG. The use of separator columns 
will be incorporated as a routine part of the procedure 
where IgM antibody is of interest. 

d. The Bacteriology/Parasitology Section evaluated the hemo-De 
solvent system sold by Fisher Diagnostics as a substitute 
for ether in the concentration of stool samples for 
parasites and hemo-De is a much less hazardous solvent. It 
has been adopted for use in the parasitology procedure. 

e. The Bacteriology/Parasitology Section evaluated a commercial 
fecal parasite concentration kit manufactured by Evergreen. 
This kit, which is a self-contained unit to permit the 
performance of parasite concentration procedures, was found 
to be a less hazardous, less time-consuming procedure than 
the previously used "funnel-gauze" technique. In addition, 
the rate of recovery of parasites increased markedly after 
the procedure was incorporated. This procedure is now a 
part of the routine methods of the Bacteriology/Parasitology 
Section. 

f. In the Virology Section, two kits for the detection of 
antibody to HIV were evaluated (Electro Nucleonics and 
Abbott Laboratories). The two procedures were found to give 
similar results when compared with a standard block of 
evaluation panel sera. Minor differences in the 
sensitivity/specificity of the kits were noted with 
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individual specimens. but as a general rule. the kits were 
equivalent. Because Abbott Laboratories offered the best 
price for the reagents. this kit is currently used in the 
Virology Section. 

g. The Virology Section evaluated an offering of HIV antigen 
for use in the Western blot procedure which was made 
available by Hillcrest Biologicals. Inc. This antigen was 
treated and tested according to CDC protocols and was run 
against known positive and negative control sera. It 

OBJECTIVE: 

was such that this product would not be cost-effective. 
This testing was performed in December of 1986. In June of 
1987. Hillcrest Biologicals contacted the Virology Section 
to inform them that the lot of antigen we had tested in our 
laboratory had. in fact. not been killed and our workers 
were exposed to live HIV. 

D. Provide laboratory assistance and support for special hazard 
evaluations. risk assessments. efficiency studies and needs 
assessments as requested. 

EVALUATION: 

D.1. Hemoglobinopathy study implemented. Yes X No 

2. Needs assessment for drugs of abuse testing in Public 
schools. Yes X No 

3. Percent of positive GC cultures tested 
3% of positive cultures 

NARRATIVE: 

This objective was met and exceeded. 

481 = 310% 
155 

D.l. A three year pilot project screening newborn children for hemo
globinopathies in conjunction with the Medical University of S.C. 
(MUSC) and the Edisto Medical District was completed. The 
results of the MUSC study were published in the May issue of the 
Journal of the S.C. Medical Association (83: 243-245) accompanied 
by an editorial which described the statewide implementation of 
this program (83: 276-277). 

The equipment, supplies and 2 new analysts are ready to begin 
testing on July 1, 1987 as required by law. Because of budgetary 
constaints for equipment, the laboratory will not be able to 
provide the definitive testing necessary to confirm some types of 
hemoglobinopathies when screening begins. These confirmatory 
tests will be added as funding allows the laboratory to obtain 
the necessary equipment. Until confirmatory testing can begin, 
these studies will continue to be sent to the 1-\edical College of 
(':reore:f.a • 
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D.2. A letter describing the Bureau of Laboratories drug abuse 
testing program was mailed to every high school and college coach 
in the state of South Carolina. This letter included a brochure. 
Exhibits manned by at least two analysts were taken to 3 
statewide teachers' organization meetings describing the program 
and providing handouts. Very little interest was developed as a 
result of this effort. The general attitude was that the schools 
are afraid of the response they would get from the PTA and other 
governing boards should they suggest ·there is a drug problem in 
the school. To quote one teacher, "We do .not have a teen pregnancy. 
problem,either,our principal tells us, but during this past year, 
seven girls in my class alone became pregnant and left school. 11 

D.3. · Data collected during the initial testing period indicated that 
the sampling size needed to be more than 3% of positive cultures. 
481 (63%) of the 7,533 tests for gonorrhea found to be positive 
were screened for resistance to penicillin and tetracycline. 
These cultures were strains which were not PPNG positive. 
Fourteen isolates were found to be resistant to penicillin and 
nine were resistant to tetracycline and one was resistant to both 
drugs. This indicates that approximately 5% of the gonorrhea in 
the State is due to organisms which cannot be reasonably expected 
to respond to penicillin or tetracycline, and in some cases to 
either antibiotic. In addition to the above isolates, the 
Bacteriology Section detected 95 isolates which were PPNG 
positive, or which 4 were resistant to both penicillin and 
tetracycline. The PPNG positive strains represent an additional 
1.2% of the total number of cultures tested giving a resistance 
rate in excess of 6% for cultures processed in the Central 
Laboratory. It is interesting to note that the non-PPNG 
resistant strains are about 4 times as prevalent as are the PPNG 
strains which have received much more emphasis and publicity. 

OBJECTIVE: 

E. Implement improved management practices and procedures. 

EVALUATION: 

E. 1. Computer program completed. Yes X No ---
2. Mycology Manual prepared and distributed. Yes X No 

3. Laboratory Services Manual revised. Yes X No 

NARRATIVE: 

This objective was essentially met. 

E. 1. Test results for 99% of the tests performed in the Central 
Laboratory are now being reported by computer-generated 
reports. The total number of test procedures being reported 
is nearing 170. During FY-87, the Toxicology, Environmental 
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E. 2. 

E. 3. 

Epidemiology and Clinical Chemistry Sections were brought on 
line, and work begun in the prior fiscal year was completed 
in Mycology. Parasitology and Virology. 

Only a few tests remain to be brought on line. mainly new 
procedures and special projects. These are slated for com
pletion during the first quarter of FY-88. 

In addition to the on-line entry, data for four tests per
formed in 3 District Laboratories is being sent to the 
Central Laboratory for keying via batch processing to the 
billing system. It is hoped that eventually this data can 
be keyed at the local site. 

According to Data Systems Management (DSM), the laboratory 
has the most active system on the mainframe, accounting for 
1/3 to 1/2 of all the on-line transactions at DHEC. 

A manual entitled "Detection and Control of Histoplasma 
~apsulatum and Cryptococcus neoformans in the 
Environment" was completed. Beginning in September of 1986, 
it has been distributed to environmental sanitarians during 
their training at DHEC and to other individuals interested 
in the control of environmental fungal pathogens. 

The Laboratory Services Manual revision was completed and 
the order placed for printing. The manual will be 
distributed to health departments, physicians and 
laboratories during FY-88. 
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MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH PROGRESS REPORT 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source Amount 

Federal: 
Health and Human Services $13,018,559 

36,535,775 United States Department of Agriculture 

State: 
Line Item Appropriation 12,003,972 

Other: 
Earned Revenues 

TOTAL 

3,801,392 

$65,359,698 

II. LEGISLATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

Title V, Social 
Security Act 

Section 17, 
Child Nutrition 
Act 

Section 44-37-30, 
S.C. Code of 
Laws, As Amended 

Section 44-33-10, 
S.C. Code of Laws, 
As Amended 

Section 38 
(II (C) (5) (E)), 
Appropriations Act 
1984-85 

Title X, Public 
Service Act 

Responsibility 

To provide for (1) health services for mothers 
and children to reduce infant mortality and the 
incidence of preventable diseases and handicapping 
conditions among children, (2) rehabilitative 
services for blind and disabled individuals under 
the age of 16, and (3) treatment and care of 
crippled children. 

To provide supplemental foods and nutrition 
education to eligible persons. 

Promulgate regulations for requiring screening 
for metabolic disorders in infants. 

Provide education, voluntary screening, genetic 
counseling and referral services to children and 
adults with sickle cell disease. 

Assist children and adult hemophiliacs in 
obtaining necessary medical services. 

To make comprehensive voluntary family planning 
services readily available to all persons desiring 
such services 
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III. A. PROBLEM STATEMENT 

In 1981, South Carolina had a perinatal mortality rate of 23.5 
per 1000 deliveries. 

_D_e_t_e_rm~i_n_a_n_t_s~o_f~t_h_e__..p_r_o_b_l_e_m~a_r_e: Low weight births (8.9%), 
level technology in small hospitals, chronic disease, lack 
prenatal care (12% receive 0-5 visits), 34% are admitted to 
after the 6th month, risk factors associated with fertility 
mortality. 

low 
of 

WIC 
and 

Contributing factors of this problem are: Interpregnancy inter
val less than 1 year, inadequate weight gain during pregnancy, 
lack of prevention of pregnancy, poor nutritional status, smok
ing, inadequate risk determination, lack of prematurity preven
tion programs, lack of cooperation public and private, lack of 
training both public and private, lack of identification of 
gestational diabetes, uncontrolled diabetes prior to and during 
pregnancy, inappropriate obstetrical considerations prior to 
delivery, inappropriate care at delivery of infant, chronic 
diseases, lack of nutrition knowledge, substance abuse, lifestyle 
practices, parity greater than 5, and pregnancy less than 3 years 
post menarche, teenage pregnancy, out-of-wedlock pregnancy. 

OUTCOME OBJECTIVE 

By June 30, 1989, the perinatal mortality rate will be reduced to 15.0 
deaths per 1,000 deliveries. 

IMPACT OBJECTIVE 

The% of women receiving 0-5 prenatal care visits will be reduced from 
12% in 1981 to 10% in FY 1988. 

PROCESS OBJECTIVE 

1.A. All of the county health departments will provide either complete 
or monitoring maternity care by June 1987. 

EVALUATION: 

Actual complete admitted 10,477 

NARRATIVE: 

In addition to the 10,477 women admitted to complete services (i.e. 
all prenatal care was provided through the health department), 995 
women were admitted to monitoring services (the health department 
provided a defined set of supplemental services to women who received 
their primary care from other providers) and 11,393 to support 
services (WIC and risk-screening services). 6,504 women were served 
who were admitted in the prior 
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fiscal year. The High Risk Perinatal Program also served 1,550 high 
risk patients during the year and an additional 1818 prenatal patients 
who were at risk for preterm labor. All county health departments 
provide prenatal care to the indigent population of South Carolina. 
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TABLE I - NEW MATERNITY PATIENTS ADMITTED 
NUMBER ADMISSIONS 

FY'86 

DISTRICT COMPLETE MONITORING SUPPORT 

Appalachia I 596 0 301 
Appalachia II 511 685 691 
Appalachia III 199 0- 1,534 
Upper Savannah 469 0 725 
Catawba 698 0 584 
East Midlands 1,355 12 596 
Edisto 652 2 493 
Wateree 452 0 1,122 
Pee Dee I 478 0 1,009 
Waccamaw 232 621 815 
Trident 780 0 1,501 
Low Country 261 260 718 
Lower Savannah 539 0 397 
Pee Dee II 432 0 573 
West Midlands 781 0 3 

STATE TOTALS 8,435 1,580 11,062 

FY'87 

DISTRICT COMPLETE MONITORING SUPPORT 

Appalachia I 586 0 345 
Appalachia II 753 579 640 
Appalachia III 384 0 1,708 
Upper Savannah 530 0 663 
Catawba 972 0 571 
East Midlands 1,349 0 457 
Edisto 884 0 421 
Wateree 533 0 1,180 
Pee Dee I 721 0 939 
Waccamaw 708 186 817 
Trident 822 4 1,858 
Low Country 202 223 729 
Lower Savannah 551 3 454 
Pee Dee II 417 0 604 
West Midlands 815 0 7 
Beaufort/Jasper 250 

STATE TOTALS 10,477 995 11,393 
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PROCESS OBJECTIVE 

l.B. During FY 1987, 95% of WIG prenatals will have their risk 
determined and a plan of care developed. 

EVALUATION: 

Actual% WIG Prenatals With Risk Determined 
Planned 

NARRATIVE: 

93% 
95% 

98% 

During FY'86, county health departments provided risk screening to 93% 
of the prenatal WIG patients and developed mechanisms for informing 
private providers of the results of the screening. During FY'87, 
using the same mechanisms for informing private providers of screening 
results, county health departments provided risk screening to 93% of 
the prenatal WIG patients. 

PROCESS OBJECTIVE 

l.C. By June 30, 1987, family planning will serve 76,554 enrolled 
patients and 27,045 non-enrolled patients. 

NARRATIVE: 

In FY'87, the family planning program served 106,247 patients. Of 
those, 79,437 were enrolled and 26,810 were non-enrolled. Enrolled 
patients included all patients who received comprehensive family 
planning services, including physical exams and contraceptive sup
plies, through the health department. Nonenrolled patients included 
individuals who received one or more family planning services, such as 
pregnancy testing or counseling but who have not enrolled in the 
family planning program in an ongoing basis. In FY 86, the program 
served 106,599 patients, 79,554 of which were enrolled and 27,045 that 
were non-enrolled. The program showed a .2% decrease for enrolled 
patients, a .9% decrease for non-enrolled patients and a .4% decrease 
for total patients served. 
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TABLE II - NUMBER OF FEMALE USERS SERVED BY DISTRICT 

FY 1986 and FY 1987 

DISTRICT 

Appalachia I 
Appalachia II 
Appalachia III 
Upper Savannah 
Catawba 
East Midlands 
Edisto 
Wateree 
Pee Dee I 
Waccamaw 
Trident 
Low Country 
Lower Savannah 
Pee Dee II 
West Midlands 

STATE TOTALS 

ESTIMATED 
NUMBER NUMBER 
IN NEED FY'86 

10,150 
22,140 
16,110 
10,250 
11,060 
22,890 
10,030 
13,730 
13,710 
12,890 
31,670 

9,630 
8,220 
9,410 
9,040 

210,930 

4,707 
9,930 
9,339 
7,074 
6,891 
7,276 
5,749 
7,903 
6,673 
6,259 

12,739 
6,416 
5,413 
5,398 
4 832 

106,599 

PROCESS OBJECTIVE 

SERVED 
FY'87 

4,629 
9,797 
9,553 
7,120 
7,409 
6,620 
6,311 
7,237 
6,445 
6,068 

13,454 
6,095 
5,009 
5,017 
5,483 

106,247 

PERCENT OF 
NEED MET 

FY'86 FY'87 

46% 
45% 
58% 
69% 
62% 
32% 
57% 
57% 
49% 
48% 
40% 
67% 
66% 
57% 
53% 

50% 

46% 
44% 
59% 
69% 
67% 
29% 
63% 
53% 
47% 
47% 
42% 
63% 
61% 
53% 
61% 

50% 

l.D. By June 30, 1987, at least 20% of the caseload in Family Planning 
will be teens 17 and under. 

ACTUAL% TEENS 
PLANNED 20% TEENS 

NARRATIVE: 

19% = 95% 
20% 

The percentage of teen caseload is up to 19%, and, although it is less 
than 20% goal, this level of teen enrollment is within the acceptable 
range. 
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III. B. PROBLEM STATEMENT 

In 1981, 29.2% of the children entering public schools in South 
Carolina did not demonstrate readiness for first grade as deter
mined by performance on a Basic Skills Assessment Test. Failure 
to demonstrate readiness may result from any number of reasons. 
Current data from the Basic Skills Assessment Test do not show 
why children fail to demonstrate readiness. Although information 
on specific health and health related problems causing failure 
for school readiness are not available, it is likely that a 
significant number of children may have health problems which 
impair their ability to learn and to perform adequately on the 
Basic Skills Assessment Test. It is generally acknowledged that 
healthy children learn better than others and that the early 
detection and correction of health problems can positively affect 
a child's ability to learn. Uncorrected health problems pose a 
significant problem in assuring that South Carolina's children 
are ready for first grade. 

Determinants of the problem are: Physical/Medical Determinants: 
Hearing loss (5% of children nationwide), visual deficits (5% of 
children nationwide), congenital disabilities, acquired disabili
ties, poor nutritional status, and language and speech difficul
ties. 

Non-Medical Determinats are: Poor personal and social develop
ment, and poverty. 

Contributing factors of the problem are: Lack of early detec
tion, treatment and follow-up; lack of comprehensive services; 
perinatal problems; genetics; abnormal ear findings, including 
infections; complications of pregnancy, labor and delivery; 
infections; nutrient deficiency during pregnancy and infancy 
(Vit. A., Vit. E., and taurine); lack of access to care; geneti
cally acquired conditions; lack of environmental stimulation; 
accidents; communicable/parasitic diseases; acute illness; 
chronic diseases and conditions (allergies, diabetes, heart 
disease, etc.); lead poisoning; inadequate diet; parent's lack of 
education; anatomical abnormalities of the speech mechanism; 
dental anomalies; mental retardation; chronic disruptive family 
relationships; multiple problem families; substance abuse in 
families; psychiatric problems in families; poor parenting 
skills; inability to understand/accept medical condition of 
child; lack of social support system. 

OUTCOME OBJECTIVE 

By FY 1990, 90% of children served by DHEC and entering South Carolina 
public schools will have no correctable, untreated health problems that 
will impact adversely on the child's performance on the Basic Skills 
Assessment Test. 
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IMPACT OBJECTIVE 

By FY 1988, the percent of children served by DHEC and presenting in first 
grade with uncorrected hearing loss, visual deficits, congenital disabili
ties, acquired disabilities, poor nutritional status and language and 
speech impairments will decrease. 

PROCESS OBJECTIVE 

l.A. By June 30, 1987, 100% of CHS/EPSDT patients will have been screened 
for hearing and vision problems, congenital and acquired disabilities, 
poor nutritional status, and language and speech difficulties. 

EVALUATION 

Percent of CHS/EPSDT Children Screened 
Planned (100%) 

NARRATIVE 

93% 
100% 

93% 

Screening and preventive care activities are aimed at obtaining the health
iest outcomes for the children we serve. Only by providing these services 
at regular intervals can we hope to attain a population of healthy and 
developmentally ready children for school entrance. Although the planned 
goal of 100% was not achieved, 93% is still considered a major accomplish
ment for the program. 

PROCESS OBJECTIVE 

l.B. By June 30, 1987, 100% of 
ties in any of the areas 
evaluation. 

the children reported as having abnormali
listed above will be referred for further 

EVALUATION 

Percent of Children with 
Abnormalities referred for evaluation 
Planned (100%) 

NARRATIVE 

96% 
100% 

96% 

In an effort to prevent health problems which may impair a child's ability 
to learn from occurring or progressing, it is important that the evaluation 
process begin as soon as possible. Many conditions can either be corrected 
or greatly minimized when intervention occurs shortly after identification 
of the problem. The program, therefore, considers 96% as a significant 
achievement and certainly a reflection of the timeliness between problem 
identification and initiation of further diagnostic evaluation and treat
ment. 
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IMPACT OBJECTIVE 

By FY 1988, the percent of children served by DHEC and presenting in the 
first grade with uncorrected congenital disabilities will decrease. 

PROCESS OBJECTIVE 

2.A. By June 30, 1987, 100% of preschool children with PKU and hypo
thyroidism will be under treatment. 

EVALUATION 

Percent of Diagnosed PKU and Hypothyroidism 
Preschool Children Under Treatment 
Planned (100%) 

NARRATIVE 

100% 
100% 

100% 

The program monitors all newborn screening activities, maintains a state
wide registry of abnormal cases, monitors services including laboratory 
tests and treatment for both DHEC and non-DHEC patients and distributes all 
special formulas for PKU patients. Currently all 38 PKU and Hypothyroid 
patients less than 6 years of age are being followed by the health depart
ment staff to ensure that patients are receiving necessary treatment. 
Without early intervention and treatment, severe mental retardation can 
occur. 
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NUMBER OF CHILDREN RECEIVING SERVICES 
BY CLINIC TYPE AND DISTRICT* 

FY '86 

DISTRICT CHS EPSDT PEDIATRIC SPECIAL 

Appalachia I 1,388 804 364 7,513 
Appalachia II 3,726 2,634 55 11,636 
Appalachia III 4,339 3,439 150 13,821 
Upper Savannah 1,394 2,301 27 7,822 
Catawba l, 721 1,858 41 10,267 
East Midlands 2,048 1,381 114 9,852 
Edisto 1,999 2,710 428 6,977 
Wateree 2,799 4,104 102 9,614 
Pee Dee I 652 1,839 211 9,370 
Waccamaw 1,003 2,115 255 12,266 
Trident 4,460 1,933 1,273 17,369 
Low Country 729 2,065 96 9,009 
Lower Savannah 2,710 985 47 6,411 
Pee Dee II 114 2,347 88 8,112 
West Midlands 2,034 1,433 308 6,348 

STATE TOTAL 31,116 31,948 3,559 146,387 

FY '87 

DISTRICT CHS EPSDT PEDIATRIC SPECIAL 

Appalachia I 731 718 527 8,379 
Appalachia II 2,409 2,724 19 10,396 
Appalachia III 3,455 3,220 157 11,985 
Upper Savannah 695 1,928 30 7,337 
Catawba 1,329 1,552 71 9,303 
East Midlands 1,644 994 138 8,219 
Edisto 1,984 2,465 372 6,949 
Wateree 1,111 1,882 2 5,442 
Pee Dee I 1,018 2,027 111 9,544 
Waccamaw 351 2,789 167 10,095 
Trident 3,367 2,429 1,141 15,002 
Low Country 283 2,331 135 8,534 
Lower Savannah 2,809 1,237 35 6,027 
Pee Dee II 182 2,501 85 7,021 
West Midlands 2,235 1,217 230 5!783 

STATE TOTAL 23,603 30,014 3,220 130,016 

* Figures in these tables reflect the unduplicated number of 
children served in each type clinic. 
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CRS UNDUPLICATED NUMBER OF CHILDREN SERVED AND NUMBER OF VISITS 
BY CLINIC TYPE (STATE TOTALS) 

Clinic Type 
Cardiology 
Craniofacial 
Cystic Fibrosis 
Developmental 
Endocrine 
Mylodysplasia 
Neurology 
Orthopedic 
Pediatric 
Pediatric/Orthopedic 
Renal 
Rheumatic Fever 
Sickle Cell - Adult 
Sickle Cell - Pediatric 
SSI Disabled 
Urology 
Other/Unspecified 
Home Visits 
School Visits 
Hospital Visits 

STATE TOTALS FOR ALL CLINIC 
TYPES: 

NARRATIVE : 

FY'87 

No. Visits 
807 
309 
223 
154 
172 

63 
750 

2,065 
2,226 
3,739 

87 
15 

238 
281 
567 

94 
33 

696 
154 

42 

12,715 

No. Patients 
697 
244 

93 
71 
83 
39 

336 
1,168 
1 , 643 
2,236 

26 
13 

130 
238 
431 

51 
30 

438 
54 
22 

8,043 

In FY'87 a computerized financial and patient information system was 
implemented statewide for the CRS program. Data is now available reflect
ing all CRS service components. Direct service costs to provide patient 
services via CRS clinics amounted to $2,467,003. Although not reflected in 
the above table, services such as speech and hearing, physical therapy, 
occupational therapy, prosthetics and orthopedic appliances, physician 
consultation, surgeon fees, anesthesiology, etc., which were purchased by 
CRS amounted to an annual expenditure of $1,780,618. With the elimination 
of inpatient hospitalization in FY'87, emphasis was placed on providing as 
many surgical procedures on an outpatient basis as possible. The program 
staff stresses with physicians and hospital administrators our continued 
commitment to providing (paying for) ancillary services and working with 
other resources to secure necessary funding for CRS patients requiring 
hospitalization in an attempt to maximize our limited resources yet still 
provide needed services. This undesired but necessary program change and 
subsequent cost shifting allowed the program to maintain all other service 
components, adjust to the rising cost of medical care, and stay within the 
appropriations. 
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III. C. PROBLEM STATEMENT 

In 1981 South Carolina had a postneonatal mortality rate of 
5.3/1000 live births. 

Determinants of the problem are: Congenital anomalies; Sudden 
Infant Death Syndrome (S.I.D.S.); prematurity and low birth 
weight; infective and parasitic diseases/influenza and pneumonia 
(.6/1000 Live Births, 1979-81); accidents such as choking, 
drowning, and automobile, approximately 40% of all live births 
have an identified risk factor which increases the likelihood of 
postneonatal death; non-enrollment of these infants in a follow-up 
system increases the likelihood of higher postneonatal death 
rates. 

Contributing factors to this problem are: Inappropriate care, 
lack of resources, lack of risk determination, undetected genetic 
problems, lack of technology, brief interconceptional period, 
deliveries at inappropriate hospitals. Inadequate reporting of 
cause of death. Autopsies were not performed consistently to 
determine cause. Lack of understanding of Sudden Infant Death 
Syndrome. Caretaker's lack of knowledge of signs and symptoms of 
illness. Professional caregivers placing low priority on 
teaching and reinforcing caretaker knowledge. Inappropriate 
care. Attitudes of professional caregivers. Indifference to 
care responsibilities. Limited access to care/lack of 
ability/information to access care. Environmental factors. Lack 
of understanding of infant developmental phases and possible 
danger points. 

POSTNEONATAL 

OUTCOME OBJECTIVE 

By June 30, 1989, South Carolina will have a postneonatal mortality rate of 
4.4/1000 live births (1986-88). 

IMPACT OBJECTIVE 

In CY 1988, the three year average postneonatal mortality rate due to 
infections, parasitic diseases, and pneumonia will decrease. 

PROCESS OBJECTIVE 

1.A. By June 30, 1987, 90% of all infants <1 year receiving immunizations 
through the health department will be series complete for age. 
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EVALUATION 

Percent of infants <l yr. 
series complete for age 
Planned 90% 

NARRATIVE 

69% 
90% 

76% 

Immunizations are an effective part of preventive health care for children. 
Keeping children current for immunizations not only provides this basic 
preventive care, but allows for encounters to assess patients and educate 
caregivers. Closer monitoring of this measure for the last year has 
indicated significant decreases in immunization levels throughout the state 
and there appears to be a direct relationship between these decreases and 
the elimination of the 6 month certification visit for WIG. Since 78% of 
all infants less than one year of age served by Child Health are also 
enrolled in WIG, the elimination of the 6 month WIG visit has adversely 
affected our immunization level. 

IMPACT OBJECTIVE 

In CY 1988, the three year average postneonatal mortality rate due to 
accidents will decrease. 

PROCESS OBJECTIVE 

l.A. By June 30, 1987, accident prevention will be covered in 75% of the 
individual education encounters to parents/caregivers of infants <l 
year of age as described in Section 4 of Step by Step. 

EVALUATION 

Percent of Parents/Caregivers Receiving 
Accident Prevention Education 
Planned (75%) 

NARRATIVE 

92% 
75% 

122% 

Since accidents are one of the major causes of death in this age popula
tion, there was a major effort on the part of staff in developing and 
providing education/information intervention techniques to use with 
parents/caregivers. Staff feel a sense of accomplishment for going well 
beyond the planned objective of 75%. 
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ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY CONTROL 



AIR QUALITY CONTROL 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNTS OF FUNDING 

Source 

Federal: 

Air Pollution Program Grant 

State: 

Line item appropriation 

Other: 

Total: 

II. LEGISLATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

Section 48-1-20, SC Code 

Section 101 (b)(l), 42 USC 1857 

III. PROBLEM 

Amount 

$1,033,360 

1,514,775 

-0-

$2,548,135 

Responsibility 

It is declared to be the 
public policy of the State 
to maintain reasonable 
standards of purity of the 
air and water resources of 
the State ... 

to protect and enhance the 
quality of the Nation's 
air resources so as to 
promote the public health 
and welfare and the 
productive capacity of its 
population; 

Air pollution can aggravate respiratory disorders, make healthy 
people ill, inJure and kill vegetation, and dirty or damage 
property. It can reduce visibility and endanger the safety of air 
and highway travelers. It may be altering the weather and the 
earth's temperature and it can blight our surroundings and dimin
ish the quality of life. To protect the health and welfare of the 
citizens of South Carolina: 

A. Air pollution sources must be kept under surveillance to 
assure continued compliance with standards. New sources may 
cause air pollution if uncontrolled. 

B. Ambient air quality problem areas must be detected and 
defined. Continued maintenance of standards must be verified. 
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IV. GOAL 

To attain and/or maintain ambient air quality standards in South 
Carolina. 

V. OBJECTIVES 

A. 

B. 

1. To insure that approximately 180 new or altered 
and 349 existing major point sources comply 
standards. 

facilities 
with State 

2. To insure that approximately 2,500 industrial and institu
tional sources maintain compliance with State standards. 

3. To be responsive to approximately 500 citizens complaints 
concerning State open burning regulations and State visible 
and fugitive emission standards, as applicable. 

4. To insure that documented violations of regulations and 
standards are resolved expeditiously. 

To verify the maintenance of ambient air quality standards in 
the State's ten Air Quality Control Regions. 

EVALUATION: 

A. 1. No. of o:eerating :eermit reviews com:eleted 300 107% 
No. of operating permit reviews projected 280 

No. of construction :eermit reviews com:eleted 252 154% 
No. of construction permit reviews projected 164 

No. of source tests :eerformed 485 125% 
No. of source tests planned 387 

No. of source evaluations com:eleted 182 95% 
No. of source evaluations planned 192 

2. No. of ins:eections of Major Point Sources 367 105% 
No. of inspections scheduled 349 

No of ins:eections for NSPS 36 116% 
No. of inspections scheduled 31 

No. of ins:eections for NESHAP 11 92% 
No. of inspections scheduled 12 

No. of continuous monitor ins:eections 92 88% 
No. of inspections scheduled 104 

No. of ins:eections of asbestos o:eerations 418 253% 
No. of inspections projected 165 
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No. of Continuous Monitor Excess 
Emissions ReEort Evaluations 364 100% 
No. of evaluations projected 364 

3. No. of citizens comElaints investigated 487 100% 
No. of citizens complaints received 487 

4. Number of Notices of Violations issued 135 

B. No. of samEles collected 7599 96% 
No. of collections planned 7908 

No. of laboratory analyses Eerformed 18511 89% 
No. of laboratory analyses planned 20772 

No. of continuous monitor readings 127175 177% 
No. of continuous monitor readings planned 71928 

No. of regions maintaining ozone standards 10 100% 
No. of regions 10 

No. of regions maintaining sulfur 
dioxide standards 10 100% 
No. of regions 10 

No. of regions maintaining total suspended 
Earticulate standards 10 100% 
No. of regions 10 

No. of regions maintaining lead standards 10 100% 
No. of regions 10 

NARRATIVE: 

During FY 87, objectives of the Air Quality Control Program were met. 

A stricter policy on obtaining 
reviews to exceed projections. 
projections as several new 
projected. 

construction permits caused the number of 
The number of source tests observed exceeded 

sources came on-line which had not been 

The number of New Source Performance Standards inspections were greater than 
planned as several new sources began operation during the year which were 
not projected. The number of asbestos operations increased with the 
implementation of a new South Carolina asbestos regulation. 

The number of continuous monitor readings exceeded projections because of 
poor data recovery from the field data units. The data had to be reproduced 
because the computer was unable to determine when the data for a parameter 
was below the minimum detectable limit. 
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TABLE 1 - PROGRAM ACTIVITIES 
FY 86 AND FY 87 

Permits Issued ................. . 
Source Tests .................... . 
Source Evaluations .............. . 
Major Point Source Inspections .. . 
NSPS Inspections .............. . 
NESHAP Inspections .............. . 
Continuous Monitor Inspections .. . 
Samples Collected ............... . 
Laboratory Analyses Performed ... . 
Continuous Monitor Readings ..... . 
Asbestos Inspections ........... . 

FY 86 
574 
538 
187 
360 

26 
11 
91 

6857 
22489 

210926 
169 

FY 87 
552 
485 
182 
367 

36 
11 
92 

7599 
18511 

127175 
418 

% Change 
4% 

- 10% 
3% 

+ 2% 
+ 38% 

0% 
+ 1% 
+ 11% 
- 18% 
- 40% 
+147% 

The number of source tests observed during the fiscal year decreased due to 
a reduction in source test personnel. The number of NSPS inspections 
increased because of new sources being constructed or existing sources 
undergoing major modifications, causing them to fall under NSPS regulations. 
The number of samples collected increased because several special studies 
were conducted throughout the State. The number of laboratory analyses 
performed decreased from FY 86 to FY 87 due to a shift in the workload to 
dichotomous filter work, preparation of blank filters and record system 
improvements. Even though the number of laboratory analyses decreased, the 
number of man-hours spent on laboratory analyses remained relatively un
changed from one year to the next. The number of continuous monitor read
ings continued to decrease following the updating of the Air Quality Analy
ses computer system during FY 86. Being under the new system for an entire 
year accounted for the change in numbers. The number of asbestos inspec
tions conducted increased with the addition of two asbestos inspectors 
during FY 87. 
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RADIOLOGICAL HEALTH 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source 

Federal: 

U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission ............. $ 

U. S. Dept. of Health & Human Services .......... . 

State: 

Appropriations .................................. . 
Monitor Compliance Nuclear Waste Compact ........ . 

Other: 

Rad. Waste Transportation Permit Fees ........... . 
Licensing and Registration Fees ................. . 
(Note: Returned directly to State General Fund) 

Amount 

63,300 

18,712 

902,580 
139,220 

89,750 
390,018 

Total: ........................................... $1,123,812 
(Note: Fees are not included) 

II. LEGISLATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

Sec. 13-7-10 et. seq. 
S. C. Code of Laws of 
1976 as amended. 

III. PROBLEM 

Responsibility 

Control and regulate the 
possession and use of sources 
of ionizing radiation ( x-ray 
and radioactive materials). 

No threshold level has been established for permissible radiation 
exposure; thus, any unnecessary exposure to radiation sources is to be 
prevented. Such unnecessary exposure includes direct exposure from 
radiation sources and indirect exposure through environmental path
ways. 

IV. GOAL 

To minimize the exposure of all South Carolinians to ionizing radia
tion and non-ionizing radiation, and to define and mitigate adverse 
environmental effects resulting from radionuclides in the environment. 

V. OBJECTIVES 

A. To monitor the radiation levels to which citizens may be exposed. 
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EVALUATION: 

No. environmental samples collected 
No. planned 

No. analyses performed 
No. planned 

NARRATIVE: 

5,977 
5,400 

17,803 
16,000 

111% 

111% 

The Division of Environmental Surveillance met all goals in FY87 
and the sampling of effluents continues near commercial nuclear 
reactors, Savannah River Plant and State licensed facilities. A 
survey on indoor radon levels was begun in FY86 which increased 
the total numbers for samples and analyses. 

FY86 FY8 7 % Change 

Samples collected ........... 5,568 5,977 + 7% 

Analyses performed ......... 16,891 17,803 + 5% 

B. To monitor the transportation of radioactive materials within the 
state. 

EVALUATION: 

No. of rad. waste shipments inspected 
No. anticipated 

NARRATIVE: 

2,831 
3,200 

88% 

The shipments of radioactive waste have slightly declined this 
fiscal year due to mandated waste reduction policies, escalating 
disposal costs, and other market forces. The number of 
inspections of shipments reflects this present trend. 

FY86 FY87 % Change 

Shipments inspected ......... 3,206 2,831 -12% 
C. To receive and document initial and updated prior notifications 

of shipments of low and high level radioactive waste being 
transported in the state. 

EVALUATION: 

No. of prior notifications 
No. anticipated 

89 

3,168 - 88% 
3,600 



NARRATIVE: 

The number of notifications is closely 
shipments; the shipments requiring prior 
market forces occurring in FY87. 

FY86 

No. Notifications received .. 3,455 

related to the number 
notification reflect 

FY8 7 % Change 

3,168 8% 

of 
the 

D. To inspect radioactive materials licensees and x-ray registrants 
to insure compliance with applicable regulations and to determine 
the exposure to the public. 

EVALUATION: 

No. rad. material licenses inspected 
No. Planned 

No. x-ray machines inspected 
No. Planned 

NARRATIVE: 

140 
160 

492 
800 

88% 

62% 

The goals for the number of radioactive material licensee and x-ray 
machines inspections saw a decrease from FY86. The Bureau sustained a 
considerable turnover of experienced personnel in FY 87. In 
addition, many other responsibilities were charged to the Divisions 
that reduced inspection numbers. All vacancies are now filled and 
training is continuous; an increase in personnel has been requested. 

FY86 FY87 % Change 

Rad. material licensee 
inspections .................. 164 140 - 15% 

X-ray machines inspected ..... 659 492 - 25% 
E. To review, renew, issue and amend licenses and registrations, and 

issue radioactive waste transportation permits in accordance with 
state regulations concerning radioactive materials, x-ray facili
ties, and x-ray sources. 

EVALUATION: 

No. rad. materials licenses issued 
No. anticipated 

No. x-ray facilities registered 
No. anticipated 

90 

87 
60 

119 
120 

145% 

99% 



No. transportation permits issued 
No. anticipated 

NARRATIVE: 

252 
150 

168% 

Licenses,registrations, and permits are issued upon application; 
market forces rather than Bureau planning determined how many applica
tions will be submitted. Some substantial changes in Waste Transpor
tation Policies have resulted in the numbers of permits to escalate 
from FY 86. 

FY86 

Rad. material licenses ....... 57 

X-ray facilities registered .. 102 

Transport permits issued .... 135 

NARRATIVE SUMMARY: 

FY87 

87 

119 

252 

% Change 

+53% 

+17% 

+87% 

The Bureau of Radiological Health has maintained its responsibilities 
although the lack of manpower hinders some goals from being met. The 
Low-Level Radioactive Waste Policy Amendments Act of 1985 has resulted 
in many additional tasks for the Division of Radioactive Materials, 
and the Law on Credentialing of X-ray Operators has mandated the 
Division of Electronic Products to develop a program for certifica
tion. The Bureau continues to fulfill contracts with the Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission for monitoring of radioactive effluents and the 
Food and Drug Administration for the inspection of x-ray machines. 
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RECREATIONAL WATERS 
FY 87 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source 

State: 
Line item appropriation 

II. LEGISLATIVE MANDATE 

Authority 

1976 S.C. Code, 
Section44-1-140 et.seq. 

III. PROBLEM 

Amount 

$213,135 

Responsibility 

To promulgate and enforce 
rules and regulations for public 
health regarding safety and 
sanitation of public swimming pools 
and natural swimming areas. 

Public swimming pools and supervised natural swimming areas serve an 
estimated 135,000 persons daily in season and are used by over 
3,000,000 in-state residents and 5,400,000 out-of-state visitors 
each year. Improper operation and maintenance of recreational water 
facilities can cause the transmission of diseases and infections and 
cause deterioration of the facility to the point that the probability 
as well as the severity of accidents will increase. 

IV. GOAL 

To prevent the transmission through swimming water of such diseases as 
typhoid, paratyphoid, dysentery, hepatitis, conjunctivitis, trachoma, 
leptospirosis, ringworm infections, schistosomiasis, and infections of 
the eye, ear, nose and throat. 

To prevent accidents, drownings and chemical exposures that could 
occur due to insufficient safety precautions at public recreational 
water facilities. 

V. OBJECTIVES 

A. To ensure that all new and modified public recreational water 
facilities in South Carolina are designed and constructed in 
accordance with approved standards. 
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B. To ensure the proper operation and maintenance of artificial 
recreational water facilities by using a program of inspection 
and water sample collection to determine the chemical and 
bacteriological safe limits of the swimming water conditions. 

EVALUATION: 

A. 1. Number of plans and specifications for 
new facilities reviewed 187 100% 
Number submitted 187 

2. Number of plans and specifications for 
modification reviewed 177 100% 
Number submitted 177 

B. 1. Number of satisfactory bacteriological 
samEles analyzed 81 88% 
Total number analyzed 92 

2. Number of operational inspections 
Eerformed 23!571 71% 
Number required 33,000 

C. 1. Number of satisfactory bacteriological 
samEles analyzed 392 94% 
Number analyzed 418 

2. Number of sanitation and safety 
insEections Eerformed 888 89% 
Number projected 1,000 

NARRATIVE: 

There were 312 final construction 
to 405 in FY 86. This decrease 
construction permits. 

inspections conducted in FY 87 
was forecast by the decrease 

compared 
in FY 86 

The decrease in permits issued and final inspections conducted reflects a 
tapering off of the tremendous growth in pool construction. This is also 
reflected by the decrease in the number of inspections and samplings made 
during FY 87. In excess of 23,000 inspections were performed in FY 87. 
This, however, falls short of the desired rate of one inspection per 
facility per week during the summer season and one inspection per facility 
every two weeks during the remainder of the year. 

Because of the increased work load and the unrealistic results, pre-season 
inspections were discontinued as an effectiveness and efficiency measure. 
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TABLE I - COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR ACTIVITIES 

FY 86 FY 87 % Difference 

Number of plans and specifications for 
new facilities reviewed 234 187 - 20% 

Number of plans and specifications for 
modification reviewed 168 177 + 5% 

Number of operational inspections per-
formed 27,752 23,571 - 15% 

Number of sanitation and safety 
inspections performed 888 484 - 45% 
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I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDS 

Source 

State 

Line item appropriation 

SHELLFISH 
FY 1987 

Amount 

Murrells Inlet Chlorine Contact Project 
Shellfish Transfer Project 

$17,574 
20,000 
19,000 

$56,574 Total 

II. LEGISLATIVE MANDATE 

Authority 

Section 44-1-140 et. seq. 
1976 S. C. Code 

III. PROBLEM 

Responsibility 

To promulgate and enforce rules and 
regulations for public health regarding 
sanitation, processing, and handling of 
shellfish, fish, crabmeat, lobster, and 
shrimp. 

Shellfish are frequently eaten raw or partially cooked and can, if 
harvested from contaminated waters, transmit such waterborne diseases 
as hepatitis, typhoid fever, cholera, and dysentery. Certain mollusks 
and crustaceans concentrate toxins, heavy metals, and pesticides that 
are not removed by cooking. These problems can pose significant 
public health hazards if they are not closely monitored and 
controlled. 

IV. GOAL 

To ensure that shellfish and crustaceans and the areas from which they 
are harvested meet the minimum health and environmental quality 
standards provided by Federal and State laws and regulations, and to 
promote and encourage coastal environmental quality management 
programs which will preserve all possible coastal areas for this 
beneficial use. 

V. OBJECTIVES 

A. To prevent the harvesting for human consumption of any shellfish 
or crustacean from contaminated waters. 

B. To ensure that all shellfish and crustaceans harvested for human 
consumption are processed, shipped, and handled in accordance 
with health and environmental quality standards. 
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C. To ensure that the state program is in compliance with U. S. Food 
and Drug Administration (FDA) and National Shellfish Sanitation 
Program (NSSP) requirements. 

D. To maintain shellfish relaying and depuration. 

EVALUATION: 

A.l. No. of water samples collected and analyzed 
No. projected 

2. No. shoreline surveys accomplished 
No. projected 

3. No. of patrols conducted 
No. projected 

B.l. No. shellfish plant inspections 
No. projected 

2. No. of crustacean & fish primary 
processor inspections 
No. projected 

3.a. No. shellfish meat samples collected 
and analyzed 
No. projected 

3.b. No. of crustacean and fish 
samples collected 
No. projected 

4. No. vehicle inspections performed 
No. projected 

D.l. No. of depuration plant inspections 
No. projected 

2. No. of relaying patrols conducted 
No. projected 

3. No. of depuration plant meat samples 
No. projected 

96 

2086 
1494 

7 
9 

2234 
1638 

544 
531 

99 
97 

350 
531 

52 = 
97 

206 
120 

2 
2 

18 
18 

57 
18 

140% 

78% 

136% 

102% 

102% 

66% 

54% 

172% 

100% 

100% 

316% 



COMPARISON OF FY 85 AND FY 86 TO FY 87 

No. of water samples 
collected and analyzed 

No. of sanitary surveys 
conducted 

No. of patrols conducted 

No. of shellfish, crab, 
and fish certificates 

FY 85 

1585 

7 

1953 

issued 79 

No. of shellfish plant 
inspections 458 

No. of crustacean & fish 
primary processor 
inspections 74 

No. of shellfish meat samples 
collected and analyzed 355 

No. of crustacean and 
fish samples collected 96 

No. of shellfish samples 
collected from growing 
waters 

No. vehicle inspections 
performed 

No. of relay projects 
completed 

No. of relay patrols 
conducted 

No. of depuration 
plant inspections 

No. of depuration plant 
meat samples 

No. of depuration, zero hour 
meat samples collected and 
analyzed 

No. of depuration water 
samples collected and 
analyzed 

144 

97 

3 

28 

12 

48 

* 

* 

FY 86 

1890 

5 

1703 

84 

509 

106 

416 

105 

241 

111 

2 

20 

20 

105 

* 

* 

FY 87 

2086 

7 

2234 

89 

544 

99 

350 

52 

30 

206 

3 

18 

2 

57 

24 

20 

* Items were not a part of the FY 85 or FY 86 Program 
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PERCENT 
CHANGE 
(86-87) 

+10% 

+40% 

+31% 

+ 6% 

+ 7% 

- 7% 

-16% 

-50% 

-88% 

+86% 

+50% 

-10% 

-90% 

-46% 



SOLID AND HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source Ainount 

Federal: 
Environmental Protection Agency ............ $1,163,076 

State: 
Line Item Appropriation (Solid & Hazardous Waste Mgt) 

(Emergency Response) 
$ 758,544 
$ 250,000 

Total: ... 

II. LEGISLATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

Section 44-56-10 et seq. 
S.C. Code, Hazardous Waste 
Management Act 

Section 44-56-160, S.C. 
Code, Hazardous Waste 
Contingency Fund/Compre
hensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and 
Liability Act. 

Section 48-1-90 et seq., 
S.C., Code Pollution 
Control Act 

Section 44-1-140, S.C. 
Code 

Section 3006 PL 94-580 
(RCRA) 

$2,171,620 

Responsibility 

Provide for the regulation of the 
storage, transportation, 
treatment and disposal of 
hazardous waste to assure the 
safe and adequate management of 
these wastes in the State. 

Establish a fund to ensure 
availability of funds for 
contingencies arising from 
hazardous waste spills or 
accidents at permitted facilities 
or at pre-existing abandoned 
sites. 

Maintain reasonable environmental 
standards and abate, control and 
prevent pollution. 

Regulate the methods of 
disposition of garbage and any 
like refuse matter. 

Authorizes State programs which 
include adequate enforcement of 
hazardous waste statutes and 
regulations. 
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III. PROBLEM: 

The amount and types of solid and hazardous waste generated in South 
Carolina increases proportionately with the industrial, economic, and 
population growth. 

Associated with the increase in waste generation is the improper 
management and illegal disposal of solid and hazardous waste. Over 
4,091,420 tons of hazardous waste from 615 generators were produced in 
the State last year. However, three (3) of these generators accounted 
for having generated 96% of the hazardous wastes. This large amount 
of hazardous waste and the lack of adequate facilities to handle the 
waste has increased the problem of ensuring proper management of solid 
and hazardous waste. Without a comprehensive regulatory program, the 
problems associated with solid and hazardous waste mismanagement will 
be uncontrolled, and the health and safety of the public and the 
environment would be endangered. 

IV. GOAL: 

To ensure the proper management of all solid and hazardous waste in 
the state so as to protect the health and safety of the public and 
living organisms and to protect the environment. 

V. OBJECTIVES: 

1. To ensure compliance with all solid and hazardous waste laws and 
regulations. 

2. To ensure proper management of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. 

3. To ensure proper operation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste 
disposal facilities. 

4. To assess and inspect preparations for 
hazardous waste disposal sites and to 
cleanup operations. 

cleanup of abandoned 
contract and oversee 

5. To promote and encourage the reclamation of waste materials 
through resource recovery. 

6. To minimize environmental/public health threats caused by spills 
of oil and hazardous materials. 

EVALUATION: 

A. Enforcement 

1. Warning Letters 

2. Notice of Violation 

99 

Conducted 
Scheduled 

Conducted 
Scheduled 

118 
118 

86 
86 

100% 

100% 



3. Informal Meeting/Show Cause Conducted= 122 = 100% 
Scheduled 122 

4. Compliance/Adm. Orders Conducted= 70 100% 
Scheduled 70 

B. Compliance 

1. Inspections Conducted = 373 = 100% 
Scheduled 373 

2. Financial Update Reviews Conducted= 61 100% 
Scheduled 62 

3. Quarterly Reports Conducted= 2245 100% 
Scheduled 2245 

4. GW Monitoring Reports Conducted 232 = 100% 
Scheduled 232 

5. Exception/Discrepancy Reports Conducted 1940 100% 
Scheduled 1940 

6. Manifest Conducted 29124 100% 
Scheduled 29124 

C. Permitting 

1. Closure Plans Conducted= 46 100% 
Scheduletl 46 

2. Part B Closure Plan Conducted 46 100% 
Scheduled 46 

3. Completeness Determinations Conducted 21 100% 
(Permit/Closure Plan) Scheduled 21 

4. Public Notices Conducted= 28 100% 
Scheduled 28 

5. Landfill Applications Conducted 24 100% 
Scheduled 24 

D. Emergency Response 

1. Site Preliminary Assessments Conducted= 30 = 100% 
Scheduled JO 

2. Site Clean-up Operations Conducted= 1 100% 
Scheduled 1 

3. Spills Conducted 276 100% 
Scheduled 276 
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NARRATIVE: 

Narrative A: This objective provided for the enforcement of 
regulations upon solid and hazardous waste facilities. Enforcement 
activities were hindered by the enactment of extensively amended State 
regulations. The Department scheduled less enforcement activities due 
to these regulations. 

Narrative B: This objective provided for the inspection of hazardous 
waste generators, transporters and facilities including treatment, 
storage, and disposal (TSD) units to determine compliance with 
regulations. 

A secondary objective provided for the inspection of non-hazardous 
waste disposal facilities to determine compliance and to provide 
technical assistance to operators. 

Narrative C: This objective assured proper management of facilities 
through a permit program. The processing of hazardous waste facility 
applications for permits was enhanced by the State receiving Interim 
Authorization Phase II Components A, Band C from EPA. 

Narrative D: This objective provided an assessment of the 
environmental impact from abandoned closed hazardous waste sites and 
marshalled available resources such as from the Federal Superfund for 
undertaking corrective clean up operations. 

The filling of staff positions and the training of staff have affected 
meeting of this program's objective. However, all assigned prelimi
nary site assessments were achieved. 

This objective provided response to all accidental oil spills and/or 
hazardous material spills for assuring adequate containment and 
satisfactory cleanup by responsible parties. 

An increased effort was made to educate the public and the offenders 
to respond to the Department when a spill occurs. Some of the 
reported effort was devoted to taking care of those spills which had 
occurred the previous year. 
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WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 
FY 87 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source Alnount 

Federal 
Environmental Protection Agency .......... . $1,524,091 

State 
Line item appropriation .................. . $3,318,294 

$4,842,385 Total .................................... . 

II. LEGISLATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

95-217, U.S. Government 
The Clean Water Act show
ing changes made by the 
1977 amendments. Ainended 
further in 1981(PL 97-117), 
and 1987. 

Section 48-1-10, S.C. Code 

R 61-9, S.C. Code 

R 61-68, S.C. Code 

R 61-69, S.C. Code 

Responsibility 

An act to enhance the quality 
and value of our water resources 
and to establish national policy 
for the prevention, control, and 
abatement of water pollution. 

Development of rules and regulations for 
pollution abatement, initiation of 
investigations to determine pollution of 
the environment and enforcement action 
to abate any violations, require and 
grant permits for disposal of waste into 
the environment and construction of 
waste treatment facilities. Assessment 
of civil penalty where deemed appropri
ate. 

Administration of National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System permit 
program, to include permit issuance, 
administration, and monitoring and 
enforcement. 

Adoption of general rules and numeric 
standards to insure the maintenance of 
water quality throughout the State and 
to set guidelines to provide for best 
use of State waters. 

To establish specific classifications 
for all streams and tributaries through
out the State. 
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R 61-67, S.C. Code 

R 61-81, S.C. Code 

R 61-82, S.C. Code 

R 61-76, S.C. Code 

III. PROBLEM 

To require that specific information on 
all water pollution control facilities 
be submitted to the department in the 
form of a formal engineering report 
prior to construction of the system. 

To assure the validity and quality of 
data generated by laboratories through 
the State by implementation of a State 
Lab Certification Program. 

To require proper closeout of abandoned 
waste treatment facilities throughout 
the State. 

To establish effluent standards and 
guidelines for waste stabilization ponds 
based upon best waste stabilization pond 
technology. 

The maintenance and enhancement of water quality in a constantly 
expanding population with increasing industrialization is critical. 
This requires comprehensive water quality management and financial 
resources to adequately carry out Federal and State mandates. 

The complexity of toxic and hazardous pollutants, along with nonpoint 
source pollutants, is significant and they must be analyzed and 
controlled as necessary through permits or other actions. 

Many new treatment systems and alterations to 
being placed in operation, resulting in an 
complexity of treated waste. 

IV. GOAL 

existing systems 
increased volume 

are 
and 

To restore and maintain the chemical, physical, and biological integri
ty of the State's waters to the degree that these water resources may 
be utilized to the maximum extent possible, consistent with public 
health, economic and social development, protection and propagation of 
aquatic life, and the safety and welfare of the public. 

V. OBJECTIVES 

A. Take necessary action with violations of S. C. Pollution Control 
Act and rules and regulations pertaining to wastewater disposal, 
water quality standards, and permitting requirements. 

B. To insure all wastewater treatment systems are planned, con
structed, and maintained in accordance with State and Federal 
requirements. 

C. To analyze activities affecting water quality and to evaluate 
water quality. 
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D. To update the South Carolina Water Quality Management Plan. 

EVALUATION: 

A. 1. 

2. 

B. 1. 

2. 

3. 

C. 1. 

2. 

a. Number of Discharge Monitoring Reports 
reviewed 14,662 

b. Number of Compliance Inspection Reports 
reviewed 208 

c. Number of Notices of Violation Issued for: 
1. Permit violation 475 
2. Order violation 69 

d. Number of referrals to State Attorney General 16 

No. NPDES permits issued 
No. projected 

355 
380 

93% 

a. 

b. 

a. 

b. 

a. 

b. 

a. 

b. 

No. industrial permits to construct 
issued 

No. applications received 

No. agricultural permits to 
construct issued 

No. applications received 

No. Federal O & M inspections performed 
(using EPA Form 7500-5) 

No. projected 

No. State O & M inspections performed 
No. projected 

State domestic permits to construct 
issued 

No. applications received 

No. water quality assessments 
completed 

No. requested or scheduled 

No. 401 applications issued or denied 
No. 401 applications received 

No. of inspections of major municipal 
facilities (using EPA Form 
3560-3 PAI) 

No. planned 

No. of inspections of major municipal 
facilities (using EPA Form 
3560-3 or PAI) 

No. planned 

104 

167 = 100% 
167 

91 = 100% 
91 

212 
215 

99% 

3107 = 103% 
3000 

967 = 110% 
878 

745 
783 

239 
254 

94% 

94% 

111 = 100% 
111 

113 
113 

100% 



D. 1. 

2. 

3. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

g. 

h. 

i. 

No. NPDES Compliance Sampling 
inspections performed (other 
than 3560-3) 

No. projected 

No. primary trend stations sampled 
from ambient network 

No. planned 

No. secondary trend stations 
sampled from ambient network 

No. planned 

No. special water quality studies 
conducted 

No. requested 

No. biological samples collected 
No. planned 

No. bioassay tests conducted 
No. planned 

No. special biological samples 
collected 

No. designated planning agency actions 
completed 

No. scheduled 

No. of 106 intensive water quality 
surveys conducted 

No. planned 

No. wasteload allocations issued 
No. requested or scheduled 

4. No. of stream classification requests 
acted upon 

No. requested 

NARRATIVE 

624 
794 

2219 
2220 

2059 
2148 

14 
14 

93 
65 

58 
58 

65 

20 
20 

79% 

99% 

96% 

100% 

143% 

100% 

100% 

6 =·100% 
6 

229 
256 

4 
5 

89% 

80% 

Narrative A. Emphasis on addressing violations and resolving enforcement 
actions at the administrative level continues in order to minimize legal 
office referrals. Quarterly evaluations of all active enforcement projects 
also reveals that each project is moving towards resolution, thereby 
insuring that necessary actions on violations are initiated. Improvement 
in the average response time to violations by major permittees has resulted 
from an increased emphasis on violations associated with major discharges 
and on a weekly review of data for violations warranting enforcement 
action. 
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Narrative B. Approximately 21 million dollars in federal grants were 
awarded this year towards construction and upgrading of wastewater 
facilities. The number of domestic construction permit applications was 
also high, and when new efforts are considered, straining available re
sources. 

Narrative C. During the past year, programs such as water quality moni
toring and wastewater treatment plant operation and maintenance inspections 
have shown improvement. Emphasis on inspector training continues and has 
resulted in significant improvement in the quality of inspections and 
timeliness of corrective action. 

Narrative D. The development of water quality management plans for the 
State and its five designated areawides has been completed. Additional 
effort in the three areawide plans for the coastal zone was sponsored by 
the South Carolina Coastal Council. 
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WATER SUPI;'LY 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source 

Federal: 
Environmental Protection Agency 

State: 
Line Item Appropriation 

Total: 

Amount 

$ 455,612 

1,463,946 

$1,919,558' 

II. LEGISLATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

Section 44-55-20-30 
et. seq. 

S. C. Code 1976 
6-19-10 thru 6-19-20 

III. PROBLEM 

Responsibility 

It is public policy to 
establish such standards as 
shall be adequate·to protect 
the health, interest and 
welfare of people using public 
and semipublic water systems; 
to handle permits. for con
struction of water works 
systems; to perform inspec
tions and compliance reviews 
and to pursue legal remedies. 

"To assure that financing 
available for rural area 
facilities is fully uti-
lized by conununities,authori
ties or districts in ac
cordance with State guidelines 
and sound local prior-
ities." 

In the past, drinking water has been implicated in outbreaks of 
diseases such as hepatitis, typhoid, paratyphoid, dysentery, 
leptosprirosis, cholera, and others. More recently, new hazards 
to the public's health have been linked to drinking water con
taining carcinogenic and toxic substances. Approximately 3.5 
million residents and 29 million tourists who drink water from 
more than 2,700 public water supply systems in the state are 
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potentially at risk of hazards associated with drinking water. 
Approximately 1/3 of South Carolina residences do not have public 
water supply availability and more than 50% lack central waste 
disposal facilities. Bacteriological records indicate contamina
tion in as many as 30% of private supplies compared to less than 
1% contamination incidence in public water supplies. Many rural 
communities lack financial resources necessary for development of 
public water and sewer facilities. While funding under various 
federal programs can provide much of the construction costs, the 
combined federal and local funds are frequently not quite ade
quate to meet the project costs. 

IV. GOAL 

To protect the health and well-being of the people of South 
Carolina as it may be affected by drinking water and to encourage 
development of adequate water and sewer facilities in rural areas 
of South Carolina. 

V. OBJECTIVES 

A. Drinking Water 

1. To insure that new systems and modifications to exist
ing systems meet applicable standards of design and 
construction (estimate 1,200 designs, 750 construction). 

2. To insure that the estimated 2,700 operating public 
water supply systems meet applicable standards of 
operation and maintenance (0 & M) to provide safe, 
potable, and palatable water in sufficient quantity and 
of high quality. 

3. To insure that water of acceptable quality is available 
during water supply emergencies and the protection of 
water supply sources. 

4. On request, to provide to citizens technical assistance 
related to private water supply. 

5. To insure that approximately 110 public water supply 
and 35 commercial laboratories which test drinking 
water quality meet performance standards. 

6. To encourage proper fluoridation of public water 
supplies. 

B. Ground Water Protection 

1. To prevent the contamination of existing and potential 
underground sources of drinking water. 
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2. To improve the quality of ground water where signifi
cant health or environmental impacts exists. 

3. On request, provide technical assistance related to 
ground water and water supply to the general public, 
other agencies, and·industrial officials. 

4. Maintain consistency in ground-water 
related activities. 

C. Rural Water and Sewer Grant Program 

contamination 

1. To plan, analyze and coordinate the most c.ost effective 
and environmentally sound approaches· for the develop
ment and placement of rural water and sewer projects 
and to take an active role in the planning and protec
tion of the state's natural resources through this 
process. 

2. To provide timely and cost-effective supplementary 
funds in concert with federal, state, and local sources 
in order to maximize the Department's purpose to 
preserve the public health, environmental quality, 
general welfare and safety through the provision of 
acceptable water and wastewater service. 

3. To provide timely and efficient information to the 
South Carolina Rural Water and Sewer Grants Advisory 
Committee and to inform the committee of legislative 
and budgetary issues which affect the program and, 
therefore, objectives 1 and 2. 

EVALUATION: 

A. l. 

a. 1. 

2. 

3. 

b. 1. 

2. 

3. 

Number of preliminary engineering 
reports approved 
Number submitted 

Number of projects reviewed 
Number submitted 

Number construction permits issued 

Number projects completed receiving 
during-construction inspection 
Number construction projects 

completed 

Number during-construction 
inspections conducted 

Number operational permits issued 

109 

23 88% 
30 

1,465 98% 
1,492 

1,457 

1,256 100% 
1,256 

437 

1,371 



A.2. 

a. 

b. 1. 

2. 

C. l. 

2. 

d. 

e. 1. 

2. 

f. 

g. 1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Number cross-connection control 
instructional sessions conducted 

Number systems under enforcement 
action 

Number systems upgraded as a result 
of enforcement action 

Number of systems with acceptable 
bacteriological analyses 
Number of systems submitting 
bacteriological reports 

Number of systems with acceptable+ 15% 
turbidity analyses 
Number of Systems served by 
surface water sources 

Number routine operation and 
maintenance inspections 
Number projected 

Number routine sanitary surveys 
conducted 
Number projected 

Number follow-up sanitary surveys 

Number technical assistance visits made 

Average number water systems routinely 
sampled monthly for bacti quality 
assurance analyses 
Average number water systems in 
operation 

Number systems with acceptable bacti 
quality assurance analyses 
Number systems sampled 

Number systems sampled for chemical 
analysis 
Number systems projected 

Number syatems with acceptable 
chemical analysis 
Number systems sampled 

110 

7 

389 

19 

12,091 
11,302 

928 
930 

:t, 142 
1,440 

58 
76 

0 

139 

1,545 
1,625 

5,985 
6,181 

823 
1,020 

808 
823 

99% 

100% 

79% 

58% 

95% 

96. 8% 

80.7% 

98% 



5. 

6. 

A.3. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

A.4. 

Number satisfactory chemical 
analyses (public supplies, 
non-routine) 
Number chemical analyses performed 

Number systems sampled at least monthly 
for controlled fluoride analysis 
Number systems fluoridating 

Operation and Maintenance 
Standards Revised 

Number of emergency responses 

Projected proposals and waste 
discharge reviews 

1,047 
1,101 

878 
892 

No 

0 

196 

a. Number of bacteriological samples from private 

b. 

A.5. 

wells analyzed and results interpreted 7,123 

Number of chemical samples from private 
wells analyzed and results interpreted 1,788 

a. Number routine water laboratory 
evaluations 84 

60 
140% 

b. 

c. 

A.6. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

Number projected 

Number laboratories approved 
for water quality analyses 
Number evaluated 

Number technical assistance visits 
made to water laboratories 

Number technical assistance visits 
made to promote fluoridation 

Number fluoridation surveys+ 15% 
Number planned 

Number grants made for fluoridation 
equipment 

111 

29 
84 

N/A 

1 

114 
120 

2 

35% 

95% 

95% 

98% 



B.l. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

B.2. 

Number of policy procedure documents 
produced 

Research proceeding on schedule 

Reports preparation proceeding on 
schedule 

a. Water Pollution Control/Permit Evaluations 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 

Received 
Reviewed 
Sites evaluated 
Reports made 

b. Solid Waste Management/Permit Evaluations 

c. 

1. 
2. 
3. 

Received 
Reviewed 
Sites evaluated 
Reports made 

Hazardous Waste Management/Permit 
Evaluations 

1. Part B Permit/Applications 

a. Received 
b. Reviewed 
c. Reports made 

d. Underground Injection Control/Permits 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 

Applications received 
Applications reviewed 
Sites evaluated 
Permits issued 

Grouno-Water Activities in Support 
of Solid Waste Management 

2 

yes 

yes 

151 
150 

98 
139 

50 
51 
28 
54 

5S-

38 
41 
41 

58 
58 
62 
31 

e. Underground Storage 
January 1, 1986) 

Tanks/Permits (Permitting 

112 

Begins 



B.3. 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 

Applications received 
Applications reviewed 
Sites evaluated 
Permits issued 

a. Water Pollution Control 

1. 
2. 

Number of evaluations 
Number of monitoring reports 

- . 
b. Solid Waste Management 

1. 
2. 

Number of evaluations 
Number of monitoring reports 

c. Hazardous Waste Management 

1. Interim Status Facilities 

a. 
b. 

Number of evaluations 
Number of monitoring reports 

2. Part B Facilities 

a. 
b. 

Number of evaluations 
Number of monitoring reports 

d. Underground Injection Control 

1. 
2. 
3. 

Number of evaluations 
Number of monitoring reports 
Number of enforcement actions 

e. Underground Storage Tanks 

1. 
2. 
3. 

Number uf evaluations 
Number of monitoring reports 
Enforcement actions 

f. Water Supply/Private Wells 

1. Number of evaluations 

g. Driller's Certification 

1. 
2. 

Number of compliance investigations 
Enforcement actions 
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434 
434 
356 
665 

419 
547 

355 
313 

251 
163 

4 
4 

39 
0 
7 

199 
160 

54 

43 

15 
35 



B.4. 

a. Well Construction S.t:andards 

1. 
2. 
3. 

Ntnnber of well record forms received 
Technical assistance provided 
Enforcement actions 

b. CERCI.A/Spills 

C. l. 

a. 

L 
'.e. 
3. 

Number of inspections performed 
Number of reports made 
Number of special scudies performed 

(a) Number of inspections performed 
(b} Numeer of reports made 

NWDber of meetings attended with state, 
federal, local officials 

b. Number of rural communities or organizations 
contacted 

o. Number of meetings and projects partici
pated in 

C.2. 

a. Number of projects evaluated 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

77 

87 

156 

58 

b. Numbe~ and dollar amount of grants 
awarded 29 - 1,245-,775 

C.3. 

a. 

b. 

Number of technical or administrative 
assistances provided to the South Carolina 
Rural Water/Sewer Grants Advisory 
Committee 

Number and quality of reports to supervision 
and advisory committee 

114 

40 

48 



NARRATIVE A.l 

Proposals for waterworks construction increased from 1,387 in FY 86 to 
1,492 in FY 87, and increase of 8%. Construction permits issued 
increased from 1,428 in FY 86 to 1,457 in FY 87, representing an 
increase of 2%. Construction permits were issued for some projects 
submitted initially during FY 86 following submission of additional 
information. The 437 during construction inspections during FY 87 was 
less than the minimum projection of one construction inspection per 
project for an estimated 750 projects. Not all projects completed in 
FY 87 received a construction inspection. Due to the large increase 
in total projects over the last year, manpower that would have been 
devoted to during construction inspections had to be spent on final 
construction inspections. Following satisfactory final inspections, 
operation approvals were granted for 1,371 projects compared to 1,120 
projects last year. Staff limitations have reduced the time spent in 
review of project proposals. This has resulted in less guidance to 
consulting engineers regarding design alternatives. 

TABLE I - WATER FACILITY CONSTRUCTION 

SUPERVISION FY 86 - 87 

FY 86 FY 87 

Projects Submitted. 1,387 1,492 
Construction Permits. 1,428 1,457 
During Construction 

Inspections 546 437 
Operating Approvals 1,120 1,371 

A.2 

% Change 

+ 8% 
+ 2% 

- 20% 
+ 7% 

Effective management of the State Water Quality Monitoring Program 
enabled accomplishment of projected monitoring. Continued effort by 
the Water Supply Division has resulted in compliance with bacteriolog
ical self-monitoring requirements of the Safe Drinking Water Act. All 
chemical monitoring is performed under the Program. Portions of the 
FY 86 chemical monitoring program not completed last year were com
pleted in FY 87. Over 99% of the water samples from self-monitoring 
and 95% of state monitoring indicated satisfactory bacteriological 
quality. Violations of chemical standards occurred in approximately 
2% of the systems sampled. Radiological and trihalomethane monitoring 
continued as required. Check sampling and other follow-up of water 
quality violations were conducted as necessary for public health 
protection. Activities in Support of local cross-connection control 
programs continued at a high level of success in FY 87 with 7 instruc
tional courses. 
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A.3 

The operation and maintenance standards were not revised in FY 87. 
However, a revision is planned for FY 88. 

A.4 

In FY 87, analyses were performed on all water samples from private 
sources properly submitted to the department, and technical assistance 
was provided as requested. 

TABLE II - PRIVATE WELL PROGRAM FY 87 

Bacteriological Samples from 
Private Wells Analyzed and 
Results Interpreted .... 

Chemical Samples from 
Private Wells Analyzed and 
Results Interpreted. 

Technical Assistance to 
Private Well Owners . 

A.5 

FY 86 

6,235 

1,595 

519 

FY 87 

7,123 

1,788 

464 

Eighty four routine laboratory evaluations were made and 
approved in accordance with certification criteria. 
assistance visits are no longer made to laboratories. 
are solved during routine visits. Minor problems were often 
over the telephone. 

TABLE III - IABORATORY CERTIFICATION 

% Change 

+14% 

+12% 

-11% 

29 were 
Technical 

Problems 
handled 

Projected Accomplished % Difference 

Routine Water Laboratory 
Evaluations ..... 

A.6 

60 84 +40% 

Technical assistance visits increased from 57 in FY 86 to 139 in FY 
87. Funding under preventive health and health services block grant 
in FY 87 enabled the Division of Water Supply to provide grants to 2 
utilities for fluoridation equipment. Total contractual funding for 
the year was 60,000. The number of fluoridation surveys increased 
from 108 to 114, a 6% increase. 
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TABLE IV - ACTIVITIES TO INSURE SAFE OPERATION 

OF EXISTING FACILITIES 

Difference 

Operation and Maintenance 
Inspections ... . 

Fluoridation Surveys .. . 
Sanitary Surveys .... . 
Bacteriological Monitoring. 
Chemical Monitoring. 
Fluoride Monitoring. 
Turbidity Monitoring. 

Projected 

1,440 
120 

76 
1,625 

1020 
892 
930 

Comparison of Fiscal Year Activities 

Accomplished 

1,142 
114 

58 
1,545 

823 
878 
930 

% 

-20% 
- 5% 
-24% 
- 5% 
-19% 
- 2% 

FY 86 

57 

6 

27 

FY 87 

139 

7 

19 

% Difference 

Technical Assistance ... 
Cross Connection Control 

Instruction Courses .. 
Systems Upgraded as Result 

of Enforcement Action .. 
Systems Submitting 

Bacteriological Monitoring 
Reports ..... . 

Non-Routine Chemical 
Analyses ..... . 

NARRATIVE.B 

941 

1,096 

823 

1,047 

+149% 

+ 17% 

- 30% 

13% 

4% 

Plan review, site evaluations, and technical assistance were performed 
by the Ground Water Protection Division staff as necessary to protect 
groundwater resources. Progress was made as planned toward completion 
of several groundwater research projects. Regular planning and 
coordination meetings were held during FY 87 to provide update to the 
Statewide Groundwater Quality Management Plan. Environmental Impact 
Statements and waste discharge permits were reviewed to insure no 
adverse effect on any ground or surface drinking water sources. 
Generally, increases and decreases in activities reflected the number 
of requests received. 

The Water Supply Division responded to all water supply emergencies 
occurring in FY 87. 
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TABLE V - WATER SUPPLY SOURCE PROTECTION 

ACTIVITIES FY 86 / FY 87 

FY 86 FY 87 % Change 

Plans and specifications with 
accompanying data reviewed. 

Site Inspections of Proposed 
Projects ......... . 
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48 
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EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source 

Federal: 
Preventive Health Block Grant & 
Department of Transportation 

State: 
Line item appropriation 

Other: 
Earned revenue 

Total: 

Amount 

$ 419,625 

1,132,248 

3,860 

$1,555,733 

II. LEGISLATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

Section 44-61, SC Code 

III. PROBLEM 

Responsibility 

To regulate and license 
ambulance services, inspect 
vehicles, train and certify EMS 
personnel, develop State EMS 
Plan, coordinate EMS communica
tions center, and to categorize 
trauma centers and hospital 
emergency departments. 

Emergency medical services professionals in South Carolina confront 
a persistent and pervasive enemy: death, disability, and inJury 
due to trauma and cardiovascular disease. The Department of 
Highways and Public Transportation, in the 1985 statistical bulle
tin, recorded 949 deaths and 32,388 injuries on the state's high
ways. The number of deaths increased to 1,058 in 1986. Cardio
vascular and cerebrovascular disease also took a deadly toll on 
South Carolinians in 1985 with 11,865 deaths. 

The provision of timely advanced life support care can reduce the 
number of deaths due to trauma and cardiovascular disease. The 
Division of Emergency Medical Services has taken the lead role in 
assuring that this sophisticated prehospital care is available to 
all citizens of South Carolina. 

IV. GOAL 

Reduction in mortality and morbidity which results from trauma and 
other medical emergencies. 
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V. OBJECTIVES 

A. To complete 170 initial and refresher training programs for 
basic EMTs and to certify 1,163 basic EMTs, 263 intermediate 
EMTs, and 217 advanced E:MTs. 

EVALUATION 

1. No. of advanced EMTs certified 
No planned 

2. No. of initial and refresher 
basic EMT courses completed 
No. planned 

NARRATIVE: 

212 
217 

160 
170 

98% 

94% 

The training of prehospital EMS professionals is central to the 
mission of the Division of EMS. Training courses for basic, 
intermediate, and advanced EMTs have been conducted based on local 
needs around the state. 

Advanced EMTs certified 

Initial and refresher basic 
EMT courses completed 

FY 86 

268 

159 

FY 87 

212 

160 

% Change 

-21 

0 

B. To complete 101 
for advanced, 
physicians. 

in-service and continuing education programs 
intermediate, and basic EMTs, nurses, and 

EVALUATION: 

1. No. of continuing education programs 
for advanced, intermediate, and basic 
EMTs, nurses, and physicians 
No. Planned 

NARRATIVE: 

83 
101 

82% 

Both in-service and continuing education programs continued to 
focus on the recognition and treatment of those disease processes 
and mishaps that have the most severe effect on South Carolinians. 

No. of continuing education 
programs for advanced, inter
mediate, and basic EMTs, nurses, 
and physicians 

FY 86 

151 

120 

FY 87 % Change 

83 -45 



C. To inspect 195 emergency medical services providers and 497 
ambulance vehicles to assure compliance with state laws and 
regulations pertaining to ambulance service. 

EVALUATION: 

1. 

2. 

No. of EMS providers inspected 
No planned 

No. of ambulances inspected 
No. planned 

NARRATIVE: 

194 
195 

503 
497 

99% 

101% 

The goals of inspecting 195 EMS providers and 497 ambulances were 
met and exceeded. The Division of EMS through the inspection 
process, makes certain the state's ambulance vehicles meet estab
lished criteria for vehicle design and equipment. 

D. To inform interested persons 
important developments in EMS 
newsletters. 

EVALUATION: 

and organizations of recent 
in South Carolina through 

1. No. of EMS newsletters published 
No. planned 

4 
4 

100% 

NARRATIVE: 

and 
four 

This objective was met. The EMS newsletter serves as a vital 
source of information for EMS providers in the state. 

No. of newsletters published 

FY 86 

4 

FY 87 

4 

% Change 

0 

E. To develop six Highway Safety project proposals for funding in 
FY 88, and implement seven approved Highway Safety 
applications during FY 87. 

EVALUATION: 

1. 

2. 

No. of Highway Safety project 
proposals developed in FY 87 
No. planned 

No. of Highway Safety grants 
implemented in FY 87 
No. planned 
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7 
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100% 

100% 



NARRATIVE: 

Highway Safety funding made possible the training of advanced EMTs, 
the establishment of a trauma registry, and the completion of crash 
victim extrication courses. 

FY 86 FY 87 % Change 

No. of Highway Safety project 
proposals developed 8 6 -25 

No. of Highway Safety grants 
implemented 5 7 +40 

F. To continue the development of four regional EMS systems. 

EVALUATION: 

1. No. of regional EMS systems 
assisted with development 
No. planned 

NARRATIVE: 

4 
4 

100% 

The Division of EMS provides administrative, technical, and train
ing support to the four EMS regions in South Carolina. 

G. To continue implementation of alternative programs for recer
tification of basic, intermediate, and advanced EMTs. 

EVALUATION: 

Alternative recertification programs 
developed and implemented 

NARRATIVE: 

YES X NO 

The newly developed in-service training program allows EMS person
nel to recertify through local initiative and under the direct 
supervision of the local medical control physician. 

H. To coordinate all civilian aspects of the South Carolina 
Military Assistance to Safety and Traffic (MAST) Program to 
include 20 orientation briefings regarding the MAST Program. 

EVALUATION: 

1. 

2. 

Civilian MAST support assistance provided 

No. of MAST briefings held 
No. planned 
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18 = 90% 
20 



NARRATIVE: 

This objective was met. MAST briefings were held at hosp-itals and 
ambulance services throughout the state. The activities of the 
MAST program have been affected by the introduction of several new 
civilian air ambulance services into the state and the curtailment 
by the Department of Army of the number of flying hours allocated 
for MAST missions. 

No. of MAST briefings held 

FY 86 

23 

FY 87 

18 

% Change 

-22 

I. To update plans for state, district, and county emergency 
operations; to plan and coordinate DHEC's environmental and 
health support for two emergency exercises in support of a 
fixed nuclear facility. 

EVALUATION: 

1. No. of central office emergency 
plans updated 
No. planned 

2. No. of county department emergency 
operations plans updated 
No. planned 

3. No. of radiological response exercises 
planned and coordinated 
No. planned 

NARRATIVE: 

1 100% 
1 

26 100% 
26 

2 100% 
2 

The Division of EMS takes a lead role in assuring that state and 
county health and environmental services are prepared to function 
in disaster situations. 

FY 86 FY 87 % Change 

No. of central office 
emergency plans updated 1 1 0 

No. of county department 
emergency operations plans updated 10 26 +160 

No. of radiological response 
exercises planned and coordinated 1 2 +100 
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J. To manage a state grant program for purchase of ambulance 
service equipment in the 46 counties of the state and to 
ensure all criteria are met prior to implementation of con
tracts with counties. 

EVALUATION: 

1. To implement a statewide public awareness campaign emp~asizing 
the advantages of wearing seat belts. 

EVALUATION: 

1. No. of groups assisting in 
promoting seat belt use 
No. planned 

NARRATIVE: 

100 
41 

244% 

The seat belt public awareness campaign made contacts with ambu
lance service providers, law enforcement agencies, educational 
institutions, county health departments, public service groups, 
industry, and local civic groups. 

L. Maintain a data base system to assist in planning, research, 
and evaluation. Perform research in specific components of 
EMS which show the progress of EMS systems development. 

EVALUATION: 

1. Ambulance run report system maintained. YES X NO 

2. EMS compliance and training record computerized. 
YES X NO 
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HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES DEVELOPMENT 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source 

Federal: 

Health and Human Services 

State: 

Line item appropriation 

Total: 

II. LEGISLATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

PL 96-79, Title XV, Part C 
Section 1521 and 1523 

Section 44-7-460, S. C. Code 

III. PROBLEM 

Amount 

$17,466 

365,619 

:$383, 085 

Responsible for the develop
ment and annual update of a 
State Plan, used by DHEC as 
the basis for determining 
needed health care facili
ties across the state. 

Development and 
administration of a state 
medical facilities plan and 
administration of a State 
Certificate of Need Program. 

Health resources are not consistently distributed in 
quantities to adequately serve the needs of the 
Facilities and services are offered which could result 
sary duplication and an increase in the cost of health 
controlled. 

sufficient 
population. 

in unneces
care unless 

IV. GOAL 

To improve the planning of health facilities and services in 
accordance with public needs by promoting cost containment, pre
venting needless duplication of facilities and services, and 
guiding the establishment of facilities and services. 

V. OBJECTIVES 

A. By January 7, 1987, prepare a preliminary 1987 State 
Volume II; Medical Facilities, using the data from the 
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Plan, 
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Annual Reports (JARS), patient origin studies and various other 
sources of information. 

EVALUATION: 

1. Percentage of 1987 PSHP-Volume 11, Medical 
completed by June 30, 1987 
Percentage planned 

NARRATIVE (A and B) 

100 
100 

100% 

The State Administrative Program for FY 87, and the draft Medical 
Facilities portion of the State Health Plan were developed and 
submitted in accordance with the schedules contained in the FY 86 
Plan for programs of the Department of Health and Environmental 
Control. 

C. To administer a State Certificate of Need Program in compliance 
with South Carolina law and regulations. 

EVALUATION: 

1. Number of Certificates of Need applications received 151 100% 
Number reviewed in the established time frame 151 

2. Number of Certificates of Need granted (109), denied (34), and 
withdrawn (16) 

3. Number of indigent care plans received and reviewed 
Number reviewed 

NARRATIVE: 

146 
146 

100% 

All program requirements were met during the year. In addition, a 
total of 151 projects were received under the Certificate of Need 
program during this period. One hundred nine projects with capital 
expenditures of $142,313,886 were approved while thirty four 
projects with expenditures of $93,693,141 were denied. Normal 
review activities include consultation with the applicant(s), 
determinations concerning the applicability of the program to 
specific projects, analysis of applications for both content and 
completeness, coordination with the health systems agency's review 
of the project&, as well as the decision process itsel~. 
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HEALTH FACILITIES CONSTRUCTION, LICENSING AND CERTIFICATION 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source 

Federal: 

Health and Human Services, Social 
Security Administration 

State: 

Line item appropriation 

Other: 

Earned Revenues 

Total: 

II. LEGISLATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

Section 1864 (a) of the Social 
Security Act as amended 

Section 44-7-310, S. C. Code 

Section 44-7-520, S. C. Code 

Section 44-7-820, S. C. Code 
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Amount 

$2,087,397 
(includes IOC) 

678,135 

8,600 

$2,774,132 

Responsibility 

Responsible for Medicare 
(Title XVIII) and Medicaid 
(Title XIX) Survey and 
Certification of all 
Hospitals, SNF, ICF, ICF-MR, 
HHA, Labs, Ambulatory 
Surgical Centers, Portable 
X-rays, Hospices, CORF, 
ESRD, OPT, S. ·T., etc. in 
South Carolina. Initial 
surveys, follow-ups, and 
consultations to determine 
that facilities meet Federal 
conditions of participation. 

Licensure of hospitals, 
nursing care facilities, 
intermediate care facili
ties, ambulatory surgical 
facilities, and chiro
practic facilities. 

Licensure of community 
residential care facilities. 

Licensure of outpatient 
facilities for chemically 
dependent or addicted per
sons. 



Section 44-65-20, S. C. Code 

Section 38-25-20, S. C. Code 

Section 44-69-30, S. C. Code 

Section 44-71-30, S. C. Code 

Section 40-25-60, S. C. Code 

Section 44-47-70, S. C. Code 

Section 44-39-40, S. C. Code 

Act 99 of 1987 Code 

III. PROBLEMS 

LiceHsure of day care 
facilities for adults. 

Licensure of health 
maintenance organizations. 

Licensure of home 
health agencies. 

Licensure of hospices. 

Licensure of hearing 
aid dealers and 
fitters. 

Approving acupuncture 
facilities. 

Li.censure of renal 
dialysis centers. 

Licensure of Birthing 
Centers. 

Health care facilities and providers do not continuously maintain a 
level of performance which meets or exceeds the state (licensing) 
and federal (certification) laws and regulations governing 
construction, operation and participation in the Medicare and 
Medicaid programs. Furthermore, the application of existing 
standards identifies requirements which need to be revised to 
improve the level of care being rendered by regulated facilities 
and activities. Facility construction must be monitored to insure 
that all health facilities are constructed in accordance with 
applicable building and life safety standards. 

IV. GOAL 

To enhance the quality of care received by South Carolinians in 
health care facilities and from other providers. To evaluate 
providers which are regulated by the state and/or federal govern
ment for the purpose of detecting noncompliance and requiring and 
monitoring corrective actions. Insure that all hospitals, psychi
atric, drug, alcohol, long-term residential care facility construc
tion is in accordance with applicable standards. 

V. OBJECTIVES 

A. By June 30, 1987, to renew 928 health care facilities and 
services licenses when licensees are in compliance with 
licensing regulations (90% to be renewed prior to expiration). 
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EVALUATION: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

No. of hospital and infirmary licenses renewed 
prior to expiration date 
No of hospitals and general infirmaries 
licensed as of July 1, 1987 

No of long-term care facility licenses 
renewed prior to expiration date 
No. of long-term care facilities licensed 
as of July 1, 1987 

No of home health agencies and hospice 
licenses renewed prior to expiration date 
No. of home health agencies and hospices 
licensed as of July 1, 1987. 

No. of ambulatory surgical facility, acupuncture 
clinic, health maintenance organization, adult 
day care center, alcohol and chemical dependency 
outpatient facility licenses renewed prior to 
expiration date 
No. of ambulatory surgical facilities,acupuncture 
clinics, health maintenance organizations, adult 
day care centers, alcohol and chemical dependency 
outpatient facilities licensed as of July 1, 1987 

No. of community residential care facility licenses 
renewed prior to expiration date 
No. of community residential care facilities 
licensed as of July 1, 1987 

No. of hearing aid dealer licenses renewed 
prior to expiration date 
No. of hearing aid dealers licensed as of 
July 1, 1987 

NARRATIVE: 

89 
91 

216 
221 

47 
54 

83 
84 

333 
366 

95 
95 

9-8% 

98% 

87% 

99% 

91% 

100% 

Licensing inspections of home health agencies were delayed due to 
Certification surveys performed simultaneously. Certification 
survey dates are not related to licensing expiration dates. The 
projected increase in number of licensed activities will exceed the 
capability of current staff to consistently meet objectives next 
year. 

B. To issue licenses to new providers and services as applicable. 

EVALUATION: 

1. Number and type of facilities in which licensing 
responsibilities were assumed during the year 
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2. 

3. 

a. Number of new facilities/activities 
lice-nsed 

b. Number of expanded facilities/activities 
licensed 

Number of new hearing aid dealers licensed 
Number of hearing aid dealer examinees 

NARRATIVE: 

115 

84 

24 
28 

86% 

During FY 87 there was an increase in licensed facilities in all 
services and programs with the largest increase in ICF-MR 15 
facilities, adult day care cente~s, hearing aid dealers and health 
maintenance organizations. Processing of requests to license new 
facilities has been delayed due to insufficient staff to meet the 
workload. 

C. To survey and recommend certification of 453 health care 
facilities electing to participate in Medicare and Medicaid 
programs, when in compliance with Conditions of Earticipation, 
plus any new facilities requesting certification during the 
year. 

EVALUATION: 

1. Number of hospitals, nursing and intermediate care 
facilities certified (including ICF-MR's) 301 

2. Number of Horne Health Services, Independent Medical 
Laboratories, Rehabilitation Agencies, End Stage 
Renal Disease Facilities, Speech and Hearing 
clinics, Outpatient Physical Therapy Clinics, 
Independent Physical Therapists, Portable X-ray 
Facilities, Ambulatory Surgical Centers and Rural 
Health Clinics certified. 152 

3. No. of certification surveys made 
No. of certification surveys obligated 
or schedu-led 

453 
453 

100% 

D. To survey at least annually, 215 health care facilities 
participating in the Medicaid Program to determine compliance 
with the Inspection of Care Regulations, plus any new facili
ties entering the program during the year. 

EVALUATION: 

1. Number of Inspection of Care surveys made 
Number of Inspection of Care surveys obligated 
or schedu=led 
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2. Number of new Inspection of Care surveys made 
Number of new Inspection of Care surveys 
obligated or scheduled 

33 
33 

100% 

E. To inform appropriate health care facilities of new regula
tions and changes relating to the Medicaid, Medicare and 
Inspection of Care programs. 

EVALUATION: 

1. Number of Newsletters publisheo 
Number planned 

NARRATIVE: (C-F) 

2 
2 

100% 

During FY 87, 453 facilities and services were recommended for 
recertification. These include Hospitals, Long-Term Care Facili
ties, Hospices, Independent Medical Laboratories, Portable X-ray 
facilities, Ambulatory Surgical Centers, Rural Health Clinics, ESRD 
Facilities, Comprehensive Outpatient Rehabilitation Facilities, 
Speech and Hearing Clinics, Outpatient Physical Therapy Clinics, 
Independent Physical Therapist, as well as Swing Bed Hospitals and 
Prospective Payment System Hospitals. In addition, all complaints 
(36) received relating to certified facilities were investigated 
according to policy. 

F. To survey approximately 314 health facilities for compliance 
with Life Safety requirements. 

EVALUATION: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

Number of licensed health facilities surveyed 
for life safety 
Number planned 

Number of licensed health facilities 
substantially in compliance with 
life safety standards 
Number surveyed 

Number of health facilities meeting life 
safety standards with plans of correction 
Number surveyed in need of corrective action 

314 
314 

230 
314 

160 
160 

100% 

73% 

100% 

G. To ensure new health facilities and/or renovations to existing 
health facilities comply with building codes, handicapped 
accessibility standards, licensing and certification regula
tions. 

EVALUATION: 

1. Number of facilities construction submittals 
reviewed 
Number of facilities construction reviews planned 
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2. Number of facilities construction site 
inspections 
Number of facilities under construction 

NARRATIVE: 

180 
200 

90% 

Insufficient staff time was available to perform plan review, 
correspondence processing, construction visits and telephone 
inquiries. Number of facilities has risen substantially; number of 
renovation/remodeling projects has increased noticeably. 
Responsibilities to review community residential centers (CRC) and 
inspect ICF-MR 15's has further burdened limited number of staff. 

H. Maintain current information about construction to include 
latest codes, cost information and construction duration. 

EVALUATION: 

1. Annual report summarizing code changes, costs, 
and preject durations YES NO X 

NARRATIVE: 

No code changes this reporting period; insufficient staff to 
monitor and report costs and project durations. 

I. Recommend revision of existing standards and development of 
new categories of facilities standards. 

EVALUATION: 

1. 

J. 

Annual report recommending revisions to licensing 
standards and/or policy changes. YES NO X 

Maintain (record drawings) files for all health facilities 
constructed for determination of which code is applicable 
for solving future construction and space problems which 
arise. 

as 
and 
may 

EVALUATION: 

1. Annual summary index of project drawings on file by 
category. YES NO- X 

NARRATIVE: 

Insufficient storage (flat files and space) for existin~ and new 
projects as well as insufficient hanging file space for projects in 
progress. Insufficient staff available to adequately inventory, 
sort and rearrange drawings in flat files. 

K. Coordinate with the owners, 
codes and interpretations 
planning. 

architects and others 
relative to facility 
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EVALUATION: 

1. Number of coordination contacts with owners, 
architects and others concerning facility 
design and codes 
Number of planned "contacts" 

NARRATIVE: 

No report 

Insufficient time available to monitor and report on this activity. 
The CRC licensing program and ICF-MR 15 licensing activity are 
consuming a disproportionate share of staff time in relation to 
facility size and complexity of projects. 

L. Provide technical expertise and support to other branches of 
S. C. Department of Health and Environmental control as 
needed relating to health care facilities, facility planning, 
architecture and engineering technologies. 

EVALUATION: 

1. Number of technical assistance projects 
with other SC DHEC Divisions 
Number of requested technical assistance 
projects 

NARRATIVE: 

1 
1 

100% 

Project involved assistance with the S. C. DHEC's Camp Burnt Gin 
dining hall. Division of Health Facilities Construction has also 
supported, Business Office and Safety Committee activities. 
Members of the Division have also participated in professional 
meetings and seminars concerning Fire and Life Safety Codes. 
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OFFICE OF PRIMARY CARE 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source 

Federal: 

Cooperative Agreement 
Migrant Health Project 
Preventive Block Grant 

State: 

Rape Prevention Program 
Rural Health 
*Medical and Dental Loan Fund 

Total: 

Amount 

$170,000 
100,798 

47,453 

166 ,~024 
1,500 

112,000 

$597,775 

II. LEGISLATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority 

Section 330, Public Health 
Service Act 

Section 329, Public Health 
Service Act 

Public Law 94-484, Health 
Professions Educational 
Assistance Act, 1976 

Title XIX, Preventive Health 
and Health Services Block 
Grant, Section 1904 

*Section 59-111-510, SC Code 

Section 41, Department of 
Health and Environmental 
Control, SC General Appro
priations Act for FY 87 

III. PROBLEM" 

Responsibility 

Provides authorization of the 
community health center program. 

Provides primary care for migrant 
farmworkers while temporarily 
residing in SC. 

Provides placement of federal 
scholars in health manpower 
shortage areas. 

Provides services to rape victims 
and for rape prevention. 

Awarding of SC Medical and Dental 
Loans (Program transferred to 
Commissioner's Office) 

Appropriated in rural health case 
services and used for funding of SC 
rape crisis centers. 

In many rural areas of the state, the residents do not have ready 
access to primary health car~. A contributin& factor is the lack of 
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the necessary health manpower, especially physicians and dentists. In 
addition, the medically indigent population in these areas do not have 
sufficient resources to avail themselves of the primary health care 
system. In areas where state and federal programs exist, frequently 
there is a lack of coordination of these resources. 

IV. GOAL 

To facilitate the provision of primary health care services to resi
dents of the rural areas of South Carolina. 

V. OBJECTIVES 

A. Facilitate placement of health manpower in rural underserved 
areas. 

EVALUATION 

No. of assistance requests answered 
No. of assistance requests received 

NARRATIVE: 

16 
30 

53.3% 

The number of assistance requests answered includes the number of NHSC 
placements requests for 1987. Because of the decline in the number of 
NHSC scholars available through the Public Health Service, the Office 
of Primary Care was fortunate to have placed 16 providers through this 
program. 

B. Provide partial reimbursement for the cost of primary health care 
to migrant farmworkers who are temporary residents in rural 
underserved areas. 

EVALUATION 

Actual No. of patients receiving care through program 
No. planned (2200) 

*Midyear projection 

NARRATIVE: 

681 = 48.6% 
1400* 

The Migrant Health Program is a seasonal program in which most of the 
migrant farmworkers are seen during the first and second quarters. 
Services are provided through a series of contracts with physicians, 
dentists and emergency room and usually referred by county health 
departments. Freestanding clinics are closed during the off-season. 

C. Provide funding for rape services and rape prevention programs to 
rape crisis centers around the state. 
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EVALUATION: 

No. of programs funded 
No. of programs planned 

NARRATIVE: 

14 = 100% 
14 

The rape crisis centers provide valuable support to women who are the 
victims of rape and other types of domestic violence. These centers 
also provide educational support to alert women how to become less 
susceptible to rape and rape related crimes. 
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ADMINISTRATION 



BUREAU OF BUDGETS 
FY 87 

1. Mission: (a) To provide direction, supervision and coordination in the 
development and maintenance of the department's budgets; and (b) to provide 
direction and coordination in administration of department revenue produc
ing systems including grants, contracts, third party and private pay. 

2. Significant Activities: (a) A manual was developed to assist program 
and unit managers in establishing and maintaining budgets. 

(b) Two reductions in state appropriations were mandated by the Budget and 
Control Board during the year. Staff was instrumental in providing the 
necessary information to accomplish these reductions with least disruption 
to agency operations. 

(c) In conjunction with the annual budget request, 
including program description, financial and other 
pared for 38 anticipated grants. 

federal project reports 
information were pre-

(d) Record reviews were conducted in 42 clinic sites as compared to 41 in 
FY 86. Reviews involved family planning, prenatal, sexually transmitted 
disease, and integrated clinic records. Childrens rehabilitative services 
records were not reviewed since the financial system was not operable for 
much of the year. The purpose of these reviews is to evaluate services that 
the patients were provided in relation to charges made to him/her or third 
party resources. Reviews are designed to detect procedural errors in 
billing and to identify problem areas for which corrective action needs to 
be made. 

(e) Twenty group workshops and individual training sessions were provided 
regarding private pay and medicaid procedures. 

(f) Conferences were conducted in three districts on the activities of the 
bureau. Emphasis was placed on the role as related to the complete 
budgetary process and relationships with other governmental agencies and 
the guidelines under which agencies operate. 

(g) The annual budget request was coordinated and conducted by bureau 
staff. Most of the detail work was produced on the personal computers. 

(h) Staff actively participated in the activities leading to establishment 
of fees for septic tank and food service establishment inspections, Certifi
cate of Need, swimming pools and other fees for environmental permits, 
licenses, and certificates in EQC. 

(i) Assistance was provided program staff and staff of the governor's 
office regarding techniques for reporting services provided to children. 

(j) Seven (7) county administrators/supervisors were visited for the 
purpose of maintaining communication and exchanging ideas and problems. 
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3. Other activities were as follows: 

Personnel Actions 
Position Descriptions 
Budget Authorizations 
Appropriations Transfers 
BD 100s 
Grants and Contracts Reviews/Awards 

FY 86 

5,601 
320 

4,116 
240 

48 
140 

138 

FY 87 

5,466 
204 

3,711 
196 

39 
163 



Business Management 
FY 1987 

1. MISSION: To provide all units of the department with supportive ser
vices for procurement of goods and services; term contracts; insurance; 
motor vehicle management; facilities management; construction; permanent 
improvements; property management; printing; photography and graphics; cen
tral supply and mail operations; and maintain a continuous review of poli
cies and procedures to assist in the management process of the department. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES: The Mail Room Operations processed 2,788,298 
units of USPO mail, 419,326 units of parcels by various courier services 
and 16,207 units of freight. This represents a 2% increase from fiscal 
year 85-86. Nine hundred and sixty (960) drug requests were filled with 
1,465,761 units of vaccine mailed statewide. 

The Central Supply Division issued 63,353 supply items and 10,080,360 forms 
which represents a decrease of 5.1% and 10.8% respectively over Fiscal Year 
85-86. 

The Property Management section's statewide audit of the departments 10,511 
assets showed 99.7 % accountability. 

The department is leasing 155 vehicles from the Division of Motor Vehicle 
Management. Twenty-eight (28) vehicles assigned to the Agency Motor Pool 
were driven 658,228 miles which represents a 12.1% increase in FY '87. 
This increase is significant in that there is a cost savings when the motor 
pool is used versus paying employees for use of their personal cars for 
business travel. 

The Garage performed 1190 preventive and/or corrective maintenance tasks 
and provided gasoline for 310 Agency vehicles. The garage staff delivered 
330 drums of malathion statewide for the Vector Control Program. 

Purchasing Requisitions decreased 2.2% ; Purchase Orders decreased 3.4%; 
Direct Expenditure Vouchers (DEV's) decreased 17.51%. These decreases are 
attributed to Agency budget reductions, the development of term contracts 
and coordination of group purchases by the procurement team. 

Savings/cost avoidance of approximately $87,290.54 resulted from the fol
lowing procurement actions: 

A. A contract for Beta UGG Pregnancy tests was established which 
precipitated an annual savings of approximately $10,815.00. 

B. An estimated annual savings of $16,600.00 resulted from the es
tablishment of a contract for corner card printing services on 
#10 envelopes. 

C. A system was implemented to take advantage of SGE & G's 
Competitive Fuel Rate Project when purchasing natural gas 
for the State Park Health Genter campus. The rate varies 
and is based on a comparison between the spot market price 
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of natural gas and the market price of #5 fuel oil 
with an adjustment for BTU equivalency between the two 
fuels. The overall savings for all agencies on Campus since 
the competitive fuel rate was invoked (five months in FY87) 
was $28,583. The direct saving to DHEC was $5,282. 

D. An approximate savings of $7,787.44 resulted from utilization of 
the Competitive Sealed Bid process for Audio-Visual Equipment for 
Bureau of Personnel Services. 

E. Cost avoidance of approximately $15,122.50 resulted from an 
Agency/Group purchase and trade-in of blood glucose meters. 

F. Cost avoidance of approximately $31,683.60 resulted from 
Agency/Group purchase of personal computers (P.C.'s) 

The Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) Program reported a 36% increase in 
dollars awarded to minority vendors over FY 86. Approximately $48,000 of 
the total expenditure was for information technology equipment. 

A Buyer - Minority Supplier Day devoloped by the Bureau of Business Manage
ment, Materials Management Office and the Governor's Office of Minority 
Business Assistance provided potential vendors the opportunity to discuss 
their commodities and review procurement procedures with staff. 

A DHEC Audio-Visual User Committee and a Nutritional User Committee was 
established to set standards for products throughout the agency and es
tablish generic specifications for the bidding process. 

A procedure was implemented to have commodities such as drugs and patient 
record folders drop shipped to the districts, thereby reducing storage, 
handling and shipping cost. 

Business Management staff was on the MMO User Committee to provide informa
tion for developing a South Carolina Government Printing Services Procedure 
Manual which established guidelines for all procurements of printing 
services. 

Throughout FY 86-87, Procurement staff continued to develop professionally 
and gain additional expertise in their commodities through 
seminars/training courses, discussions with vendors, research and on-site 
visits. 

Print Shop production increased by 1% with 3447 in-house projects 
ing of 23,014,160 impressions. Equipment utilization was 130% and 
utilization was 117%. Overall efficiency increased by 11% to 124%. 

consist
manhour 

The Art Department completed 556 projects, five projects less than in FY 
'86. Contributing factors to the slight decrease were the acquisition of 
personal computers on which program areas could produce simplified artwork 
and budget reductions. 

The Photography Department recorded the most significant increase in pro
duction at 62% with 805 projects. Computerized color print processing, 
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duratrans and intra-oral photography were new services introduced this 
year. 
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DATA SYSTEMS MANAGEMENT 
FY 1987 

1. MISSION: To provide all units of the department with data management 
services (consultative, planning, development, and operational) and Infor
mation Technology Services necessary to assist in the effective and effi
cient management of the department. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES: A system to accumulate resources expended in 
manpower, equipment, and supply cost is maintained to provide costing 
information to all areas. The percentage of resources expended in behalf 
of specific deputy areas within the department follows: 

Service Area 

Commissioner's Office 
Administration 
Environmental Quality Control 
Health Protection 

(Community Health Services, 
Medical Care and Health 
Regulations, & Env. Health 
and Safety) 

Percentage 
FY86 

11.0 
36.7 
7.1 

45.2 

Percentage 
FY87 

9.1 
32.5 
6.1 

52.3 

Acquired and installed 
package. This product 
existing training tools 
wide tailored courses 
general assumption. 

"ELITE" which is a mainframe training and authoring 
allows users with mainframe access to interact with 

and provides the capability for creating agency 
thereby standardizing instructional material for 

Acquired and installed mainframe security system "TOP SECRET". This system 
prevents unauthorized access to all mainframe resources including: data 
sets, terminals, programs, volumes, fields, commands, and user defined 
resources. Access to resources is accomplished through use of passwords 
and predefined profiles. It also allows for logging of at~empted viola
tions to security guidelines and maintains audit trails. 

Acquired and installed a replacement data entry system. This modernized 
approach to "heads down" data entry for the agency has improved productivi
ty and accuracy. 

The Information Center installed ninety-four (94) PC systems with asso
ciated software packages and printers. Services were expanded to include 
major and minor component level PC hardware maintenance. The staff re
sponded to an average of fifteen trouble calls per day. 

A subsystem was developed and implemented to provide Personnel with em
ployee insurance deduction history data and to compare our payroll file and 
the Retirement Systems files. 

A database on-line entry and tracking system for W-4 form data was designed 
and implemented. 
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Several financial reference files (Minority Business Vendors, Account 
Number/Description File, Mini-code and Sub Fund Files) were redesigned and 
converted to database files. On-line and batch updating, as well as 
interfaces with existing batch Financial Systems, were written and 
installed. 

Two new Billing and Account Receivable Systems (Home Health Services 
Private Pay System and Bureau of Environmental Sanitation Food Established 
System) were developed and incorporated into the automated Centralized 
Accounts Receivable data flow process. 

The On-line Laboratory System for the entry of lab tests and the entry, 
reporting and tracking of results was expanded to include the following 
areas: Mycology, Parasitology, Bacteriology, Toxicology, Clinical Chemis
try, Hematology/Urinalysis and Environmental Epidemiology. Approximately 
98% of the lab specimens are now processed using the on-line system. 

The Tuberculosis Central Register now resides on a database file. The file 
can be accessed and updated on line and batch reports can be generated by 
making selections from a menu. Data from the system is electronically 
transmitted to the Centers for Disease Control in Atlanta, replacing 
manually-prepared paper reports. 

A major rewrite of EQC's Water Pollution and Water Supply systems was 
completed. With personal computers tied together in two local area net
works, the systems allow for entry of data with simultaneous editing, 
resulting in a very high data acceptance rate. A communications link 
connects the network with the DHEC mainframe and with EPA's National 
Computer Center, allowing for printing of voluminous reports on DSM's 
high-speed printer and upload of reports to EPA's computer. The Water 
Pollution System controls permitted facility data and inventory of all 
discharge pipes; catalogs all contaminant concentrations; prints 
discharge monitoring reports; maintains records of operational and 
maintenance inspections; logs violations of compliance schedules and 
tracks enforcement actions and evidentiary hearings; and performs other 
related functions. Among other functions, the Water Supply System 
identifies violations in drinking water samples taken from public drinking 
water plants, generates violation letters, flags violations for action in 
the Enforcement Violation Package which tracks enforcement actions in an 
on-line environment. 

Other EQC systems completed or rewritten include Underground Storage Tanks, 
Recreational Water Permit Management, Laboratory Certification System, 
Paint Coatings and Linings, and Asbestos Contractor Certification. 

The Patient Services portion of the CRS system was completed and installed. 
This large system with its more than sixty (60) reports will provide needed 
information that will assist in the management of this program area. 

The major portion of the Financial component of the CRS system was also 
completed and installed by an outside contractor. There are more than one 
hundred and ten (110) computer programs that provide for: billing to 
insurance companies, medicaid, patients; a receivable system; 
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management/cost reports; extensive on-line inquiry of the CRS files. All 
of this is a tremendous benefit in these complex financial processes. 

The WIC system was modified to allow the entire state to participate in 
issuing two months of vouchers to the patients which resulted in better 
service to the patient and reduced the workload on DHEC staff. Some other 
significant activities included the automatic discharging of patients by 
the system, creation of SAS files for WIC staff and numerous programming 
changes that affected issuance of patient's food package and computer 
reports from the system. 

Statistics 

Lines of reports printed 
Keyed and verified records 
Key Strokes 
Key entry operator hours 
Average keystrokes per hour 
OMR (Optical Mark Reader) 

Documents processed 
Magnetic tape blocks processed 
Disk blocks processed 
Reels of magnetic tape in use 
Microfiche cards produced 

FY86 

230,463,570 
12,328,929 

286,874,172 
27,987 
10,251 

794,833 
92,295,755,070 

478,824,117,229 
5,312 

175,567 

144 

FY87 

226,288,523 
9,669,417 

268,286,680 
25,642 
10,463 

868,796 
80,107,690,706 

523,618,920,015 
6,225 

197,625 



FINANCE 
FY 1987 

1. MISSION: To support the fiscal policies of the department and to 
exercise responsibility for the fiscal management of the department. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES: During the year, the Bureau of Finance accom
plished the following: 

Number of vouchers processed 
Number of receipts processed 
Number of keystrokes 
Medicare-Medicaid Bills Processed 

FY 86 

100,053 
12,437 

138,876,000 
139,240 

FY 87 

100,591 
13,509 

138,747,000 
144,426 

The Bureau of Finance continues to increase its utilization of data pro
cessing technology to automate manual processes: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

The S.C. Medical and Dental Scholarship ledger has been established on 
a personal computer which has increased accuracy of the financial data. 
Revenue payor codes have been added to the Vendor Master file as a 
first step toward automating the cash receipting process. 
Consolidated Accounts Receivable Systems (CARS) have been added for 
Home Health Services and Children's Rehabilitative Services. 
A personal computer-based supply inventory system was developed and 
implemented to produce the first agency-wide valuation of supply 
inventories on hand at June 30, 1987. This was required by the State 
of South Carolina's conversion of its financial statements to a GAAP 
basis. 
The agency implemented a 
advanced data entry system 
vity. 

complete conversion to a technologically 
which has significantly improved producti-

Work has been completed for merging the WIG Vendor Payment system with 
FMS voucher processing. WIG vendor payments will be added to the FMS 
automatically. This time-saving process will be implemented beginning 
in FY 1988. 

7. An on-line Account Maintenance file with inquiry and update capability 
was implemented. 

8. Increased utilization of microcomputers has allowed the bureau to meet 
expanded and more frequent reporting requirements without the need for 
additional manpower. The increase in the amount of detail required by 
outside funding sources has been satisfied by maintaining voluminous 
data files on microcomputer also without hiring additional personnel. 

In addition, the bureau progressed in systems not necessarily related to 
increased automation: 

1. The Statewide Vendor Code system has been implemented as mandated by 
the General Assembly. 

2. The bureau provided financial data required to implement GAAP-basis 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Total expenditures for FY 86 in comparison to FY 87 are as follows: 
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FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES 

State Appropriations 
TOTAL 

Local Appropriations 
County Health Units 

TOTAL 

Fees & Other contracts for Services 
Fees 

TOTAL 

Federal Grants 
Preventive Health Block Grant 
MCH Block Grant 

Environmental Protection Agency 
Water Pollution Control 
Air Pollution Control 
Bluff Road Disposal Site 
Hazardous Waste Management 
Public Water Supply 
Municipal Wastewater Treatment Construction 
WPC-Water Quality Planning 
Hazardous Waste Site Inventory 
Section 404 Study 
Underground Water Source Protection 
WPC Ground Water Program 
National Dioxin Study 
Multiple Site Management 
Underground Storage Tanks 
Permit Compliance System 
Innovative Waste Management 
Water Quality Monitoring 
Asbestos Abatement Contract 

US Department of Agriculture 
Women, Infants and Children (WIG) 

TOTAL GRANTS 

Federal Projects & Contracts 
Migrant Health 
Immunization 
Family Planning 
Venereal Disease 
State Health Planning 
Typhus Revolving 
Diabetes Control Grant 
Compliance Field Testing of Diagnostic X-Rays 
Env. Surveillance of Radioactivity 
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FY 86 

7318321942 
73,832,942 

310691437 
3,069,437 

26!8461542 
26,846,542 

1,288,380 
9,425,922 

1,172,029 
1,017,633 

396,709 
1,037,260 

363,624 
1,440,886 

223,361 
513,612 

28,193 
68,116 

146,346 
3,140 

74,422 
24,410 

550 
47,400 

-0-
-0-

35'2621402 

52,534,395 

57,362 
465,365 

3,199,186 
538,363 
100,327 
111,443 
193,729 

20,231 
74,838 

FY 87 

7411611306 
74,161,306 

2 z737 1 600 
2,737,600 

29!1801378 
29,180,378 

1,119,835 
8,131,828 

1,254,486 
985,058 

-0-
1,112,961 

388,677 
1,177,889 

152,036 
231,641 

-0-
65,867 

111,413 
-0-

8,375 
120,000 

70,189 
47,399 

5,928 
75,921 

34,360!877 

49,420,380 

84,603 
343,715 

3,015,226 
573,994 

33,744 
139,200 

12,996 
18,170 
16,967 



Medical & Dental Scholarship 
Infant - Child Safety Restraint 
Community Long Term Care Project 
Summer Food Service Program 
Vital Records Data Tape 
Employee Health 
Health Assessment for Refugees 
Risk Factor Surveillance 
Assessment of Family Planning Serv. Delivery 
Tuberculosis Control Project (317) 
Value of EMS Effects on Hwy. Accidents 
Coord. of Nat'l Health Service Corp. 
Paramedic Training - B 
Low Birthweight Prevention 
Santee Cooper River Basin Study 
Occupational Safety & Health Study 
HTLV - Aids Testing 
VD Research 
Marlboro Hospital Charities 
Low Birthweight Prevention 
Resource Mothers Project 
Primary Care Service Coop. 
AIDS Prevention and Risk Reduction 
Adolescent Rep. Risk Reduction 
Fluoride Supplement Project 
Intermediate EMT Training 
Professional Education Grant 
Environmental Settlement Fund 
Robert Wood Foundation 
County Personnel Aid/Sp., Newb. & Lex. 
EPSDT Outreach 
Community Health Promotion Proj. 
Health Promotion Research 
Enhancement of EMS Traffic Accident Reports 
Pedestrian Safety 
Seat Belt Safety 
Coastal Water Quality Mgt. Plan Update 
Child Adolescent ProjDMH 
Crash Victim Extrication 
Trauma Registry, EMS 
First Responder Training, EMS 
Mental Health Hosp. & Chem. Abuse Centers 
Teenage Seat Belt Usage 
Coordination of Prevention/Dental 
Promotion of Breast Feeding 
Cardiovascular Disease Prevention 

TOTAL PROJECTS & CONTRACTS 
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FY 86 

390,000 
79,358 

3,134,082 
38,188 
5,684 

51,972 
23,720 
23,167 
9,250 

120,528 
44,093 
38,849 
41,233 
32,296 

192,683 
47,851 

110,025 
25,866 
21,066 
72,476 

141,456 
76,337 
4,419 

57,459 
4,276 

20,800 
8,342 

123,680 
10,929 
22,945 

447,649 
8,070 
7,049 

32,766 
1,839 
4,526 

44,422 
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-

10,280,195 

FY 87 

360,000 
60,252 

3,462,256 
34,456 

-0-
51,515 
38,429 
16,684 

-0-
128,556 

-0-
-0-

44,042 
16,125 

145,723 
35,934 

110,933 
30,582 
19,657 

163,181 
236,289 
152,856 
158,943 
197,456 

-0-
20,397 

-0-
-0-
-0-

29,638 
988,570 

-0-
2,292 

33,547 
29,165 
78,454 

211,079 
70,988 
4,180 

13,973 
9,237 

49,687 
11,528 

2,870 
38,228 
771925 

11,374,242 



Social Security Administration 
Health Insurance Program 

TOTAL 

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 
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FY 86 FY 87 

1,276,392 1,570,204 

1,276,392 1,570,204 

167,839,903 168,444,110 



Bureau of Personnel Services 
FY 1987 

1. MISSION: To provide departmental personnel and administrative support 
services in recruiting, position classification, personnel guidance and 
evaluation, employee benefits, affirmative action, personnel records, salary 
administration, merit system administration and other facets of personnel 
management services; to implement departmental training programs. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES: 

a) Implemented automated employee personnel records system. Information on 
employee is now entered directly into the computer eliminating much of the 
transfer between the Division of Human Resource Management and this Agency. 

each 
paper 

b) Developed a data base system for leave records and employee information which 
is used for compiling data for management reports. This system has been useful in 
projecting costs and providing employee statistical data. 

c) Arranged and participated in eight (8) Pre-Retirement Education Seminars 
presented by the S. C. Retirement System. These seminars were useful to employees 
approaching retirement as well as those planning for future retirement. 

d) Implemented reductions in force affecting sixty-two employees as a result of 
state and federal funding cuts and/or revenue shortfalls in the Horne Health 
Services Program. Approximately 79% of the affected employees have been placed 
in other jobs. 

e) Purchased new video production equipment which will give the Television Studio 
the capability to film and edit videotape in order to produce informational, 
instructional and Public Service Announcement video programs. 

Personnel Activities 

New positions established 
Positions reclassified 
Total personnel actions processed 
Number of employees at beginning of period 
Number of accessions during period 
Number of separations during period 
Number of employees at end of period 
Merit System Certificates processed 

Media Services 

Video recordings/editing 
Audio recordings 
Public Health Network Broadcasts 

Workshops, seminars supported 
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FY 86-

254 
578 

5740 
3884 
1594 

942 
4536 
1228 

439.5 hrs. 
56.5 hrs. 

121 hrs. 

10 

FY 87 

110 
427 

5363 
4536 
1278 
1177 
4637 

905 

472.5 hrs. 
45 hrs. 

112 hrs. 

9 



INTERNAL AUDITS 
FY 87 

1. MISSION: To assist all members of management and the Board in the 
effective and efficient discharge of their responsibilities within the 
scope of existing laws and regulations. To this end, the Office of 
Internal Audits furnishes audits, analyses, appraisals, recommendations, 
counsel and other pertinent information concerning agency activities and 
programs reviewed. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES: Through several interconnected projects which 
span the entire year, the Office of Internal Audits has been the catalyst 
in bringing together the necessary parties to uncover, document and, as 
projected now, successfully recover several million dollars of previously 
unrecovered costs in the Home Health Services program. A second major 
project which was successfully completed was a study and subsequent 
follow-up of the Bureau of Laboratories Budgetary and Billing System. Also 
an extensive amount of time was expended in the Georgetown County Health 
Department documenting, successfully prosecuting, and recovering from 
fidelity bond insurance carriers a significant embezzlement loss. 

Several other projects which were 
during the year, each of which was 
agency more efficient and effective. 

smaller in 
designed 
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LEGAL OFFICE 
PROGRESS REPORT FY 1987 

1. MISSION: To represent the Department of Health and Environmental 
Control in adversary proceedings in administrative forums and in the state 
and federal courts; to advise the administrators of various environmental 
quality control programs and various public health programs on all 
varieties of legal matters; to advise administrative officials on policy 
questions and operating problems, which have complex legal implications; to 
draft and revise legislation and regulations necessary to protect the 
public's health and the quality of the state's environment; to assure 
compliance by the Department with the provisions of state and federal law, 
including the State's Administrative Procedures Act; and to answer 
inquiries from members of the public involving laws and programs 
administered by DHEC. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES: Cases in which the legal office either 
prepared pleadings or orders, or represented the Department in 
administrative or judicial proceedings and which were active in FY 86-87, 
are set forth below: 

I. Adversary Administrative Proceedings 
3 Air Quality 

39 Certificate of Need 
9 Controlled Substances 
2 Emergency Medical Services 
4 Environmental Sanitation 
1 Epidemiology 

31 General Sanitation/Septic Tank 
3 Health Licensing 
1 Immunization 
1 Maternal & Child Health 
2 Medical/Dental 
1 Personnel 

21 Solid/Hazardous Waste 
2 Tuberculosis 

27 Water Pollution 
10 Water Supply 

1 Water Pollution/Water Supply 
7 WIC 

165 Total 

151 



II. Judicial Proceedings 
1 Air 
8 Certificate of Need 
1 Controlled Substances 
1 Disease Control 
7 General Sanitation/Septic Tank 
2 Health Licensing 
5 Medical/Dental 
3 Personnel 
1 Radiological Health 

16 Solid/Hazardous Waste 
1 Traffic Accident 
1 Venereal Disease 
4 Vital Records 

30 Water Pollution 
7 Water Supply 
3 Water P-ollutionjWater Supply 

91 Total 
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PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 
FY 1987 

1. MISSION: To provide consultation and technical assistance to programs 
in developing management plans, management information systems, grant 
proposal requests, and evaluation plans. To administer the Preventive 
Health and Health Services Block Grant and to provide the department with a 
statewide plan of Records Management. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES: The Office of Program Management edited, 
compiled, and distributed the Annual Report, yearly Plans for Programs, 
Association of State and Territorial Health Officials (ASTHO) report and 
Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant Plan and Progress Report. 

Examples of evaluation and planning consultation were: 

a. The development of a new conceptual framework for planning and program 
management within DHEC. This program, Planning for Effective Manage
ment of Public Health Services, will guide the agency's development of 
a strategic plan, a long range plan and annual operating plans in FY 
88. 

b. The successful application for Robert Wood Johnson Foundation funding 
for in-home supportive services for elderly persons in Charleston and 
Hilton Head. This grant will be implemented over 4 years and will 
total $750,000. 

c. DHEC's participation with Richland Memorial Hospital in the implemen
tation of a risk-based long term care program for the frail elderly 
persons in Columbia. 

The Office of Program Management also represented DHEC in a number of 
interagency planning activities of groups such as the S. C. Human Services 
Coordinating Council, the Long Term Care Policy Council and the Human 
Services Integration Project of the S. C. Reorganization Commission. 

The Records Management Division of the Office of Program Management as
sisted the county health departments with the implementation and mainte
nance of a more state of the art manual records management system. This 
system will provide a more efficient use of time and personnel, as well as 
prepare our agency for future computer application. This Division also 
prepared, updated and distributed the Policy and Procedure Manual for 
Records Management and the Records Manual Index which is a numerical 
listing of all agency approved and recognized forms. 
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PUBLIC AFFAIRS 
FY 1987 

1. MISSION: The Office of Public Affairs is the mechanism by which the 
department endeavors to provide South Carolina with factual information 
concerning matters of public policy that affect the health of the citizens 
of the state. The Public Affairs activities of DHEC are designed to: (1) 
Increase public understanding of the philosophy and responsibilities of the 
department, its programs, services, and activities. (2) Stimulate timely 
dissemination of information concerning the department in order that the 
public opinion and decisions will be founded on the basis of facts. (3) 
Provide professional support to staff engaged in activities of the depart
ment as they assist the public, media and government officials at all 
levels. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES: Over 350 news releases, news features and 
feature articles were researched, written, edited and distributed on DHEC 
activities, including local county and district activities. All news media 
in the state received articles covering such subjects as: 

Michael D. Jarrett appointed DHEC commissioner 
- First public health dental sealant program. 
- DHEC receives best audit report ever. 
- DHEC to charge fees for septic tank permits. 
- Physical exams proposed for children entering school. 
- Clustering of pediatric cancer cases in Greenville County. 
- DHEC to charge fee for inspecting food service establishments. 
- High Risk Channeling Project. 
- Hazardous waste found hidden in Spartanburg County warehouse. 
- Number of people tested for AIDS antibodies triple. 
- Low birthweight prevention project. 
- Record low infant mortality rate in 1986. 
- Lack of funds results in cut in swimming pool inspections. 
- Water tested around Owens-Corning Fiberglas Corp. 
- Environmental law enforcement reached record levels in 1986. 
- DHEC establishes Hazardous Waste Task Force. 
- Restricted use of lead in installations and repair of drinking water 

systems. 

In addition, 1,410 requests for information and/or interviews with DHEC 
officials were filled for news media representatives. Also, 8 news confer
ences were held on: Record low infant mortality rate; Pediatric cancer 
cluster in Berea; Dr. Jackson enters hospital; Michael D. Jarrett appointed 
DHEC commissioner; and PCB contamination at Cateechee. 

Twelve radio. public service announcements were distributed on: Rabies 
prevention; On-site hazardous waste storage; Medicaid children eligible for 
free care; Home Health Services Week; and Child safety in traffic. 

Two issues of Update, DHEC's magazine, were published. Articles included: 
Measles Epidemic Blankets S.C.; Environmental Law Enforcement; Preserving a 
Legacy; Working Beyond the "R" Months; Planning for the Accident They Hope 
Will Never Happen; Adding a Dimension: Evaluating Health Hazards; Jarrett 
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Named Commissioner by Unanimous Vote; and DHEC's Work Has Multiplied Over 
Years. 

Public Affairs maintained membership in the South Carolina Press Associa
tion, South Carolina Broadcasters Association, and the Radio and Television 
News Directors Association of the Carolinas. Staff attended workshops and 
conventions sponsored by the associations. 

Members of DHEC's Speakers Bureau made 51 speeches about department activi
ties to both general and specialized audiences throughout the state. 

Activities and Services 

Type of Service 

News Releases Distributed 

Interviews/Information Requests Filled 

Radio Spot Announcements 

Slide Tape Presentations Produced 

Update Issues 

Speeches Presented 

DHEC Newsletters 

News Conference 

155 

FY 87 

350 

1,410 

12 

4 

2 

51 

4 
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VITAL RECORDS AND PUBLIC HEALTH STATISTICS 
FY 1987 

1. MISSION: To collect baseline health-related data on a routine 
basis by legal registration and statistical recording of vital events 
of birth, death, marriage, divorce and annulment, and abortion; To 
provide certification of birth, death, marriage and divorce events 
upon request to the public at large; To provide all units of the 
Agency and public and private organizations with biostatistical 
services, including statistical consultation, data analysis and 
interpretation, sample and survey design, analysis and dissemination 
of vital statistics, and statistical modelling. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES: S.C. State Law was amended in May of 
1987 to provide for the filing of a "Certificate of Foreign Birth" for 
alien children adopted in South Carolina. These certificates are not 
proof of citizenship and such notation is printed on the form. 
Children born to U.S. citizens abroad and adopted in South Carolina 
will continue to obtain "Certification of Birth Data" from the U.S. 
Department of State. 

A Hospital Manual on Vital Records Registration was completed and 
implemented this year by office staff. The manual provides item by 
item instructions for the completion of birth certificates and reports 
of fetal death. Use of the manual by "source document providers" 
will facilitate the collection of the most complete and accurate data 
available. 

In continuing efforts to achieve uniformity in registration and 
certification procedures throughout the county vital records offices, 
detailed practices and procedures are being evaluated by site visits 
to the county health departments by field consultants of this office. 
Use of a standardized questionnaire to evaluate conditions has been 
implemented. The county registrars are provided with the results of 
the office and personnel evaluation with recommendations for 
correcting any problems that exist. Field consultants have 
concentrated on county vital records offices with known problems 
during this fiscal year and with the training of new personnel in the 
counties. 

The flagging of birth certificates of deceased persons continues to 
prevent the issuance of certificates which would be used fraudulently. 
During this year, at least ten applications have been stopped due to 
the "Identified Death" flag on the birth indexes. Two such birth 
records were issued prior to the flagging of the indexes, however, 
which resulted in the sale of the certificates to illegal aliens in 
California. The U.S. Immigration and Naturalization Service investi
gated these incidents and prosecution of the perpetrators is under 
their jurisdiction. 

The following table on Vital Records Certifications Issued compares 
the number of copies of vital records issued at the county level and 
the state level for FY86 and FY87. The number of copies of birth and 
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death records issued continues to rise due to the need for such 
documents for benefits and privileges of our society which require 
documentation of birth and/or death facts. With regard to the 
increase in birth certifications, new federal laws requiring social 
security numbers for infants and children for tax purposes and for 
medicaid purposes precipitate the necessity to obtain birth certifica
tions which are prerequisite to obtaining social security account 
numbers. These legal requirements account for the issuance of 
certificates earlier in life. Until recently, proof of birth facts 
was usually first needed upon a child's entrance into school at age 
five or six years. 

In addition to the copies issued through the statewide vital records 
system, the county health departments verified data for government 
agencies from 28,349 records and the state office provided verifica
tion from 7,027 records. This service does not include the issuance 
of copies but involves comparison of birth data provided on an offi
cial government verification form with the data contained in the index 
and responding to the agency confirming the data or showing correct 
information on the verification form. 

During this year, 69 Genealogists accessed the death indexes and 
microfilm of death records on site in the state office for family 
researches. Generally, these inquirers abstract the data from the 
records and do not require copies of the records although copies are 
provided if requested. Other less voluminous categories of copies 
issued by the state office are also reflected by the table. 
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VITAL RECORDS CERTIFICATIONS ISSUED BY STATE OFFICE AND COUNTY HEALTH 
DEPARTMENTS 

FY1986 

Birth Certifications: 
State Office 78,266 
County Offices 141,745 

Death Certifications: 
State Office 5,246 
County Offices 168,373 

Marriage Certifications*: 
State Office 1,725 

Divorce Certifications*: 
State Office 224 

Deaths Issued Pursuant to FOIA*: 
State Office 431 

Copies Issued for Scientific 
Research (Med/Stat Use Only)* 

State Office 235 

Copies Issued to Gov't Agencies 
for Criminal Investigation* 

State Office 169 

FY1987 PERCENT 
CHANGE 

80,858 + 3.3 
153,282 + 8.1 

6,208 +18.3 
179,833 + 6.8 

1,901 +10.2 

206 - 8.0 

373 -13.5 

229 - 2.6 

156 - 7.7 

NOTE: The number of certifications issued does not compare with the 
number of requests since a request frequently does not result in the 
issuance of a certification and multiple certifications often are 
issued for one request. 

* These services not available at the county health departments. 

The following table on Vital Statistics Activities summarizes regis
tration and certification activities for FY86 compared with FY87. 

The increase in abortion reporting is attributed to the opening of two 
new clinics and better reporting by existing clinics. Querying of an 
additional number of these reports was necessitated by a misprint on 
the reporting form requiring that the state office subsequently obtain 
the missing data. 

Increased querying on Reports of Fetal Death was the result of less 
"in-house" correction and the requirement for "source document pro
vider" correction.· Decreased querying of marriages and divorces 
reflects better reporting by source document providers. 
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Of the 85,675 requests processed by the state office during FY87, 
23,308 (or 27.2 percent) were served on-site in the customer service 
area of the office. Corrections and amendments were applied to 
10,813 records and 1,497 delayed birth records were filed. The 
significant decrease in the number of certificates amended by legi
timation is related to the fact that many paternity acknowledgements 
are being effected at the time of birth and no further amendment to 
the records are requested when parents marry subsequently to the 
child's birth. The 7.4 percent decrease in FY87 in the filing of 
delayed birth certificates is due to better reporting of births and 
the use by older citizens of an official statement that no record is 
on file. 

VITAL STATISTICS ACTIVITIES 

Total Certificates Filed:* 

Births 
Deaths 
Fetal Deaths 
Marriages 
Divorces & Annulments 
Abortions 

Total Records Queried: 
Births 
Deaths 
Fetal Death 
Marriages 
Divorces & Annulments 
Abortions 

Certification Services 
(State Office) 

Completed Requests 
Adoptions 
Court Orders 
Legitimations 
Corrections 

FY86 

(154,640) 

49,324 
26,625 

520 
53,532 
13,514 
11,125 

(13,285) 
4,949 
5,081 

147 
1,073 
1,178 

857 

Delayed Certificates 
Paternity Acknowledgements 

82,011 
1,616 
1,196 
1,517 
6,241 
1,617 
1,356 

FY87 

(158,338) 

49,971 
27,369 

570 
53,699 
13,513 
13,216 

(13,406) 
4,911 
5,521 

246 
672 
736 

1,320 

85,675 
1,517 
1,117 
1,284 
5,537 
1,497 
1,358 

PERCENT 
CHANGE 

+ 2.4 

+ 1.3 
+ 2.8 
+ 9.6 
+ 0.3 
+ 0.0 
+18.8 

+ 0.9 
- 0.8 
+ 8.7 
+67.0 
-37.4 
-37.5 
+54.0 

+ 4.5 
- 6.1 
- 6.6 
-15.4 
-11. 3 
- 7.4 
+ 0.1 

* These figures are taken from monthly activity reports; therefore do 
not necessarily refer to current figures for events occurring in the 
specific period. 

Over 1120 requests for statistical 
services were received during FY87. 

information and biostatistical 
This represents a 4.8 percent 

159 



increase in the number of requests for FY86 and 5.3 percent more than 
we received in FY85. These requests required a variety of activities 
ranging from distribution of previously compiled data to the design 
and analysis of complex data sets. Of the request for previously 
compiled data, forty-two percent (42%) originated with business 
organizations, fifteen percent (15%) came from central DHEC programs, 
and nineteen percent (19%) from school faculty and students. The 
news media accounted for ten percent (10%) of the requests, eight 
percent (8%) came from county health departments, and six percent (6%) 
came from other government agencies and Health Systems Agencies. 
During FY87, the Biostatistics Division continued work on thirty-one 
projects carried over from FY86 and began sixty-six new projects 
during the year. 

Major publications/reports prepared by VRPHS include: South Carolina 
Vital and Morbidity Statistics, 1984, Volume I, Annual Vital Statis
tics Series; Detailed Mortality Statistics, South Carolina, 1985, 
Volume II, Annual Vital Statistics Series; and twenty-eight Statisti
cal Report Series Monographs. The monographs include reports on S.C. 
Perinatal Mortality by Hospitals and Other Services for 1985 and 
Combined Years 1983-1985; Birthweight-Specific Neonatal and Fetal 
Mortality by Hospital, South Carolina, 1985 and Combined Years 
1983-1985; Ten Leading Underlying Causes of Death and the Top Five 
Associated Contributing Causes For Each Industry Group, South Caro
lina, 1984; Sentinel Health Events by Cause of Death and 
Industry/Occupation Group, 1984; fifteen monographs on Selected Vital 
and Demographic Statistics by Health District and Each County; Mortal
ity Patterns Among South Carolina Loggers, 1983-1985; and Suicides 
Among South Carolina Residents, 1970-1983. 

Maternal and Child Health programs (MCH) once again received more 
attention than any other DHEC program area in FY87. A Biostatis
tician was assigned full-time to assist with and coordinate 
MCH-related activities during the year. Activities included (1) 
Continued participation in the Preconception Intervention Project, a 
program which attempts to identify and reduce pregnancy risk factors 
among selected family planning patients; (2) Continued participation 
in the Region IV Network for Data Management and Utilization (RNDMU) 
project; (3) Continued analyses of the matched Medicaid/Live 
Birth-Infant Death Cohort files; (4) Assisting with the Low Birth
weight Prevention Project; and (5) Continued analysis of factors 
associated with low birthweight in order to develop a more practical 
tool for assessing high risk patients. Other types of analyses 
included a report on the distribution of hospital of birth by county 
of residence; production of the MCH Cohort report and two reports 
related to perinatal mortality; creation of periodic reports on live 
births with congenital malformations and out-of-hospital births; and a 
study of risk factors related to congenital malformations. 

Our office also worked on projects for practically all major areas 
within the agency. For programs within the Office of the Commis
sioner, we continued to provide statistical assistance to the Repro
ductive Risk Reduction Project in Health Education, a nursing job 
satisfaction survey for the Office of Nursing, and a survey of sealant 
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prevalence for the Office of Dental Health. We also assisted Health 
Education with a DHEC survey of interest in fitness programs. 

In the area of Health Protection, in addition to consultation provided 
to the Maternal and Child Health programs, we continued to work 
cooperatively with Chronic Disease on an occupation/industry grant 
from the Center for Disease Control. The grant provides partial 
funding for the analysis of mortality and morbidity by 
occupation/industry groups. Three reports on mortality by occupation 
and industry were produced as a result of the grant. Chronic disease 
and preventive health services were also assisted with cardiovascular, 
diabetes, and cancer cluster studies. Health Protection projects on 
evaluating pap smear testing, study of caesarean sections, and a 
survey of personal habits among DHEC staff were also provided statis
tical consultation and assistance. 

Projects resulting from non-DHEC requestors such as hospitals, state 
and federal government agencies, universities, and the public in 
general accounted for about one-fourth of total project man-hours. 
We continued to provide assistance to the Comprehensive Adolescent 
System of Health (CASH) project being conducted in Richland School 
District I. Assistance with the evaluation of the Rural Infant Care 
project also continued. Several data analyses for the South Carolina 
Lung Association and the March of Dimes were also provided. 

VRPHS continued to work cooperatively with the University of South 
Carolina School of Public Health during FY87. Public accessible 
vital statistics files made available at USC were updated to include 
the most recent data years. Numerous students were advised on the 
use of these files for thesis and research work, and a number of 
requests for data generated from other DHEC programs were coordinated 
by this office. 

During FY87, several intra-office projects were completed or initi
ated. We continued to expand VRPHS' IBM System/36 minicomputer 
capabilities and further automated the office, particularly in the 
area of word processing and communications. Data processing and 
analysis capabilities are expected to continue to increase as the 
system is expanded and linkages with other systems are completed. 
Several in-house reports were initiated, including studies of South 
Carolina homicides, birth outcomes for native Americans, trends in 
teenage mortality, and mortality trends among the elderly in South 
Carolina. 

The staff of VRPHS presented a variety of topics on request in work
shops, seminars, and meetings during this reporting period. A 
presentation on statistics was made to DHEC's Environmental Sanitation 
group and another to a meeting of Health Education directors; a short 
course in statistics was presented to the staff of East Midlands 
Health District; a talk on vital statistics and the role of biostatis
tics in state government was given at a USC Biostatistics seminar, as 
well as a talk on risk assessment to an Epidemiology seminar; a 
presentation on the evaluation of a DHEC program was presented at 
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Richland Memorial Hospital's grand rounds; and a seminar on nosology 
was presented to an advanced epidemiology methods class at MUSC. 

COMPARISON OF VITAL STATISTICS, CY1985 AND CY1986 
RESIDENCE DATA 

TOTAL NUMBER RATES /1 

EVENT CY85 CY86 %CHANGE CY85 CY86 %CHANGE 

Live Births 51,846 51,726 0.2 15.4 15.1 1. 9 
Low Weight 

Births /2 4,461 4,443 0.4 86.0 85.9 0.1 
Out-of-Wedlock 

Births 12,513 13,009 + 4.0 241.3 251.5 + 4.2 
Deaths - All 

Causes 27,077 28,122 + 3.9 8.0 8.2 + 2.5 
Fetal Deaths 588 545 7.3 11.3 10.5 7.1 
Neonatal Deaths 516 456 - 11.6 10.0 8.8 - 12.0 
Postneonatal 

Deaths 219 229 + 4.6 4.2 4.4 + 4.8 
Infant Deaths 735 685 6.8 14.2 13.2 7.0 
Maternal Deaths 3 10 +233.3 0.6 1. 9 +216.7 
Marriages/3 52,805 53,974 + 2.2 15.7 15.8 + 0.6 
Divorces and 

Annulments/3 13,456 13,429 0.2 4.0 3.9 2.5 
Abortion 12,753 13,090 + 2.6 246.0 253.1 + 2.9 

1/Rates for Live Births, Deaths, Marriages, and Divorces and 
Annulments are calculated per 1,000 estimated population; 
Maternal Death Rates are calculated per 10,000 live births; 
all other rates per 1,000 live births. 

2/Birth weight less than 2,500 grams. 

3/0ccurrence Data. 

*Provisional Data. 
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OFFICE OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

The Office of Professional Services integrates activities of di~ci
pline offices in the areas of quality assurance and staff development. 

Significant accomplishments included collaborating with the University 
of South Carolina School of Public Health in presentation of a course 
in basic principles of public health to new employees with strong 
professional credentials but no formal educational preparation or 
experience in public health. 

Work has been done toward consistency in expectations and monitoring 
of field experience for professional students. 

Office Directors have developed staffing priorities for each disci
pline based on service needs and manuals containing standards of 
practice for each discipline. 
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DENTISTRY 
FY 1987 

1. MISSION: To improve the oral health of the state's citizens and ensure 
that all residents have access to an integrated network of oral health 
services including health education and appropriate clinical services. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES: One major activity for FY87 was the 
implementation of a Dental Sealant Project in Newberry County. 
Approximately 273 children in grades two and seven had sealants applied to 
their teeth by Public Health Dentistry staff personnel. Public Health 
Dentistry continues to promote dental sealants throughout the state in the 
private sector through third party coverage and in public health programs. 

Fluoride mouthrinse activities have continued to increase statewide. 60% 
of the state's 92 school districts are participating in the mouthrinse 
program which is an increase of 11%. The mouthrinse is conducted in 330 
schools and is administered to students in kindergarten through fifth 
grades. The fluoride mouthrinse program continues to be a joint effort by 
dental staff, teachers, school nurses and other health professionals and 
volunteers. 

During this past year, four training sessions on dental screenings have 
been held through the USC School Nurse Practitioner curriculum. 

Oral health education is an area of preventive services offered to the 
general public and to dental and other health professionals. Educational 
materials totaling 89,760 units were distributed in FY87. A Dental Health 
Materials Review Committee was established by this Office. The committee's 
responsiblilities are to review existing educational materials, determine 
need for new materials for appropriate target populations, and assist in 
developing statewide distribution policies. This year this committee 
reviewed all existing materials, revised nine brochures and developed two 
new pamphlets - one on bottle mouth tooth decay - and the other on dental 
sealants. 

Fluoridation data is is the process of being computerized to allow for 
better monitoring and surveillance management in FY87. Current figures are 
not available at this time due to the computerization of data, but there is 
the overall feeling the Fluoridation status remains fairly consistent. 

Public Health dental staffing has remained constant during FY87. Six 
Health Districts do not currently have dental staff and five others have 
one or only a part time dental staff member. Of the nine Health Districts 
with dental professional staff, four provide limited clinical services and 
the other five educational preventive services only. The total number of 
full time dental staff for the State is 22. 
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OFFICE OF HEALTH EDUCATION 
FY 1987 

1. MISSION: To provide overall planning, organization, direction, 
supervision and coordination of the public health education component 
within DHEC. This includes the setting and monitoring of public health 
education standards of practice and providing leadership and support in 
the development, implementation and evaluation of public health 
education services. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES: In cooperation with health education and 
program staff in central office, districts and other agencies, the 
Office of Health Education provided the following services in FY 87: 

TEENAGE PREGNANCY PREVENTION 

a. Implementation of Adolescent Reproductive Risk Reduction Program 
began in 10 school districts for over 95% of eligible students. Three 
50 hour teacher training courses were held for 48 teachers from 10 
school districts. The Seventh Grade Curriculum was completed and the 
Eighth Grade Curriculum is in final review. Over 68 parent and community 
presentations were made by project staff and district health educators 
reaching a total audience of 3171 parents, teens, professionals, and 
community members. District health educators were instrumental in 
gaining community support for the project through community networking, 
presentations and work with the local media. Requests for inclusion in 
teacher training have come from school districts not part of the project 
and from other states. Four national professional presentations have 
been made. 

b. A series of seven monthly lectures on "Teenagers - What Makes Them 
Special" were conducted in the Upper Savannah Health District through 
the Healthy Mothers/Healthy Babies Coalition. 

c. A public forum was organized in Lower Savannah to focus on teen 
sexuality issues. An outcome is an on-going task force to identify 
approaches to help the community as a whole better address ways to 
prepare young people for the adult world. 

d. A Teen Pregnancy Conference was organized and held in the Appalachia I 
Health District. There were 170 participants. An immediate outgrowth 
of the conference was the organization of a 35 member Teen Pregnancy 
Prevention Council. 

e. Prom Night/"It's OK to Say NO" posters, developed by the Catawba Health 
District, are being distributed nationally after receiving a Healthy 
Mothers/Healthy Babies National Award. 

f. Trident Teenage Pregnancy Update Newsletter is being sent quarterly to 
over 600 people; Pee Dee I presented teen pregnancy prevention programs 
to 950 people in three counties. 
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g. A training program for adolescent peer advisors in a rural area of 
Charleston county was organized. The program included content and 
process skills and used incentives such as tee shirts and weekend 
retreats. Appalachia III, in conjunction with Clemson Extension, 
completed a Teen Peer Counsellor Program in Cherokee County training 50 
teens. 

h. Members of the 
assistance and 
part of church 
encourage teens 

Teen Pregnancy Reduction Network received technical 
information, resulting in expanded activities on the 
organizations, other agencies and community groups to 
to reduce early sexual activity and prevent pregnancy. 

i. "Bridging the Gap" Conference was organized and held for 200 parents 
and teens at Benedict College; the East Midlands Health District had 
the leadership role. 

j. Youth 2000 Conferences were held around the state; health educators 
provided leadership to these community groups; in Pee Dee I a summary 
report was published and funding for Phase II is being sought. 

k. "Generation at Risk" task forces used health educators to help form 
community coalitions to address the risk behaviors of youth. 

PERINATAL 

a. Fact Sheets on Infant Mortality and Teen Pregnancy were prepared for 
each county for use with decision makers and citizens in raising 
awareness of the high rate of infant deaths and associated statistics. 

b. Third annual Healthy Mothers/Healthy Babies 
October and focused on reaching low income 
message. 

Conference was held in 
women with the HM/HB 

c. A campaign for Medically Needy and Medicaid Expansion was planned and 
executed. 

SCHOOL HEALTH/HEALTH EDUCATION 

a. Coaliti·ons were organized to support comprehensive school health 
education, including materials dissemination on the effects of school 
health education, health status of the school-aged child, and 
information on model programs. 

b. Consultation and technical assistance was provided by Carolina 
Healthstyle to nine school districts in organizing school health 
promotion programs for staff. Five school districts now have on-going 
programs in 98 schools with 6286 school employees and 59,642 students. 
School district training on how to organize wellness programs has been 
developed and is in the process of being implemented. Staff in two 
school districts (one intervention and one control group) have completed 
a questionnaire on health knowledge and behaviors for evaluation 
purposes. 
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c. An article on South Carolina's school site wellness program, as 
part of Carolina Healthstyle, was accepted for publication in 
Education Quarterly. 

DHEC's 
Health 

d. The Health Awareness Promotion Initiative (HAPI) Teacher Training 
Course was evaluated through a questionnaire to past participants in 
Appalachia I and found to be valuable; the course was taught in the 
Catawba Health District with 10 teachers participating; a new video tape 
for the dental health module was developed in conjunction with the 
Office of Public Health Dentistry. 

EXERCISE 

a. The 1986 Palmetto State Games were completed with 
participation; preparation was made for the 1987 Games. 

expanded 

b. A statewide Women's Fitness Conference was held in October 1986 with 85 
participants. 

c. The 1985-86 South Carolina Road Race Season was coordinated and 
promoted (145 races). 

INJURY PREVENTION 

a. Training for PTAs and DSS was provided by Infant/Child Safety Seat 
Project in regional workshops across the state. Educational materials 
were mailed to over 800 private medical doctors. Materials and 
consultation were provided to 17 commercial rental shops in three 
cities. Over 20 site visits and 4 newsletters were completed. 

b. Statewide promotion was conducted by the Pedestrian Safety Project. 
The project developed four video public service announcements directed 
at children, parents, older people and drivers; developed logo for 
bumper stickers, tee shirts, billboards and various incentives; made 
presentations to 39 organizations with over 1500 people in attendance on 
the importance of pedestrian safety; identified eight communities as 
possible grass roots organizers of pedestrian safety programs. 

c. Seatbelt usage was supported by promotion of legislation mandating 
seatbelt usage; Trident Health District received a grant to promote 
seatbelt usage among high school students in Charleston county through a 
media campaign, incentives and motivating presentations; a self-help 
manual for high school students and organizations on organizing seatbelt 
campaigns was developed by Upper Savannah, Appalachia I and II Health 
Districts and is being pilot tested; East Midlands, Catawba and Pee Dee 
II Health Districts developed seatbelt campaigns targeted to health 
district employees which improved usage significantly. 
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d. A report analyzing children's health problems from a Health Education 
perspective was completed. A major recommendation, based on findings 
of the report, was made to focus on injury prevention. 

WORKSITE AND COMMUNITY HEALTH PROMOTION 

a. Health district health promotion programs included health risk 
appraisals, exercise contests, aerobic classes, health fairs and fun 
and fitness day in East Midlands, Trident, Upper Savannah and Catawba. 

b. Consultation and technical assistance was provided to business and 
industries around the state in organizing employee health promotion 
programs; direct services included administering Health Risk Appraisals. 

c. Through Carolina Healthstyle, 3,496 Wellness Checks and 2350 Centers for 
Disease Control Health Risk Appraisals were provided at 52 different 
sites around the state. 

d. Bi-monthly smoking cessation classes were established through the 
American Cancer Society in Appalachia I where the health educator 
identified and trained volunteers from a variety of backgrounds. 

e. Consultation and technical assistance were provided to three minority 
community groups in developing proposals for funding community-based 
health promotion activities; "Good Health is a Rainbow Road" health 
promotion project was implemented in two black churches in Chesterfield 
County which included "tell-a-friend health line" in each church. 

f. Newberry Community Health 
developing the capability 
problems, particularly those 
transmitted diseases. 

Education Council was organized for 
of addressing the community's health 
related to teenage pregnancy and sexually 

OLDER SOUTH CAROLINIANS/"LIVE BETTER LONGER" 

a. A statewide teleconference on the South Santee Project, a health 
promotion program developed and implemented in a rural black community 
in the low country, was held in November; teleconference included a 20 
minute documentary, and focused on a description of principal components 
of the project, adaptation to other sites and the essentials of health 
promotion programs for older people. 

b. A logo for publicizing older health promotion was designed through 
in-kind contribution of SCE&G. 

c. Third Annual Governor's Health Promotion for Older South Carolinians 
Awards, sponsored by SC Electric and Gas Company and the S.C. Hospital 
Association, were presented to two community groups. 

d. Promotional materials and program information were distributed to 
statewide network of "Live Better Longer". 
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e. Fit.:ness and exercise programs for Seniors were the focus in May with 
statewide walks and the Senior Sports Festival. 

f. Two wellness courses for older people were developed and taught at the 
Clemson University Senior Weeks in May. 

AIDS/STDS 

b. Community AIDS education was a major task in most health districts and 
a particular focus in Edisto, Trident, and Appalachia II. AIDS Task 
Forces have been established in several districts concentrating in part 
on education. 

b. A videotape for middle school-aged children, "STD's, Especially AIDS" 
was written, produced and aired in Trident; this was done in 
conjunction with SCETV which is acting as the distributing agent for the 
tape nationwide. 

PATIENT EDUCATION/QUALITY ASSURANCE 

a. Family Planning Health Education Manual was revised and distributed. 

b. Consultation and inservice education on quality assurance for patient 
education was provided in three health districts; patient education 
quality assurance plans are being implemented in three health 
districts; teaching skills workshop was provided for staff in West 
Midlands Health District. 

c. Second annual Outstanding Patient Educator Award presented at Virginia 
C. Phillips Day to Edisto Health District nurse. 

d. Grant was received from Children's Trust Fund to develop and produce 
four video tapes and companion educational materials for use in 
prenatal and child health clinics in Upper Savannah Health District. 

e. Volunteers were identified to provide prenatal education for Anderson 
County patients. 

f. A maternity education curriculum was developed and promoted in West 
Midlands, leading to increased and active participation by prenatals 
and fathers; a prenatal education pre-post survey of knowledge was 
developed and is currently being administered to prenatal patients in 
East Midlands. 

g. Smoking cessation programs were implemented in East Midlands Health 
District using a protocol and booklet developed by Richard Windsor and 
in Appalachia I using patient incentives donated by local business. 

h. Patient education materials were developed and tested with patients in 
East Midlands, Trident, and Upper Savannah Health Districts. 
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EDUCATIONAL MATERIALS AND SUPPORT SYSTEMS 

a. The audiovisual materials catalog was revised and distributed in 
Appalachia III; a computer-stored inventory of health education print 
and AV materials and equipment was developed and updated in Lower 
Savannah. 

b. Plans were made this year to design and implement a computerized 
resource file which will provide a listing and evaluated information on 
the materials being distributed by DHEC Districts across the state to 
promote sharing of district developed materials and help eliminate other 
materia,ls which are judged out of date or ineffective. 

c. The online inventory control and evaluation system developed and 
implemented in FY 85 and 86 was presented at American Public Health 
Association meeting. There were many requests for further information 
about this unique system and for technical assistance and consultation. 

d. South Carolina Health Promotion Clearinghouse database was completed; 
it contains information about 160 health promotion and education 
programs around the state and was forwarded to the Centers for Disease 
Control for inclusion in their national health education database. 

e. Interlibrary loan capabilities in the Medical Library were 
significantly upgraded by fully integrating those of the national OCLC 
library system, giving electronic access to all the major libraries in 
the country. 
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HEALTH EDUCATION STAFFING 

There were 42 DHEC health educators as of June 30, 1987. This is the 
same number as in FY 1986 although classifications have shifted. 
Central Office positions include new AIDS health educators. All health 
districts except Low Country are staffed with a Health Educator III or 
District Director of Health Education to provide health education 
leadership for the district. 

FY 87 Percent 
FY 86 FY 87 of All EmEloyees 

Appalachia I 1 1 <1.0 

Appalachia II 1 1 <1.0 

Appalachia III 3 2 <1.0 

Catawba 2 2 1.0 

East Midlands 3 1 <1.0 

Edisto 2 2 1.0 

Low Country 1 1 <1.0 

Lower Savannah 2 2 2.0 

Pee Dee I 1 1 <1.0 

Pee Dee II. 1.2 1.2 <1.0 

Trident 3 (2)* 5 (2)* 2.0 

Upper Savannah 3 2 (l)* 1.0 

Waccamaw 3 3 2.0 

Wateree 1 1 <1.0 

West Midlands 1 1 <1.0 

Central Office 13.8(1)* 15.8(1)* <1.0 

Total 42 42 

*Numbers in parentheses represent health education staff but not health 
educators by merit system classification. 
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EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES CENTER 

The Educational Resources Center which includes Film, Materials and 
Medical Libraries, provided support to the agency central office and 
districts, and to South Carolina citizens. Statistics reflecting 
utilization of these support services follow: 

Medical Library 

Journal Tables of Contents Copied 

Journal Articles Copied 

for Central Office Staff 

for District Staff 
Total 

Interlibrary Loans Secured 

Interlibrary Loans Filled for 

Other Library 

Computer Bibliographic Searches 

Short Reference Questions 

Intermediate Reference Questions 

Film Library 

Films and Videocassettes booked 

Film Showings 

Number of Persons in Attendance 

Films Added to Library 

Materials Library 

Materials distributed: 

Personal health 

Environment 

Total 

FY 86 

1,558 

7,410 

8,643 
16,053 

2,526 

646 

793 

446 

431 

4,697 

10,341 

161,418 

40 

1,519,982 

3,398 

1,523,380 
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FY 87 

1,662 

6,250 

10,692 
16,942 

2,542 

820 

779 

354 

444 

4,139 

8,308 

108,527 

73 

1,655,014 

2,293 

1,667,307 



HOME HEALTH SERVICES 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source Amount 

State: 
Line item appropriation $1,198,309 

Other: 
Earned revenues 

Total: 

18,607,290 

$19,805,599 

II. LEGISLATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

Authority Responsibility 

Section 44, Chapter 1, S.C. code To provide home health services 

III. PROBLEM 

People have illnesses and injuries that do not require services in an 
institution on 24-hour basis, but do require professional and support
ive health care in their homes on an intermittent basis. 

IV. GOAL 

To achieve or maintain optimal health 
need or professional and/or supportive 
of residence, under the direction of, 
the attending physician. 

status of persons who are in 
health services in their places 

and/or in collaborationl with 

1. Collaboration with the attending physician is essential for all home 
health care. Physician orders are required for Home Health Services 
as defined by Medicare regulations. 
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V. OBJECTIVE 

To provide 9uality2 services, appropriate3 to patients' needs, 
in a timel~ manner to 22,800 persons through 545,952 visits. 

EVALUATION: 

Measure 

No. people served 
No. visi:ts 
t of clinical records 
with satisfactory 
quality scores 

Planned 

22,800 
545,952 

95% 

Actual 

21,459 
430,526 

92% 

% Accomplishment 

94% 
79% 

100% 

2. Quality - operationally defined as: (a) Ninety-five percent (95%) of 
records in a sample of at least 1% of the district's services, audited 
by designated professional from each discipline, meet minimum profes
sional standards: (b) effectively managed eighty-five percent (85%) of 
problems identified for action for patients having six (6) or more 
visits. 

3. Appropriate - operationally defined as: services, objectives and pri
orities were adequate for patient's condition, care plan and expected 
outcome in ninety percent (90%) of records reviewed by the Utilization 
Review Committee. 

4. Timely - operationally defined as: services were provided within two 
(2) days of referral, unless otherwise ordered, in one hundred percent 
(100%) of the cases. 
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NARRATIVE: 

The Program experienced for the second year in a row a decline in both 
patients served and visits made. Again in FY 87, Medicare intensified its 
efforts to control the expanding population served by home health agencies. 
The rapid increase in demand for home care started when Medicare initiated 
the prospective pay reimbursement system for hospital care. The shift to 
prospective pay resulted in the hospital discharge of patients who were 
sicker and needed more intensive home care services. At the same time, 
however, Medicare.sought to limit home health services to its beneficiaries 
through changes in guidelines to limit coverage, increasing the number of 
Medicare claims denied, while increasing paperwork requirements which had a 
direct negative impact on caregiver productivity. 

As was the case in FY 86, DHEC was forced in FY 87 to serve Medicare 
patients in a limited capacity to meet the more restrictive Medicare 
coverage criteria. Some patfents previously served by Medicare were 
shifted to Medicaid and others to · :private insurance or the limited funding 
provided by the State for indigent care. However, a thorough review and 
authorization process was completed on each.and every indigent patient to 
ensure that Medicare criteria was applied to all patients. Even with this 
level of scrutiny, indigent care funds were.exhausted by mid-year, forcing 
each district to restrict its indigent care·to the most needy patients. 

The net result of this cost shifting to beneficiaries and other payors did 
not decrease Medicare expenditures on home.~are provided by DHEC. Medicare 
revenue remained constant, while visits and patients served under Medicare 
decreased markedly. The per-visit costs to Medicare increased significant
ly because of the increased administrative costs and decreased 
productivity. Quality of care was not affected by these changes. 
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S.C. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL 
DIVISION OF HOME HEALTH SERVICES 

TABLE I 

Comparison of Number of Persons Served 
FY 86 anci FY 87 

% Change 
No. 

District No. Served Serveci 
FY 86- FY 87 

Appalachia I 1,070 1,142 +7% 
Appalachia II 1,266 1,157 -9% 
Appalachia III 2,367 2,441 +3% 
Upper Savannah 1,431 1,442 +1% 
Catawba 1,636 1,572 -4% 
East Midlands 1,856 1,909 +3% 
Edisto 1,034 994 -4% 
Wateree 1,824 1,789 -2% 
Pee Dee I 1,847 1,617 -14% 
Waccamaw 1,753 1,672 -5% 
Trident 1,628 1,732 +6% 
Low Country 866 959 +11% 
Lower Savannah 633 713 +13% 
Pee Dee II 1,197 1,130 -6% 
West Midlands 1,234 1,193 -3% 

STATE TOTAL 21,642 21,462 

S.C. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL 
DIVISION OF HOME HEALTH SERVICES 

TABLE II 
Number of Visits By Service Component 

FY 86 and FY 87 

Service Components 

Nursing 
Physical Therapy 
Home Health Aide 
Medical Social Worker 
Speech Therapy 
Dietary 
Occupational Therapy 

TOTALS 

No. of Visits 
FY 86 FY 87 

279,331 
39,479 

151,001 
22,145 
8,711 
2,581 
8,952 

512,200 

237,020 
37,298 

121,101 
17,837 

7,550 
1,738 
7,982 

430,526 
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% Change 

-15% 
-6% 

-20% 
-19% 
-13% 
-32% 
-11% 

-18% 



1. Mission Statement 

NURSING 
FY 1987 

To provide overall planning, organization, direction, supervision and 
coordination of nursing services within DHEC including standard setting and 
monitoring of statewide nursing service and practice. 

The Office of Nursing serves as a boundary spanner between the DHEC system and 
other interfacing systems which include the political system and the other 
subsystems within the state health delivery system. Examples are licensing and 
accrediting bodies, hospitals, universities and colleges, Department of Social 
Services, Commission on Aging, Department of Mental Health, Division of Health 
and Human Services of the Governor's Office, SCNA/SCMA Joint Practice 
Commission, Statewide Planning Committee on Nursing Education, medical, 
pharmaceutical and nursing professional organizations. Within the national 
network linkages are maintained with Association of State and Territorial 
Directors of Nursing, Department of Health and Human Services, American Public 
Health Association, American Nurses' Association, and National League for 
Nursing. The Office of Nursing's location within the Commissioner's Office 
gives the necessary access to the vital external systems which impinge on, 
influence, and are influenced by our own system. 

Nursing is a critical service component of DHEC's health care delivery system. 
It is a part of an interdisciplinary effort to promote and maintain health and 
to prevent disease and disability. Nurses perform caring and coordinating 
functions for target groups at high risk. The roles and responsibilities for 
overall professional direction of nursing services may be grouped into seven 
categories: 

1. Spokesperson and Liaison for External Affairs 
2. Agency-wide Policy and Program Development 
3. Manpower Development 
4. Quality and Productivity Control 
5. Supervision of Nursing Services 
6. Coordination of Nursing with Other Health Services 
7. Legal Practice 

2. Significant Activities 

1. Coordination of activities designed to reduce the amount of paperwork 
required to document patient care through the revision of forms. 

2. Completed actions for the reclassification of supervisors. 
3. Completed the self study for accreditation of community health agencies 

by NLN/APHA. 
4. Conducted workshops for newly employed staff. 
5. Represented DHEC nursing in a leadership role in state and national 

activities. 
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3. Number and Educational Preparation of nurses: 1986 

Educational Preparation of DHEC Nurses in Central Office, 
District and County - A Five Year Comparison 

1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 
Master's Degree 7% 6% 6% 6% 6% 
Baccalaureate Degree 31% 31% 30% 29% 31% 
Diploma Preparation 48% 44% 42% 40% 38% 
Associate Degree 14% 19% 22% 25% 25% 

Number and Educational Preparation of Nurses: 1986 

RN MN/MPH BSN DIP AD LPN AIDE 
Appalachia I 48 2 16 17 13 2 9 
Appalachia II 79 3 26 43 7 2 14 
Appalachia III 108 5 37 37 28 2 21 
Catawba 67 5 17 28 16 6 8 
Edisto 56 2 6 43 5 1 10 
East Midlands 88 6 40 24 18 1 9 
Low Country 50 4 18 22 6 1 11 
Lower Savannah 45 3 12 11 19 1 8 
Pee Dee I 74 1 16 28 29 1 14 
Pee Dee II 45 3 8 21 13 1 10 
Trident 105 6 34 48 17 2 27 
Upper Savannah 73 2 17 23 31 4 31 
Waccamaw 70 4 17 20 29 1 12 
Wateree 83 2 26 30 25 3 19 
West Midlands 51 2 23 13 13 3 3 
Licensing & 12 3 9 0 0 0 0 
Certification 
Central Office 21 16 4 1 0 0 0 

TOTAL 1075 69 326 409 269 31 206 
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NUTRITION 
FY 1987 

1. MISSION: To provide overall planning, organization, supervision and 
coordination of the nutrition component of health care within DHEC; To 
develop policy, practice standards and procedures for the delivery of 
nutrition services within DHEC; To provide leadership in nutrition practice 
throughout the state. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES: The role of the four standing committees to 
address issues and establish policy was strengthened during the year. 
These committees are Nutrition Standards, Staff Development, Evaluation and 
Nutrition Education Materials Review. Bi-monthly meetings with District 
Directors of Nutrition and Central Office Nutrition Consultants are held to 
enhance communications between Districts, Programs and Office. Several 
programs within DHEC have identified the need for professional nutrition 
services to clients. Multiple funded positions have been established in 
several districts to provide nutrition services to clients enrolled in 
programs such as Children's Rehabilitative Services, Family Planning, 
Chronic Disease Prevention and Detection and the High Risk Channeling 
Projects. However, budget reductions this year did impact nutrition 
services precipitating a reduction in nutrition personnel, e.g. Horne Health 
Services. The chart below shows the changes in nutrition staff positions 
over the past year. 

NUTRITION POSITIONS IN DHEC 

1983 1984 1985 1986 

Appalachia I 2.5 2.4 2.4 2.4 
Appalachia II 3 3.5 4 3.8 
Appalachia III 3 3 3 3 
Catawba 3.5 3.5 5 4 
East Midlands 4.5 5.2 6.2 6.2 
West Midlands 3 3 3 3 
Low Country 3 2 2 2 
Lower Savannah I 1 2 2 2 
Edisto 5 5 6 6 
Pee Dee I 4 4.4 3.75 3.75 
Pee Dee II 2 1.2 1.2 1 
Trident 8 9 9.2 7 
Upper Savannah 4 4 4 4 
Waccamaw 3.2 4.25 4.75 4 
Wateree 4 4 3.5 3.5 
Central Office 8 9 9 10 
Total 61. 7 65.45 69 65.65 

Requests continue to increase for nutrition counseling, nutrition education 
and consultation at the local and central office level. The Office has 
begun to identify the type and frequency of nutrition services provided 
beyond those programs traditionally funding nutrition positions in DHEC. 
The figures this year do not reflect services from all fifteen health 
districts; however, they do begin to heighten awareness of the need to 
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provide such services in the state. This year over 165 patients were 
referred by private physicians to the local health department for nutrition 
counseling. Over 420 adults, in addition to adults in the MCH programs, 
were provided nutrition counseling by nutritionists. Requests for 
consultation by Community Residential Care Facilities, jails and Head Start 
continue to increase. The public sector is becoming more interested in 
nutrition and health issues; consequently, requests for nutrition, food and 
diet related information are voluminous. 

Nutrition staff serves as major resources for the training and education 
systems responsible for education of nutrition professionals in the state. 
The DREG nutrition staff serves as guest lecturers for U.S.C., Winthrop 
College, Clemson University, S.C. State College and Lander College. They 
provide supervision and training for students in the clinical setting as 
well as didactic support in the academic setting. Preplanned Qualifying 
Experiences approved by The American Dietetic Association were provided for 
graduate students in Master's Degree Programs in Public Health Nutrition or 
Foods and Nutrition in six Districts and Central Office. These graduate 
students were from Winthrop College, University of Tennessee, University of 
North Carolina at Chapel Hill, and Case Western Reserve University. 

Nutrition staff of DREG have provided technical assistance and 
cooperatively supported various efforts with Clemson University Extension 
Services, Department of Education, Department of Mental Health, Department 
of Mental Retardation, Department of Social Services, Commission on Aging, 
Department of Youth Services and the Department of Agriculture. 

Nutritionists provided technical assistance, consultation and in-service 
training to agency personnel providing nutrition education at the local and 
state level. South Carolina was invited to participate in the planning and 
to present at regional meetings, e.g. Nutrition for the Handicapped Child 
Conference in Alabama, Region IV Breastfeeding Conference. 

Leadership was provided by the nutrition staff to the Association for State 
and Territorial Public Health Nutrition Directors, American Public Health 
Association, American Dietetic Association, American Home Economics 
Association, S.C. Nutrition Council, S.C. Dietetic Association, S.C. 
Perinatal Association and many local chapters of professional 
organizations. 

Nutritionists in DHEC have been supportive of the education efforts of the 
American Red Cross, American Cancer Society, American Heart Association and 
other health related associations. For example, fifteen nutritionists 
received training, are certified instructors for the American Red Cross 
"Better Eating for Better Health" course and have taught the series to 
eight groups throughout the state. 

Frances Eddy Poston, M.P.H., R.D., was awarded the Julia Porcher Brunson 
Award in recognition of her outstanding services to public health nutrition 
in the state. She is District Director of Nutrition in Trident Health 
District. This award was presented in June during the annual statewide 
nutrition continuing education program, "New Visions, New Adventures in 
Public Health Nutrition". 

The Director was invited to serve as a Panelist to review MCH Continuing 
Education Grant Applications at the Department of Health and Human 
Services, Bureau of Maternal and Child Health, in Washington, D.C. 
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PERSONAL CARE AIDE SERVICES 
FY 1987 

I. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

Source 

Federal: 

State: 

Other: 
Earned Revenues 

Total: 

Amount 

$ -0-

-0-

3,325,173.75 

$3,325,173.75 

II. LEGISIATIVE OR CONGRESSIONAL MANDATE 

No Legislative or Congressional Mandate exists for this program. 

III. PROBLEM 

Eligible elderly or disabled adults requiring care in an institu
tional setting are in need of alternative home-based services which 
enable them to remain at home. In many areas of the state, resi
dents do not have ready access to alternative home-based services. 
A contributing factor is the lack of enough providers of alternative 
home-based services to meet the identified statewide need. 

IV. GOAL 

To restore, maintain, and promote the health status of persons who 
are in need of home support, support of and assistance with activi
ties of daily living, medical monitoring, and escort services in 
collaboration with appropriate care teams and payment sources. 

V. OBJECTIVES 

To provide quality services to patients in a timely manner to 2,600 
persons through 8,609 nursing visits and 429,000 units of personal 
care aide services 

EVALUATIONS 

Measure Planned Actual % Accomplishment 

No. PCA Units Provided 429,000 443,357 103% 

*No. Patients Served 2,600 2,190 84% 

*No. Nursing Visits 8,609 7,053 82% 
Provided 
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NARRATIVE 

1. The implementation of management strategies resulting in the minimi
zation of authorized visits not being provided and the average 
length of stay on the program for individual patients increasing 
significantly resulted in 103 percent of planned units being provided. 

2. Eighty-four percent of the Patients Served Objectives was met 
because of (a) the increasing availability of service providers 
statewide; (b) an insignificant increase in the number of patients 
who could receive services in FY87 in comparison to FY86 under the 
CLTC waiver; (c) the inability to recruit and retain the ideal 
number of personal care aides at the current wage structure; and (d) 
the dwindling pool of available candidates for personal care aide 
positions. 

*3. See #2 above. The number of patients served has a direct impact on 
the number of nursing visits. 
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SOCIAL-WORK 
FY 1987 

1. MISSION: To provide overall planning, organization, direction, super
vision, and coordination of Social Work services within DHEC. This 
includes setting and monitoring practice standards, providing direction 
for further development of the Social Work profession within the Depart
ment, and monitoring Social Work services. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES: Accomplishments of the Social Work Committees 
were as follows: 

Accountability 

a. Developed an accountability mechanism for reporting macro Social 
Work activities 

b. Developed initial model for assessing Social Work Accountability. 

Clinical Practice 

a. Developed unified Utilization Review Instrument 
b. Developed objectives for Social Work Utilization Review 

Staff Development 

a. Provided two one-day workshops for DHEC Social Work staff 
b. Promoted DHEC observance of Social Work month 

Standards/Policy 

1. Developed model Position Descriptions for Social Work Classifications 

Two thirds (10) of the Health Districts continue to have District Social 
Work Directors whose responsibilities include planning, supervising, and 
coordinating Social Work services in the District as well as initiating 
Social Work services for patient populations not served by Social Work, if 
feasible. Social Work staff in the remaining five Districts receive pro
fessional supervision from state level Social Work Consultants. The Social 
Worker with National Health Corps Commissioned Officer status completed his 
two year assignment and was transferred. 

Social Work staff put emphasis on minority issues through several activities 
during the year. One statewide workshop for DHEC Social Work staff was on 
Ethnic Cultural Issues in So~ial Work Services. Another, co-sponsored with 
the South Carolina Chapter of the National Association of Social Workers, 
was on AIDS and Social Work Practice. Social Work staff were involved in 
Community and State AIDS Task Forces. In one District, Social Work staff 
organized a Black Family and Community Workshop for the District staff. 
One Social Worker attended the National Invitational Conference on Educating 
Black Children, sponsored by the United States House of Representatives 
Committee on Education and Labor. Two Social Workers presented papers at 
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the Black Family Sunnnit, sponsored by the University of South Carolina, 
College of Social Work. One Health District employed a Social Worker to 
provide Social Work services to the migrant population in the area. 

Two students from the University of South Carolina College of Social Work 
received field practicum experience with the agency. One high school 
student did field work under Social Work supervision to promote orienta
tion to health careers. Staff attended the Bi-Regional Social Work 
Conference, the last in a series of three. Two staff members presented 
papers at the Conference. The association with the University of South 
Carolina College of Social Work continued through contractual arrangement 
for staff development services and through activities to assist the 
College in successfully competing for a Training Grant to provide educa
tion for Social Workers to practice in public health. A Social Worker 
National Health Service Corps resident in another state spend a week with 
agency Social Work staff for Public Health orientation purposes. A 
Social Work faculty members from the University of Pittsburgh School of 
Public Health provided a workshop on Epidemiology for Social Work Consul
tants and District Directors. 

Noteworthy concerning the data below is the fact that preventive Social 
Work services to infants and children have received emphasis, and in some 
cases these have been via collaborative efforts with nutrition staff. 
Additionally, eighty-three persons affected by HIV, ARC, or AIDS received 
Social Work services though no Social Workers are employed to provide 
such services. These figures do not include the 946 persons who received 
Family Planning Counseling involving 1158 encounters though not enrolled 
on the Family Planning Program at the time of the counseling service. In 
addition to continuing to modify the reporting requirements relative to 
Social Work encounters, changes in eligibility for several programs and 
redirection of Social Work efforts had significant impact on Social Work 
productivity. It is therefore noteworthy that there was an increase in 
numbers of patients served. 

Patients Served 

Number of Patients Served 

Number of Encounters with Patients 
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FY '86 

13,673 

41,859 

FY '87 

13,952 

37,160 



BUREAU OF AIR QUALITY CONTROL ORDERS 
ISSUED BY 

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL 

July 1, 1986 - June 30, 1987 

1. Order: 86-9-A - Consent 
Date: August 22, 1986 
Respondent: Crown Cork and Seal Co., Inc. 

Cheraw, South Carolina 
Previous Order(s): None 

Summary: The Respondent was determined to be operating in violation of 
Federal New Source Performance Standards by failing to have appropriate 
controls operating and by failing to demonstrate compliance by the sta
tutory deadline. 

The Respondent was ordered to purchase and install a new incineration 
system for control of Volatile Organic Compounds. Incremental steps 
were specified with a test date to demonstrate compliance being stipu
lated as September 17, 1986. A thirty-seven thousand five hundred 
dollar ($37,500.00) civil penalty was assessed. 

2. Order: 86-10-A - Consent 
Date: August 27, 1986 
Respondent: Highway Materials, Inc. 

Columbia, South Carolina 
Previous Order(s): None 

Summary: The Department determined that the Respondent had operated 
its asphalt plant in violation of Federal New Source Performance Stan
dards. 

The Respondent had completed corrective actions prior to issuance of 
the Order. A ten thousand dollar ($10,000.00) civil penalty was as
sessed for the violations. 

3. Order: 86-11-A - Consent 
Date: August 29, 1986 
Respondent: Julius Murray Builders, Inc. 

Hopkins, South Carolina 
Previous Order(s): None 

Summary: The Department found that the Respondent had performed an 
asbestos removal project without prior notification to the Department 
in violation of National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollu
tants. 

The Respondent was assessed a civil penalty in the amount of two thou
sand five hundred dollars ($2500.00) for the violation. 
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4. Order: 86-12-A - Consent 
Date: October 23, 1986 
Respondent: Department of Energy 

Savannah River Plant 
Aiken, South Carolina 

Previous Order(s): Compliance Order 
Particulate Emissions - February 27, 1979 

Summary: The Respondent had requested a waiving of the requirement to 
submit formalized notifications for asbestos removal projects involving 
asbestos sheets and shingles as required by National Emission Standards 
for Hazardous Air Pollutants Regulations. 

The Department found that the length of time required to complete pro
cessing of formalized notifications could unduly delay removals and 
renovations with no benefit to the environment. It was determined that 
such removals, renovations, and demolitions could proceed after comple
tion of forms and telephone notification. 

5. Order: 86-13-A - Consent 
Date: November 13, 1986 
Respondent: C. P. Chemicals, Inc. 

Sumter, South Carolina 
Previous Order(s): Consent Order 1983 

Control of Ammonia Odors 

Summary: The Department determined that the Respondent had failed to 
supply required data and had failed to install necessary equipment to 
maximize air pollution control. 

The Respondent was ordered to submit operation and maintenance manuals, 
permit applications for necessary equipment and controls, and plans for 
siting and installation of ammonia monitors. A twenty thousand dollar 
($20,000.00) civil penalty was assessed. 

6. Order: 87-1-A - Consent 
Date: January 12, 1987 
Respondent: Carroll Industries, Inc. 

Manning, South Carolina 
Previous Order(s): None 

Summary: The Department determined that the Respondent had violated 
South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulation No. 62.1, Section II, 
Permit Requirements by constructing and beginning operation of its 
facility without first obtaining permits even after numerous contacts 
regarding the requirements. 

A civil penalty in the amount of twenty-five hundred ($2500.00) dollars 
was assessed. 
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7. Order: 87-2-A - Consent 
Date: January 15, 1987 
Respondent: Nucor Steel 

Darlington, South Carolina 
Previous Order(s): None 

Summary: The Department determined that the Respondent had violated 
State and Federal Regulations and Standards by altering a New Source 
Performance Standard source and by constructing other equipment with
out Department knowledge or approval. 
A thirty thousand dollar ($30,000.00) civil penalty was assessed. 

8. Order: 87-3-A - Consent 
Dat·e: March 9, 1987 
Respondent(s): International Paper Company 

Georgetown, South Carolina 
and 

Invirex Demolition, Inc. 
Huntington Station, New York 

Previous Order(s): Administrative Order 85-2-A 
February 14, 1985 

Summary: The Department issued Administrative Order 85-2-A requiring 
cessation of demolition activities after observations of violations of 
National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) Regu
lations. Upon demonstration of compliance with NESHAP Regulations and 
completion of the demolition and renovation projects this Consent Order 
was negotiated. 

The Respondents were assessed a civil penalty in the amount of 
seventeen hundred dollars ($1700.00), half to be paid by each Respon
dent. 

9. Order: 87-4-A - Administrative 
Date: March 11, 1987 
Respondent: AT&T Nassau Metals Corporation 

Gaston, South Carolina 
Previous Order(s): Consent Agreement 85-8-A 

October 2, 1985 

Summary: The Department determined that the Respondent had violated 
the terms of Consent Order 85-8-A by failure to implement procedures 
specified in its operations manual for minimizing emissions during an 
equipment malfunction. 

The Respondent was ordered to implement procedures to curtail or cease 
operations immediately in the event of equipment failure or malfunction 
or other upset condition which causes excessive emissions. A civil 
penalty in the amount of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) was assess
ed. 
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10. Order: 87-5-A - Consent 
Date: March 25, 1987 
Respondent: Charleston Steel and Metal Company 

Goose Creek, South Carolina 
Previous Order(s): None 

Summary: The Department determined that the Respondent had violated 
South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulation No. 62.2, Prohibition 
of Open Burning on two occasions. 

The Respondent was ordered to notify the District office of any on-site 
fire which could last for two hours or more. A five hundred dollar 
($500.00) civil penalty was assessed. 

11. Order: 87-6-A 
Date: April 1, 1987 
Respondent: Kores Nordic (USA) Corporation 

Summerville, South Carolina 
Previous Order(s): None 

Summary: The Respondent voluntarily advised the Department that permit 
conditions limiting emissions had been violated as a result of contrac
tor problems. 

The Respondent was ordered to submit monthly reports of operating para
meters and actual volatile organic compound emissions which were not to 
exceed a rate equivalent to one hundred fifty tons per year. By 
May 31, 1987 Respondent was to be in compliance with emission rates 
equivalent to one hundred tons per year. A civil penalty of five hun
dred dollars ($500.00) per day of not meeting the terms of the Order 
was stipulated. 

12. Order: 87-7-A - Consent 
Date: April 30, 1987 
Respondent: Carolina Power and Light Company 

Raleigh, North Carolina 
Previous Order(s): None 

Summary: The Respondent failed to provide written notification for 
predicted asbestos removals for small nonscheduled projects as required 
by the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants Regula
tion. The Department determined that a misunderstanding caused the 
violation. 

The Respondent was ordered to submit annual predictive notifications 
and submit quarterly reports documenting actual removals in units of 
linear feet or square feet. Advance notification by phone to be pro
vided, when possible, for small projects. The Respondent was ordered 
to enroll appropriate personnel in an asbestos abatement projects 
training course. 
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13. Order: 87-8-A - Consent 
Date: May 8, 1987 
Respondent: Duke Power Company 

Oconee Nuclear Station 
Seneca, South Carolina 

and 
Lee Steam Station 
Pelzer, South Carolina 

Previous Order(s): None 

Summary: The Department made inspections at each of the power stations 
and determined that the "adequate wetting" provisions of the National 
Emission Standards for·Hazardous Air Pollutants Regulation had not been 
complied with. The Respondent disagreed and submitted a written 
"Recommended Asbestos Wetting Procedures" which the Department felt 
would preclude future violations. 

The Respondent was ordered to implement its "Recommended Asbestos Wet
ting Procedures" at its facilities within the state. A civil penalty 
in the amount of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) was assessed. 

14. Order: 87-9-A - Consent 
Date: May 18, 1987 
Respondent: Ashmore Brothers 

Greer, South Carolina 
Previous Order(s): None 

Summary: The Department determined that the Respondent had violated 
State and Federal Regulations and Standards by constructing and operat
ing a crusher subject to New Source Performance Standards without De
partment knowledge or approval. 

A civil penalty in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) was 
assessed. 

15. Order: 87-10-A - Consent 
Date: June 9, 1987 
Respondent: Springs Industries, Inc. 

Fort Mill, South Carolina 
Previous Order(s): None 

Summary: The Respondent notified the Department after the fact of an 
asbestos removal project. Prior notification is required by National 
Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants Regulations (NESHAP). 
The Respondent claimed that the material was not friable, and thus not 
subject to regulation. It was demonstrated to the satisfaction of the 
Department that the material was rendered friable by mechanical action 
during removal. 

A civil penalty in the amount of two thousand five hundred dollars 
($2,500.00) was assessed. 
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16. Order: Amendment to Consent Order 87-6-A 
Date: June 10, 1987 
Respondent: Kores Nordic (USA) Corporation 

Summerville, South Carolina 
Previous Order(s): Consent Order 87-6-A 

April 1, 1987 

Summary: The Respondent had previously agreed in Consent Order 87-6-A 
to limit emissions of volatile organic compounds to the equivalent of 
one hundred tons per year by May 31, 1987. On May 15, 1987 the Respon
dent advised the Department that the May 31, 1987 deadline could not be 
met because its ability to comply is based upon Department issuance of 
a permit for the wastewater discharge from its volatile organic com
pound recovery unit. 

The Department agreed that the Respondent's inability to comply was due 
to circumstances beyond its control. Compliance with the emission 
limit equivalent to one hundred tons per year was extended until 
July 31, 1987 after which civil penalties as previously stipulated 
apply. 
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BUREAU OF RADIOLOGICAL HEALTH ORDERS 
ISSUED BY 

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL 

July 1, 1986 - June 30, 1987 

1. Order: Civil Penalty: Non-Radiological Violation 
Date: September 19, 1986 
Facility: Westinghouse Electric Corp, Advanced Energy 

Systems Division, Madison, PA 
Respondent: Same 
Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
the Chem-Nuclear Systems low-level radioactive waste disposal site on 
September 15, 1986. During a routine inspection, it was found that 
the waste contained liquid in excess of allowable limits and was 
improperly solidified, contrary to the requirements of Condition 32.B 
and 35, S.C. Radioactive Material License No. 097, issued to 
Chem-Nuclear. These items constitute violations of Section 1.2, 
Department Regulation 61-83. Pursuant to Paragraph 7.3, Department 
Regulation 61-83, these violations are classified as Non-Radiological 
with a maximum allowable civil penalty of $1,000.00 per violation. 
(Section 13-7-180, 1976 S.C. Code of Laws [as amended]) 

Action: (1) On September 19, 1986, Respondent was assessed a 
$1,000.00 civil penalty. (2) Respondent's shipments of solidified 
evaporator bottoms are prohibited from receipt at the disposal facili
ty until such time as they demonstrate to the satisfaction of the 
Department that adequate measures have been implemented to ensure 
compliance with applicable criteria and conditions. (3) Those 
portions of this shipment deemed unacceptable to the disposal facili
ty's license were returned to the Respondent. (4) The Department has 
received payment of the civil penalty, but the respondent has not 
submitted corrective action. 

2. Order: Civil Penalty: Non-Radiological Violation 
Date: October 2, 1986 
Facility: Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Corp., Vernon, VT 
Respondent: Same 

Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
the Chem-Nuclear Systems disposal site on September 24, 1986. during 
a routine inspection, it was found that the interior of the shipping 
cask contained loose radioactive material and that the disposal 
container and cask were contaminated above acceptable limits. This is 
contrary to the requirements of Condition 26 and 60, S.C. Radioactive 
Material License 097, issued to Chem-Nuclear and constitutes a viola
tion of Section 1.2, Department Regulation 61-83. Pursuant to Para
graph 7.3, Department Regulation 61-83, these violations are classi
fied as non-radiological with a maximum allowable civil penalty of 
$1,000.00 per violation. (Section 13-7-180, 1976 S.C. Code of Laws 
[as amended]). 
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Action: (1) On October 2, 1986, Respondent was assessed a $2,000.00 
civil penalty. (2) Respondent is required to submit to the Depart
ment corrective actions implemented to ensure compliance with all 
applicable state and federal regulations. (3) Payment of the civil 
penalty and submission of corrective actions are pending. 

3. Order: Civil Penalty: Non-Radiological Violation 
Date: October 27, 1986 
Facility: Cintichem, Inc., Tuxedo, NY 
Respondent: Same 

Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
the Chem-Nuclear Systems disposal site on October 24, 1986. During a 
routine inspection, it was found that the shipment had undergone shift 
of lading during transport and an inspection of the drums containing 
evaporator bottoms revealed improperly solidified waste. These items 
of noncompliance are contrary to the requirements of 49 CFR 173.448 
(a) and Condition 35, S.C. Radioactive Material License 097 and 
constitute violations of Section 1.2, Department Regulation 61-83. 
Pursuant to Paragraph 7.3, Department Regulation 61-83, these viola
tions are classified as non-radiological with a maximum allowable 
civil penalty of $1,000.00 per violation. (Section 13-7-180, 1976 
S.C. Code of Laws [as amended]). 

4. Order: Civil Penalty: Non-Radiological Violation 
Date: October 28, 1986 
Facility: Virginia Electric Power Company, Surry Power Stations, 

Surry, VA 
Respondent: Same 

Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
the Chem-Nuclear Systems disposal site on October 24, 1986. During a 
routine inspection, it was found that the interior of the shipping 
cask contained loose radioactive material. This is contrary to the 
requirements of Condition 26 and 60, S.C. Radioactive Material License 
097, issued to Chem-Nuclear and constitutes a violation of Section 
1.2, Department Regulation 61-83. Pursuant to Paragraph 7.3, Depart
ment of Regulation 61-83, these violations are classified as 
non-radiological with a maximum allowable civil penalty of $1,000.00 
per violation. (Section 13-7-180, 1976 S.C. Code of Laws [as amended]). 

Action: (1) On October 28, 1986, Respondent was assessed a $2,000 
civil penalty. (2) Respondent is required to submit to the Department 
corrective actions implemented to ensure compliance with all applica
ble state and federal regulations. (3) Shipments of dewatered resin 
from the Respondent's facility are prohibited from receipt at the 
disposal site pending approval by the Department of their corrective 
measures. (4) payment of the civil penalty, submission of corrective 
actions, and reinstatements are pending. 

5. Civil Penalty/Suspension: Radiological Violation 
Date: October 29, 1986 
Facility: Portsmouth Naval Shipyard, Portsmouth, NH 
Respondent: Same 
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Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
the Chem-Nuclear Systems disposal site on October 28, 1986. during a 
rou~ine inspection, it was found that the outer surface of the exclu
sive use transport vehicle had radiation levels in excess of regulato
ry limits. This is contrary to the requirements of 49 CFR 173.441 (b) 
(2) and constitutes a violation of Section 1.2, Department Regulation 
61-33. Pursuant to Paragraph 7.1, Department Regulation 61-83, this 
violation is classified as radiological allowing a permit suspension 
for a period of not less than 30 days. (Section 13-7-180,1976 S.C. 
Code of Laws [as amended]). 

Action: (1) Respondent is suspended from transporting radioactive 
waste into or delivery to this State for period of not less than 30 
days or until such time as they demonstrate that adequate measures 
have been implemented to ensure compliance with all applicable state 
and federal regulations. (2) Respondent is required to submit to the 
Department all corrective measures which have been implemented. (3) 
Submission of corrective actions and reinstatement are pending. 

6. Civil Penalty: Non-Radiological Violation 
Date: October 29, 1986 
Facility: Babcock & Wilcox, Naval Nuclear Fuel Division, 

Lynchburg, VA 
Respondent: Same 

Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
the Chem-Nuclear Systems disposal site on October 27, 1986. During a 
routine inspection, it was found that the waste contained liquid in 
excess of allowable limits contrary to the requirements of 32.B, S.C. 
Radioactive Material License 097, issued to Chem-Nuclear. This item 
constitutes a violation of Section 1.2, Department Regulation 61-83. 
Pursuant to Paragraph 7.3, Department Regulation 61-83, this violation 
is classified as non-radiological with a maximum allowable civil 
penalty of $1,000.00 per violation. (Section 13-7-180, 1976 S.C. Code 
of Laws [as amended]). 

Action: (1) On October 29, 1986, Respondent was assessed a $1,000 
civil penalty. (2) Respondent is required to submit to the Depart
ment corrective actions implemented to ensure compliance with all 
applicable state and federal regulations. (3) Shipments of processes 
soil from the Respondent's holding lagoon are prohibited from receipt 
at the disposal site pending Department approval of their corrective 
measures. (4) Payment of the civil penalty, submission of corrective 
actions, and reinstatement are pending. 

7. Order: Civil Penalty/Permit Suspension: Radiological Violation 
Date: March 9, 1987 
Facility: Georgia Power Company, Plant E.I. Hatch, Baxley, GA 
Respondent: Same 

Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
the Chem-Nuclear Systems low-level radioactive waste disposal site on 
March 2, 1987. During a routine inspection, it was found that the 
package radiation levels exceeded the 1000 millirem per hour limit for 
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packages transported Exclusive Use in a closed van. This item is 
contrary to the requirements of U.S. Department of Transportation 
(DOT) Regulation 49 CFR 173.441 (b) (1) and constitutes a violation of 
Section 1.2, Department Regulation 61-83. Pursuant to Paragraph 7.1, 
Department Regulation 61-83, this violation is classified as Radiologi
cal with a maximum allowable civil penalty of $5000 per violation and 
a permit suspension of not less than thirty (3) days. (Section 
13-7-180, 1976 S.C. Code of Laws [as amended]). 

Actions: (1) On March 9, 1987, Respondent was assessed a $2,500 
civil penalty. (2) Respondent's Radioactive Waste Transport Permit 
was suspended for not less than 30 days and until such time as they 
demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Department that adequate 
measures have been implemented to ensure compliance. (3) On March 
23, 1987, the Respondent paid the civil penalty and submitted correc
tive measures for Department review. (4) On March 27, 1987, the 
Department approved the Respondent's corrective measures and rein
stated their Radioactive Waste Transport Permit effective 
April 8, 1987. 

9. Order: Civil Penalty/Permit Suspension: Non-Radiological 
Date:L March 30, 1987 
Facility: Cintichem, Inc., Tuxedo, NY 
Respondent: Same 

Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
the Chem-Nuclear Systems disposal site on March 25, 1987. During a 
routine inspection, contamination levels in excess of specified limits 
were found in the intervior of the B-3 cask. This item is contrary to 
the requirements of Condition 26, S.C. Radioactive Material License 
097, Amendment 41, and constitutes a violation of Section 1.2, Depart
ment Regulation 61-83. Pursuant to Paragraph 7.3, Department Regula
tion 61-83, this violation is classified as non-radiological with a 
maximum allowable civil penalty of $1,000 per violation. Additional
ly, a permit suspension of no more than 12 months is allowable when a 
series of non-radiological violations occur. (Section 13-7-180, 1976 
S.C. Code of Laws [as amended]). 

Actions: (1) On March 30, 1987, Respondent was assessed a $1,000 
civil penalty. (2) Respondent's Radioactive Waste Transport Permit 
was suspended until such time as they demonstrated to the satisfaction 
of the Department that adequate measures have been implemented compli
ance. (3) Payment of the civil penalty and submission of corrective 
actions are pending. 

10. Order: Civil Penalty/Permit Suspension: Non-Radiological Violation 
Date: March 30, 1987 
Facility: W.R. Grace and Company, Davison Chemical Division, 

Chattanooga, TN 
Respondent: Same 

Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
Chem-Nuclear Systems disposal site on March 23, 1987. During a 
routine inspection, it was found that the waste was improperly 
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solidified, contrary to the requirements of Conditions 32 and 35 of 
S.C. Radioactive Material License No. 097, Amendment 41. This item 
constitutes a violation of Section 1.2, Department Regulation 61-83. 
Pursuant to Paragraph 7.3, Department Regulation 61-83, this violation 
is classified as non-radiological with a maximum allowable civil 
penalty of $1,000.00 per violation. Additionally, a permit suspension 
of no more than 12 months is allowable when a series of 
non-radiological violations occur. (Section 13-7-180, 1976 S.C. Code 
of Laws [as amended)). 

Action: (1) On March 30, 1987, respondent was assessed a $1,000.00 
civil penalty. (2) Respondent's Radioactive Waste Transport Permit 
was suspended until such time as they demonstrate to the satisfaction 
of the Department that adequate measures have been implemented to 
ensure compliance. (3) Payment of the civil penalty and submission 
of corrective actions are pending. 

11. Order: Civil Penalty/Permit Suspension: Non-Radiological Violation 
Date: March 30, 1987 
Facility: Quadrex Recycle Center, Oak Ridge, TN 
Respondent: Same 

Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
the Chem-Nuclear Systems disposal site on March 27, 1987. During a 
routine inspection, it was found that the waste was improperly solidi
fied, contrary to the requirements of Conditions 32 and 35 of S.C. 
Radioactive Material License 097, Amendment 41. This item constitutes 
a violation of Section 1.2, Department Regulation 61-83. Pursuant to 
Paragraph 7.3, Department Regulation 61-83, this violation is classi
fied as non-radiological with a maximum allowable civil penalty of 
$1,000.00 per violation. Additionally, a permit suspension of no more 
than 12 months is allowable when a series of non-radiological viola
tions occur. (Section 13-7-180, 1986 S.C. Code of Laws [as amended]). 

Action: (1) On March 30, 1987, Respondent was assessed a $1,000 
civil penalty. (2) Respondent's Radioactive Waste Transport Permit 
was suspended until such time as they demonstrate to the satisfaction 
of the Department that adequate measures have been implemented to 
ensure compliance. (3) Payment of the civil penalty, submission of 
corrective actions are pending. 

12. Order: Civil Penalty: Non-Radiological Violation 
Date: April 21, 1987 
Facility: Combustion Engineering, Inc., Windsor, CT. 
Respondent: Same 

Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
the Chem-Nuclear Systems low-level radioactive waste disposal site on 
April 15, 1987. During a routine inspection, it was found that the 
shipment paper package did not include exclusive use instructions in 
accordance with 49 CFR 173.425 (b) (9); the Radioactive Shipment 
Manifest was improperly executed in accordance with Condition 22 of 
S.C. Radioactive Material License 097 Amendment 41; the shipment was 
not properly braced and blocked in accordance with 49 CFR 173.425 (b) 
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(6); and three drums did not meet the criteria for strong, tight 
packages in accordance with 49 CFR 173.425 (b) (1). These items 
constitute violations of Section 1.2, Department Regulation 61-83. 
Pursuant to Paragraph 7.3, Department Regulation 61-83, this violation 
is classified as Non-Radiological with a maximum allowable civil 
penalty of $1,000.00 per violation. (Section 13-7-180, 1976 S.C. Code 
of Laws [as amended}). 

Action: (1) On April 21, 1987, Respondent was assessed a $2,000.00 
civil penalty. (2) Respondent was required to submit corrective 
actions to the Department to ensure compliance. (3) On May 11, 1987 
the Respondent paid the civil penalty and submitted corrective actions 
to the Department. 

13. Order: Civil Penalty: Non-Radiological Violation 
Date: April 23, 1987 
Facility: GPU Nuclear Corporation, Oyster Creek Generating Station, 

Forked River, NJ 
Respondent: Same 

Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
the Chem-Nuclear Systems low-level radioactive waste disposal site on 
April 14, 1987. During a routine inspection, it was found that the 
waste was improperly solidified and contained liquid in excess of 
regulatory limits. These limits are contrary to Conditions 35 and 
32.B., respectively, of S.C. Radioactive Material License No. 097 
Amendment 41 and constitutes a violation of Section 1.2, Department 
Regulation 61-83. Pursuant to Paragraph 7.3, Department Regulation 
61-83, this violation is classified as non-radiological with a maximum 
allowable civil penalty of $1,000.00 per violation. (Section 
13-7-180, 1976 S.C. Code of Laws [as amended]). 

Action: (1) On April 23, 1987, Respondent was assessed a $1,000.00 
civil penalty. (2) Respondent was required to submit corrective 
actions to the Department to ensure compliance. (3) On May 11, 1987, 
the Respondent paid the civil penalty and submitted corrective actions 
to the Department. 

14. Order: Civil Penalty/Permit Suspension: Radiological Violation 
Date: June 15, 1987 
Facility: Consumers Power Company,Big Rock Point Nuclear Plant, 

Jackson, MI 
Respondent: Same 

Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
the Chem-Nuclear Systems low-level radioactive waste disposal site on 
June 8, 1987. During a routine inspection, it was found that the 
exterior of the shipping cask was contaminated in excess of the limits 
specified in 49 CFR 173.443 (b). This item constitutes a violation of 
Section 1.2, Department Regulation 61-83. Pursuant to Paragraph 7.1, 
Department Regulation 61-83, this violation is classified as Radiologi
cal with a maximum allowable civil penalty of $5,000.00 per violation 
and a permit suspension for a period of not less than thirty (30) 
days. (Section 13-7-180, 1976 S.C. Code of Laws [as amended]). 
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Action: (1) On June 15, 1987, the Respondent was assessed a 
$5,000.00 civil penalty. (2) The Respondent's radioactive waste 
transport permit was suspended for a minimum of 30 days and until such 
time as he demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Department that 
adequate measures have been implemented to ensure compliance. (3) 
Payment of the civil penalty and reinstatement of the radioactive 
waste transport are pending. 

15. Order: Civil Penalty: Non-Radiological Violation 
Date: June 15, 1987 
Facility: Florida Power Corporation,Crystal River Nuclear Plant, 

Crystal River, FL 
Respondent: Same 

Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
the Chem-Nuclear Systems low-level radioactive waste disposal site on 
June 8, 1987. During a routine inspection, it was found that the 
waste, described as liquid solidified with cement, contained liquid in 
excess of the limits specified by Condition 32.B of S.C. Radioactive 
Material License 097 Amendment 41. This item constitutes a violation 
of Section 1.2, Department Regulation 61.83. Pursuant to Paragraph 
7.3, Department Regulation 61-83, this violation is classified as 
non-radiological with a maximum allowable civil penalty of $1,000.00 
per violation. (Section 13-7-180, 1976 S.C. Code of Laws [as 
amended]). 

Action: (1) On June 15, 1987, the Respondent was assessed a 
$1,000.00 civil penalty (2) The Respondent was required to submit 
corrective measures to the Department to ensure compliance with 
applicable license criteria. (3) The Respondent has submitted a 
preliminary investigation report and indicated agreement with the 
civil penalty. (4) Payment of the civil penalty and Department 
approval of the Respondent's corrective actions are pending. 

16. Order: Civil Penalty: Non-Radiological Violation 
Date: June 20, 1986 
Facility: Carolina Power & Light Company, Brunswick Nuclear 

Project, Southport, NC 
Respondent: Same 

Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
the Chern-Nuclear Systems low-level radioactive waste disposal site on 
June 13, 1986. During a routine inspection, it was found that the 
waste package contained liquids in excess of allowable limits, con
trary to the requirements of Condition 32.C and 38, S.C. Radioactive 
Material License No. 097, issued to Chern-Nuclear. In addition, the 
waste was found to contain oil contrary to the requirements of Condi
tion 52, S.C.Radioactive Material License 097. These items constitute 
violations of Section 1.2, Department Regulation 61-83. Pursuant to 
Paragraph 7.3, Department Regulation 61-83, these violations are 
classified as Non-Radiological with a maximum civil penalty of 
$1,000.00 per violation. (Section 13-7-180, 1976 S.C. Code of Laws 
[as amended]). 
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Action: (1) On June 20, 1986, Respondent was assessed a $2,000.00 
civil penalty. (2) Respondent's shipment of dewatered and solidified 
resins are prohibited from receipt at the disposal facility until such 
time as they demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Department that 
adequate measures have been implemented to ensure compliance with 
applicable criteria and conditions. (3) Payment of the civil penalty 
and reinstatement are pending. 

17. Order: Civil Penalty/Permit Suspension: Non-Radiological Violation 
Date: July 2, 1986 
Facility: Westinghouse Electric Corp., Electro-Mechanical 

Division, Cheswick, PA 
Respondent: Same 

Summary: Respondent's shipment of radioactive waste was received at 
Chem-Nuclear Systems disposal site on June 30, 1986. During a routine 
inspection, it was found that the waste package contained liquids in 
excess of allowable limits, contrary to the requirements of Condition 
32.B and 35,S.C. Radioactive Material License 097, issued to 
Chem-Nuclear. In addition, these drums contained chelating agents in 
excess of 1% and were improperly solidified, contrary to the require
ments of Condition 46, S.C. Radioactive Material License 097. These 
items constitute violations of Section 1.2, Department Regulation 
61-83. Pursuant to Paragraph 7.3, Department Regulation 61-83, these 
violations are classified as non-radiological with a maximum allowable 
civil penalty of $1,000.00 per violation. Additionally, a permit 
suspension of no more than 12 months is allowable when a series of 
non-radiological violations have occurred. (Section 13-7-180, 1976 
S.C. Code of Laws [as amended]). 

Action: (1) On July 2, 1986, the Respondent was assessed a $2,000.00 
civil penalty. (2) Respondent's transport permit was suspended until 
such time as they demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Department 
that adequate measures have been implemented to ensure compliance with 
all applicable provisions of the burial facility's license and waste 
acceptance criteria. (3) The disposal facility operator was in
structed by the Department to return to the respondent those portions 
of this shipment deemed unacceptable. (4) Payment of the civil 
penalty and reinstatement of the permit are pending. 
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BUREAU OF SOLID AND HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT ORDERS 
Issued by 

South Carolina Department of Health 
and Environmental Control 

July 1, 1986 - June 30, 1987 

1. Administrative Consent Order 86-37-SW 
Date of Issuance: July 1, 1986 
Respondent: GSX Services of South Carolina, Inc. 

Sumter County 
Previous Order(s): 85-64-SW, September 6, 1985 
Summary: In accordance with its approved groundwater quality 
assessment plan, the Respondent notified the Department on June 16, 
1986, of the presence of certain hazardous constituents in the 
groundwater at its facility located in Pinewood, South Carolina. 
Those hazardous constituents were as follows: trichloroethylene, 
toluene, tetrachloroethylene, trans-1, 2 dichloroethylene, 
11-dichloroethylene, 1, 1-dichloroethane, and 1, 2-dichloroethane. 
Consistant with the South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management 
Regulations, the Respondent implemented its assessment plan to assess 
the potential that the presence of these constituents may be affecting 
groundwater quality. 
Action: Pursuant to Sections 44-56-50 and 48-1-50 of the 1976 Code, 
as amended, the Department has ordered and the Respondent has agreed 
to expand its existing, groundwater quality assessment program to 
determine the following: (a) the source of any and all hazardous 
constituents; (b) the potentiometric relationships and possible 
migration pathways; (c) the concentration of hazardous constituents 
in the groundwater; and (d) the rate and extent of migration of 
these constituents. Furthermore, the Respondent shall provide a 
report on or before December 15, 1986, describing the need for any 
corrective action measures, and propose specific action(s) and time 
frames to be taken to remedial soil and groundwater contamination, 
subject to the review and approval of the Department. Interim 
progress reports are to be submitted on or before August 29, 1986, and 
again on or before October 15, 1986, specifying the Respondents 
activities and findings. The Department currently has discovered no 
violation of applicable statutes and regulations concerning this 
issue; however, has expressly reserved any and all rights provided by 
the same concerning further action as deemed appropriate for any 
ascertainable violations. The Respondent has likewise reserved its 
rights to contest any such Department findings and actions. 

2. Administrative Consent Order 86-26-SW 
Date of Issuance: July 8, 1986 
Respondent: General Battery Corporation 

Greenville County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Sections 44-56-10 et 
seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.270, for 
failure to obtain a permit to operate a waste pile. Furthermore, 
General Battery Corporation has violated Section 48-1-90 of said Code 
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(Pollution Control Act) for an unauthorized discharge to the 
environment. 
Action: The Respondent agreed to pay the Department five thousand 
dollars ($5,000.00) and to submit to the Department an approvable site 
assessment plan for a comprehensive study of General Battery's site. 

3. Administrative Order 86-38-SW 
Date of Issuance: July 9, 1986 
Respondent: Charleston Air Force Base 

Charleston County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Sections 44-56-10 et 
seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.270.13(j~ 
for failure to provide an estimate on the Part A for all waste 
generated; R.61-79.270.14(b)2, for failure to provide on the Part B, 
the correct EPA identification numbers for certain hazardous waste. 
R.61-79.270.15(a)3, for failure to provide in the Part B appropriate 
comments with the new design drawings of the containment areas; 
R.61-79.270.16, for failure to provide, in the Part B, references to 
design standards or other information used in design and construction 
of the new tank; R.61-79.270.16(b), for failure to provide, in the 
Part B, the corrosion allowance and corrosion and erosion rates of the 
new tanks; R.61-79.270.14(b)7, for failure to provide, in the Part B, 
finalized procedures for post-emergency equipment maintenance and for 
the evacuation plan; and R.61-79.270.11, for failure to provide, in 
the Part B, certification by a principal executive officer or ranking 
official for a state, federal, or other public agency for all the 
revisions that were submitted. 
Action: The Department has ordered the Department to submit a revised 
Part Band to pay a civil penalty of six thousand dollars ($6,000.00). 

4. Administrative Consent Order 86-40-SW 
Date of Issuance: July 10, 1986 
Respondent: Condor Management Corporation 

Sinton, Texas 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Sections 44-56-10 et 
seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.270, for 
failure to possess a state permit to transport hazardous waste; and, 
R.61-79.263.13, for failure to file with the Department a Notification 
of hazardous waste transporting activities. The Respondent refused to 
sign a consent order with a penalty. Therefore, the Department issued 
Administrative Order 86-40-SW. Subsequent to this issuance, the 
Respondent decided to sign a consent order with a penalty. This order 
will vacate Administrative Order 86-40-SW. 
Action: The Respondent agreed to cease all shipments of hazardous 
waste in the State until it obtains a State Hazardous Waste 
Transporter's Permit and to pay a civil penalty of one thousand 
dollars ($1,000.00). 
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5. Administrative Order 86-39-SW 
Date of Issuance: July 18, 1986 

6. 

7. 

Respondent: T & S Brass and Bronze Works, Inc. 
Greenville County 

Previous Order(s): 85-68-SW, October 18, 1985 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulation, R.61-79.265.94(a)(2)(iii), for failure to 
report to the Department a description of the response to the results 
of the evaluation of ground-water surface elevations under 265.93(f) 
[If the evaluation shows that paragraph 265.9l(a) above is no longer 
satisfied, the owner or operator must immediately modify the number, 
location, or depth of the ground-water monitoring system to bring the 
ground water monitoring system into compliance with this requirement] 
by March 1 following each calendar year. 
Action: In that an agreement with the Respondent could not be 
reached, this Order was issued without consent. The Respondent was 
ordered to submit to the Department a Ground-Water Quality Assessment 
Program including the installation an adequate ground-water monitoring 
system, to implement the assessment program upon approval, and to pay 
a civil penalty in the amount of two thousand one hundred dollars 
($2,100.00). 

Administrative Consent Order 86-42-SW 
Date of Issuance: August 4, 1986 
Respondent: The Torrington Company 

Laurens County 
Previous Order(s): 84-27-SW, October 16, 1984 
Summary: The Respondent had previously entered into administrative 
consent order (ACO) 84-27-SW with the Department which was issued on 
October 16, 1984. ACO 84-27-SW required the Respondent to submit a 
ground-water quality assessment (GWQA) on or before May 1, 1986. The 
Respondent's Part B was called on April 4, 1985 requiring certain 
information pertaining to its GWQA. On April 1, 1986, the Department 
issued a Notice of Deficiencies (NOD) of the Respondent's Part B, 
based on a thorough review of the submittal. The Respondent could not 
respond to the Part B request for ground-water information since its 
GWQA had not yet been prepared. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: on or before August 1, 1986, 
submit a GWQA; and, on or before September 16, 1986, submit the 
required ground-water information for its Part B including, "Section 
E" and Items Three and Fifteen of the NOD. 

Administrative Consent Order 86-43-SW 
Date of Issuance: August 6, 1986 
Respondent: Roy Metal Finishing Company, Inc. 

Greenville County 
Previous Order(s): 85-06-SW, January 30, 1985 
Summary: Pursuant to ACO 85-06-SW issued by the Department on January 
30, 1985, the Respondent submitted a closure plan proposing clean 
closure, and a ground-water quality assessment plan. Upon approval by 
the Department, Roy Metal implemented the proposed plans. Due to the 
presence of ground-water contamination, the Respondent was unable to 
clean close as proposed. 
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Action: The Respondent has agreed to submit a post-closure care plan 
which includes additional ground-water quality assessment monitoring 
and an outline for corrective action. 

8. Administrative Consent Order 86-41-SW 
Date of Issuance: August 8, 1986 
Respondent: Stoller-Mii 

Charleston County 
Previous Order(s): 84-25-SW, October 9, 1984 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Section 44-56-130 of the 1976 
South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, for failure to comply with an 
order issued by the Department. Administrative Consent Order 84-25-SW 
required the submittal of a properly complete Part B permit 
application no later than April 21, 1986, Stoller-Mii failed to comply 
with this requirement. 
Action: The Respondent agreed to submit a properly complete Part B 
permit application no later than August 8, 1986, and pay a civil 
penalty of six thousand dollars ($6,000.00). 

9. Administrative Order 86-46-SW 
Date of Issuance: August 27, 1986 
Respondent: McEntire Air National Guard Base 

Richland County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Sections 44-56-10 et 
seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.262.34(b) and 
270.1, for failure to obtain a permit to operate a facility for 
storage of hazardous waste for greater than ninety (90) days. 
Action: In that an agreement with the Respondent could not be 
reached, this Order was issued without consent. The Respondent was 
ordered to immediately cease all on-site storage of hazardous waste 
for greater than ninety (90) days until such time as a Department 
permit to operate a hazardous waste storage facility has been 
obtained, and to pay a civil penalty in the amount of three thousand 
dollars ($3,000.00). 

10. Administrative Order 86-44-SW 
Date of Issuance: August 29, 1986 
Respondent: Thermal Engineering Corporation 

Richland County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations promulgated pursuant to Sections 44-56-10 et 
seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.262.12, for 
failure to obtain an EPA identification number prior to treating, 
storing, disposing, transporting or offering for transport hazardous 
waste, R.61-79.262.34(a)(l), 262.34(a)(2), and 262.34(a)(3), for 
failure to maintain containers from leaks, for failure to store 
containers closed except when adding or removing waste, for failure 
to label and to mark appropriately containers in storage; and for 
failure to store ignitables at least 15 meters from the facilities 
property line; R.61-79.262.34(a)(4) [R.61-79.265 Subpart CJ, for 
failure to comply with preparedness and prevention in its entirety, 
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R.61-79.262.34(a)(4) [R.61-79.265 Subpart D], for failure to comply 
with Contingency Plan and Emergency Procedures in its entirety; 
R.61-79.262.34(a)(4) [R.61-79.265.16], for failure to develop and to 
implement personnel training for employees handling hazardous waste 
and for failure to keep appropriate records of personnel training; 
R.61-79.262.34(b), and 270.1, for storage of hazardous waste for more 
than ninety (90) days without having applied for or received a permit 
for storage; R.61-79.262.40(b), for failure to keep a copy of each 
Quarterly Report for a period of at least three years; and 
R.61-79.262.41, for failure to submit written quarterly reports to the 
Department. 
Action: In that an agreement with the Respondent could not be 
reached, this Order was issued without consent. The Department has 
ordered the Respondent to perform the following: close, label, and 
mark containers in storage properly; properly dispose of drums stored 
on site and immediately thereafter cease further unpermitted storage 
of hazardous waste for greater than ninety days; obtain placards to 
offer transporters; prepare and implement a personnel training program 
and hereafter maintain appropriate personnel training records; comply 
with the requirements of preparedness and prevention; store ignitables 
at least 15 meters from the facility's property line or obtain a 
variance to this requirement; ensure compliance with Contingency Plans 
and Emergency Procedures; ensure future compliance with manifest 
requirements; ensure future compliance with use and management of 
containers; ensure future compliance with pre-transport requirements; 
ensure future compliance with authorization requirements; ensure 
future compliance with recordkeeping and reporting; and pay to the 
Department a civil penalty in the amount of twenty thousand dollars 
($20,000.00). 

11. Amendment to Administrative Consent Order 85-63-W,SW 
Date of Issuance: September 5, 1986 
Respondent: Carolina Plating Works - Industrial Division 
Previous Order(s): 85-63-SW, September 5, 1985 
Summary: Administrative Consent Order 85-63-W,SW required Carolina 
Plating to close a surface impoundment in accordance with Department 
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations, R.61-79.265, governing Interim 
Status Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste 
Treatment, Storage, and Disposal Facilities. Subsequent to the 
issuance of the Order it was determined that a clean closure of the 
impoundment could not be performed; therefore, rev1s1ons to the 
implementation schedule for certification of closure were deemed 
necessary. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to complete and to certify closure 
of the impoundment on or before February 20, 1987. 

12. Administrative Consent Order 86-47-SW 
Date of Issuance: September 5, 1986 
Respondent: GSX Services of South Carolina, Inc. 

Formerly South Carolina SCA Services, Inc. 
Sumter County 

Previous Order(s): 85-64-SW, September 6, 1985 
86-37-SW, July 1, 1986 

Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Regulations, as amended, promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-30 et 
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seq., of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, as follows: 
R.61-79.264.310(a)(4) for failure to provide a quantitative estimate 
of landfill surface settlement; and, R.61-79.270.14(b)(15) for failure 
to comply with cost estimate requirements for closure. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: pay a civil penalty of fifteen 
hundred dollars ($1,500.00); submit its response to deficiencies in 
its Part B permit application; submit a proposal for conducting a 
hydrogeological investigation; and, submit a complete Section E of its 
Part B. 

13. Administrative Consent Order 86-48-SW 
Date of Issuance: September 10, 1986 
Respondent: McKesson Chemical Company 

, Spartanburg County 
Previous Order(s): 86-28-SW issued May 11, 1986 
Summary: McKesson has violated Department Hazardous Waste Management 
Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Sections 44-56-10 et seq., of the 
1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, as follows: 
1. R.61-79.262.34(a)(2) & (3), for failure to mark each container 
with the initial accumulation date and the words "Hazardous Waste"; 
2. R.61-79.265.173(a), for failure to ensure that drums used for 
accumulation of hazardous waste are closed between additions; 
3. R.61-79.265.173(c), for failure to properly label drums of 
hazardous waste with the following statement: "Hazardous Waste 
South Carolina Law Prohibits Improper Storage or Disposal"; 
4. R.61-79.265.173(d), for failure to appropriately label each 
container as to its content; and, 
5. R.61-79.262.34(a) and 270.1, for failure to acquire a permit 
prior to the greater than ninety (90) day storage of hazardous waste. 
Action: The Respondent agreed to properly dispose of all hazardous 
waste that has been stored greater than ninety (90) days; revise the 
Authorization Request Form submitted to the Department of hazardous 
waste to be disposed to document disposal every ninety (90) days 
rather than every one hundred twenty (120) days; come into compliance 
with all generator requirements (R.61-79.262); submit to the 
Department an approvable proposal for a complete analysis and cleanup 
of the contaminated soil in the drum storage yard and in the area 
under the waste collection troughs; pay to the Department a civil 
penalty in the amount of twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00). In 
that the Department and McKesson desire to resolve this matter without 
adjudication, Administrative Order 86-28-SW shall be vacated upon 
issuance of this Administrative Consent Order. 

14. Administrative Consent Order 86-49-SW 
Date of Issuance: September 10, 1986 
Respondent: General Electric Company 

Florence County 
Previous Orders(s): None 
Summary: GE has violated Department Hazardous Waste Management 
Regulations promulgate pursuant to Section 44-56-10 et seq., of the 
1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended as follows: 
1. R.61-79.270.17(b)(2), for failure to provide all required infor
mation concerning the design and operation procedures which protect 
against impoundment overtopping at the sludge lagoons and tertiary 
pond; 
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2. R.61-79.270.17(b)(3), for failure to submit a written certifica
tion by a registered professional engineer attesting to the structural 
integrity of the dikes; and, 
3. R.61-79.14(c)(l), for failure to include all interim status 
ground-water monitoring data in the Part B permit application. 
Action: The Respondent consented to submit to the Department either: 
a) revisions that will correct the violations referenced above and 
the deficiencies cited in the attachments, or, b) closure and 
post-closure plans, in accordance with R.61-79.265 Subpart G, for the 
surface impoundment and revisions that will correct the above refer
enced violations and the cited deficiencies which are not addressed by 
the closure and post-closure plans. 

15. Administrative Order 86-45-SW 
Date of Issuance: September 11, 1986 
Respondent: Adams ("Pete") Hasell 

Richland County 
Previous Order(s): 82-13-SW, June 28, 1982 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Regulation 61-66, 
promulgated pursuant to Section 48-1-30 of the 1976 South Carolina 
Code of laws, as amended, in that a Department permit is required for 
the operation of a solid waste disposal site; Section 48-1-90 of said 
Code, in that it is unlawful for any person, directly, or indirectly, 
to throw, drain, run, allow to seep or otherwise discharge into the 
environment of State organic or inorganic matter, except as in compli
ance with a permit issued by the Department; and, Administrative 
Consent Order 82-13-SW, issued by disposal activities at the site 
until such time as a permit has been issued by the Department. 
Action: In the that Respondent violated Administrative Consent Order 
82-13-SW, this Order was issued without consent. The Respondent was 
ordered to: immediately and forever cease all further disposal of any 
garbage, refuse, litter, rubbish, cellulosic materials, inert debris, 
or any other waste material at the property located at 144 Sharon 
Circle, Columbia, the County of Richland, the South Carolina Water 
Resources Commission, of the United States Army Corps of Engineers; 
and submit to the Department an approvable plan an timetable for final 
closure of all portions of the site where wastes are left in place. 
Said plan and timetable shall upon approval by the Department become 
an enforceable part of this Order, and, pay to the Department a civil 
penalty in the amount of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00). 

16. Administrative Consent Order 86-50-SW 
Date of Issuance: September 24, 1986 
Respondent: Westinghouse Electric Co./Micarta Division 

Anderson County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Sections 44-56-10 et 
seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.262.34 and 
270.10, for failure to acquire a permit prior to the greater than 
ninety (90) day storage of hazardous waste. 
Action: The Respondent agreed to ensure compliance with all of the 
generator requirements of the Department Regulations and to pay a 
civil penalty of two thousand two hundred fifty dollars ($2,250.00). 
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17. Consent Agreement 86-51-SW 
Date of Issuance: September 29, 1986 
Respondent: AVX Corporation 

Horry County 
Previous Order(s): 86-24-SW, May 16, 1986 
Summary: Upon issuance of Administrative Order 86-24-SW on May 16, 
1986, AVX Corporation representatives proposed to the Department to 
work out an agreement on the scope of the clean up at the site. 
Subsequently, AVX proposed a consent agreement which included remedial 
action acceptable to the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has consented to perform the following: an 
electrical resistivity survey of the site to aid in determination of 
the extent of heavy metal contamination at the site, proper disposal 
of contaminated soils, and sampling to ensure that adequate solid 
clean up has been performed; complete lagoon close-out; complete 
proper disposal of all drummed waste and/or unusable material on site; 
collect upstream and downstream water and sediment samples from the 
canal behind the by plant; implement a geohydrologic investigation, 
collect ground-water samples, and submit a report of the findings 
including recommendation of further actions. 

18. Settlement Agreement 86-52-SW 
Date of Issuance: October 6, 1986 
Respondent: United States Department of Energy 

Savannah River Plant 
Barnwell, Aiken, and Allendale Counties 

Previous Order(s): 85-70-SW, November 7, 1985 
Summary: The Department contends that the Respondent violated 
Department Hazardous Waste Management Regulations, promulgated pursu
ant to Section 44-56-10 et seg., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as 
follows: R.61-79.262.34(a)(l), for failure to comply with use and 
management of containers requirements for accumulation of hazardous 
waste on site for ninety (90) days or less; R.61-79.262.34(a)(2), for 
failure to comply with all the requirements of preparedness and 
prevention (Subpart C) and contingency plan and emergency procedures 
(Subpart D); R.61-79.262.34(a)(4), for failure to comply with all 
requirements of personnel training; and, regarding process wastewater 
and sludge generated and stored as a result of the LETF upsets. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to perform the following: immedi
ately cease operations which resulted in storage of hazardous waste
water and/or hazardous sludges at M Area; immediately comply with all 
generator requirements regarding accumulation of hazardous waste 
emanating from the LETF which are stored for less then ninety (90) 
days; submit s revised Part A application for the M-Area interim 
sludge storage tanks; submit a revised Part B application for the 
M-Area interim sludge storage tanks; comply with interim status 
standards for the M-Area interim sludge tanks; submit amended quarter
ly reports; submit and upon approval implement a plan for direct 
introduction into the M-Area interim sludge storage tanks those 
hazardous waste sludges currently stored in M-Area; pay to the Depart
ment twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00). 
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19. Administrative Consent Order 86-54-SW 
Date of Issuance: October 21, 1986 
Respondent: RM Engineering Products, Inc. 

Charleston County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Sections 44-5-10 et 
seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, ad follows: R.61-79.262.12(c), for 
offering hazardous waste to transporters and to treatment storage and 
disposal facilities that do not hold an EPA identification number 
and/or a Department Permit; R.61-79.262, for failure to comply with 
manifest system, R.61-79.261 Subpart D, for failure to comply with 
recordkeeping and reporting requirements; R.61-79.262.34(b) and 270.1 
for failure to obtain a permit to operate a facility for storage 
greater than ninety (90) days; and, R.61-79.262.34(a)(3) and 
R.61-79.265.173(c), for failure to properly label containers of 
hazardous waste. 
Action: The Respondent has consented to either submit appropriate 
documentation that its waste is not a hazardous waste or to comply 
with all generator standards, and, to pay to the Department a civil 
penalty in the amount to three thousand dollars ($3,000.00). 

20. Administrative Consent Order 86-53-SW 
Date of Issuance: October 22, 1986 
Respondent: Environmental Options, Inc. 

Roanoke, Virginia 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 et 
seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.270, for 
failure to obtain a permit for transporting hazardous waste within the 
state, and R.61-79.263.13, for failure to file a Notification Form for 
transporting hazardous waste within the State. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to cease transportation of hazard
ous waste within the State until a Hazardous Waste Transporter's 
Permit has been obtained from the Department, and pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of the one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 

21. Amendment to Administrative Consent Order 84-29-SW 
Date of Issuance: October 30, 1986 
Respondent: L-TEC Welding and Cutting Systems 

Florence County 
Previous Order(s) 84-29-SW issued on October 31, 1984; 

amended on July 15, 1985 and January 28, 1986 
Summary: Administrative Consent Orders 84-29-SW was issued to Union 
Carbide Corporation/Linde Division (SCD005574967), now known as L-TEC 
Welding and Cutting Systems, on October 31, 1984. The Respondent was 
required to submit a ground-water quality assessment report and a 
revised Part B permit application for post-closure care. -The Respon
dent submitted the required items in a timely manner. Upon review, 
the Department determined that further assessment of the ground-water 
is needed to adequately determine the rate and extension of 
ground-water contamination and to adequately complete the Part B. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to perform additional ground-water 
quality assessment and submit a ground-water quality assessment report 
to the Department on or before April 10, 1987, and to submit a revised 
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Part B permit application for post-closure care on or before May 2, 
1987. 

22. Administrative Consent Order 86-55-SW 
Date of Issuance: November 5, 1986 
Respondent: GP Chemicals, Inc. 

Sumter County 
Previous Order(s): 83-45-SW, October 31, 1983 

83-26-SW, April 1, 1985 
83-35-SW, June 26, 1986 

Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10, et 
seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.270.14(b)(2~ 
for failure to include in its permit application information about be 
hazardous waste to be handled at the facility; R.61-79.270.15(a)(2), 
for failure to include in its permit application acceptable design 
plans for the containment system; R.61-79.270.16, for failure to 
include in its permit application the tank construction design stan
dards and corrosion and erosion rates; R.61-79.270.14(b) (15 and 17), 
for failure to include in its permit application an acceptable finan
cial assurance mechanism for closure and for coverage for sudden 
accidental occurrences; R.61-79.270.14(b)(l0), for failure in the 
permit application to provide for adequate load bearing capacity of 
the plant access road; R.61-79.270.13, for failure to include in the 
permit application the title of the facility contact; 
R.61-79.265.147(a), for failure to demonstrate financial responsibili
ty for sudden/accidental occurrences; R.61-79.262.11, for failure to 
determine if a solid waste is a hazardous waste; and, R.61-79.262.12, 
for failure to offer hazardous waste only to transporters and disposal 
facilities that have received and EPA identification number or Depart
ment permit. 
Action: The Respondent has adequately demonstrated financial respon
sibility for sudden/accidental occurrences and has agreed to submit 
revisions to the permit application, insure that all wastes designated 
for disposal are properly determined to be hazardous or non-hazardous, 
ensure that hazardous waste in not offered to transporters or facili
ties that are not properly permitted, and pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of eight thousand seven hundred and fifty dollars ($8,750.00). 

23. Administrative Consent Order 86-56-SW 
Date of Issuance: November 13, 1986 
Respondent: Detyen's Shipyard 

Berkeley County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations, as amended, promulgated pursuant to Section 
44-56-10 et seq., of the 1976 SC Code of Laws, as amended, as follows: 
R.61-79.262.234(a)(l) for accumulation of hazardous waste on site for 
ninety (90) days or less in a unit other than a container or a tank; 
and, R.61-79.262.34(a)(l) for failure to notify of hazardous waste 
storage activity and to apply for and/or obtain a permit prior to 
operating a hazardous waste surface impoundment. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: completely close the former 
bilge waste surface impoundment using R.61-79.265.310 requirements as 
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guidance; and, pay to the Department a civil penalty in the amount of 
three thousand dollars ($3,000.00). 

24. Administrative Consent Order 86-57-SW 
Date of Issuance: November 24, 1986 
Respondent: Braswell Shipyards, Inc. 

Charleston County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations, as amended, promulgated pursuant to Section 
44-56-10 et seq., of the 1976 SC Code of Laws, as amended, as follows: 
R.61-79.262.11, for failure to determine if solid waste generated 
on-site is a hazardous waste; R.61-79.262.41, for failure, as a 
generator, to submit quarterly reports; and, R.61-79.265, Subpart I, 
for failure to comply with the requirements for use and management of 
containers. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: submit quarterly reports 
commencing on October 15, 1987; submit written requests to the Depart
ment for permission to landfill its sandblasting residue on-site; 
bring all containers of waste oil into compliance with the require
ments of R.61-79.265 Subpart I; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount 
of three thousand five hundred dollars ($3,500.00). 

25. Amendment to Consent Agreement to Extend Deadlines 
in the Board's Order of October 26, 1984 
Date of Issuance: November 20, 1986 
Respondent: Darlington County Landfill 

Darlington County 
Previous Order(s): Board Order of October 26, 1984, upheld 

Administrative Order 83-02-SW; 
Amendment to Board's Order of February 7, 1986 

Summary: On February 22, 1983, the Department issued Administrative 
Order 83-02-SW to Darlington County for failure to operate the land
fill site in accordance with Department Regulations, a violation of 
Regulation 61-70 promulgated pursuant to Section 44-1-140(11), of the 
1976 Code, as amended, and for unpermitted discharges to the environ
ment, a violation of Section 48-1-90 of the 1976 Code, as amended. 
Darlington County requested an Adjudicatory Hearing to contest the 
case, -and a hearing was held on September 7, 1983. The Hearing 
Officer's decision was reached on June 25, 1984. Both Darlington 
County and the Department requested the Board of Health and Environ
mental Control to review the Hearing Officer's decision. The Board 
reviewed the decision during the June 25, 1984 meeting. As a result 
of the review an Order was issued by the Board on October 26, 1984, 
upholding the Department's Administrative Order 83-02-SW. Darlington 
County initiated action to comply with the Board's Order but could not 
meet certain requirements in the specified time frame and requested an 
extension. On February 7, 1986, it was agreed to extend the deadlines 
in the Board's Order of October 26, 1984. Darlington County completed 
some of the requirements of the Boards Order to extend deadlines but 
was unable to complete final cover in the given time. Therefore, 
another extension was requested for the action. 
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Action: Darlington County has agreed to apply grade, and stabilize 
two (2) feet of clay as final cover on all completed portions of the 
landfill on or before May 7, 1987. 

26. Administrative Consent Order 86-59-SW 
Date of Issuance: December 15, 1986 
Respondent: Beloit Manhattan, Inc. 

Aiken County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Regulations (SCHWMR) as amended, promulgated pursuant 
to Section 44-56-140 et seq., as amended, as follows: R.61-79.262.34, 
for accumulating hazardous waste for greater than ninety days; and, 
R.61-79.270.1, for operating a storage facility without a permit. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to pay to the Department a civil 
penalty in the amount of six thousand dollars ($6,000.00). 

27. Administrative Consent Order 86-59-SW 
Date of Issuance: December 16, 1986 
Respondent: Utica Tool Company 

Orangeburg County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated R.61-79.26.34(b), for failure to 
comply with the facility requirements for a generator which has 
greater than ninety (90) day storage, and R.61-79.2701, for failure to 
obtain a permit prior to the greater than ninety (90) day storage and 
the land disposal of a hazardous waste. Furthermore, the respondent 
has violated Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Code of Laws 
(Pollution Control Act) for illegally discharging an industrial waste 
into the environment. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to ensure compliance with all the 
generator requirements of the Hazardous Waste Management Regulations 
and to pay to the Department a civil penalty of six thousand dollars 
($6,000.00). 

28. Administrative Consent Order 86-63-SW 
Date of Issuance: December 23, 1986 
Respondent: Appleton Landfill, DWP-102 

Allendale County 
Previous Order(s): 84-28-SW, October 23, 1984 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Regulation 61-70 promulgated 
pursuant to Section 44-1-130(11) of the 1976 Code, as amended, for 
failure to operate the landfill in accordance with Department regula
tions and permit stipulations and Section 48-1-50(22) of the 1976 
Code, as amended, and for failure to monitor the groundwater in 
accordance with the appropriate schedule. Also, the Respondent has 
violated Administrative Order 84-28-SW, issued on October 23, 1984, 
for failure to reinstate the groundwater monitoring program, to pay 
the civil penalty of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), and to submit 
timely revised plans and specifications for the landfill. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to perform the following: rein
state the groundwater monitoring program; submit revised plans and 
specifications for the landfill; perform remedial action to ensure 
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that the landfill is operated in compliance with the regulations; and 
pay a civil penalty in the amount of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00). 

29. Administrative Consent Order 86-61-SW 
Date of Issuance: December 30, 1986 
Respondent: Mount Vernon Dryer Felt Company 

Greenville County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations promulgated pursuant to Sections 44-56-10 et 
seq., of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended. Specifi
cally, the Respondent has violated R.61-79.262.11 and .12, for failure 
to determine if generated wastes are hazardous and to notify the 
Department appropriately; and, R.61-79.270, for failure to obtain 
interim status and/or a permit to treat and dispose of hazardous 
waste. Also, the Respondent has violated Section 48-1-90 of said Code 
(Pollution Control Act) in that it is unlawful for any person, direct
ly or indirectly to throw, drain, run, allow to seep or otherwise 
discharge into the environment of the State organic or inorganic 
matter, including sewage, industrial waste and other wastes, except as 
in compliance with a permit issued by the Department. 
Action: the Respondent consented to complete a Computerized Quarterly 
Report which notifies the Department of its status as a generator, to 
comply with all the generator requirements specified in the R~gula
tions, to submit a proposal for the cleanup of any and all contamina
tion resulting from the unlawful land disposal of a hazardous waste 
mixture, to properly dispose of the waste oil/sawdust mixture and 
waste oil, and to pay a civil penalty of seven thousand dollars 
($7,000.00). 

30. Administrative Order 87-02-SW 
Date of Issuance: January 12, 1987 
Respondent: Statewide Service and Supply, Inc. 

Spartanburg County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated R.61-79.265.147(a), of the 
Department Hazardous Waste Management Regulations, promulgated pursu
ant to Sections 44-56-10 et seq., of the 1976 South Carolina Code of 
Laws, as amended, for failure to maintain insurance coverage for 
sudden accidental occurrences. 
Action: The Respondent was order by the Department to acquire the 
required liability insurance coverage for sudden accidental occur
rences and to pay to the Department a civil penalty of twenty thousand 
dollars ($20,000.00); or, to submit to the Department an approvable 
closure plan which will be implemented upon Department approval. 

31. Administrative consent Order 87-03-SW 
Date of Issuance: February 2, 1987 
Respondent: C.P. Chemicals, Incorporated 

Sumter County 
Previous Order(s): AGO 83-45-SW, September 8, 1983 

AGO 85-26-SW, April 1, 1985 
AGO 86-55-SW, November 5, 1986 
AGO 86-35-SW, June 26, 1986 vacated by 87-03-SW 
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Summary: The Respondent has violated R.61-79.265.113(b), for failure 
to complete closure activities in accordance with the approved closure 
plan, in that certain closure activities were not performed according 
to the approved implementation schedule; R.61-79.265.143, for failure 
to establish and maintain financial assurance for closure of the 
hazardous waste surface impoundments; R.61-79.265.147, for failure to 
demonstrate financial responsibility for bodily injury and property 
damage to third parties caused by sudden and non-sudden accidental 
occurrences ar1s1ng from operations of its hazardous waste surface 
impoundments; R.61-79.262.35, for failure to properly identify its 
hazardous waste on an Authorization Request Form submitted to an 
off-site facility; and, R.61-79.262.21, for failure to properly 
identify its hazardous waste on a Hazardous Waste Manifest. CPC has 
also failed to sample groundwater monitoring wells and report data 
according to a bimonthly schedule as required by ACO 85-26-SW. 
Action: The Respondent consented to the following: to continue 
closure of lagoons #land #2 in a manner and according to a timetable 
consistent with the closure plan approved by the Department on January 
10, 1986, until such time that an amended closure plan is approved by 
the Department; to submit to the Department a detailed report of 
closure activities performed during the preceding calendar month, 
until such time as closure of the impoundments is certified complete; 
to submit quarterly analyses of all liquids removed form surface 
impoundments #land #2 and place in surface impoundment #3 to demon
strate to the satisfaction of the Department that no hazardous wastes 
are being placed in surface impoundment #3; to submit to the Depart
ment a post-closure plan for surface impoundments #land #2 prepared 
in accordance with R.61-79.265 Subpart G; to submit the Department the 
cost estimate for post-closure care of surface impoundments in accor
dance with R.61-79.265 Subpart H; to submit to the Department a 
post-closure plan for SI #l prepared in accordance with R.61-79.264 
Subpart G, for inclusion in Section I of the Part B permit applica
tion; to submit to the Department the cost estimate for post-closure 
care for surface impoundment #1 in accordance with R.61-79.264 Subpart 
H, for inclusion in Section I of the Part B permit application; to 
submit to the Department additional Exposure Information; to revise 
the financial assurance mechanism to adequately provide for closure 
and post-closure activities; to submit to the Department a groundwater 
quality assessment report in accordance with CPC's approved ground
water quality assessment plan and R.61-79.265.93; to pay to the 
Department a civil penalty in the amount of thirty thousand dollars 
($30,000.00). on issuance by the Department, this Order shall super
sede Administrative Order 86-35-SW. 

32. Administrative Consent Order 87-05-SW 
Date of Issuance: February 2, 1987 
Respondent: AT&T Nassau Metals Corporation 

Lexington County 
Previous Order(s): 86-14-SW, March 19, 1987 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 et 
seq., of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended. Specifi
cally, the Respondent has violated the following: R.61-79.270.1, for 
failure to notify the Department and to obtain a permit to store 
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hazardous waste in surface impoundments and dispose of hazardous 
wastes in a landfill; R.61-79.262.34 and R.61-79.270.1, for failure to 
comply with the requirements that g~nerators not store hazardous 
wastes for more than ninety (90) days without obtaining a permit; and 
R.61-79.262.41, for failure to submit quarterly reports as required. 
In addition, the Respondent has violated the South Carolina Pollution 
Control Act, Section 48-190 of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: 
for operating an industrial waste landfill without a permit; and, for 
allowing discharges to runoff containment ditches which resulted in 
those ditches being contaminated. 
Action: The Respondent consented to submit closure plans for the four 
hazardous waste surface impoundments and the hazardous Waste landfill, 
to proper close these units in accordance with Department regulations, 
to submit a plan to clean up the runoff containment ditches and to 
perform a comprehensive study of the plant site, to establish the 
required groundwater monitoring systems, to comply with financial 
responsibility requirements, to submit a plan to characterize and 
obtain a permit or close the industrial waste landfill, to ensure 
compliance with storage requirements for wastewater treatment plant 
sludge, to ensure compliance with requirements for submitting quarter
ly reports, to document that all in-process materials meet the re
quirements for exemption form the Department's Hazardous Waste Manage
ment Regulations, and pay a civil penalty of fifty thousand dollars 
($50,000.00) and one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) in settle
ment. 

33. Administrative Consent Order 87-06-SW 
Date of Issuance: February 3, 1987 
Respondent: Oil Services Company 

Columbus, Tennessee 
Previous Order(s): none 
Summary: The Respondent violated Department Hazardous Waste Manage
ment Regulation, promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 et seq., of 
the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, as follows: 
R.61-79.263.20 for failure to comply with the manifest system require
ments. 
Action: The Respondent agreed to pay a civil penalty of one thousand 
dollars ($1,000.00). 

34. Administrative Order 87-01-SW 
Date of Issuance: February 10, 1987 
Respondent: Valchem Division - United Merchants and Manufacturers 

Aiken County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated R.61-79.262.11 and .13 of 
Department Hazardous Waste Management Regulations, promulgated pursu
ant to Sections 44-56-10 et seq., of the 1976 South Carolina Code of 
Laws, as amended, for failure to determine if generated wastes are 
hazardous and to notify the Department of this generation. 
Action: The Respondent has been ordered to pay to the Department a 
civil penalty in the amount of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00). 
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35. Administrative Consent Order 87-07-SW 
Date of Issuance: February 23, 1987 
Respondent: Caldwell Industrial Services 

Lenior, North Carolina 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent violated Department Hazardous Waste Manage
ment Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 et seq., of 
the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, as follows: 
R.61-79.270, for transporting hazardous waste within the State without 
a permit. 
Action: The Respondent agreed to pay a civil penalty of one thousand 
dollars ($1,000.00). 

36. Administrative Consent Order 87-07-SW 
Date of Issuance: February 23, 1987 
Respondent: Scotman Fairfax Operation 

Allendale County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated R.61-79.262.41 of Department 
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to 
Sections 44-56-10 et seq., of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as 
amended, for failure to submit a quarterly report to the Department in 
a timely manner. 
Action: The Respondent is to ensure compliance with the quarterly 
reporting requirements, and pay a civil penalty of one thousand 
dollars ($1,000.00). 

37. Administrative Consent Order 87-08-SW 
Date of Issuance: March 6, 1987 
Respondent: H. Kohnstamm and Company, Inc. 

Camden, New Jersey 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated R.61-79.262.30 of the Department 
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to 
Section 44-56-1- et seq., of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as 
amended, applicable Federal Department of Transportation and South 
Carolina Public Service Commission regulations. 
Action: The Respondent shall ensure that all hazardous waste is 
properly packaged for shipment, and pay a civil penalty of one thou
sand dollars ($1,000.00). 

38. Administrative Consent Order 87-11-SW 
Date of Issuance: March 9, 1987 
Respondent: J.P. Stevens and Company, Inc. 

Newberry County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent violated R.61-79.262.41 of the Department 
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to 
Section 44-55-10 et seq., of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as 
amended, for failure to submit a quarterly report to the Department in 
the timely manner. 
Action: The Respondent is to ensure compliance with the quarterly 
reporting requirements, and pay a civil penalty of six hundred dollars 
($600.00). 
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39. Administrative Consent Order 87-10-SW 
Date of Issuance: March 16, 1987 
Respondent: Velsicol Chemical Corporation 

Memphis, TN 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent violated Department Hazardous Waste Manage
ment Regulations promulgated to Section 44-56-1- et seg., of the 1976 
South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended. Specifically, the Respondent 
has violated the following: R.61-79.262.20(2), for failure to appro
priately cite the generator on the manifest that accompanied the 
shipments and R.61-79.262.35, for failure to provide the Department 
with an Authorization Request Form. 
Action: The Respondent agreed to pay a civil penalty of one thousand 
dollars ($1,000.00). 

40. Emergency Order 
Date of Issuance: March 9, 1987 
Respondent: Walton R. A. Greene & R. A. Greene 

d/b/a Carolina Waste Oil 
Spartanburg County 

Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated R.61-79.263.12, for failure to 
conform to storage requirements for hazardous waste; R.61-79.263.23, 
for removing hazardous waste from the transport vehicle at a 
non-permitted facility; R.61-79.263.30, for failure to take appropri
ate action for a discharge of hazardous waste; R.61-79.263.31, for 
failure to notify the Department of hazardous waste activity and 
R.61-79.270.1, for failure to obtain a permit prior to storage of 
hazardous waste. The its permit conditions; 48-1-90 for allowing a 
discharge into the environment of the State; 48-43-580 for discharging 
pollutants into & upon the waters and lands of the State; and R.61-46 
for creating a public nuisance. 
Action: The Respondent has been ordered to immediately cease trans
porting waste other than to a permitted facility; immediately clean 
up all discharges of hazardous waste on its property; within fifteen 
days of issuance of the order, submit a proposal for the clean up of 
all adjacent properties which have become contaminated. 

41. Administrative Consent Order 87-12-SW 
Date of Issuance: March 16, 1987 
Respondent: Southern Railway Company Hayne Car Shop 

Spartanburg County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated R.61-79.262.41 of Department 
Hazardous Waste Regulations Management promulgated pursuant to Section 
44-56-1- et seg., of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, 
for failure to submit a quarterly report to the Department in a timely 
manner. 
Action: The Respondent 
reporting requirements, 
dollars ($1,000.00). 

is to 
and 

ensure compliance with the 
pay a civil penalty of one 

42. Administrative Consent Order 87-13-SW 
Date of Issuance: March 16, 1987 
Respondent: Southern Slag Aggregate, Inc. 
Previous Order(s): None 
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Summary: The Respondent has violated Section 48-1-90 of the Pollution 
Control Act, in that it is unlawful to discharge industrial waste into 
the environment of the State, except as in compliance with a permit 
issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has consented to clean-up and properly dispose 
of the solid waste which has been stored on the ground, to properly 
collect and dispose of this waste in the future, to come into compli
ance with all applicable Regulations, and to pay to the Department a 
civil penalty of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 

43. Administrative Consent Order 87-14-SW 
Date of Issuance: March 17, 1987 
Respondent: Siemens Energy and Automation, Incorporated 

I-T-E Electrical Apparatus Division 
Previous Order(s): 85-28-SW, April 12, 1985 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulation 61-79.270 for failure to submit a revised 
complete Part B permit application as required by the Department's 
Notice of Deficiencies ("NOD") issued March 21, 1986. 
Action: The Respondent agreed to submit a revised complete Part B by 
April 17, 1987, and pay to the Department a civil penalty of seven 
thousand dollars ($7,000.00). 

44. Administrative Consent Order 87-15-SW 
Date of Issuance: March 20, 1987 
Respondent: Groce Laboratories, Inc. 

Spartanburg County 
Previous Order(s): AGO 82-32-SW, December 29, 1982 

amended August 31, 1984; AGO 85-45-SW, 
June 6, 1985; AO 86-16-SW, March 25, 1986, 
dismissed March 30, 1987 

Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations R.61-79.262.41 and R.61-79.265.75, promulgated 
pursuant to Section 44-56-10 et seg., of the 1976 South Carolina Code 
of Laws as report to the Department in a timely manner. 
Action: The Respondent agreed to ensure future compliance with the 
quarterly reporting requirements and to pay a civil penalty in the 
amount to six hundred dollars ($600.00). 

45. Administrative Consent Order 87-16-SW 
Date of Issuance: March 20, 1987 
Respondent: Robbie D. Wood, Inc. 

Dolomite, Alabama 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The respondent violated Department Hazardous Waste Manage
ment Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 et. seg. of 
the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, as follows: 
R.61-79.270, for transporting hazardous waste within the State without 
a permit. 
Action: The respondent agreed not to transport hazardous waste in the 
State without first obtaining a permit and to pay a civil penalty of 
six hundred hundred dollars ($600.00). 

46. Administrative Consent Order 87-17-SW 
Date of Issuance: March 24, 1987 
Respondent: OSI Transports, Inc. 

Deer Park, TX 
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Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The respondent violated Department Hazardous Waste Manage
ment Regulations promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 et. seq. of 
the South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.270, 
for failure to obtain a permit for transporting hazardous waste within 
the State. 
Action: The Respondent agreed not to transport hazardous waste in the 
state without first obtaining a permit and to pay a civil penalty of 
one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 

47. Administrative Consent Order 87-18-SW 
Date of Issuance: March 25, 1987 
Respondent: Trailer Train Company/Hamburg Division 

Aiken County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated R.61-79.262.41 of the Department 
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations promulgated pursuant, to 
Section 44-56-10 et seq., of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as 
amended, for failure to submit a quarterly report to the Department in 
a timely manner. 
Action: The Respondent is to ensure compliance with the quarterly 
reporting requirements, and pay a civil penalty of seven hundred fifty 
dollars ($750.00). 

48. Administrative Consent Order 87-19-SW 
Date of Issuance: March 25, 1987 
Respondent: General Electric Ceramics, Inc. 

Laurens County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated R.61-79.262.41 of Department 
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations promulgated pursuant, to 
Section 44-56-10 et seq., of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as 
amended, for failure to submit a quarterly report to the Department in 
a timely manner. 
Action: The Respondent is to ensure compliance with the quarterly 
reporting requirements, and pay a civil penalty of six hundred dollars 
($600.00). 

49. Administrative Consent Order 87-20-SW 
Date of Issuance: April 7, 1987 
Respondent: Woodlore Hauling, Inc. 

Marietta, Georgia 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 
et seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.263.13 and 
R.61-79.270, for failure to file a Notification Form for transporta
tion of hazardous waste within the state; and, for failure to obtain a 
permit for transporting hazardous waste within the state. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of one thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500.00). 

50. Administrative Consent Order 87-21-SW 
Date of Issuance: April 7, 1987 
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Respondent: Duke Power Company 
Oconee County 

Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 
et seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.270.1 for 
storage of hazardous waste greater than ninety (90) days without a 
permit and failure to notify the Department of the storage activity. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00). 

51. Administrative Consent Order 87-22-SW 
Date of Issuance: April 9, 1987 
Respondent: Valchem Division - UM&M 

Aiken County 
Previous Order(s): Administrative Order 87-01-SW vacated by the 

issuance of this order. 
Summary: The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 
et seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.262.11 and 
R.61-79.262.13, for failure to determine if generated wastes are 
hazardous and to notify the Department of this generation. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00). 

52. Administrative Consent Order 87-23-SW 
Date of Issuance: April 14, 1987 
Respondent: Chem-Vac Services, Inc. 

Plaquemine, IA 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 
et seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.263.13 for 
failure to file a Notification form for transportation of hazardous 
waste within the state and R.61-79.270, for failure to obtain a permit 
for transporting hazardous waste within the state. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to pay a civil penalty of one 
thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 

53. Administrative Consent Order 87-24-SW 
Date of Issuance: April 30, 1987 
Respondent: Builder's Transport, Inc. 

Kershaw County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 
et seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.124.3, for 
failuxe to apply for a permit prior to storing hazardous waste for 
greater than ninety (90) days; R.61-79.262.12, for failure to obtain 
an EPA ID Number prior to engaging in hazardous waste activities; 
R.61-79.262.13, for failure to file a Notification Form; and, 
R.61-79.270.1, for improper disposal of hazardous waste without a 
permit. 
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Action: The Respondent 
ensure its compliance 
penalty in the amount 
($17,500.00). 

has agreed to: take any and all precautions to 
with the Regulations; and, to pay a civil 
of seventeen thousand five hundred dollars 

54. Administrative Consent Order 87-25-SW 
Date of Issuance: April 30, 1987 
Respondent: Dart Trucking Company, Inc. 

Canfield, OH 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Regulations promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 
et seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.263 (a) for 
discharge of hazardous waste during transportation and Section 48-1-90 
(Pollution control Act) of the 1976 South Carolina Code, as amended, 
for allowing industrial and other waste to be discharged into the 
environment of the state. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 

55. Settlement Agreement 87-27-SW 
Date of Issuance: May 1, 1987 
Respondent: United States Department of Energy 

Barnwell, Aiken, and Allendale County 
Previous Order(s); 85-70-SW, November 7, 1985 
Previous Agreement: 86-52-SW, October 6, 1986 
Summary: The Respondent has violated DHEC Hazardous Waste Management 
Regulations promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 et seq., of the 
1976 Gode, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.270.13, for failure to 
include U002 waste on the Part A; R.61-79.270.14(b)(7), for failure to 
include in the Part B contingency plan the names and addresses of 
emergency coordinators, the description of the procedure for removing 
soil for F and H Area basins and the sampling/testing procedures to 
ensure adequate removal of contaminated soil; R.61-79.270.14(b)(8), 
for failure to provide in the Part B a description of the container 
storage area loading/unloading procedures, structures, and equipment; 
R.61-79.270.14(b)(l2), for failure to include in the Part B personnel 
training procedures associated with storage building 709-26 and 
personnel training to respond to emergency procedures and use of 
emergency equipment; R.61-79.270.14(b)(13), for failure to include in 
the Part B complete closure and post-closure plans; 
R.61-79.270.14(b)(19), for failure to submit in the Part Ban adequate 
topographic map; R.61-79.270.14(c)(4), for failure to include in the 
Part Ban adequate description of the plume(s) of contamination which 
include in the Part B sufficient information to establish a compliance 
monitoring program for F and H Areas; R.61-79.270.14(c)(7), for 
failure to include in the Part B a complete description of the 
containment system for the Container Storage Area; and, 
R.61-79.270.17(f), for failure to include in the Part Ba complete 
description of how hazardous waste residues and contaminated materials 
will be removed from the units at closure. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to perform the following: to 
submit a revised Part B Permit Application for the M Area Settling 
Basin, Overflow Ditch, Seep Area, Lost Lake, and the container storage 
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buildings on or before April 30, 1987; to submit a revised Part B 
Permit Application for F and H Area Sepage Basins on or before April 
15, 1988; and to pay to the Department four thousand five hundred 
dollars ($4,500.00) on or before June 1, 1987. 

56. Administrative Consent Order 87-28-SW 
Date of Issuance: May 8, 1987 
Respondent: Jack Gray Transport, Inc. 

Gary, Indiana 
Previous Order(s): 85-32-SW 
Summary: The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 
et seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.263.20, 
for failure to comply with the manifest system requirements. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to pay a civil penalty of one 
thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 

57. Administrative Consent Order 87-30-SW 
Date of Issuance: June 1, 1987 
Respondent: GSX Services, Inc. 

58. 

59. 

Laurel, Maryland 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated South Carolina Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulation, R.61-79.263.20, promulgated pursuant to Section 
44-56-10 et seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, for failure to ensure 
that a manifest accompanies a shipment of hazardous waste at all 
times. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to ensure that it shall comply with 
all requlations which relate to the manifest system and to pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 

Administrative Consent Order 87-31-SW 
Date of Issuance: June 1, 1987 
Respondent: Rollins Environmental Services, Inc. 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated the South 
Management Regulation, R.61-79.262.30, promulgated to 
et seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, for failure to 
requirements for packaging hazardous waste. 

Carolina Waste 
Section 44-56-10 
comply with the 

Action: The Respondent has paid a civil penalty in the amount of 
thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 

one 

Administrative Consent Order 87-32-SW 
Date of Issuance: June 12, 1987 
Respondent: West Brothers Transfer and Storage, Inc. 

Raleigh, North Carolina 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations, promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 et 
seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: 1) R.61-79.263.13, 
for failure to file a Notification Form for transportation of 
hazardous waste within the State; 2) R.61-79.270, for failure to 
obtain a permit for transporting hazardous waste within the State. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to not transport any hazardous 
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waste within this state without first obtaining a South 
Transporter Permit and to pay a civil penalty of one thousand 
($1,000.00). 

60. Amendment to Administrative Consent Order 86-29-SW 
Date of Issuance: June 17, 1987 
Respondent: Platt Saco Lowell Corporation 

Pickens County 
Previous Order(s): 86-29-SW, May 30, 1986; 

84-33-SW, December 12, 1984; 
80-04-SW, April 24, 1980 

Carolina 
dollars 

Summary: Administrative Consent Order (ACO) 86-29-SW, issued May 30, 
1986, required the Respondent to submit a completed- Part B permit 
application. The Respondent was unable to fully characterize the 
uppermost aquifer and to completely define the plume of contamination 
for the Part B permit application in the time allowed. The Respondent 
was notified of the need to include additional ground water 
information in the permit application. 
Action: ACO 86-29-SW was amended to establish a schedule for 
submission of the additional information required for the permit 
application. 

61. Administrative Consent Order 87-34-SW 
Date of Issuance: June 18, 1987 
Respondent: Stoller-Mii 

Charleston County 
Previous Order(s): 84-25-SW, October 9, 1984 

86-41-SW, August 4, 1986 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations promulgated pursuant to Section 44-56-10 et 
seg., of the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: 1) 
R.61-7'9.270.14(c)(l), for failure to include all data obtained during 
interim status ground-water monitoring in the Part B permit 
application; 2) R.61-79.270.14(c)(2), for failure to adequately 
identify the uppermost aquifers hydraulically interconnected beneath 
the facility property in the Part B; }) R.61-79.270.14(c)(5), for 
failure to include a proposed ground-water monitoring program 
sufficient to meet the requirements of 264.97 in the Part B; 4) 
sufficient information, supporting data, and analyses to establish a 
corrective action program which meets the requirements of 264.100 in 
the Part B; 5) R.61-79.265.94(b)(2), for failure to submit to the 
Department no later than March 1 following each calendar year an 
annual report containing the results of ground-water quality 
assessment program. 
Action: The Respondent agreed to perform the following: 1) On or 
before September l, 1987, submit to the Department: a) a revised 
complete Part B Permit Application to include corrections to the 
deficiencies as described in this Order and its Attachment; and, b) an 
annual report as required by R.61-79.265.94(b)(2); and, 2) On or 
before June 30, 1987, pay to the Department a civil penalty in the 
amount of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00). 

62. Administrative Order 87-26-SW 
Date of Issuance: June 25, 1987 
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Respondent: Safety-Kleen Corporation 
Elgin, Illinois 

Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Waste 
Management Regulations, promulgated to Section 44-56-10 et seq., of 
the 1976 Code, as amended, as follows: R.61-79.262.41, for failure of 
a generator to submit quarterly report to the Department, 
R.61-79.270.1, for failure to obtain a permit for the Charlotte, North 
Carolina terminal to transport hazardous waste in the State, 
R.61-79.265.75(b), for each owner or operator of a hazardous waste 
facility to submit a quarterly report to the Department. 
Action: The Respondent was ordered to pay a civil penalty of six 
thousand dollars ($6,000.00) and to comply with Department Regulations 
requiring a State transporter permit for hazardous waste, and 
quarterly reporting. 

63. Administrative Consent Order 87-33-SW 
Date of Issuance: June 25, 1987 
Respondent: Crucible Chemical Company 

Greenville County 
Previo.us Order ( s) : None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulation, R.61-79.262.41, promulgated pursuant to 
Sections 44-56-10 et seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, for failure 
to properly complete and submit a quarterly report to the Department. 
Action: The Respondent consented to submit to the Department a 
quarterly report for the fourth calendar quarter of 1986, to comply 
with the quarterly reporting requirements for any future hazardous 
waste activities, and to pay the Department a civil penalty in the 
amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 

64. Amendment to Administrative Consent Order 86-37-SW 
Date of Issuance: June 29, 1987 
Respondent: GSX Services of South Carolina, Inc. 

Sumter County 
Previous Order(s): 85-64-SW, September 6, 1985 

86-37-SW, July 1, 1986 
86-47-SW, September 5, 1986 

Summary: Administrative Consent Order (ACO) 86-37-SW, issued July 1, 
1986 required the Respondent to submit a report which described the 
source(s) of any hazardous constituents in the groundwater; the 
potentiometric relationships; and, the rate and extent of groundwater 
contamination at its facility located near Pinewood, South Carolina. 
The report was submitted on December 15, 1986 and within it was a 
proposal for corrective action at the facility. Since the submittal 
of the report, the Respondent and the Department have met on several 
occasions to negotiate a schedule for the corrective action which is 
necessary to undertake at the facility. 
Action: ACO 86-37-SW was amended to incorporate a schedule for 
additional work and corrective action to be performed at the facility. 

65. Administrative Consent Order 87-37-SW 
Date of Issuance: June 29, 1987 
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Respondent: Owen Electric Steel Company of South Carolina, Inc. 
Lexington County 

Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Hazardous 
Waste Management Regulation, R.61-79.265.147(b), promulgated pursuant 
to Section 44-56-10 et seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, for failure 
to demonstrate and maintain adequate liability coverage for non-sudden 
accidental occurrences. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to implement a closure plan for its 
hazardous waste land disposal activities in accordance with a schedule 
as approved by the Department. 

,, 

66. Administrative Consent Order 87-39-SW 
Date of Issuance: June 30, 1987 
Respondent: Medical University of South Carolina 

Charleston County 
Previous Order(s): None 
Summary: The Respondent has violated Department Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulation R.61-79.270.30, promulgated pursuant to Section 
44-56-10 et seq., of the 1976 Code, as amended, for failure to comply 
with all provisions included in the approved permit application. 
Action: The Respondent agreed to perform the following: l) on or 
before July 15, 1987, submit to the Department a request for 
modification of the timetable contained in its permit for construction 
of a new hazardous waste container storage building. 2) ensure that 
the new hazardous waste container storage building is completed as 
required by the approved modified Part B permit application; and, 3) 
pay to the Department a civil penalty in the amount of three thousand 
dollars ($3,000.00). However, this penalty is suspended for a period 
of one year from the issuance date of this order. If during this one 
year period MUSC does not violate the Department's Hazardous Waste 
Management Regulations, this penalty will be waived. However, if 
during this one year period MUSC violates the Department's Hazardous 
Waste Management Regulations, this penalty will become due and payable 
within thirty (30) days of the issuance date of the order that would 
document the new violations. Also, MUSC would be responsible for any 
penalties which would be assessed relative to any new violations which 
occur either within this one year period or at anytime in the future. 
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BUREAU OF WATER SUPPLY AND SPECIAL PROGRAMS ORDERS 
ISSUED BY THE 

South Carolina Department of Health 
and Environmental Control 

July 1986 - June 1987 

1. Consent Order 86-39-WS 
Date: July 9, 1986 
FliCility: Ehrhardt Water Supply System, Bamberg County 
Respondent: Town of Ehrhardt 
Previous Orders: Administrative Order 85-13-WS, issued on February 26, 
1985, for failure to make public notice to the residents of the Town 
of Ehrhardt for a September, 1984 microbiological maximum contaminant 
level violation. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Section 44-55-40(d) of the 
State Safe Drinking Water Act, 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws 
(Code), as amended, in that it failed to adequately protect and 
maintain the Ehrhardt water supply system so as to continuously 
provide safe and potable water in sufficient quantity and pressure and 
free from potential hazards to the health of the consumers. 

Analytical results of water samples collected from the Ehrhardt water 
supply system revealed violations of the microbiological maximum 
contaminant level established by the State Primary Drinking Water 
Regulations. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) continue to maintain the 
existing facilities on the Ehrhardt water supply wells until approved 
facilities can be installed; (2) within thirty (30) days of the Order 
date, submit to the Department approvable plans and specifications for 
adequate chlorination facilities for Ehrhardt's two (2) submersible 
pump wells; (3) within sixty (60) days of the Order date, make certain 
specified improvements to the Ehrhardt water supply facilities; (4) 
within sixty (60) days of the issuance of a Department construction 
permit, complete the installation of approved chlorination facilities 
and obtain Department approval for their installation; and, (5) within 
two (2) years of the Order date, paint the Ehrhardt elevated water 
storage tank. 

2. Consent Order 86-40-WS 
Date: July 8, 1986 
Respondent: Mr. Thomas Brown, Camden, South Carolina 
Previous Orders: Administrative Order 85-81-WS, issued on October 7, 
1985, for violations of the well contractor certification requirements 
of Code Section 44-55-40(1). Order 85-81-WS was appealed by the 
Respondent on November 1, 1985. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(1) 
in that he engaged in the business of well contracting in the State of 
State without either obtaining certification from the Board of Certi
fication of Environmental Systems Operators (Board of Certification), 
or employing certified well drillers. 
The Respondent's violation of Code Section 44-55-40(1) subjected him 
to the assessment of civil penalties as authorized by Code Section 
44-55-90. 
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3. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) immediately cease the prac
tice of well contracting in the State of South Carolina until he 
either employs properly certified well drillers or becomes certified 
himself; (2) on May 23, 1986, take the well driller certification 
examination administered by the Board of Certification; (3) within 
thirty (30) days of the Order date, pay to the Department a one 
hundred dollar ($100.00) civil penalty; and (4) ensure that any 
subsequent well drilling in the State of South Carolina, contracted 
for by the Respondent, is supervised by at least one person, on site, 
that is properly certified. 

Consent Order 86-41-WS 
Date: July 14, 1986 
Facility: Broad Creek Mobile Home Park, Beaufort County 
Respondent: Mrs. Wilbert Roller 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 
in that she failed to monitor the bacteriological quality 
Creek Mobile Home Park water supply system for the months 
March, April, and May of 1986. 

44-55-40(e) 
of the Broad 
of February, 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that she failed to 
provide public notification of the bacteriological monitoring viola
tions. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
bacteriological monitoring is consistently performed on the Broad 
Creek Mobile Home Park water supply system; (2) within fifteen (15) 
days of the Order date, make public notification to the residents of 
Broad Creek Mobile Home Park outlining the bacteriological monitoring 
violations for the months of February, March, April, and May of 1986; 
and (3) within twenty (20) days of the Order date, submit to the 
Department a copy of the required public notification. 

4. Consent Order 86-42-WS 
Date: July 14, 1986 
Facility: West Union Water Supply System, Oconee County 
Respondent: Town of West Union 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
of the State Safe Drinking Water in that it extended its water distri
bution system prior to the issuance of a Department construction 
permit. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) in that it placed the 
unpermitted water distribution line extension into service prior to 
the receipt of Department operational approval. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with all 
Department permitting requirements; (2) within forty-five (45) days of 
the Order date, submit to the Department "as-built" plans and specifi
cations for the unpermitted two inch water line located along Main 
Street, to include supporting calculations and flow data which 
demonstrate the acceptability of the unpermitted water distribution 
line; (3) upgrade the two inch water line on Main Street if it cannot 
be permitted as installed; (4) obtain final Department operational 
approval of the unpermitted water line, if approvable, upon the 

225 



issuance of a Department "as-built" construction permit; and, (5) 
within one hundred and eighty (180) days of the Order date, submit to 
the Department "as-built" drawings on the entire existing West Union 
water supply system. · 

5. Consent Order 86-43-WS 
Date: July 18, 1986 
Facility: Crestwood Mobile Home Park, Beaufort County 
Respondent: Eric G.W. Monson, Jr. 
Conclusions of Law: Water samples collected from the Crestwood Mobile 
Home Park water supply system revealed violations of the bacteriologi
cal maximum contaminant level established by the State Primary Drink
ing Water Regulations. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(d) in that the Crestwood 
Mobile Home Park water supply system was not adequately protected and 
maintained so as to continuously provide safe and potable water free 
from potential hazards to the consumers. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that he failed to 
provide public notification of the bacteriological maximum contaminant 
level violations. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) in that he 
the Crestwood Mobile Home Park water supply system prior 
issuance of a Department construction permit. 

modified 
to the 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) in that he failed to 
obtain final Department operational approval prior to placing his 
modified water supply facilities into operation. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with all 
Department permitting requirements; (2) within fifteen (15) days of 
the Order date, make public notification to the residents of the 
Crestwood Mobile Home Park outlining the microbiological maximum 
contaminant level violation for the month of March, 1986; (3) within 
twenty (20) days of the Order date, submit to the Department a copy of 
the required public notification; (4) within thirty (30) days of the 
Order date, submit to the Department "as-built" plans and specifica
tions for the Crestwood Mobile Home Park water supply system; (5) 
within forty-five (45) days of the Order date, correct specified defi
ciencies in the Crestwood Mobile Home Park water supply system; (6) 
within fifteen (15) days of the issuance of a Department "as-built" 
construction permit, contact the Department for a final inspection of 
the Crestwood Mobile Home Park water supply facilities; and, (7) 
upgrade the Crestwood Mobile Home Park water supply system if either 
well yields, storage facilities, or system pressures are found to be 
inadequate. 

6. Consent Order 86-44-WS 
Date: July 18, 1986 
Facility: Heron Court, Anderson County 
Respondent: Lake Hartwell, Inc. 
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Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that it failed to obtain a Department construction permit prior to 
the installation of water supply facilities to serve Heron Court. 

The Respondent violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations, 
R.61-68.4.D.(6).(b), in that the two inch water line to serve Heron 
Court exceeded the allowable dead end length of 1500 linear feet. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with all 
Department permitting requirements; (2) withhold use of the Heron 
Court water distribution line as a potable water source until receipt 
of final Department operational approval; (3) within thirty (30) days 
of the Order date, submit to the Department approvable plans and 
specifications for an upgrade of the Heron Court water distribution 
line; (4) within thirty (30) days of the issuance of a Department 
construction permit, complete an upgrade of the Heron Court water 
distribution line in accordance with approved plans and specifica
tions; and (5) within forty-five (45) days of the issuance of a 
Department construction permit, obtain final Department operational 
approval of the Heron Court water supply facilities. 

7. Consent Order 86-45-WS 
Date: July 18, 1986 
Facility: Myrtle Beach Jetport, Horry County 
Respondent: Avis Rent A Car System, Inc. 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of any 
issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) within thirty (30) days of 
the Order date, submit to the Department an approvable proposal for a 
preliminary hydrogeologic study to assess the severity and probable 
fate of any contamination at the Avis Myrtle Beach Jetport site; (2) 
implement the preliminary hydrogeologic assessment plan upon its 
approval by the Department; (3) submit to the Department a written 
report containing the results of the assessment, to include a recom
mendation for corrective action, if appropriate; and (4) implement the 
recommendations of the assessment upon approval by the Department. 

8. Consent Order 86-46-WS 
Date: July 23, 1986 
Facility: Dogwood Mobile Home Park, Orangeburg County 
Respondent: Mr. William Woessner 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that the Dogwood Mobile Home Park water supply facilities were 
modified without prior Department permitting or approval. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) in that he placed 
modifications to the Dogwood Mobile Home Park water supply system into 
operation without prior Department operational approval. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(k) in that he chemically 
treated the Dogwood Mobile Home Park p~blic water supply and did not 
employ the services of an operator properly certified by the Board of 
Certification of Environmental Systems Operators. 
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Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with all 
Department permitting requirements; (2) immediately cease the 
unpermitted chemical treatment of the Dogwood Mobile Home Park water 
supply system; (3) within ninety (90) days of the Order date, submit 
to the Department approvable plans and specifications for the proper 
permitting and, if necessary, upgrade of the Dogwood Mobile Home Park 
water supply system; and, (4) obtain final Department operational 
approval of the Dogwood Mobile Home Park water supply facilities. 

9. Consent Order 86-47-WS 
Date: July 22, 1986 
Facility: Country Club Subdivision, Abbeville County 
Respondent: Country Club Homeowners Association 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55~40(e) 
in that it failed to collect and analyze water samples from the 
Country Club Subdivision water supply system. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that it failed to 
provide public notification of its failure to have samples of · water 
collected and analyzed. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
bacteriological monitoring is consistently performed on the Country 
Club Subdivision water supply system; (2) within fifteen (15) days of 
the Order date, make public notice to the residents of Country Club 
Subdivision specifying the failure to have bacteriological samples 
collected and analyzed for the months of March, April, and May of 
1986; (3) within .twenty (20) days of the Order date, provide the 
Department with a copy of the required public notice; and (4) make a 
copy of this Order available to persons becoming members of the 
Country Club Homeowners Subdivision. 

10. Consent Order 86-5-W,WS 
Date: August 4, 1986 
Facility: Masters Economy Inn, Charleston County 
Respondent: Kuhlke Properties, Inc. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) 
in that it placed the public water supply facilities at the Masters 
Economy Inn into service without prior Department operational approval. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 48-1-110 (Pollution Control Act) 
in that it placed the wastewater collection system at the Masters 
Economy Inn into service without prior Department operational approval. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Sections 44-55-90 and 48-1-330. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) within fifteen (15) days of 
the Order date, pay to the Department a four thousand dollar 
($4,000.00) civil penalty; (2) within thirty (30) days of the Order 
date, obtain final operational approval on the water supply and 
wastewater collection systems which serve the Masters Economy Inn; and 
(3) pay additional penalties of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) per 
week for failure to comply with requirement two above. 
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11. Amendment to Consent Order 85-65-WS 
Date: August 4, 1986 
Facility: Williston Water Treatment Plant, Barnwell County 
Respondent: Town of Williston 
Previous Orders: Consent Order 85-65-WS, issued on July 15, 1985, 
requiring an upgrade of the Respondent's water distribution system. 
Conclusions of Law: This Order amendment was issued without adjudica
tion of any issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) on or before January 1, 
1987, complete construction of an upgrade of the Williston water 
distribution system as authorized by Construction Permit No. 409026, 
and obtain final operational approval of this upgrade; and (2) with~ 
hold the operation of the water distribution line constructed under 
Permit No. 402836 until the upgrade of the Williston water distribu
tion system has been approved. 

12. Consent Order 86-48-WS 
Date: August 4, 1986 
Respondent: Mr. Bob Williams, Cope, South Carolina 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(1) 
in that he engaged in the business of well contracting in the State of 
South Carolina without either obtaining certification from the Board 
of Certification, or employing certified well drillers. 

The Respondent violated the State Well Standards and Regulations as 
follows: 

a. R.61-71.6.B(3) and (5) in that he failed to grout a potable water 
supply well to a minimum of twenty feet, or to a depth approved by the 
Department, within five days after the completion of well construc
tion; 

b. R.61-71.7.A.(ll) in that he failed to extend the 
potable water supply well a minimum of twelve inches 
grade; 

casing on a 
above final 

c. R.61-71.6.H. in that he failed to properly label the potable 
water supply well with an identification plate immediately after 
construction; and, 

d. R.61-71.8.A. in that he failed to complete and submit to the 
Department water well record forms within thirty days of the comple
tion of any well. 

The Respondent's violations subjected him to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) immediately cease the 
practice of well contracting in the State of South Carolina until he 
either becomes properly certified by the Board of Certification or 
until he employs certified well drillers; (2) ensure that any subse
quent well drilling contracted for by the Respondent in the State of 
South Carolina is supervised by at least one person, on site, who is 
properly certified by the Board of Certification; (3) immediately 
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cease the installation of potable water supply wells that do not meet 
the criteria outlined in the State Well Standards and Regulations; and 
(4) within thirty (30) days of the Order date: (a) submit to the 
Department completed water well record forms on all wells constructed 
by the Respondent since January 1, 1986; (b) either upgrade the 
improperly constructed potable water supply well or install a new 
approvable water supply well; (c) properly disinfect and place an 
identification plate on the new or upgraded well; and (d) pay to the 
Department a five hundred dollar ($500.00) civil penalty. 

13. Consent Order 86-49-WS 
Date: August 4, 1986 
Facility: Greenville Hospital System Cancer Treatment Center, 
Greenville County 
Respondent: Greenville Hospital System 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that the Greenville Hospital System public water supply system was 
modified without prior permitting from the Department. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) in that the 
system modifications were placed into operation without a 
inspection and approval by the Department. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

water 
final 

civil 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with all 
Department permitting requirements; (2) withhold occupancy of the 
Greenville Hospital Cancer Treatment Center until a Department con
struction permit is issued for its public water supply facilities and 
final operational approval is issued for these facilities; and (3) 
within thirty (30) days of the Order date, pay to the Department a 
three thousand dollar ($3,000.00) civil penalty. 

14. Consent Order 86-50-WS 
Date: August 4, 1986 
Facility: River Rat Restaurant, York County 
Respondent: The River Rat, Inc. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that it failed to obtain a Department construction permit prior to 
installing a new public water supply well to serve the River Rat 
Restaurant. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) in that it placed the 
new public water supply well at the River Rat Restaurant into opera
tion without prior Department operational approval. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with all 
Department permitting requirements; (2) within thirty (30) days of the 
Order date, submit to the Department approvable plans and specifica
tions for either the installation a new approvable water supply well 
to serve the River Rat Restaurant, or connection of the River Rat 
Restaurant to an existing approved water supply system; (3) within 
forty-five days of the issuance of a Department construction permit, 
complete construction of the permitted alternative and obtain final 
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Department approval of the public water supply facilities; (4) immedi
ately begin a bacteriological monitoring program on the unapproved 
public water supply system serving the River Rat Restaurant; and (5) 
discontinue the use of the unapproved water supply well upon notifica
tion from the Department of the occurrence of water quality problems 
at the River Rat Restaurant. 

15. Consent Order 86-51-WS 
Date: August 27, 1986 
Facility: Pine Lakes Mobile Home Park, Marion County 
Respondent: Mr. Danny Green 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that he failed to collect samples of water from the Pine Lakes 
Mobile Home Park public water supply system and to have them analyzed 
for bacteriological quality. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that he failed to 
provide public notice of his failure to have water samples collected 
and analyzed. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
bacteriological monitoring of the Pine Lakes Mobile Home Park water 
supply system is consistently performed in accordance with the re
quirements of the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations; (2) within 
fifteen (15) days of the Order date, make public notice to the resi
dents of Pine Lakes Mobile Home Park specifying the failure to have 
water samples collected and analyzed for the months of July and 
December, 1985; and (3) within twenty (20) days of the Order date, 
submit to the Department a copy of the required public notice. 

16. Consent Order 86-52-WS 
Date: September 4, 1986 
~lity: Westminster Water Supply System, Oconee County 
Respondent: Westminster Commission of Public Works 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that it modified the booster pump station which provides water 
service to the Pioneer Rural Water District prior to the issuance of a 
Department construction permit. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) in that it placed the 
pump station modifications into operation without prior Department 
approval. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) immediately cease the 
unpermitted modification and unapproved operation of public water 
supply facilities, and henceforth comply with all Department permit
ting requirements; (2) on or before August 15, 1986, submit to the 
Department a preliminary engineering report outlining the proposed 
construction of a new booster pump statibn to provide water service to 
Pioneer Rural; (3) within sixty (60) days of the Department's approval 
of the engineering report, submit to the Department approvable plans 
and specifications for the new booster pump station and connector line 
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to Pioneer Rural; (4) within thirty (30) days of the issuance of a 
Department construction permit, begin construction of the proposed 
pump station and connector line; (5) on or before April 1, 1987, 
complete construction of the new pump station and connector line to 
serve.Pioneer Rural and obtain Department approval to place these 
facilities into operation; (6) promptly notify the Department's 
Appalachia I EQC District Office of any problems which develop at the 
existing booster pump station which could lead to pressure problems in 
the Pioneer Rural water supply system; and (7) within thirty (30) days 
of the Order date, pay to the Department a two thousand dollar 
($2,000.00) civil penalty. 

17. Consent Order 86-53-WS 
Date: September 3, 1986 
Facility: Montmorenci-Couchton Water Supply System, Aiken County 
Respondent: Montmorenci-Couchton Water & Sewage District, Inc. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(k) 
in that it operated a public water supply system without employing an 
operator properly certified by the Board of Certification. 

18. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 
its public water supply system prior 
construction permit. 

44-55-40(a) in that it extended 
to the issuance of a Department 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with all 
Department permitting requirements; (2) within thirty (30) days of the 
Order date, provide the Department with the name and certification 
number of the individual that will serve as the operator of the 
Montmorenci-Couchton water supply system; (3) withhold the operation 
of the water distribution line authorized by Department Construction 
Permit No. LS-126-W until receipt of final Department operational 
approval; (4) continue a daily check of the three Montmorenci-Couchton 
water supply wells; (5) notify the Department of any need to make an 
emergency water connection to the Aiken water supply system; and (6) 
work to eliminate the need for the current form of emergency water tap 
to the Aiken water supply system. 

Consent Order 86-54-WS 
Date: September 4, 1986 
Facility: Pioneer Rural Water System, Anderson and Oconee 
Respondent: Pioneer Rural Water District of Anderson 
Counties 

Counties 
and Oconee 

Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of any 
issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) within thirty (30) days of 
the Order date, provide the Department with a list of the names and 
addresses of all poultry and dairy facilities on the Pioneer Rural 
water supply system; (2) within one hundred and eighty (180) days of 
the Order date, implement an approved cross connection control program 
on the Pioneer Rural water supply system; and (3) submit to the 
Department monthly reports on the net change in the number of taps on 
the Pioneer Rural water supply system. 
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In return for the Respondent's execution of this Order, the Department 
agreed to lift a restriction on the addition of individual water taps 
along existing Pioneer Rural water distribution lines. The Department 
also agreed to review requests for the issuance of construction 
per~its for the addition of taps to the Pioneer Rural water supply 
system on a case-by-case basis. 

19. Consent Order 86-55-WS 
Date: September 8, 1986 
Facility: Whitmire Water Treatment Facility, Newberry County 
Respondent: Town of Whitmire 
Previous Orders: On April 18, 1978, the Department issued an Emergency 
Order to the Town of Whitmire requiring the immediate submittal of 
plans and specifications for an upgrade of the Whitmire water supply 
system. Pressure problems led to the issuance of this Order. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(d) 
in that the Whitmire public water supply was not adequately protected 
and maintained so as to continuously provide safe and potable water in 
sufficient quantity and pressure and free from potential hazards to 
the health of the consumers. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(k) in that it has failed 
to have an operator of the appropriate grade on duty at the Whitmire 
water treatment plant during all hours of plant operation. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) immediately begin and con
tinue the proper operation and maintenance of the Whitmire water 
treatment facilities; (2) immediately notify the Department of any 
sewage overflows which occur upstream of Whitmire's raw water intake; 
(3) within thirty (30) days of the Order date: (a) submit to the 
Department a list of the names and grades of the Whitmire water 
treatment plant operators, along with an explanation of how these 
operators will be deployed to ensure the proper operation and mainte
nance of the Whitmire water treatment plant; and (b) submit to the 
Department a written response to the Department's letter of January 
15, 1986, which outlined operational problems associated with the 
Whitmire water treatment facilities; (4) within sixty (60) days of the 
Order date, complete the improvements required by Department letter of 
January 15, 1986, and obtain Department confirmation of these improve
ments; and (5) be assessed a two thousand five hundred dollar 
($2,500.00) civil penalty, suspended and applied by the Respondent 
toward improved operation and maintenance of the Whitmire water 
treatment plant. 

20. Consent Order 86-56-WS 
Date: September 5, 1986 
Facility: Grigsby Mobile Home Park, Bamberg County 
Respondent: Mr. Randolph Grigsby 
Previous Orders: Consent Order 84-14-WS, issued on June 29, 1984, for 
violation of the bacteriological monitoring requirements of the State 
Primary Drinking Water Regulations. 
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Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that he modified the Grigsby Mobile Home Park water supply system 
prior to the issuance of a Department construction permit. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) in that his public 
water.supply modifications were placed into operation without prior 
Department approval. 

The Respondent's violations subjected him to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with all 
Department permitting requirements; (2) within thirty (30) days of the 
Order date, pay to the Department a one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) 
civil penalty; (3) within forty-five (45) days of the Order date, 
submit to the Department plans and specifications for connection of 
the Grigsby Mobile Home Park water distribution system to the Denmark 
water supply system, and either "as-built" plans and specifications on 
the existing mobile home park water distribution lines, or plans and 
specifications for a new water distribution system to serve the 
residents of Grigsby Mobile Home Park; (4) within forty-five (45) days 
of the issuance of a Department construction permit, complete con
struction of a permitted upgrade of the Grigsby Mobile Home Park water 
supply system and request final Department operational approval; (5) 
continue bacteriological monitoring of this public water supply system 
until receipt of final operational approval on the permitted upgrade; 
(6) within fifteen (15) days of receipt of Department operational 
approval, either properly abandon the Grigsby Mobile Home Park well or 
obtain Department approval for its use as a nonpotable water source; 
and (7) pay to the Department an additional one thousand dollar 
($1,000.00) civil penalty for any violation of this Order. 

21. Consent Order 86-6-W,WS 
Date: September 9, 1986 
Facility: Beacon Shopping Center, Berkeley County 
Respondent: Beacon Properties II, Ltd. 
Previous Orders: Administrative Order 85-9-W,WS, issued on December 
19, 1985, for violations of the permitting requirements of the State 
Safe Drinking Water Act and the State Pollution Control Act. 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued as a result of the Respon
dent's appeal of Department Order 85-9-W,WS. The Order contained no 
conclusions of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) within ten (10) days of the 
Order date, pay to the Department a three thousand dollar ($3,000.00) 
civil penalty; (2) arrange for a final inspection of the Beacon 
Shopping Center water supply and wastewater disposal facilities within 
ten (10) days of the receipt of Department "as-built" construction 
permits; and (3) within ten (10) days of the Order date, submit to the 
Department operation and maintenance letters on the Beacon Shopping 
Center water and wastewater facilities. 

22. Consent Order 86-57-WS 
Date: September 11, 1986 
Respondent: Mr. Oscar Owens, d/b/a Oscar Owens Well Drilling, 
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Blackville, South Carolina 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(1) 
in that he engaged in the business of well contracting in the State of 
South Carolina without either obtaining certification from the Board 
of Certification, or employing certified well drillers. 

The Respondent violated the State Well Standards and Regulations as 
follows: 

a. R.61-71.6.B(3) and (5) 
supply well to a minimum of 
by the Department, within 
construction; 

in that he failed to grout a potable water 
twenty (20) feet, or to a depth approved 
five days after the completion of well 

b. R.61-71.6.H in that he failed to properly label a potable water 
supply well with an identification plate immediately after construc
tion; and, 

c. R.61-71.8.A. in that he failed to complete and submit to the 
Department water well record forms within thirty days of completion of 
any well. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) ensure that any subsequent 
well drilling in the State of South Carolina which is contracted for 
by the Respondent is supervised by at least one person, on site, who 
is properly certified by the Board of Certification; (2) immediately 
cease the installation of water supply wells in the State of South 
Carolina that do not meet the criteria outlined in the Well Standards 
and Regulations; (3) within thirty (30) days of the Order date: (a) 
submit to the Department water well record forms on all wells con
structed by the Respondent since January 1, 1986; and (b) either 
properly grout the existing improperly constructed well to a minimum 
depth of twenty feet, properly disinfect the well after construction 
is complete, and place an identification plate on the well, or proper
ly abandon the well in accordance with the requirements of Section 10 
of the Well Standards and Regulations. 

23. Consent Order 86-58-WS 
Date: September 15, 1986 
Respondent: Mr. Wyman Seigler, d/b/a/ Aiken Well Drilling, 
Aiken, South Carolina 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated the State Well Standards 
and Regulations as follows: 

a. R.61-71.6.B.(3) and (5) in that he failed to grout a potable 
water supply well installed for Mr. Pope Turner to a minimum of twenty 
feet, or to a depth approved by the Department, within five days after 
the completion of well construction; 

b. R.61-71.6.H. in that he failed to properly label the Turner well 
with an identification plate immediately rafter construction; and, 

c. R.61-71.8.A. in that he 
Department water well record 
completion of any well. 

failed to complete and submit to 
forms within thirty (30) days of 
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24. 

25. 

The Respondent's violations subjected him to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) immediately cease the 
installation of potable water supply wells in the State of South 
Carolina that do not meet the requirements of the Well Standards and 
Regulations; (2) within forty-five (45) days of the Order date, submit 
to the Department completed water well record forms on all wells 
constructed by him since January 1, 1986; and (3) pay to the Depart
ment a five hundred dollar ($500.00) civil penalty for failure to 
comply with item two (2) above. 

Administrative Order 86-59-WS 
Date: September 30, 1986 
Facility: Woodlawn Mobile Home Park, Abbeville County 
Respondent: Ms. Margaret H. Corley 
Previous Orders: Administrative Order 
Corley on August 13, 1981, required the 
cal monitoring program on the Woodlawn 
supply system. 

81-22-WS, issued to Mr. Ivan 
initiation of a bacteriologi
Mobile Home Park public water 

Administrative Order 82-11-WS, issued to Mr. Ivan Corley on June 29, 
1982, required the payment of a five hundred dollar ($500.00) civil 
penalty for violation of the requirements of Order 81-22-WS and the 
initiation of a bacteriological monitoring program on the Woodlawn 
Mobile Home Park public water supply system. 

Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that she failed to collect samples of water from the Woodlawn 
Mobile Home Park public water supply system and to have them analyzed 
for bacteriological quality. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that she failed to 
provide public notification of her failure to monitor the bacteriolog
ical quality of the Woodlawn Mobile Home Park water supply system. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
bacteriological self-monitoring is consistently performed on the 
Woodlawn Mobile Home Park water supply system; (2) within fifteen (15) 
days of the Order date, either: (a) submit to the Department the 
bacteriological monitoring data for the months of January and February 
1986, or (b) make public notification to the residents of the Woodlawn 
Mobile Home Park for failure to have water samples collected and 
analyzed for these months; (3) within twenty (20) days of the Order 
date, submit to the Department a copy of the public notice issued 
pursuant to Item 2(b); and (4) pay to the Department a one thousand 
dollar ($1,000.00) civil penalty for failure to either submit the 
missing bacteriological data or the required public notice. 

Consent Order 86-60-WS 
Date: October 7, 1986 
Facility: Gardenia Villas, 
Respondents: Harold Tyner 
Mond 

Berkeley County 
Development Corporation and 
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Conclusions of Law: Harold Tyner Development Corporation violated 
Code Section 44-55-40(a) in that it failed to obtain the appropriate 
Department construction permit prior to the installation of the 
Gardenia Villas water supply facilities. 

The violation of Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
Development Corporation to the assessment 
authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

subjected 
of civil 

Harold Tyner 
penalties as 

Action: Harold Tyner Development Corporation consented to: (1) hence
forth comply with all Department permitting requirements; and (2) 
withhold occupancy of Gardenia Villas until a Department construction 
permit is issued and final operational approval is granted by the 
Department. 

Harold Tyner Development Corporation and Harold J. Lea Mand consented 
to collectively pay to the Department a fifteen hundred dollar 
($1500.00) civil penalty within thirty (30) days of the Order date. 

26. Consent Order 86-61-WS 
Date: October 7, 1986 
Facility: Piedmont Rural Water System, Spartanburg County 
Respondent: Piedmont Rural Water Company, Inc. 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of any 
issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) within sixty days (60) days 
of the Order date and at sixty-day intervals thereafter, submit to the 
Department a status report on the procurement of financial assistance 
for proposed improvements to the Piedmont Rural water supply system, 
and tap reports outlining the net change in taps during the previous 
reporting period; (2) on or before February 1, 1987, submit to the 
Department plans and specifications for the proposed upgrade of the 
Piedmont Rural water supply system; (3) amend this Order when funding 
is procured to include a schedule of compliance for an upgrade of the 
Piedmont Rural water supply system; and (4) be subject to the rein
statement of a tap moratorium if either water quality or quantity 
problems develop. 

27. Administrative Order 86-62-WS 
Date: October 17, 1986 
Facility: Hunter's Glen Subdivision, Aiken County 
Respondent: Hunter's Glen Water System, Inc. 
Previous Orders: Consent Order 83-15-WS, issued on December 6, 1983, 
which required an upgrade of the Hunter's Glen Subdivision public 
water supply sytem to eliminate low pressure problems throughout the 
water distribution system. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that it modified the Hunter's Glen Subdivision public water supply 
facilities prior to the issuance of a Department construction permit. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) in that it placed 
modifications of its public water supply system into operation without 
prior Department approval. 
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The Respondent violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations, 
R.61-58.4.D.(3), in that it failed to maintain at all times a minimum 
pressure of twenty-five pounds per square inch at every customers 
service connection. 

The corrosivity of the Respondent's public water supply has caused a 
violation of the lead and copper maximum contaminant levels in the 
Hunter's Glen water distribution system. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) henceforth comply with all 
Department permitting requirements; (2) within thirty (30) days of the 
Order date: (a) pay to the Department a one thousand five hundred 
dollar ($1,500.00) civil penalty; (b) submit to the Department addi
tional engineering information on the unpermitted water distribution 
line in the Hunter's Glen Subdivision; and, (c) notify the Department, 
in writing, of a decision to either upgrade the existing Hunter's Glen 
Subdivision public water supply facilities, or to connect this system 
to the College Acres water supply system with subsequent abandonment 
of the Hunter's Glen water supply wells; and (3) implement the selected 
alternative in accordance with the applicable Order schedule. 

28. Consent Order 86-63-WS 
Date: October 9, 1986 
Facility: Plains Trailer Park, Sumter County 
Respondent: Mr. Charles E. Lisenby 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(d) 
in that the Plains Trailer Park public water supply facilities were 
not adequately protected and maintained so as to continuously provide 
safe and potable water in sufficient quantity and pressure and free 
from potential hazards to the health of the consumers. 

Analytical results of water samples collected from the Plains 
Park public water supply system revealed violations of the 
biological maximum contaminant level established by the State 
Drinking Water Regulations. 

Trailer 
micro

Primary 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) within thirty (30) days of 
the Order date: (a) install a concrete slab around the Plains Trailer 
Park water supply well; (b) install a flow measuring device on the 
well; (c) install a well house, with lock, over the well; (d) flush 
and chlorinate the entire water supply system; (e) prepare an opera
tion and maintenance manual for this water supply system; and (f) make 
arrangements for a final Department inspection of these improvements; 
(2) within ninety (90) days of the Order date, submit to the Depart
ment "as-built" plans and specifications on the Plains Trailer Park 
water supply facilities; and (3) upgrade this public water supply 
system if the "as-built" drawings and calculations identify system 
problems. 

29. Consent Order 86-64-WS 
Date: October 16, 1986 
Facility: Englewood Subdivision, Anderson County 
Respondent: Mr. Eugene F. Bobo 
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Previous Orders: Consent Order 80-01-WS, issued on April 22, 1980, 
required the initiation of a bacteriological monitoring program on the 
Englewood Subdivision public water supply system. 

Consent Order 80-06-WS, issued on July 18, 1980, required an upgrade 
of the Englewood Subdivision water supply system to eliminate low 
pressure and water outage problems. 

Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that he failed to collect and analyze water samples from the 
Englewood Subdivision public water supply system. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that he failed to 
provide public notice to the residents of Englewood Subdivision 
specifying his failure to have water samples collected and analyzed. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
bacteriological monitoring is consistently performed on the Englewood 
Subdivision public water supply system; (2) within fifteen (15) days 
of the Order date, make public notification to the residents of 
Englewood Subdivision outlining the failure to have water samples 
collected and analyzed for the months of April and June 1986; and (3) 
within twenty (20) days of the Order date, submit to the Department a 
copy of the required public notice. 

30. Consent Order 86-65-WS 
Date: October 16, 1986 
Facility: SCDHPT Maintenance Facility, Horry County 
Respondent: S.C. Department of Highways and Public Transportation 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that it failed to obtain a Department construction permit prior to 
the installation of public water supply facilities to serve its 
Maintenance Facility in Horry County. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with all 
Department permitting requirements, and (2) withhold the operation of 
the public water supply facilities at the Horry County Maintenance 
Facility until receipt of Department operational approval. 

31. Consent Order 86-66-WS 
Date: October 22, 1986 
Facility: Lakeland Shores Water System, Lexington County 
Respondent: Lakeland Shores Water System 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(d) 
in that the Lakeland Shores public water supply system was not ade
quately protected and maintained so as to continuously provide safe 
and potable water in sufficient quantity and pressure and free from 
potential hazards to the health of the consumers. 

Analytical results of water samples collected from the Lakeland Shores 
water supply system revealed violations 9f the bacteriological maximum 
contaminant level established by the State Primary Drinking Water 
Regulations. 
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The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(k) in that it operated 
the Lakeland Shores public water supply system without the services of 
a properly certified water system operator. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) within forty-five (45) days 
of the Order date: (a) install a chlorination system on well #2 at 
Lakeland Shores; (b) provide the Department with the name of the 
person who will be responsible for the operation and maintenance of 
the Lakeland Shores water supply system; and (c) correct specific 
deficiencies at wells #l and #2; (2) place an existing 3,000 gallon 
water storage tank back into service if the Lakeland Shores water 
system experiences either water pressure or water quality problems; 
(3) make a copy of this Order available to all present and future 
property owners in Lakeland Shores; and (4) promptly investigate and 
remediate all future water quality problems associated with the 
Lakeland Shores water supply system. 

32. Consent Order 86-67-WS 
Date: October 28, 1986 
Facility: Love Valley Subdivision, Richland County 
Respondent: Mr. Art Whisnant 
Previous Orders: Administrative Order 80-20-WS, issued on January 8, 
1981, required the initiation of a bacteriological monitoring program 
on the Love Valley public water supply system. 

Court Order 81-CP-40-2950, issued by the Richland County Court of 
Common Pleas on October 23, 1981, required the initiation of a bacterio
logical monitoring program on the Love Valley public water supply 
system, and payment of appropriate civil penalties for future monitor
ing violations. 

Court Order 83-CP-40-4188, issued on December 
payment of a five hundred dollar ($500.00) civil 
logical monitoring violations and required an 
Valley water supply system. 

13, 1983, required 
penalty for bacterio
upgrade of the Love 

Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(d) 
in that he failed to adequately protect and maintain the Love Valley 
water supply system so as to continuously provide safe and potable 
water in sufficient quantity and pressure and free from potential 
hazards to the health of the consumers. 

The Respondent violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations, 
R.61-58.4.D.(3), in that a minimum pressure of twenty-five pounds per 
square inch was not maintained at all times at every customer's 
service connection. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) install a new pump in the 
Love Valley well within thirty (30) days of the Order date, and (2) be 
subject to the assessment of appropriate penalties for any violation 
of this Order. 

33. Administrative Order 86-68-WS 
Date: October 28, 1986 
Respondent: Mr. Mike Hensley, Lowell, North Carolina 
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. . 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(1) 
in that he engaged in the business of well contracting in the State of 
South Carolina without either obtaining certification from the Board 
of Certification, or employing certified operators. 

The Respondent violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations, 
R.61-58.2(c), in that he installed a public water supply well which 
did not meet State Standards for public water supply wells. 

The Respondent's violations subjected him to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) immediately cease the 
practice of well contracting in the State of South Carolina until he 
either employs well drillers that are properly certified, or until he 
becomes properly certified; (2) ensure that any subsequent well 
drilling contracted for by the Respondent in the State of South 
Carolina is supervised by at least one person, on-site, who is proper
ly certified; (3) immediately cease the installation of public water 
supply wells in the State of South Carolina that do not meet the 
requirements of the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations; and (4) 
within thirty (30) days of the Order date, pay to the Department a one 
thousand dollar {$1,000.00) civil penalty. 

34. Administrative Order 86-69-WS 
Date: October 29, 1986 
Ficility: Horse Island Subdivision, Beaufort County 
Respondent: Horse Island Service Corporation 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that it failed to collect and analyze samples of water from the 
Horse Island Subdivision public water supply system. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that it failed to 
provide public notice to the residents of Horse Island Subdivision of 
its failure to perform the required bacteriological monitoring. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
bacteriological monitoring is consistently performed on the Horse 
Island Subdivision public water supply system; (2) within fifteen (15) 
days of the Order date, either submit to the Department the bacterio
logical monitoring data for the month of May, 1986, or make public 
notice of the failure to collect and analyze the required sample; and 
(3) within twenty (20) days of the Order date, submit to the Depart
ment the required public notice, if appropriate. 

35. Consent Order 86-70-WS 
Date: ·october 30, 1986 
Ficility: Retreat Homes, Anderson County 
Respondent: Mr. Mark L. Hopkins 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that he failed to have water samples collected and analyzed from 
the Retreat Homes public water supply system for the months of July 
and August, 1986. 
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Action: The Respondent consented to henceforth ensure that bacterio
logical monitoring is consistently performed on the Retreat Homes 
public water supply system. 

36. Administrative Order 86-71-WS 
Date: November 19, 1986 
Facility: Monk's Corner Exxon Station, Saluda County 
Respondent: Ridge Gas and Oil Company 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated the State Underground 
Storage Tank Control Regulations as follows: 

a. R.61-92.5.A. 
struction permit 
tanks; 

in that 
prior to 

it 
the 

failed to obtain 
installation of 

a Department con
underground storage 

b. R.61-92.8.D. in that it failed to notify the Department of a 
suspected breach in a tank; 

c. R.61-92.8.A. in that failed to keep daily inventory records of 
regulated substances at Monk's Corner Exxon Station; 

d. R.61-92.4.A.(l) in that it failed to notify the Department of the 
existing underground storage tanks at Monk's Corner Exxon Station, as 
well as existing tanks at its other service stations; 

e. R.61-92.9.A. in that it failed to install a leak detection system 
in conjunction with two (2) newly installed tanks at Monk's Corner 
Exxon Station; and, 

f. R.61-92.4.A.(6) in that it failed to notify the owner or operator 
of underground storage tanks into which it deposits regulated sub
stances of the notification requirements of the South Carolina Under
ground Storage Tank Control Regulations. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 48-l-90(a) in that it directly or 
indirectly allowed a discharge into the environment of the State which 
was not in compliance with any permit issued by the Department. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 48-1-330. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) within fifteen days of the 
Order date: (a) submit to the Department written notification on all 
underground storage tanks owned by the Respondent and not previously 
reported to the Department; (b) provide written notification that the 
Respondent has notified the owner or operator of facilities into which 
it places regulated products of the existence of the Underground 
Storage Tank Control Regulations; and, (c) submit to the Department 
"as-built" plans and specifications for the two unpermitted 4,000 
gallon underground storage tanks at Monk's Corner Exxon Station; (2) 
within fifteen days of Department approval of the two 4,000 gallon 
underground storage tanks, submit to the Department written notifica
tion of hydrostatic pressure test results and proof of cathodic 
protection; (3) if the two 4,000 gallon underground storage tanks 
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cannot be approved, either remove or upgrade the tanks within thirty 
(30) days of notice from the Department; (4) within thirty (30) days 
of the Order date: (a) pay to the Department a five thousand dollar 
($5,000.00) civil penalty; (b) hydrostatically pressure test two 8,000 
gallon underground storage tanks at Monk's Corner Exxon Station and 
submit the results to the Department; and (c) submit to the Department 
a proposal for a preliminary hydrogeologic study to assess the severi
ty and probable fate of any ground-water contamination at Monk's 
Corner Exxon Station; (5) implement the preliminary hydrogeologic 
assessment study within thirty (30) days of its approval by the 
Department; (6) initiate corrective action, if appropriate, based upon 
the results of the preliminary hydrogeologic assessment; and (7) 
notify the Department of any transfer of ownership of the Monk's 
Corner Exxon Station. 

37. Consent Order 86-72-WS 
Date: November 5, 1986 
~ondent: B & B Well Drilling, Rock Hill, South Carolina. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated the State Primary 
Drinking Water Regulations, R.61-58.2(C)(5), in that it installed a 
casing in a well at the Red Oak AME Zion Church which did not meet 
State standards for a Type I well. 

The Respondent violated the State Well Standards and Regulations, 
R.61-71.8.(A), in that it failed to complete and submit to the Depart
ment water well record forms within thirty (30) days of the completion 
of any well. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with 
applicable laws and regulations governing the installation of water 
supply wells in the State of South Carolina; (2) within forty-five 
days of the Order date, submit to the Department completed water well 
record forms on all wells constructed by the company since January 1, 
1986; 'and (3) either upgrade or abandon the existing Red Oak AME Zion 
Church well. 

38. Administrative Order 86-73-WS 
Date: November 13, 1986 
Facility: Dearwood Court Mobile Home Park, York County 
Respondent: Rutledge Realty Company, Inc. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that it modified the Dearwood Court public water supply system 
prior to the issuance of a Department construction permit. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) in that it placed 
water system modifications into operation without prior Department 
approval. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(d) in that the Dearwood 
Court public water supply facilities were not adequately protected and 
maintained so as to continuously proviqe safe and potable water in 
sufficient quantity and pressure and free from potential hazards to 
the health of the consumers. 

243 



Water pressures in the 
confirmed below the 25 
as required by the 
R.61-58.4.D.(3). 

Dearwood Court water distribution system were 
pounds per square inch at every customers tap 
State Primary Drinking Water Regulations, 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) in that samples of 
water were not collected and analyzed as required from the Dearwood 
Court water supply system. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that it failed to 
provide public notification to the residents of Dearwood Court speci
fying its failure to have water samples collected and analyzed. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) henceforth comply with all 
Department permitting and operational approval requirements; (2) 
henceforth ensure that bacteriological monitoring is consistently 
performed on the Dearwood Court public water supply; (3) within thirty 
days of the Order date, make public notification to the residents of 
Dearwood Court outlining its failure to have water samples collected 
and analyzed for bacteriological quality for the months of January, 
February, March, and April of 1986, and submit a copy to the Depart
ment; (4) within forty-five days of the Order date: (a) submit to the 
Department approvable plans and specifications for an acceptable 
source of water for the residents of Dearwood Court; (b) submit to the 
Department "as-built" plans and specifications on the existing 
Dearwood Court water distribution lines and any other existing water 
supply facilities which will be retained as a part of the Dearwood 
Court water supply system; and, (c) pay to the Department a two 
thousand dollar ($2,000.00) civil penalty; (5) within forty-five days 
of the issuance of a Department construction permit, complete con
struction of permitted water supply facilities and obtain Department 
approval to place these facilities into operation; and (6) within 
twenty days of receipt of Department approval of the Respondent's 
permitted water supply facilities, either properly abandon the contami
nated Dearwood Court water supply well or obtain Department approval 
for some non-potable use of this well. 

39. Consent Order 86-74-WS 
Date: November 12, 1986 
Facility: Country Village, Chesterfield County 
Respondent: Mr. Homer E. Stanton 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that he failed to have samples of water collected and analyzed for 
bacteriological quality from the Country Village public water supply 
system. 

Action: The Respondent consented to henceforth ensure that bacterio
logical monitoring is consistently performed on the Country Village 
public water supply system. 

40. Consent Order 86-75-WS 
Date: November 13, 1986 
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Respondent: Mr. Frank Lykes, d/b/a Frank Lykes Repair and 
Well Drilling, West Columbia, South Carolina. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(1) 
in that he engaged in the business of well contracting in the State of 
South Carolina without either obtaining certification from the Board 
of Certification, or employing certified well drillers. 

The Respondent violated the State Well Standards and Regulations as 
follows: 

a. R.61-71.6.B.(3) and (5) in that he failed to grout a potable 
water supply well to a minimum depth of twenty (20) feet within five 
(5) days after the completion of well construction; 

b. R.61-71.6.H. in that he failed to properly label a potable water 
supply well with an identification plate immediately after construction; 

c. R.61-71.10.B. in that he failed to properly abandon an unuseable 
well; and, 

d. R.61-71.8.A. in that he failed to complete and submit to the 
Department water well record forms within thirty days of the comple
tion of any well. 

The Respondent's violations subjected him to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth ensure that any 
subsequent well drilling in the State of South Carolina, contracted 
for by the Respondent, is supervised by at least one person, on site, 
who is properly certified by the Board of Certification; (2) hence
forth comply with the requirements of the Well Standards and Regula
tions; (3) within thirty days of the Order date: (a) submit to the 
Department water well record forms on all wells constructed by the 
Respondent since January 1, 1986; (b) obtain well driller certifica
tion from the Board of Certification; (c) properly abandon the identi
fied unuseable well; and (d) either upgrade the improperly constructed 
water supply well or install a new well in accordance with the Well 
Standards and Regulations; (4) make arrangements to have a certified 
well driller on site during the implementation of items 3(c) and (d) 
above, if well driller certification is not obtained by the Respon
dent; and (5) pay to the Department a fifteen hundred dollar 
($1500.00) civil penalty in three equal monthly installments. 

41. Administrative Order 86-76-WS 
Date: November 18, 1986 
Respondent Mr. Bob Williams, Cope, South Carolina 
Previous Orders: Consent Order 86-48-WS, issued on August 4, 1986, 
requiring compliance with the well driller certification requirements 
of the State Safe Drinking Water Act and the Well Standards and 
Regulations. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent 
that he failed to satisfactorily 
Department Consent Order 86-48-WS. 

violated Code Section 44-55-80 
comply with the requirements 
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The Respondent violated the State Well Standards and Regulations in 
that he failed to properly abandon an unuseable well, failed to submit 
water well record forms, and failed to either upgrade an improperly 
constructed well or to install a new well. 

The Respondent's violations subjected him to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
requirements of the State Well Standards and Regulations; and (2) 
within twenty (20) days of the Order date: (a) upgrade the improperly 
constructed water supply well; (b) submit to the Department water well 
record forms on all wells installed by the Respondent since January 1, 
1986; and (c) pay to the Department a two thousand dollar ($2,000.00) 
civil penalty. 

42. Administrative Order 86-77-WS 
Date: November 24, 1986 

43. 

Facility: Hamrick's New Finished Garment Facility, Cherokee County 
Respondent: Harnrick's, Inc. 
Previous Orders: None 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that it installed public water supply facilities at its New 
Finished Garment Facility prior to the issuance of a Department 
construction permit. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) in that it placed the 
public water supply facilities at its New Finished Garment Facility 
into operation without prior Department approval. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) henceforth comply with all 
Department permitting requirements; (2) within thirty days of the 
Order date, pay to the Department a two thousand dollar ($2,000.00) 
civil penalty and obtain final Department operational approval on the 
public water supply facilities at the New Finished Garment Facility. 

Consent Order 86-78-WS 
Date: November 19, 1986 
Facility: Stone Haven Mobile Horne Park, Spartanburg County 
Respondent: Stone Haven Mobile Horne Manor, Inc. 
Previous Orders: Consent Order 84-13-WS, issued on June 4, 
requiring the proper bacteriological monitoring of the Stone 

1984, 
Haven 

public water supply. 
Conclusions of Law: Analytical results of water samples 
the Stone Haven Mobile Home Park revealed violations of 
logical maximum contaminant level established by the 
Drinking Water Regulations, R.61-58.5.H. 

collected from 
the bacterio
State Primary 

The Stone Haven Mobile Home Park water supply system was not 
permitted and approved for operation as required by Code 
44-55-40(a) and (c). 

properly 
Sections 
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Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) within sixty days of the 
Order date: (a) replace the sanitary seal and install screened vents 
on both wells at Stone Haven Mobile Home Park; (b) enclose all elec
trical wiring at both wells in conduit; (c) install approved flow 
measuring devices on both wells; and (d) install a drain, sample tap, 
and bypass on the existing storage tanks if they are to be maintained 
on the water system; (2) within ninety days of the Order date, submit 
to the Department "as-built" plans and specifications for the proper 
permitting and, if necessary, upgrade of the Stone Haven public water 
supply facilities; (3) upgrade the Stone Haven water supply system, if 
existing facilities are found to be inadequate; and (4) properly 
investigate and remediate any future bacteriological water quality 
problems. 

44. Administrative Order 86-79-WS 
Date: November 19, 1986 
Facility: Converse and Clifton Water Systems, Spartanburg County 
Respondent: B & B Water Works, Inc. 
Previous Orders: Consent Order 81-33-WS, issued on November 25, 1981, 
requiring connection of the Converse water system to the Spartanburg 
water works water supply system and an upgrade of the Clifton water 
supply system. 

Consent Order 85-9-WS, issued on February 13, 1985, requiring the 
submittal of a feasibility study for the proposed connection of the 
Clifton water system to the Spartanburg Water Works water supply 
system. 

Administrative Order 85-33-W, issued on May 13, 1985, requiring 
compliance with the unfullfilled requirements of Order 85-9-WS and 
payment of a two thousand dollar ($2,000.00) civil penalty. 

The Board's Order of January 9, 1986, requiring compliance with the 
remaining unsatisfied requirements of Order 85-9-WS and payment of a 
reduced penalty of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 

Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that it failed to collect and have water samples analyzed for 
bacteriological quality from the Clifton and Converse public water 
supply systems. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 
provide public notification of its 
colle'cted and analyzed. 

44-55-70 in that it failed to 
failure to have water samples 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
bacteriological monitoring is consistently performed on the Clifton 
and Converse public water supply systems; (2) within fifteen days of 
the Order date, either submit to the Department the bacteriological 
monitoring data or make public notice to the residents of the Clifton 
and Converse areas of Spartanburg County specifying the failure to 
have water samples collected and analyzed; and (3) within twenty days 
of the Order date, submit to the Department a copy of the required 
public notice. 
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45. Administrative Order 86-80-WS 
Date: November 21, 1986 
~lity: Lakeview Subdivision, Clarendon County 
Respondent: Sigfield Water Company 
Previous Orders: None 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that it failed to have water samples collected and analyzed from 
the Lakeview Subdivision public water supply system. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that it failed to 
provide public notification to the residents of Lakeview Subdivision 
speci{ying its failure to have water samples collected and analyzed. 

The Respondent's violations subjected the Respondent to the assessment 
of civil penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
bacteriological monitoring is consistently performed on the Lakeview 
Subdivison public water supply; (2) within fifteen (15) days of the 
Order date: (a) make public notification to the residents of Lakeview 
Subdivision specifying the failure to have samples collected and 
analyzed for the months of July, August, and September 1986; and (b) 
either make public notice for bacteriological monitoring violations 
for the month of October 1986 and pay to the Department a five hundred 
dollar ($500.00) civil penalty, or submit to the Department the 
October monitoring data; and (3) within twenty days of the Order date, 
submit to the Department the required public notification(s). 

46. Consent Order 86-81-WS 
Date: December 3, 1986 
~ondent: E.L. Frick and Sons Well Drilling, Lexington County, 
South Carolina. 
Previous Orders: Consent Order 86-22-WS, issued on February 25, 1986, 
for violations of the requirements of the State Well Standards and 
Regulations, R.61-71. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-80 in 
that it failed to satisfactorily comply with the requirements of 
Department Consent Order 86-22-WS. 

The Respondent violated the State Well Standards and Regulations in 
that it installed water supply wells which did not meet the criteria 
outlined in the Regulations. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
requirements of the State Well Standards and Regulations; (2) within 
ten (10) days of the Order date, upgrade two water supply wells with 
confirmed deficiencies; (3) within forty-five days of the Order date, 
submit to the Department completed water well record forms on all 
wells installed by the Respondent since April 1, 1986; (4) within 
ninety days of the Order date, pay to the Department a one thousand 
five hundred dollar ($1,500.00) civil penalty; and (5) pay to the 
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Department an additional one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) civil pen~lty 
for failure to comply with requirements 2 and 3 above. 

47. Consent Order 86-82-WS 
Date: December 3, 1986 
Respondent: Mr. James Walker, Lexington, South Carolina 
Previous Orders: None 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(1) 
in that he engaged in the business of well contracting in the State of 
South Carolina without either obtaining certification from the Board 
of Certification, or employing properly certified well drillers. 

The Respondent violated the State Well Standards and Regulations as 
follows: 

a. R.61-71.6.B.(3) and (5) in that he failed to grout a water supply 
well to a minimum depth of twenty feet within five days after the 
completion of well construction; 

b. R.61-71.6.H. in that he failed to properly label a water supply 
well with an identification plate immediately after construction; and, 

c. R.61-71.8.A. in that he failed to complete and submit water well 
record forms to the Department within thirty days of the completion of 
any well. 

The Respondent's violations subjected him to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth ensure that any 
subsequent well drilling contracted for by the Respondent in the State 
of South Carolina is supervised by at least one person, on-site, who 
is properly certified by the Board of Certification; (2) henceforth 
comply with the requirements of the State Well Standards and Regula
tions; (3) within thirty days of the Order date, submit to the Depart
ment completed water well record forms on all wells installed by the 
Respondent since January 1, 1986, and obtain well driller certifica
tion from the Board of Certification; (4) pay to the Department a five 
hundred dollar ($500.00) civil penalty for failure to comply with the 
requirements of Item 3 above; and (5) either upgrade or replace any 
other water supply wells which may be identified by Department staff 
to have been improperly installed by the Respondent. 

48. Consent Order 86-07-W,WS 
Date: December 19, 1986 
Facility: Residence Inn, Charleston County 
Respondent: Brock Hotel Corporation 
Previous Orders: None 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Sections 44-55-40(a) 
and 48-1-110 in that it placed water supply and wastewater disposal 
facilities to serve the Residence Inn into operation prior to the 
issuance of Department final operational approvals. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Sections 44-55-90 and 48-1-330. 
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Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth refrain from 
placing water supply and wastewater disposal facilities into operation 
without prior Department approval; (2) within fifteen days of the 
Order date, obtain final Department operational approval for the water 
supply and wastewater disposal facilities at the Residence Inn; (3) 
within thirty days of the Order date, pay to the Department a four 
thousand dollar ($4,000.00) civil penalty; and (4) pay to the Depart
ment an additional penalty of one hundred and fifty dollars ($150.00) 
per day for failure to comply with the deadline established in item 2 
above. 

49~ Consent Order 86-83-WS 
Date: December 30, 1986 
Facility: Motel 6, Inc., Site #642, Charleston County 
Respondent: Motel 6, Inc. 
Previous Orders: None 
Conclusions of Law: The 
in that it modified the 
Department Construction 
approval. 

Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
public water supply facilities authorized by 
Permit No. 311826 without prior Department 

The Respondent's violation subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting requirements of the State Safe Drinking Water Act; (2) 
within fifteen days of the Order date, submit to the Department 
"as-built" plans and specifications on the existing Motel 6, Site #642 
public water supply facilities, and pay to the Department a two 
thousand dollar ($2,000.00) civil penalty, (3) within ten days of the 
issuance of a Department "as-built" construction permit, obtain final 
operational approval on the Motel 6, Site #642 public water supply 
facilities; and (4) withhold operation of the Motel 6, Site #642 
public water supply facilities until the issuance of a Department 
"as-built" construction permit and the receipt of Department opera
tional approval. 

50. Consent Order 86-84-WS 
Date: December 23, 1986 
~ondent: Calvin L. Beck, Aiken, South Carolina 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated the State Well Standards 
and Regulations as follows: 

a. R.61-71.6.H. in that he failed to properly label a potable water 
supply well with an identification plate immediately after construc
tion; and, 

b. R.61-71.8.A. in that he failed to complete and submit to the 
Department water well record forms within thirty days after completion 
of any well. 

The Respondent's violations subjected him to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 
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Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
requirements of the State Well Standards and Regulations; (2) within 
ten days of the Order date, install an identification plate on the 
unlabeled potable water supply well; (3) within thirty days of the 
Order date, submit to the Department completed water well record forms 
on all wells installed by the Respondent since July 1, 1986; (4) pay 
to the Department a five hundred dollar ($500.00) civil penalty for 
failure to comply with either item 2 or 3 above; and (5) either 
upgrade or replace any other water supply wells which may be identi
fied to have been improperly installed by the Respondent. 

51. Consent Order 86-85-WS 
Date: December 23, 1986 
Facility: Gateway Mobile Home Park, Newberry County 
Respondent: Mr. Claude C. Wicker 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that he failed to collect and analyze samples of water from the 
Gateway Mobile Home Park public water supply. 

Action: The Respondent consented to henceforth comply with the bacteri
ological monitoring requirements of the State Safe Drinking Water Act 
and the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations. 

52. Consent Order 87-01-87 
Date: January 6, 1987 
Facility: Fennell's Mobile Home Park, Hampton County 
Respondent: Mr. Clyde Fennell 
Previous Orders: None 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that he failed to obtain a Department construction permit prior to 
the installation of the Fennell's Mobile Home Park public water supply 
facilities. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) in that the Fennell's 
Mobile Home Park public water supply facilities were placed into 
operat'ion without prior Department approval. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting and operational approval requirements of the State Safe 
Drinking Water Act; (2) within sixty days of the Order date, submit to 
the Department approvable plans and specifications for the proper 
permitting and, if necessary, upgrade of the Fennell's Mobile Home 
Park water supply system; and, (3) amend this Order, if necessary, to 
include an enforceable schedule of compliance for an upgrade of the 
Fennell's Mobile Home Park water supply system. 

53. Consent Order 87-02-WS 
Date: January 12, 1987 
Facility: Beaufort Business Center, Beaufort County 
Respondent: First Carolina Corporation of S.C. 
Previous Orders: None 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of any 
issue of law. 
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Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting and operational approval requirements of the State Safe 
Drinking Water Act; (2) within fifteen days of the Order date, obtain 
final operational approval on the public water supply facilities 
authorized by Department Construction Permit No. 303117, and discon
tinue the use of the unpermitted, unapproved water line to the 
Beaufort Business Center; and (3) within thirty days of the Order 
date, pay to the Department a one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) civil 
penalty. 

54. Consent Order 87-03-WS 
Date: January 14, 1987 
Respondent: Mr. Corlie Elders, Gaston, South Carolina 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(1) 
in that he engages in the business of well contracting in the State of 
South Carolina without either obtaining certification from the Board 
of Certification of Environmental Systems Operators, or employing 
certified well drillers. 

The Respondent violated the State Well Standards and Regulations as 
follows: 

a. R.61-71.6.B.(3) and (5) in that he failed to grout a potable 
water supply well to a minimum depth of twenty feet within five days 
after the completion of well construction; 

b. R.61-71.6.H. in that he failed to label a potable water supply 
well with an identification plate immediately after construction; 

c. R.61-71.7.A.(c) in that he failed to extend a potable water 
supply well casing a minimum of twelve inches above final grade; and, 

d. R.61-71.8.A. in that he failed to complete and submit to the 
Department water well record forms within thirty days of the comple
tion of any well. 

The R~spondent's violations subjected him to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
State Well Standards and Regulations and the certification require
ments of the State Safe Drinking Water Act; (2) within thirty days of 
the Order date: (a) submit to the Department water well record forms 
on all wells contracted for by him since July 1, 1986; (b) obtain well 
driller certification from the Board of Certification; (c) pay to the 
Department a five hundred dollar ($500.00) civil penalty; and, (d) 
either upgrade the existing unsatisfactory well or properly abandon 
that well and install a new water supply well; (3) pay to the Depart
ment an additional five hundred dollar ($500.00) civil penalty for 
failure to comply with any of the requirements of item two above; and 
(4) either upgrade or replace any other water supply wells which may 
be identified by Department staff to have been improperly installed by 
the Respondent. 

55. Consent Order 87-04-WS 
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Date: January 15, 1987 
Respondent: Austin and Son Well Drilling, West Columbia, South 
Carolina 
Con~lusions of Law: The Respondent violated the State Well Standards 
and Regulations as follows: 

a. R.61-71.6.B.(3) and (5) in that it failed to grout a potable 
water supply well to a minimum depth of twenty feet within five days 
of the completion of well construction; 

b. R.61-71.6.H. in that it failed to properly label a potable water 
supply well with an identification plate immediately after construc
tion; and, 

c. R.61-71.8.A. in that it failed to complete and submit to the 
Department water well record forms within thirty days after completion 
of any well. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
requirements of the Well Standards and Regulations; (2) within twenty 
days of the Order date, either properly upgrade the existing unapprov
able water supply well, or properly abandon the existing well and 
install a new potable water supply well; (3) within thirty days of 
the Order date, submit to the Department completed water well record 
forms on all wells installed by the Respondent since July 1, 1986; (4) 
pay to the Department a five hundred dollar ($500.00) civil penalty 
for failure to comply with the requirements of item three above; and, 
(5) either upgrade or replace any other water supply well which may be 
identified by Department staff to have been improperly installed by 
the Respondent. 

56. Administrative Order 87-05-WS 
Date: January 16, 1987 
Facilities: Lambright Community Care Home, Fairfield County and 
Lambright Community Care Home, Richland County 
Respondent: Mr. Clifford Lambright 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that samples of water were not collected and analyzed for bacterio
logical quality as required from the Lambright Community Care Homes 
water .supply systems. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that he failed to 
provide public notification of his failure to have samples of water 
collected and analyzed for bacteriological quality. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) immediately initiate 
monthly bacteriological monitoring programs on the Lambright Community 
Care Homes public water supply systems; (2) within twenty days of the 
Order date, make public notice to the patrons of the Lambright Commu
nity Care Homes specifying the failure to have water samples collected 
and analyzed for the months of July, August, September, October, 
November, and December, 1986; and, (3) pay to the Department a five 
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hundred dollar ($500.00) civil penalty per month for any 
failure to comply with the monitoring requirements of 
Primary Drinking Water Regulations. 

57. Consent Order 87-06-WS 
Date: January 30, 1987 
Respondent: Mr. Johnny M. James, Manning, South Carolina 

subsequent 
the State 

Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that he failed to obtain a Department construction permit prior to 
the installation of a public water supply system to serve the MCS 
Fashions sewing plant. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) in that he failed to 
obtain Department approval prior to placing these public water supply 
facilities into operation. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting requirements of the State Safe Drinking Water Act; (2) 
within thirty days of the Order date, submit to the Department 
"as-built" plans and specifications for the public water supply 
facilities which serve the MCS Fashions sewing plant; (3) within five 
days of the issuance of a Department "as-built" construction permit, 
obtain Department operational approval for the MCS Fashions water 
supply facilities; (4) provide an approved alternate water source for 
the employees of MCS Fashions until the existing water supply facili
ties are properly permitted and approved; and, (5) amend this order to 
include a schedule of compliance for an upgrade of the existing MCS 
Fashions water supply system if these facilities cannot be permitted. 

58. Administrative Order 87-07-WS 
Date: January 30, 1987 
Facility: Ridgeland Wagon Branch Day Care Center, Jasper County 
Respondents: Ms. Jean Tyler, Ms. Ouida Tyler, and Ms. T. Larue Tyler 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondents violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that they failed to collect and analyze samples of water from the 
Ridgeland Wagon Branch Day Care Center (WBDCC) public water supply. 

The Respondents violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that they failed to 
provide public notification of their failure to have water samples 
collected and analyzed for bacteriological quality. 

Action: The Respondents were ordered to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
monthly bacteriological monitoring is performed on the Ridgeland WBDCC 
water supply facilities; (2) within twenty days of the Order date, 
make public notification to the students and staff of the Ridgeland 
WBDCC specifying the failure to have water samples collected and 
analyzed as required, and submit a copy of the notice to the Depart
ment; and, (3) pay to the Department a five hundred dollar ($500.00) 
civil. ·penalty per month for any subsequent failure to comply with the 
monitoring requirements of the State Primary Drinking Water Regula
tions. 

59. Administrative Order 87-08-WS 
Date: January 30, 1987 
~lity: East Cooper Child Development Center, Charleston 
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County 
Respondent: Charleston County Department of Social Services 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) ---------,.-in that it failed to collect and analyze samples of water from the 
East Cooper Child Development Center public water supply. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that it failed to 
provide public notification of its failure to monitor the bacteriolog
ical quality of the East Cooper Child Development Center public water 
supply. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
bacteriological monitoring is consistently performed on the East 
Cooper Child Development Center public water supply system; and, (2) 
within twenty days of the Order date, make public notification to the 
students and staff of the East Cooper Child Development Center speci
fying the failure to have water samples collected and analyzed as 
required, and submit a copy of this notice to the Department. 

60. Consent Order 87-09-WS 
Date: February 2, 1987 
Facility: Central Berkeley County Service Area, Berkeley County 
Respondent: Berkeley County Water and Sewer Authority 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of any 
issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) within thirty days of the 
Order date, submit to the Department approvable plans and specifica
tions for an upgrade of the Central Berkeley County Service Area 
public water supply facilities; (2) within six months of the issuance 
of a Department construction permit, complete the permitted upgrade of 
the Central Berkeley County Service Area public water supply facili
ties; (3) on or before July 1, 1987, submit to the Department a 
financial plan demonstrating the Respondent's ability to fund water 
storage facilities for this portion of the Respondent's water supply 
system; (4) within twenty-four months of the Order date, submit to the 
Department plans and specifications for water storage facilities to 
serve the customers in the Central Berkeley County Service Area; (5) 
within thirty months of the Order date, begin construction of permit
ted water storage facilities; and, (6) within thirty-six months of the 
Order date, complete the construction of permitted water storage 
facilities and obtain Department approval to place these facilities 
into operation. 

The Department agreed to issue construction permits authorizing up to 
an additional 443 taps in the Central Berkeley County Service Area, 
and to eliminate the requirement for the installation of water storage 
facilities by the Respondent if comparable facilities are installed by 
any other entity and are able to provide equivalent storage to the 
Respondent within the three year time frame established by this Order. 

61. Consent Order 87-10-WS 
Date: February 5, 1987 
Ficility: Country Place Mobile Home Park, Florence County 
Respondent: Mr. D. Roger Munnerlyn 
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62. 

Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that he installed public water supply facilities to serve the 
residents of Country Place Mobile Home Park prior to the issuance of a 
Department construction permit. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) in that he placed the 
Country Place Mobile Home Park public water supply facilities into 
operation without prior Department approval. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting and operational approval requirements of the State Safe 
Drinking Water Act; (2) within thirty days of the Order date, submit 
to the Department "as-built" plans and specifications for the Country 
Place Mobile Home Park water supply facilities; (3) amend this Order 
to include a schedule of compliance if a determination is made that 
the existing public water supply facilities must be upgraded; and (4) 
obtain a Department construction permit prior to any further expansion 
of the Country Place Mobile Home Park water supply system. 

Consent Order 87-11-WS 
Date: February 6, 1987 
Respondent: Bryant Riley Company, Inc., 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent 
Standards and Regulations as follows: 

Dorchester County 
violated the State Well 

a. R.61-71.6.B.(3) and (5) in that he failed to grout a potable 
water supply well to a minimum depth of twenty feet within five days 
of the completion of well construction; 

b. R.61-71.6.H in that he failed to properly label a potable water 
supply well with an identification_ plate immediately after construc
tion; 

c. R.61-71.8.A in that he failed to complete and submit to the 
Department water well record forms within thirty days of the comple
tion of any well; and, 

d. R.61-71.7.A.(ll) in that he failed to extend a potable water 
supply well casing a minimum of twelve inches above final grade. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
requirements of the State Well Standards and Regulations; (2) within 
thirty days of the Order date, submit to the Department completed 
water well record forms on all wells installed by the Respondent since 
October 1, 1986, and pay to the Department a five hundred dollar 
($500.00) civil penalty; (3) pay to the Department an additional five 
hundred dollar civil penalty for failure to submit the required water 
well records; and (4) either upgrade or replace any potable water 
supply well which may be identified by Department staff to have been 
improperly installed by the Respondent. 

63. Consent Order 87-12-WS 
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Date: February 9, 1987 
Respondent: Mr. Norman R. Mullen, Sumter County 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(1) 
in ~hat he engaged in the business of well contracting in the State of 
South Carolina without either obtaining certification from the Board 
of Certification, or employing certified well drillers. 

The Respondent violated the State Well Standards and Regulations as 
follows: 

a. R.61-71.6.B. (3) and (5) in that he failed to grout potable water 
supply wells to a minimum of twenty feet within five days of the 
completion of well installations; 

b. R.61-71.6.H. in that he failed to 
supply wells with identification plates 
tion; and, 

properly label potable water 
immediately after construe-

c. R.61-71.8.A. in that he failed to complete and submit to the 
Department water well record forms within thirty days of the comple
tion of any well. 

The Respondent's violations subjected him to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
requirements of the Well Standards and Regulations; (2) henceforth 
ensure that any subsequent well drilling contracted for by the Respon
dent is supervised by at least one person, on site, who is properly 
certified by the Board of Certification; (3) within thirty days of the 
Order date: (a) submit to the De- partment completed water well record 
forms on all wells installed by the Respondent since October 1, 1986; 
(b) obtain well driller certification from the Board of Certification; 
and (c) either upgrade the improperly installed water supply wells or 
properly abandon these wells and install new wells; (4) pay to the De
partment a five hundred dollar ($500.00) civil penalty for failure to 
comply with any of the requirements of item three above; and (5) 
either upgrade or replace any other water supply wells which may be 
identified by Department staff to have been improperly installed by 
the Respondent. 

64. Consent Order 87-13-WS 
Date: February 16, 1987 
Facility: West Columbia-Lexington Mobile Home Park, Lexington County 
Respondents: Messrs. Tom Price and C. W. Carroll 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondents violated the State Primary 
Drinking Water Regulations, R.61-58.3(J), in that naturally- occurring 
radionuclide levels in the West Columbia-Lexington Mobile Home Park 
public water supply exceeded established standards. 

Action: The Respondents consented to: (1) within thirty days of the 
availability of an approved public water supply, submit to the Depart
ment approvable plans and specifications for connection thereto; (2) 
within forty-five days of the issuance of a Department construction 
permit, complete connection of the West Columbia-Lexington Mobile Home 
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65. 

Park water distribution system to the approved 
system; and (c) restrict the use of the most 
well at this park until the connection to an 
supply system has been completed. 

public water supply 
radiologically-active 

approved public water 

Consent Order 87-14-WS 
Date: February 17, 1987 
Facility: UPS Distribution 
Respondent: United Parcel 
Conclusions of Law: This 
any issue of law. 

Center, Spartanburg County 
Service 
Order was issued without adjudication of 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting and operational approval requirements of the State Safe 
Drinking Water Act; and (2) within fifteen days of the Order date, pay 
to the Department a one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) civil penalty. 

66. Consent Order 87-15-WS 
Date: February 23, 1987 
Facility: Little Rockers Preschool, Charleston County 
Respondent: Ms. Theresa Hatfield 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that she failed to have water samples collected and analyzed for 
bacteriological quality from the Little Rockers Preschool public water 
supply. 

The Respondent violated Code 
provide public notification 
collected and analyzed. 

Section 44-55-70 in that she failed to 
of her failure to have water samples 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
bacteriological monitoring is consistently performed on the Little 
Rockers Preschool public water supply system; and (2) within twenty 
days of the Order date, make public notification to the students and 
staff of the Little Rockers Preschool outlining the failure to have 
water samples collected and analyzed for the period July through 
November, 1986, and submit a copy of this public notification to the 
Department. 

67. Consent Order 87-16-WS 
Date: February 25, 1987 
Facility: Zion Center, Charleston County 
Respondent: Greater Zion AME Church 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that it failed to have water samples collected and analyzed for 
bacteriological quality from the Zion Center public water supply 
system. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that it failed to 
provide public notification to the students and staff of the Zion 
Center of its failure to have water samples collected and analyzed for 
bacteriological quality. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) 
bacteriological monitoring is consistently 
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Center public water supply system; and (2) within twenty days of the 
Order date, make public notification to the students and staff of the 
Zion Center outlining the monitoring violations and submit a copy of 
the required public notice to the Department. 

68. Consent Order 87-17-WS 
Date: February 26, 1987 

69. 

Facilities: Huntington Park and Capewood Subdivisions, Lexington 
County 
Respondent: AAA Utilities 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that it failed to obtain a Department construction permit prior to 
the completion of construction of the public water supply system at 
Capewood Subdivision. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) in that it failed to 
obtain Department approval prior to placing the Capewood Subdivision 
water supply system into operation. 

Analytical results of water samples collected from the Huntington Park 
Subdivision public water supply revealed violations of the nitrate 
maximum contaminant level established by the State Primary Drinking 
Water Regulations. 

Analytical results of water samples collected from the Huntington Park 
and Capewood Subdivision public water supplies revealed violations of 
the pH, iron, and manganese maximum contaminant levels established by 
the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting and operational approval requirements of the State Safe 
Drinking Water Act; (2) immediately disconnect the high nitrate well 
from the Huntington Park water supply system; (3) within forty-five 
days of the Order date, either seal off the contaminated zones in the 
high nitrate well and submit plans and specifications to the Depart
ment for the addition of pH adjustment and chlorination equipment, or 
submit plans and specifications to the Department for the installation 
of a new well; (4) within thirty days of the Order date, submit to 
the Department plans and specifications for the addition of chemical 
treatment facilities to the Capewood and Huntington Park water supply 
systems; (5) within thirty days of the issuance of Department con
struc.tion permits, complete construction of permitted water supply 
facilities to serve the Capewood and Huntington Park Subdivisions and 
obtain Department approval to place these facilities into operation; 
and (6) operate under a tap moratorium until the Capewood and 
Huntington Park water supply systems are properly approved by the 
Department. 

Consent Order 87-18-WS 
Date: February 25, 1987 
Facility: Town of Gifford, Hampton County 
Respondent: Town of Gifford 
Conclusions of Law: Analytical results of water samples 
from the Gifford water supply system revealed violations 
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bacteriological maximum contaminant level established by the State 
Primary Drinking Water Regulations. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-SS-40(a) in that it failed to 
obtain a Department construction permit prior to modifying its public 
water .. supply system. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(k) in that it operated a 
public water supply system without an operator of the appropriate 
grade certified by the Board of Certification. 

The Respondent violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations 
as follows: 

a. R.61-58.4.C.(5) in that it installed fire hydrants on a hydro
pneumatic water system; 

b. R.61-58.2.C.(l)(a) in that it serves greater than fifty taps and 
does not have a minimum of two ground-water sources; 

c. R.61-58.7.D.(5) in that it failed to maintain the 
air/water ratio in its hydropneumatic water storage tank; 

proper 

d. R.61-58.7.F.(2) in that it connected an unapproved water supply 
well to the Gifford water supply system; 

e. R.61-58.4.D.(5) in that it installed fire hydrants on water lines 
with inadequate flows to support them; and, 

f. R.61-58.4.D.(3) in that it failed to maintain a minimum pressure 
of twenty-five pounds per square inch at every customer's tap under 
conditions of instantaneous demand. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting requirements of the State Safe Drinking Water Act; (2) 
immediately begin and continue the proper operation and maintenance of 
the Gifford water supply system; (3) within thirty days of the Order 
date: (a) provide the Department with the name of the person who will 
be responsible for the proper operation of the Gifford water supply 
system; (b) initiate a flushing program on the Gifford water distribu
tion system; (c) provide the Department with evidence concerning the 
Town's efforts to secure funds for improvements to the Gifford water 
system; and (d) establish the proper air/water ratio in the Gifford 
water storage tank; (4) within sixty days of the Order date, and at 
sixty-day intervals thereafter, submit to the Department status 
reports on efforts by the Town to obtain funding for water system 
improvements; (5) within forty-five days of the receipt of financial 
assistance, submit to the Department approvable plans and specifica
tions for a proposed upgrade of the Gifford water system and amend 
this Order to include a schedule of compliance for an upgrade of the 
Gifford water supply system; (6) meet again with Department staff if 
funding is not available by September 1, 1987, for an upgrade of the 
Gifford water supply system; and (7) notify the Department, and obtain 
Department approval, prior to any emergency use of the unapproved well 
which is connected to the Gifford water supply system. 
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70. Consent Order 87-19-WS 
Date: February 26, 1987 
Facility: Munn-E-Saver, Lexington County 
Resryondent: Munn Oil Company 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of any 
issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) immediately implement a 
preliminary hydrogeologic assessment to determine the extent of 
ground-water contamination at the Munn-E-Saver site in Lexington 
County; (2) on or before March 15, 1987, submit to the Department a 
report on the findings of the Phase I assessment study at the 
Munn-E-Saver; and (3) meet again with Department staff within thirty 
days of the Department's receipt of the Phase I report to discuss the 
results and proposed recommendations contained therein. 

71. Administrative Order 87-20-WS 
Date: March 2, 1987 

72. 

Facility: Heritage Hall Academy, Orangeburg County 
Respondent: Heritage Hall Academy 
Previous Orders: Consent Order 86-37-WS, issued on June 20, 1986, 
required the proper permitting and approval of the Heritage Hall 
Academy water supply facilities. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that it failed to collect and have samples of water analyzed for 
bacteriological quality from the Heritage Hall Academy water supply 
system. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that it failed to 
provide public notification to the students and staff of Heritage Hall 
Academy outlining its failure to have water samples collected and 
analyzed for bacteriological quality. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
monthly bacteriological monitoring is consistently performed on the 
Heritage Hall Academy public water supply system; (2) within twenty 
days of the Order date, make public notification to the students and 
staff of Heritage Hall Academy outlining the failure to have water 
samples collected and analyzed for the period July, 1986, through 
January, 1987, and submit a copy of the required public notice to the 
Department; and (3) pay to the Department a five hundred dollar 
($500.00) civil penalty per month for failure to initiate a bacterio
logical monitoring program by March of 1987. 

Consent Order 87-21-WS 
Date: March 2, 1987 
Facility: Yellow Freight Terminal, York County 
Respondent: Carl I. Latham, Jr. 
Previous Orders: Consent Order 85-32-WS, issued 
for the unpermitted installation of a public water 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without 
issue of law. 
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Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting and operational approval requirements of the State Safe 
Drinking Water Act; (2) within fifteen days of the Order date, pay to 
the Department a one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) civil penalty; (3) 
within forty-five days of the Order date, complete a permitted expan
sion of the Yellow Freight Terminal public water supply system and 
obtain Department approval to place this extension into operation; 
and (4) withhold the connection of additional taps to the Yellow 
Freight Terminal water supply system until the system upgrade is 
approved for operation. 

73. Consent Order 87-22-WS 
Date: March 2, 1987 
Facility: Town of Williston, Barnwell County 
Respondent: Town of Williston 
Previous Orders: Consent Order 85-65-WS, issued on July 15, 1985, for 
an upgrade of the Williston water distribution system to increase line 
pressures and to provide fire flow capabilities. 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of any 
issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
operation and maintenance requirements of the State Primary Drinking 
Water Regulations; (2) within thirty days of the Order date: (a) 
complete specific improvements to the Williston water supply system; 
(b) develop and submit to the Department a written procedures manual 
for the operation of the Williston water system; (c) develop and 
submit to the Department an emergency operations plan for the 
Williston water supply system; and (d) submit to the Department for 
review and comment a proposal for the addition of standby power 
capabilities on the Williston water supply wells; (3) on or before 
September 30, 1987, install in-line flow meters on the four Williston 
water supply wells and provide well yield information to the Depart
ment; (4) extend the water tank overflow lines on the Williston 
elevated water tanks to ground level within three years of the Order 
date; and (5) paint the West Street water tank in accordance with 
routine tank maintenance schedules, but within no more than two years 
of the Order date. 

74. Administrative Order 87-23-WS 
Date: March 5, 1987 
Facility: Andrew Jackson Academy, Bamberg County 
Respondent: Andrew Jackson Academy 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that it failed to have water samples collected and analyzed for 
bacteriological quality from the Andrew Jackson Academy public water 
supply system. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that it failed to 
provide public notification of its failure to have samples of water 
collected and analyzed. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
bacteriological monitoring is consistently performed on the Andrew 
Jackson Academy public water supply system; and, (2) within twenty 
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days of the Order date, either submit to the Department bacterio
logical monitoring data for the months of November and December 1986, 
or make public notice to the students and staff of the Andrew Jackson 
Academy specifying the failure to have water samples collected and 
analyzed for bacteriological quality and submit a copy of the required 
public notice to the Department. 

75. Administrative Order 87-24-WS 
Date: March 16, 1987 
Facility: Crossroads Day Care Center, Richland County 
Respondent: Crossroads Community Center 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that it failed to have water samples collected and analyzed for 
bacteriological quality from the Crossroads Day Care Center public 
water supply system. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that it failed to 
provide public notice of its bacteriological monitoring violations. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) immediately initiate a 
monthly bacteriological monitoring program on the Crossroads Day Care 
Center public water supply system; (2) within twenty days of the Order 
date, make public notice to the students and staff of the Crossroads 
Day Care Center specifying the failure to have water samples collected 
and analyzed for bacteriolagical quality during the period July 1986 
to February 1987, and provide a copy of the required public notice to 
the Department; and (3) pay to the Department a five hundred dollar 
($500.00) civil penalty per month for failure to initiate a bacterio
logical monitoring program by March of 1987. 

76. Administrative Order 87-25-WS 
Date: March 12, 1987 
Facility: Pioneer Rural Water District of Anderson and Oconee Coun
ties 
Respondent: Pioneer Rural Water District 
Previous Orders: Consent Order 86-54-WS, issued on September 4, 
1986, required the development and implementation of an approved 
cross-connection control program. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(d) 
in that it failed to adequately protect and maintain its public water 
supply so as to continuously provide safe and potable water in suffi
cient quantity and pressure and free from potential hazards to the 
health of the consumers. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) on or before April 10, 
1987: (a) submit to the Department approvable final plans and specifi
cations for the proposed installation of a master-metered connection 
between the Pioneer Rural and Seneca w~ter supply systems; and (b) 
provide the Department with a fully executed copy of a contractural 
agreement between Pioneer Rural and Seneca which outlines the terms 
for the sale of water from Seneca to Pioneer Rural; (2) on or before 
June 1, 1987, complete the construction of a permitted master-metered 
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connection to the Seneca water supply system and obtain Department 
approval to place this connection into operation; and (3) be subject 
to a construction permit moratorium until the master-metered connec
tion to the Seneca water supply system is approved for operation. 

77. Consent Order 87-26-WS 
Date: March 23, 1987 
Facility: Center South Shopping Center, Horry County 
Respondent: Dayton & Associates III 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of 
any issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting requirements of the State Safe Drinking Water Act; (2) 
withhold occupancy of the Center South Shopping Center until receipt 
of Department operational approval on its public water supply facili
ties; (3) within thirty days of the Order date, pay to the Department 
a one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) civil penalty; and (4) pay to the 
Department an additional one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) civil penalty 
for any violation of the requirements of this Order. 

78. Consent Order 87-27-WS 
Date: March 20, 1987 
Facility: Longs Headstart, Horry County 
Respondent: Horry County School District 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that it failed to have water samples collected and analyzed for 
bacteriological quality from the Longs Headstart public water supply 
system. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that it failed to 
provide public notification of its failure to have water samples 
collected and analyzed. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) immediately initiate a 
bacteriological monitoring program on the Longs Headstart public water 
supply system; and (2) within twenty days of the Order date, make 
public notification to the students and staff of Longs Headstart 
specifying the failure to have water samples collected and analyzed 
for the period July - December 1986, and provide the Department with a 
copy of the required public notice. 

79. Consent Order 87-28-WS 
Date: March 24, 1987 
Faciltty: Altamont Forest Subdivision, Greenville County 
Respondent: Paris Mountain Utilities, Inc. 
Previous Orders: Administrative Order 83-13-WS, issued on 
October 13, 1987, for the unapproved operation of public water supply 
facilities. 

Consent Orders 84-1-WS and 84-2-WS, issued on 
settlement of the Respondent's appeal of 
83-13-WS. 
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Administrative Order 86-35-WS, 
Respondent's violation of the 
Orders 84-1-WS and 84-2-WS. 

issued on 
requirements 

June 
of 

2, 1986, 
Department 

for the 
Consent 

Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that it failed to monitor the bacteriological quality of the 
Altamont Forest Subdivision public water supply for the months of 
September - December 1986. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that it failed to 
provide public notification to the residents of Altamont Forest 
Subdivision specifying its failure to perform the required bacterio
logical monitoring. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
bacteriological monitoring is consistently performed on the Altamont 
Forest Subdivision public water supply system; and (2) within twenty 
days of the Order date, make public notification to the residents of 
Altamont Forest specifying the failure to have water samples collected 
and analyzed for bacteriological quality for the months of September -
December, 1986, and submit a copy of the required public notice to the 
Department. 

80. Consent Order 87-29-WS 
Date: March 23, 1987 
Facility: Smith's Trailer Park, Kershaw County 
Respondent: Mr. Edward Smith 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that he failed to have water samples collected and analyzed for 
bacteriological quality from the Smith's Trailer Park public water 
supply system. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that he failed to 
provide public notification to the residents of Smith's Trailer Park 
specifying his failure to have water samples collected and analyzed. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth ensure that 
bacteriological monitoring is consistently performed on the Smith's 
Trailer Park public water supply system; and (2) within twenty days of 
the Order date, make public notice to the residents of Smith's Trailer 
Park specifying the monitoring violations, and submit a copy of the 
required public notice to the Department. 

81. Consent Order 87-30-WS 
Date: March 30, 1987 
Respondent: Horry's Water Well, Ridgeland, South Carolina 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated the State Well Standards 
and Regulations as follows: 

a. R.61-71.6.B.(3) and (5), in that it did not grout supply wells to 
a minimum depth of twenty feet, or to a depth approved by the Depart
ment, within five days after the completion of well construction; and, 
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b. R.61-71.6.H, in that it failed to properly label water supply and 
injection wells with identification plates immediately after construc
tion. 

The Respondent violated the State Underground Injection Control 
Regulations, R.61-82, in that it failed to properly construct class 
V.B. injection wells in a manner which would prevent the movement of 
contaminants into underground sources of drinking water. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Sections 44-55-90 and 48-1-330. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
requirements of the Well Standards and Regulations and the Underground 
Injection Control Regulations; (2) within thirty days of the Order 
date: (a) schedule an inspection with Department staff to confirm 
the upgrade of the Jones wells; and (b) either upgrade the Helmick 
wells or properly abandon them and install a new supply and injection 
well; (3) within ninety days of the Order date, pay to the Department 
a one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) civil penalty; (4) pay to the 
Department an additional one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) civil penalty 
for failure to comply with item 2(b) above; and (5) either upgrade or 
replace any other well which may be identified by Department staff to 
have been improperly installed by the Respondent. 

82. Consent Order 87-01-W,WS 
Date: April 1, 1987 
Facility: Paradise Lakes Development, Dorchester County 
Respondent: GMI Enterprises, Inc. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) 
in that it placed the Paradise Lakes Development public water supply 
facilities into operation prior to the issuance of Department opera
tional approval. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 48-1-110 in that it placed the 
Paradise Lakes Development wastewater disposal facilities into opera
tion prior to the issuance of Department operational approval. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Sections 44-55-90 and 48-1-330. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: 
permitting and operational approval 
Drinking Water Act and the Pollution 
days of the Order date, pay to the 
($2,000.00) civil penalty. 

83. Consent Order 87-31-WS 
Date: March 30, 1987 

(1) henceforth 
requirements of 

Control Act; and 
Department a two 

Respondent: MCI Telecommunications, Inc. 

comply with the 
the State Safe 

(2) within sixty 
thousand dollar 

Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication 
of any issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) immediately proceed with 
the upgrade and testing of the MCI underground storage tank 
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installations in the State of South Carolina; (2) within thirty days 
of the Order date, pay to the Department a twelve thousand dollar 
($12,000.00) civil penalty and submit to the Department a proposal for 
the proper inventorying of the MCI underground storage tank installa
tions; (3) within seventy-five days of the Order date, complete the 
upgrade of monitoring wells at five MCI underground storage tank 
sites, submit to the Department "as-built" information on seven 
underground storage tank sites, and submit to the Department hydro
static tank and piping test results on six tank sites; and (4) obtain 
final operational approvals within thirty days of the issuance of 
Department construction permits on all MCI underground storage tank 
sites in the State of South Carolina. 

84. Consent Order 87-32-WS 
Date: April 6, 1987 
Facility: Walhalla Water Supply System 
Respondent: Town of Walhalla, Oconee County 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that it installed a water distribution line prior to the issuance 
of a Department construction permit. 

The Respondent's violation subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting requirements of the State Safe Drinking Water Act; (2) 
within twenty days of the issuance of a Department construction 
permit, obtain final approval for the operation of the unpermitted 
water distribution line; (3) withhold operation of the unapproved 
water line until receipt of final Department operational approval; and 
(4) pay to the Department a two thousand dollar ($2,000.00) civil 
penalty for failure to comply with the requirements of this Order. 

85. Consent Order 87-33-WS 
Date: April 7, 1987 
~ondent: Mr. Columbus Rembert, St. Stephen, South Carolina 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(1) 
in that he engaged in the business of well contracting in the State of 
South Carolina without either obtaining certification from the Board 
of Certification, or employing certified well drillers. 

The Respondent violated the State Well Standards and Regulations, 
R.61-71.8.A., in that he failed to complete and submit to the De
partment water well record forms within thirty days of completion of 
any well. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
well driller certification requirements of the State Safe Drinking 
Water Act and the Well Standards and Regulations; (2) within thirty 
days of the Order date, obtain well driller certification from the 
Board of Certification and submit to the Department completed water 
well record forms on all wells contracted for by him since January 1, 
1987; and (3) ensure that a properly certified well driller is on 
site during all future well installations contracted for by the 
Respondent. 
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86. Consent Order 87-34-WS 
Date: April 14, 1987 
Respondent: Howard and Howard, Inc., Mt. Pleasant, South Carolina 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(1) 
in that it engaged in the business of well contracting in the State of 
South Carolina without employing well drillers that are certified by 
the Board of Certification. 

The Respondent's violation subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as aqthorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
well driller certification requirements of the State Safe Drinking 
Water Act; and (2) pay to the Department a two thousand dollar 
($2,000.00) civil penalty for failure to comply with this certifica
tion requirement. 

87. Consent Order 87-35-WS 
Date: April 15, 1987 
~lity: Carolina Springs Mobile Home Park, Aiken County 
Respondents: Charlie Connell and Jack Norris 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondents violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that they failed to have water samples collected and analyzed for 
bacteriological quality from the Carolina Springs Mobile Home Park 
water supply system. 

The Respondents violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that they failed to 
provide public notification of their bacteriological monitoring 
violation. 

Action: The Respondents consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
bacteriological monitoring requirements of the State Primary Drinking 
Water Regulations and the State Safe Drinking Water Act; and (2) 
within twenty days of the Order date, make public notification to the 
residents of Carolina Springs Mobile Home Park specifying the bacterio
logical monitoring violations, and provide the Department with a copy 
of the required notice. 

88. Consent Order 87-36-WS 
Date: May 5, 1987 
~lity: Starvin Marvin #64, Anderson County 
Respondent: Globe Oil Company, USA 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of any 
issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting and operational approval requirements of the State Under
ground Storage Tank Control Regulations; and (2) within thirty days of 
the Order date, pay to the Department a five hundred dollar ($500.00) 
civil penalty. 

89. Consent Order 87-37-WS 
Date: April 30, 1987 
Respondent: Mr. Robert L. Watford, Manning, South Carolina 
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Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated the State Well Standards 
and Regulations as follows: 

a. R.61-71.6.B.(3) and (5) in that he failed to properly grout 
potable water supply wells either to a minimum depth of twenty feet, 
or to a depth approved by the Department, within five days of the 
completion of any well; 

b. R.61-71.6.H. in that he failed to 
supply wells with identification plates 
tion; 

c. R.61-71.8.A. in that he failed to 
Department completed water well record 
completion of any well; and, 

properly label potable water 
immediately after construe-

complete and 
forms within 

submit to 
thirty days 

the 
of 

d. R.61-71.7.A.(ll) in that he 
minimum of twelve inches above 
wells. 

failed to extend well casings to a 
final grade on potable water supply 

The Respondent's violations subjected him to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
requirements of the State Well Standards and Regulations; (2) within 
thirty days of the Order date, submit to the Department completed 
water well record forms, pay to the Department a five hundred dollar 
($500.00) civil penalty, and complete upgrades of the unsatisfactory 
potable water supply wells; (3) pay to the Department an additional 
five hundred dollar ($500.00) civil penalty for any violation of the 
requirements of this Order; and (4) either upgrade or replace any 
other potable water supply wells which are found by the Department to 
have been improperly installed by the Respondent. 

90. Consent Order 87-38-WS 
Date: April 30, 1987 
Facility: I-26 Rest Areas, Orangeburg County 
Respondent: S.C. Department of Highways and Public Transportation, 
(SCDHPT) 
Previous Orders: Consent Order 86-65-WS, issued on October 16, 1986, 
for the unpermitted installation of a water distribution line to a 
SCDHPT maintenance facility in Horry County. 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of any 
issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permi~ting requirements of the State Safe Drinking Water Act; (2) 
within ten days of the Order date, notify SCDHPT District Office 
personnel of the permitting violations which are the subject of Orders 
87-38-WS and 86-65-WS, and advise SCDHPT staff to take appropriate 
steps to prevent the recurrence of permitting violations of the State 
Safe Drinking Water Act; (3) within fifteen days of the Order date, 
submit to the Department "as-built" plans and specifications on the 
I-26 Rest Area water supply facilities, provide the Department with a 
copy of the notice required by item two above, and either properly 
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abandon the well at the I-26 Rest Area (westbound lane), or submit to 
the Department a proposal for its non-potable use; (4) within ten days 
of the issuance of Department "as-built" construction permits, request 
final inspection on these lines from the Department; and (5) within 
thirty days of the issuance of Department "as-built" construction 
permits, obtain final Department approvals on the I-26 Rest Area 
public water supply facilities. 

91. Consent Order 87-02-W,WS 
Date: April 30, 1987 
Facility: Knight's Inn Motel, Lexington County 
Respondent: Cardinal Industries Incorporated 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) 
in that it placed the Knight's Inn Motel public water supply facili
ties into operation without prior Department approval. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 48-1-110 in that it placed the 
Knight's Inn Motel wastewater disposal facilities into operation prior 
to the issuance of Department operational approval. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Sections 44-55-90 and 48-1-330. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
operational approval requirements of the State Safe Drinking Water Act 
and the Pollution Control Act; (2) within fifteen days of the Order 
date, submit to the Department "as-built" drawings and engineering 
certification letters on the Knight's Inn Motel water supply and 
wastewater disposal facilities; (3) within thirty days of the Order 
date, obtain final approvals on the Knight's Inn Motel water supply 
and wastewater disposal facilities and pay to the Department a three 
thousand dollar ($3,00.00) civil penalty; and (4) pay to the Depart
ment an additional one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) civil penalty for 
any violation of the requirements of this Order. 

92. Consent Order 87-39-WS 
Date: May 1, 1987 
Respondent: Mr. Dwight Andrews, Lamar, South Carolina 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(1) 
in that he engaged in the business of well contracting in the State of 
South Carolina without either obtaining certification from the Board 
of Certification, or employing certified well drillers. 

The Respondent violated the State Well Standards and Regulations, 
R.61-71.8.A, in that he failed to complete and submit to the Depart
ment water well record forms within thirty days of the completion of 
any well. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
well driller certification requirements of the State Safe Drinking 
Water Act; (2) within thirty days of the Order date, obtain well 
driller certification in order to continue well contracting and well 
drilling in the State of South Carolina, and submit to the Department 
completed water well record forms on all wells installed by the 
Respondent since January 1, 1987; and (3) ensure that a properly 
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certified well driller is on site during any subsequent well installa
tions contracted for by the Respondent. 

93. Consent Order 87-40-WS 
Date: May 13, 1987 
Facility: Greenwood Health Care Center, Greenwood County 
Respondent: National Health Corporation 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of any 
issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting requirements of the State Safe Drinking Water Act; (2) 
withhold occupancy of the addition to the Greenwood Health Care Center 
until a Department construction permit is issued and final written 
operational approval is issued; and (3) within thirty days of the 
Order date, pay to the Department a two thousand dollar ($2,000.00) 
civil penalty. 

94. Consent Order 87-41-WS 
Date: May 8, 1987 
Facility: Grease Monkey, Richland County 
Respondents: Messrs. Larry Oren and Leroy Gibson 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondents violated the State Underground 
Storage Tank Control Regulations, R.61-92, as follows: 

a. R.61-92.5.A. in they failed to obtain the appropriate tank 
installation permit; 

b. R.61-92.9.A.(l) in that they failed to install a leak detection 
system on the two newly installed underground storage tanks; and, 

c. R.61-92.10. in that they failed to properly test the tanks and 
piping. 

The Respondents' violations subjected them to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 48-1-330. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting and operational approval requirements of the State Under
ground Storage Tank Control Regulations; (2) immediately proceed with 
the upgrade and testing of the underground storage tanks at the Grease 
Monkey; (3) within thirty days of the Order date, install two leak 
detection devices at the Grease Monkey, install cathodic protection on 
all tank piping, submit to the Department approvable tank tightness 
test results for both tanks and their appurtenances, and pay to the 
Department a five hundred dollar ($500.00) civil penalty; and (4) 
obtain the appropriate Department construction permit and operational 
approval prior to the use of the underground storage tanks at the 
Grease Monkey. 

95. Administrative Order 87-42-WS 
Date: May 7, 1987 
Facility: Town of Lynchburg Water Supply System, Lee County 
Respondent: Town of Lynchburg 
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Previous Order: Consent Order 86-02-WS, issued on January 2, 1986, 
required proper operation and maintenance, and specific improvements 
to the Lynchburg water supply system. 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-80 in 
that it failed to satisfactorily comply with the requirements of 
Department Consent Order 86-02-WS. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40 (d) in that the 
Lynchburg public water supply system was not adequately protected and 
maintained so as to continuously provide safe and potable water in 
sufficient quantity and pressure and free from potential hazards to 
the health of the consumers. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) within thirty days of the 
Order date, pay to the Department a two thousand dollar ($2,000.00) 
civil penalty, and complete certain improvements to the Lynchburg 
water supply system; and (2) within sixty days of the Order date, 
complete an upgrade of the Lynchburg water supply system. 

96. Consent Order 87-03-W,WS 
Date: May 11, 1987 
Facility: Hampton Place Apartments, Hampton County 
Respondent: Hampton Place Associates 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(c) 
in that it placed the Hampton Place Apartments public water supply 
facilities into operation without prior Department approval. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 48-1-110 in that it placed the 
Hampton Place Apartments wastewater disposal facilities into operation 
prior to the issuance of Department operational approval. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Sections 44-55-90 and 48-1-330. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
operational approval requirements of the State Safe Drinking Water Act 
and the Pollution Control Act; and (2) within thirty days of the Order 
date, pay to the Department a three thousand dollar ($3,000.00) civil 
penalty. 

97. Consent Order 87-43-WS 
Date: May 14, 1987 
Facility: Tucker's Mobile Home Park, Kershaw County 
Respondent: Mr. Don Tucker 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that he failed to have water samples collected and analyzed for 
bacteriological quality from the Tucker's Mobile Home Park water 
supply system. 

The Respondent violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations, 
R61-58.7, in that the Tucker's Mobile Home Park water supply system 
was not maintained in accordance with Department standards. 
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Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
bacteriological monitoring requirements of the State Primary Drinking 
Water Regulations and the State Safe Drinking Water Act; (2) by no 
later than June 30, 1987, complete an upgrade of the Tucker's Mobile 
Home Park water supply well, receive Department approval of this 
upgrade, and return the existing well system to service; and (3) 
remain on the well with no subsequent connection to the Lugoff water 
supply system without prior Department approval. 

98. Consent Order 87-44-WS 
Date: May 26, 1987 
Facility: Plains Trailer Park, Sumter County 
Respondent: Mr. E. M. Everett 
Previous Order: Consent Order 86-63-WS, issued on October 9, 1986, to 
Mr. Charles Lisenby (previous owner) required the proper permitting 
and upgrade of the Plain's Trailer Park public water supply system. 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of any 
issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) within ninety days of the 
Order date, either submit to the Department "as-built" plans and 
specifications on the existing Plains Trailer Park water supply system 
and a proposed upgrade of the system to meet current standards for a 
public water supply, or submit approvable plans and specifications for 
the connection of the Plains Trailer Park water distribution system to 
an acceptable public water supply; and (2) amend this Order to include 
an enforceable schedule of compliance for implementation of the 
selected alternative. 

99. Consent Order ~7-45-WS 
Date: June 1, 1987 
~ondent: Mr. Bill McKenzie, Hartsville, South Carolina 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(1) 
in that he engaged in the business of well contracting in the State of 
South Carolina without either obtaining certification from the Board 
of Certification, or employing certified well drillers. 

The Respondent violated the State Well Standards and Regulations as 
follows: 

a. R.61-71.6.B.(3) and (5) in that he failed to properly grout a 
potable water supply well either to a minimum depth of twenty feet, or 
to a depth approved by the Department, within five days of the comple
tion of any well; 

b. R.61-71.7.A.(11) in that he failed to extend the casing on a 
water supply well a minimum of twelve inches above final grade; 

c. R.61-71.6.H. in that he failed to properly label a potable water 
supply well with an identification plate immediately after construc
tion; and, 

d. R.61-71.8.A. in that he failed to complete and submit to the 
Department water well record forms within thirty days of completion of 
any well. 
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The Respondent's violations subjected him to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
well driller certification requirements of the State Safe Drinking 
Water Act, and the requirements of the State Well Standards and 
Regulations; (2) within thirty days of the Order date, submit to the 
Department completed water well record forms on all wells installed by 
the Respondent since January 1, 1987, and either upgrade the unsatis
factory water supply well, or properly abandon the well and install an 
approvable well; (3) pay to the Department a five hundred dollar 
($500.00) civil penalty for any violation of the requirements of this 
Order; and (4) either upgrade or replace any other potable water 
supply wells which are found by the Department to have been improperly 
installed by the Respondent. 

100. Administrative Order 87-46-WS 
Date: June 8, 1987 
Facility: Buffalo Water Supply System, Union County 
Respondent: Buffalo Water and Sewer District 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(e) 
in that it failed to have water samples collected and analyzed for 
bacteriological quality from the Buffalo water supply system. 

The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-70 in that it failed to 
provide public notification of its bacteriological monitoring viola
tion. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent was ordered to: (1) henceforth comply with 
the bacteriological monitoring requirements of the State Primary 
Drinking Water Regulations and the State Safe Drinking Water Act; (2) 
within twenty days of the Order date, make public notification to the 
residents of Buffalo specifying the bacteriological monitoring viola
tions, and provide the Department with a copy of the required notice; 
and (3) pay to the Department a one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) civil 
penalty for failure to comply with either requirement 1 or 2. 

101. Consent Order 87-47-WS 
Date: June 10, 1987 
Facility: Jet Store, Kershaw County 
Respondent: Kayo Oil Company 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated the State Underground 
Storage Tank Control Regulations as follows: 

a. R.61-92.5.A. in that it failed to obtain the appropriate tank 
installation permit; and, 

b. R.61-92.9.A.(l) in that it failed to install a leak detection 
system on the two newly installed underground storage tanks. 

The Respondent's violations subjected it to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 48-1-330. 
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Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting and operational approval requirements of the State Under
ground Storage Tank Control Regulations; (2) immediately proceed with 
the installation of an additional monitoring well at the Jet Store 
facility; (3) within thirty days of the Order date, install an addi
tional monitoring well at the Jet Store facility in accordance with 
the requirements of the State Well Standards and Regulations, R.61-71, 
and pay to the Department a one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) civil 
penalty; and (4) obtain the appropriate Department operational ap
provals for the two (2) underground storage tanks and their 
appurtenances at the Jet Store facility. 

102. Consent Order 87-48-WS 
Date: June 12, 1987 
~ondent: Mr. Eddie Riley, Paxville, Clarendon County 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-40(1) 
in that he engaged in the business of well contracting in the State of 
South Carolina without either obtaining certification from the Board 
of Certification, or employing certified well drillers. 

The Respondent violated the State Well Standards and Regulations as 
follows: 

a. R.61-71.6.B.(3) and (5) in that he failed to properly grout a 
potable water supply well either to a minimum depth of twenty feet, or 
to a depth approved by the Department, within five days of the comple
tion of any well; 

b. R.61-71.6.H. in that he failed to properly label a potable water 
supply well with an identification plate immediately after construc
tion; and, 

c. R.61-71.8.A. in that he failed to complete and submit to the 
Department water well record forms within thirty days of completion of 
any well. 

The Respondent's violations subjected him to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
well driller certification requirements of the State Safe Drinking 
Water Act, and the requirements of the State Well Standards and 
Regulations; (2) within thirty days of the Order date, submit to the 
Department completed water well record forms on all wells installed by 
the Respondent since January 1, 1987, and either upgrade the unsatis
factory water supply well, or properly abandon the well and install an 
approvable well; (3) pay to the Department a one thousand dollar 
($1,000.00) civil penalty for any violation of the requirements of 
this Order; and (4) either upgrade or replace any other potable water 
supply wells which are found by the Department to have been improperly 
installed by the Respondent. 

103. Consent Order 87-49-WS 
Date: June 16, 1987 
~lity: Beaumont Townhouses, Charleston County 
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Respondents: Town and Campus International Inc., and Collegiate 
Enterprises, Inc. 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of any 
issue of law. 

Action: The Respondents consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting requirements of the State Safe Drinking Water Act; (2) 
withhold occupancy of the Beaumont Townhouses until a Department 
construction permit is issued and final written operational approval 
is issued; and (3) within fifteen days of the Order date, pay to the 
Department a one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) civil penalty. 

104. Consent Order 87-50-WS 
Date: June 16, 1987 
Facility: Town of Salem Water Supply System, Oconee County 
Respondent: Town of Salem 
Previous Orders: Consent Order 85-94-WS, issued on November 22, 1985, 
for violations of the permitting and operational approval requirements 
of the State Safe Drinking Water Act. 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of any 
issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting requirements of the State Safe Drinking Water Act; (2) 
within fifteen days of the Order date, submit to the Department plans 
and specifications for the proposed water supply facilities which will 
serve the Whitewater Lake Development; (3) within thirty days of the 
Order date, obtain final operational approval from the Department for 
the water distribution lines authorized by Department Contruction 
Permits No. WC-157, 403587, and WC-176; (4) within forty-five days of 
the Order date, submit to the Department well yield information on all 
operating Salem water supply wells and calculations showing the number 
of taps that can be served with both its water supply wells and the 
master-metered connection to the Town of Seneca; (5) within sixty days 
of the issuance of a Department construction permit for the water 
supply facilities to serve the Whitewater Lake Development, complete 
the installation of the portion of these facilities which will result 
in the elimination of the unpermitted water distribution line along SC 
Highway S-37-145, and receive Department approval for the operation of 
this portion of these facilities; and (6) pay to the Department a two 
thousand dollar ($2,000.00) civil penalty for any violation of this 
Order. 

105. Consent Order 87-51-WS 
Date: June 17, 1987 
Respondent: Mr. Bob Williams, Orangeburg County 
Previous Orders: Administrative Order 86-76-WS, issued on November 
18, 1986, required compliance with the unfulfilled requirements of 
Department Consent Order 86-48-WS, and the State Well Standards and 
Regulations, R.61-71. 

Consent Order 86-48-WS was issued on August 4, 1987, for violations of 
the well driller certification requirements of Code Section 
44-55-40(1) and for violations of the State Well Standards and Regula
tions. 
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Conclusions of Law: The Respondent violated Code Section 44-55-BO(a) 
in that he failed to satisfactorily comply with the requirements of 
Department Administrative Order 86-76-WS. 

The Respondent violated the State Well Standards and Regulations as 
follows: 

a. R.61-71.6.B.(3) and (5) in that he failed properly grout a 
potable water supply well either to a minimum depth of twenty feet, or 
to a depth approved by the Department, within five days of the comple
tion of any well; 

b. R.61-71.6.H. in that he failed to properly label a potable water 
supply well with an identification plate immediately after construc
tion; and, 

c. R.61-71.8.A. in that he failed to complete and submit to the 
Department water well record forms within thirty days of completion of 
any well. 

The Respondent's violations subjected him to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
well driller certification requirements of the State Safe Drinking 
Water Act, and the require~ents of the State Well Standards and 
Regulations; (2) within fifteen days of the Order date, complete an 
upgrade of the unsatisfactory water supply well; (3) pay to the 
Department a two thousand dollar ($2,000.00) civil penalty; and (4) 
either upgrade or replace any other potable water supply wells which 
are found by the Department to have been improperly installed by the 
Respondent. 

106. Consent Order 87-52-WS 
Date: June 25, 1987 
~lity: Fairway Drive Water Line Extension, York County 
Respondent: Messrs. J. Dean Barnhill and Donald Osborne 
Conclusions of Law: The Respondents violated Code Section 44-55-40(a) 
in that they installed a water distribution line prior to the issuance 
of a Department construction permit. 

The Respondents' violation subjected them to the assessment of civil 
penalties as authorized by Code Section 44-55-90. 

Action: The Respondents consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
permitting requirements of the State Safe Drinking Water Act; (2) 
withhold operation of the unapproved water supply line until a Depart
ment construction permit is issued and final Department operational 
approval is granted; and (3) pay to the Department a one thousand 
dollar ($1,000.00) civil penalty. 

107. Consent Order 87-54-WS 
Date: June 25, 1987 
Respondents: Mr. John J. Peterson, Jr. and Breland Well Drilling, 
Estill, Hampton County, South Carolina. 
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Conclusions of Law: The Respondents violated the State Well Standards 
and Regulations, R.61-71.6.B.(3) and (5), in that they failed to 
properly grout water supply and injection wells either to a minimum 
depth of twenty feet, or to a depth approved by the Department, within 
five days of the completion of any well. 

The Respondents violated the State Underground Injection Control 
Regulations, R.61-87, in that they failed to properly construct Class 
V.B. injection wells in a manner which would prevent the movement of 
contaminants into underground sources of drinking water. 

Action: The Respondents consented to: (1) henceforth comply with the 
requirements of the State Well Standards and Regulations and the State 
Underground Injection Control Regulations; (2) on or before August 12, 
1987, upgrade the unsatisfactory water supply and injection wells; and 
(3) either upgrade or replace any other water supply and/or injection 
wells which are found by the Department to have been improperly 
installed by the Respondent. 

108. Consent Order 87-55-WS 
Date: June 30, 1987 
Facility: American Mobile Home Park, Sumter County 
Respondent: Mr. Sterling Emerson 
Conclusions of Law: This Order was issued without adjudication of any 
issue of law. 

Action: The Respondent consented to: (1) within forty-five days of 
the Order date, either submit to the Department "as-built" plans and 
specifications on the existing American Mobile Home Park water supply 
system and a proposed upgrade of the system to meet current standards 
for a public water supply, or submit approvable plans and specifica
tions for the connection of the American Mobile Home Park water 
distribution system to an acceptable public water supply; and (2) 
amend this Order to include an enforceable schedule of compliance for 
implementation of the selected alternative. 
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1. 

2. 

3. 

WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ORDERS 
ISSUED BY THE 

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
AND ENVIRON.t,iENTAL CONTROL 

July 1986 - June 1987 

Consent Order No. 86-56-W 
Date: June 26, 1986 
Facility: AVM of South Carolina, Inc. - Marion County 
Respondent: AVH of South Carolina, Inc. 
Surmnary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment facility that serves the AVM Corporation of 
South Carolina has consistently failed to meet the final effluent 
limitations contained in its NPDES permit. This places the Respon
dent in violation of Section 48-1-90 (a) of the South Carolina Pol
lution Control Act in that it has discharged wastewater into the 
environment of the State other than in compliance with a permit 
issued by the Department. 
Action: '.i'he Respondent has agreed to: On or before September 1, 
1986, furnish to the Department a Preliminary Engineering Report 
addressing actions necessary to correct the effluent violations, 
including an implementation schedule which, when approved, will 
become a part of this Order. 

Administrative Order No. 86-57-W 
Date: July 11, 1986 
Facility: Lost Wilderness Property - McCormick County 
Respondent: Lost wilderness Property Owners Association, Inc. 
Summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment facility that serves Lost Wilderness Property 
is not being operated and maintained in accordance with the condi
tions of the NPDES permit. This places the Respondent in violation 
of Section 48-1-110 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in 
that it has failed to ascribe to the conditions of its permit to 
discharge issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has ·been ordered to: (1) On or before July 
28, 1986, submit the NPDES application for renewal; (2) On or before 
July 28, 1986, submit a request for an extension of the Permit to 
Construct (#11,299); (3) On or before September 1, 1986, begin 
construction of the lagoon system; (4) On or before February 28, 
1987, complete construction; and (5) On or before May 31, 1987, 
achieve compliance with the NPDES permit. 

Consent Order No. 86-58-W 
Date: July 14, 1986 
Facility: Leroy Springs Golf Course - Lancaster County 
Respondent: Leroy Springs and Company, Inc. 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
disposal system that serves Leroy Springs Golf and Recreational area 
has failed, resulting in the unauthorized discharge of wastewater 
into the environment. This places the Respondent in violation of 
Section 48-1-90 (a) of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in 
that wastewater is being discharged into the environment in a manner 
other than in compliance with a permit to discharge issued by the 
Department. This violation of the Code subjects the Respondent to 
the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 
of the Code. 
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h. 
i. 
j. 
k. 

1. 

m. 

Plant effluent flow (continuous) 
Return sludge flow (estimated based on pump curve) 
Waste sludge volume (estimated based on pump curve) 
calculate Food to Microorganism Ratio (F:M) 
and/or Hean Cell Residence Time (MCRT) (3/week) 
In order to spot performance trends, plot F:M, 
and/or MCRT, MLSS, effluent Biochemical Oxygen 
Demand (BOD), effluent Total Suspended Solids 
(TSS), eff~uent ammonia, Settled Solids Volume 
after five (5) and thirty 30 minutes (Ssv

5
, 

SSV 
0

) and plant flow versus time (days). 
Uti!1.ze information gained from the above tests 
to make the necessary operational adjustments 
to maintain effluent quality. Record these 
adjustments in operation. 

3. The daily checklist, including the results of the 
tests described in item #2 above, shall be submitted 
to the Department on a monthly basis beginning with 
the checklist for August 1986, which is due on 
September 5, 1986. Submittal of this data to the 
Department will continue for one (1) year after the 
date of the issuance of this Order. 

4. Inspect all pumps, controls, and chlorination equip
ment daily and follow the manufacturer's reconunended 
procedures for corrective maintenance. 

5. Develop a spare parts inventory such that all vital 
parts are in stock at the plant site for use when 
needed. 

B. Use proper sampling techniques, including flow proportional 
sampling, to obtain representative samples for Discharge 
Monitoring Reports. 

C. Comply with all NPDES permit conditions. 

2) As to Surge Control 

A. Maintain an auxillary power source and supply power immedi
ately to the facility periods of power outages. 

B. Install the necessary wet weather and dry weather equali
zation/surge basins in accordance with the following 
schedule of compliance: 

1. Submit plans and specifications 
the Department-approved PER by 

in accordance with 
August 15, 1986. 

2. Start construction in accordance with Department
approved Plans and Specifications by October 1, 1986. 

3. End construction and apply for Permit to Operate by April 
1, 1987. 
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4. 

5. 

Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Immediately impose 
terrq,;orary measures, approved by the Department District Office, to 
prevent further discharges from the septic tank; (2) On or before 
July 15, 1986, submit to the Department approvable plans and speci
fications for the permanent elimination of the source of the 
unauthorized discharges; (3) Within three (3) weeks of receipt of a 
Deparment Permit to Construct, complete construction and obtain a 
Department Permit to Operate; and (4) Within ten (10) days of 
receipt of this fully executed Order, pay to the Department a civil 
penalty in the sum of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00). 

Consent Order No. 86-59-W 
Date: July 23, 1986 
Facility: Comfort Inn - Beaufort County 
Res1->ondent: Desai, Inc. 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
collectiun system that serves the Comfort Inn has been placed into 
operation prior to obtaining a permit to operate issued by the 
De1->artment. This places the Respondent in violation of Section 
48-1-110 of the South carolina Pollution Control Act in that it has 
o~erated a wastewater collection system without obtaining prior 
approval from the Department. This violation of the Code subjects 
the Res!_)ondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in 
Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: Within fifteen (15) days 
from the issuance of this Order, pay to the Department a civil 
penalty of two thuusand dollars ($2,000). 

Consent Order Ho. 86-60-W 
Date: June 27, 1986 
Facility: Lockhaven campers Court - Florence County 
ReSi)Ondent: hayfara Incorporated 
bummary: Department inspections and records reveal that the waste
water treatnitnt facility that serves Lockhaven campers Court has 
failed to consistently meet the final effluent limitations contained 
in the NPDES permit. This places the Respondent in violation of 
Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that 
it discharged wastewater into the environment in a manner not in 
compliance with the permit to discharge issued by the Department. 
This violation of the Code subjects the Respondent to the assessment 
of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Operate and maintain 
this facility to maximize treatment capabilities; (2) Retain a 
certified class "B" operator and ensure he visits the facility seven 
(7) days per week and maintains a daily checklist; (3) On or before 
September 1, 1986, subrni t to the Department a Preliminary Engine
ering Report for upgrade; (4) On or before November 3, 1986, submit 
plans and SlJecifications for upgrade; (5) On or before January 5, 
1987, start construction; (6) On or before June 1, 1987, complete 
construction; and (7) Immediately pay to the Department a four 
thousand dollar ($4,000) civil penalty. 

6. Consent Order No. 86-61-W 
Date: July 18, 1986 
Facility: Town of Lamar - Darlington County 
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Respondent: Town of Lamar 
Summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment system that serves the Town of Lamar is unable 
to meet the requirements of the permit to construct a no-discharge 
system. The facility is hydraulically overloaded causing unauthor
ized discharges and the system is not being operated and maintained 
~roperly, to include groundwater monitoring and spray applications 
rates are not being adhered to. This places the Respondent in vio
lation of Sections 48-l-90(a) and 48-1-llO(d) of the South Carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that it is discharging wastewater into the 
environment other than in compliance with its permit and the 
facility is not being operated and maintained properly in accordance 
with said permits. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Operate and maintain 
existing facility to maximize treatment capabilities; (2) Meet 
secondary limits as assigned in Construction Permit #10,359 issued 
August 13, 1984; (3) Immediately submit to the Department a ground
water monitoring report for the monitoring wells and report well 
monitoring ciata quarterly as required by Department permit; (4) On 
or before July 1, 1986, sul:mi t to the Department an approvable 
schedule for: 

a. A determination of the appropriate land area needed for 
application of wastewater based on present design flow and 
any excess flow. This determination shall be completed 
and submitted to the Departmemt on or before July 31, 
1986, and include a map depicting the existing plant site, 
spray sites, and other sites available for land appli
cation. 

b. A determination of the extent of groundwater infiltration 
to the existing lagoon through evaluation of influent flow 
to the lagoon vs. effluent flow. This determination shall 
be completed and submitted to the Department on or before 
August 15, 1986. 

c. The completion and submittal of plans and specifications 
for necessary improvements to the wastewater treatment 
system. 

d. The purchase of necessary additional land for wastewater 
treatment or disposal. 

e. Start and end construction dates for any necessary improve
ments. 

f. A final compliance date. 

(5) On or before September 15, 1986, complete modifications to the 
subsurface drainage system at present land application site in order 
to reduce potential for surface ponding of wastewater. Approval for 
these modifications must be obtained from the Department prior to 
initiating corrective action; and (6) Be subject to a moratorium 
restricting the issuance of any further permits for construction 
excluding single service taps for residential dwellings. 
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7. Consent Order No. 86-62-W 
Date: July 16, 1986 
Facility: Beaver Creek Mobile Home Park - York County 
Respondent: Mr. W.C. Rutledge, Jr. 
summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment facility that serves Beaver Creek Mobile Home 
Park has failed to consistently meet the final effluent limitations 
and the facility is being improperly operated and maintained in 
accordance with the conditions contained in the NPDES permit issued 
by the Department. This places the Respondent in violation of 
sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that it has discharged wastewater into the environ
ment in a manner other than in compliance with its permit to dis
charge and the facility is not receiving proper operation and main
tenance as prescribed in its NPDES permit. These violations of the 
Code subject the Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as 
set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has consented to: (1) Immediately begin to 
operate and maintain the facility at optimum capability and ensure 
that the facility complies with the NPDES permit requirements on a 
continuing basis; (2) Iuunediately ensure that the operator of record 
or his designated representative visits the facility on a daily 
basis and so indicates accomplishments in the facility logbook; (3) 
Identify the need to waste sludge, as required, and accomplish this 
requirement, as necessary, on a regular basis; (4) Immediately begin 
submitting to the Catawba District Office weekly effluent dissolved 
oxygen monitoring results within seven (7) days of sampling. If 
within two (2) months of the installation of a new outfall structure 
and the accomplishment of items 1 through 3 above, the dissolved 
oxygen level does not improve sufficiently to meet the NPDES permit 
requirement, submit a proposal to the Department for the installa
tion of ~est-aeration at the facility; (5) On or before fifteen (15) 
days of the effective date of this Order, complete the installation 
of a chlorine contact chambe·r and flow measuring device approved by 
the Deparbnent; (6) On or before fifteen (15) days of the effective 
date of this Order, adjust and/or repair the clarifier, and remove 
and rework and/or repair the diffuser nozzels; and (7) On or before 
ten (10) days of receipt of this fully executed Order, pay to the 
Deparbnent a civil penalty in the sum of six thousand dollars 
($6,000.00) for violations of the Pollution Control Act. 

8. 1 Consent Order No. 86-63-W 
Date: August 4, 1986 
Facility: Masters Economy Inn 
Respondent: Kuhlke Properties, Inc. 
summary: Department inspections reveal the water distribution and 
wastewater collection system lines that serve Masters Economy Inn 
have been placed into operation without obtaining the required 
~ermits to operate from the Depar~ent. This places the Respondent 
in violation of Sections 44-55-40 (c) and 48-1-110 of the Safe 
Drinking Water Act and the Pollution Control Act, respectively, in 
that it placed a water distribution system and a wastewater col
lection system into operation prior to obtaining the required 
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9. 

10. 

permits to operate from the Department. These violations of the 
Code subject the Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as 
set forth in Sections 44-55-90 and 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Within fifteen (15) days 
from the issuance of this Order, pay a civil penalty of four 
thousand dollars ($4,000.00) to the Department; and 2) Within 
thirty (30) days of the issuance of this Order - Obtain final certi
fication for both the wastewater collection and water distribution 
systems from the South carolina Coastal Council. If this deadline 
is not met, additional civil penalties of $1,000 per week, or any 
part of a week, will accrue until the certification is obtained. 
Payment of the additional penalties will be due within 15 days of 
written notification by the Department of the amount due. It shall 
be the Respondent's responsibility to notify the Department when 
this requirement has been fulfilled, i.e., Coastal Council certifi
cation is received. 

Consent Order No. 86-64-W 
Date: July 22, 1986 
Facility: Haywood Plaza Partnership - Greenville County 
Respondent: .Haywood Plaza Partnership 
sununary: Department investigations reveal the construction and 
operation of a wastewater collection system that serves Haywood 
Plaza has been constructed and placed into operation without proper 
Department permitting and approval. This places the Respondent in 
violation of Section 48-1-110 (a) of the South Carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that it failed to obtain the ar,propriate Department 
permits prior to constructing and operating a wastewater collection 
system. This violation of the Code subjects the Respondent to the 
assessment of a civil penalty as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of 
the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Immediately cease the 
practice of installation and operation of wastewater collection 
systems without Department approval, and comply with all Department 
l:iermitting requirements; 2) On or before July 31, 1986, correct all 
of the remaining deficiencies in the sewer collection system as 
identified in the field inspection report attached hereto and 
identified as "Exhibit A" and, obtain the necessary Department 
approval to operate it; and 3) Within fifteen (15) days of the 
issuance of this Order, pay to the Department a civil penalty in the 
amount of three thousand dollars ($3,000.00), as the sole penalty to 
be assessed for the above violations. 

Administrative Order No. 85-65-w 
Date: August 7, 1986 
Facility: Town of Clinton - Laurens County 
Respondent: Town of Clinton 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that a wastewater col
lection system known as "Ring Road Sewer Project" that serves a 
portion of the Town of Clinton has been constructed without prior 
Department permitting and approval. '£his places the Respondent in 
violation of the South carolina Pollution Control Act in that it 
failed to obtain appropriate Department permits prior to constructing 
an extension to its wastewater collection system. This violation of 
the Code subjects the Respondent to the assessment of a civil 
penalty as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 

284 



Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Immediately comply with 
all Department permitting requirements; 2) Upon issuance of the 
Permit to Construct submit to the Department certification from the 
registered professional engineer who signed the plans that con
struction was completed in accordance with the Department issued 
Permit to construct. Upon a Department final inspection and after 
the Department has issued a Permit to Operate, place the sewer line 
extension into operation; and, 3) Within fifteen (15) days of the 
effective date of this Order, pay to the Department a two thousand 
dollar ($2,000) civil penalty. 

11. **Consent Order No. 86-66-W 
Da-te: August 4, 1986 
Facility: Alpine Utilities, Inc. - Lexington County 
Respondent: Alpine Utilities, Inc. 
Summary: Department inspections reveal that the wastewater treat
ment facility that serves a portion of St. Andrews area in Lexington 
and Richland Counties has emitted unauthorized discharges of waste
water into the receiving waters of Stoop Creek resulting in a 
noticeable solids build-up. This places the Respondent in violation 
of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in 
that wastewater was discharged into the environment in a manner 
other than in compliance with a permit issued by the Department. The 
violation of the Code subjects the Respondent to the assessment of a 
civil penalty as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Properly operate and 
maintain the existing wastewater treatment facility; 2) Develop and 
implement an operational control testing program. The information 
anu data generated from the program shall be utilized to the maximum 
extent possible to optimize facility performance; 3) Immediately 
incoq,orate a monitoring program for Stoop Creek into the daily 
checklist. ·rhis monitoring program shall include the measurement of 
dissolved oxygen at an agreed location upstream and downstream of 
the discharge with these daily values recorded on the checklist. In 
addition, Stoop Creek shall be observed visually to detennine if 
there is any sludge present which requires removal. If sludge 
removal is necessary, it shall be removed inunediately. The daily 
checklist, including the results of the tests described in item #2 
above, shall be submitted to the Department on a monthly basis 
beginning with the checklist for August 1986, which is due on 
September 10, 1986. Suhnittal of this data to the Department will 
continue for one (1) year after the date of the issuance of this 
Order; 4) On October 1, 1986, submit to the Department a report on 
the facility's operational status. If problems are identified, 
Alpine shall submit a Preliminary Engineering Report describing the 
necessary corrective actions and an implementation schedule. Fol
lowing ar,f,roval by the Department, this Order may be amended to 
incorporate the corrective measures and schedules contained in the 
report; 5) Pay to the Deparbaent a civil penalty of five thousand 
dollars ($5,000.00) on or before August 15, 1986, for the unauthor
ized discharge of wastewater to Stoop Creek; and, 6) This Order 
supersedes and replaces any previous Orders and/or Amendments 
thereto. 
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12. **Consent Order No. 86-67-W 
Date: August 4, 1986 

13. 

Facility: Lexington County/Two Notch Road Plant - Lexington County 
Respondent: Lexington County 
Sununary: Department investigations reveal that the effluent waste
water discharge from the treatment facility that serves a portion of 
Lexington County has caused an impact on the aquatic life in the 
receiving stream. This places the Respondent in violation of South 
Carolina Regulation 61-68(E) (5) (b) and a previous Department Admini
strative Order No. 84-77-W promulgated by Section 48-1-50 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that wastes have been intro
duced to waters of the State in sufficient amounts to be harmful to 
the survival of freshwater fauna or propagation thereof and that 
the South Carolina POTW Pretreatment Program has not been imple
mented. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Adhere to the following 
schedule of compliance pertaining to the construction of an effluent 
outfall line from the referenced wastewater treatment plant to Red 
Bank Creek: 

a. 
b. 
c. 

Begin Construction 
Complete Construction 
Attain Operational Level -

September 1, 1986 
March 1, 1987 
March 15, 1987 

2) Continually operate and maintain the facility in accordance with 
the conditions of NPDES permit No. SC0037591 and Department con
struction permit #9822; 3) Submit a revised pretreatment program to 
reflect new baseline parameters based on new discharge location by 
September 1, 1986; and, 4) Issue Discharge Permits to all identi
fied contributing industries that need regulation by December 1, 
1986. 

Consent Order No. 86-68-W 
Date: August 4, 1986 
Facilities: South Carolina Department of Corrections/Dutchman 

Facility, Kirkland Facility, HacDougall Facility, 
Perry Facility, and Wateree Facility 

Respondent: South Carolina Department of Corrections 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the above referenced 
wastewater treatment facilities that serve the respective institu
tions have incurred numerous irregularities, permit violations, and 
unauthorized discharges of wastewater into the environment. This 
places the Respondent in violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 
of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that wastewater was 
discharged to the environment in a manner other than in accordance 
with a permit issued by the Deparbnent and in that it has operated 
the waste disposal systems in violation of the conditions of the 
permits issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 

Perry waste treatment facility -

1) On or before July 15, 1986, retain an additional certified 
operator to oversee proper operation and maintenance at the 
facility. 
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2) Any other personnel involved in the daily waste treatment 
facility operations will have, at a minimum, trainee status. 

3) On or before July 31, 1986, submit a proposal for upgrade of 
the facility to include a schedule which, upon Department 
approval, shall be incorporated into this Order. 

MacDougall waste treatment facility -

1) Continually operate and maintain the spray field to assure 
optiraal treatment and prevent further unauthorized discharge of 
wastewater. 

2) Ensure that the facility is visited daily by a certified 
operator,** and that a daily operation and maintenance log is 
retained and submitted by the 15th day of each month. 

**Certified operator will perform required daily operation 
inspections and maintenance Monday through Friday. Week
ends and holidays will be conducted by trainee status 
institutional personnel trained and directed by certified 
OlJerator. 

3) On or before July 15, 1986, submit a written report concerning 
the overall condition of the facility. The report shall 
include proposals for corrections of operational or design 
deficiencies and a schedule for implementation of the pro
posals. Upon Department approval, the schedule shall become a 
part of this Order. 

wateree domestic wastewater facility -

1. Continually operate and maintain the spray field to assure the 
best possible treatment and prevent further unauthorized dis
charge of wastewater. 

2) On or before October 1, 1986 - submit a Preliminary Engineering 
Report (PER) on the upgrade of this facility or alternative 
methods of waste treatment at the site, to include a schedule 
of compliance. 

3) Upon Depart..11ent approval, the schedule will become a part of 
this Order. 

Wateree agricultural facilities -

1) •rake immediate measures to obtain SCS certification of the New 
Dairy facility anci on or before December 30, 1986 obtain SCS 
certification and obtain a Qepartment Permit to operate the 
facility. 

2) On or before July 15, 1986 - Submit a revised waste management 
plan addressing temporary operation and total deactivation of 
the old dairy facility to include a schedule for both require-
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ments. The schedules when approved by the Department, will 
become a part of this Order. 

3) Inunediately discontinue any unauthorized discharge of waste
Wdter from swine lagoons and take measures to assure all re
quirements of the waste management plan are met and operational 
permits obtained. 

4) On or before July 15, 1986 - Submit a waste management plan for 
the runoff from the Boar Pen to include a schedule for implemen
tation of the approved alternative. The schedule, when 
ap}:)roved by the Department, will be come a part of this Order 

Kirkland waste treatment system -

1) On or before October 1, 1986 - Take the proper DeparL"llent
authorized steps to completely close-out the wastewater lagoon 
serving the institution. 

2) Notify the Department when close-out is complete. 

Dutchman waste treatment system -

1) On or before July 1, 1986 - complete facilities presently under 
construction in accordance with the Department permit to con
struct and obtain a permit to operate. 

2) On or before August 1, 1986 - meet final effluent limitations 
contained in NPDES permit. 

14. **Consent Order No. 86-69-W 
Date: August 5, 1986 
Facility: Wappoo Residences - Charleston County 
Respondent: McGregor Builders and Realty Company 
summary: As a result of an adjudicatory hearing contesting the 
requirements of Department Administrative Order No. 85-65-W, this 
Order was negotiated to terminate the controversy. The original 
order was issued for the construction of a wastewater collection 
system without obtaining prior Department approval and permits. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) McGregor shall apply for 
a construction pennit for the Wappoo Project within thirty (30) days 
from the date of this Order, submitting "as built" plans and speci
fications for the wastewater collection system to DHEC. If any 
rno<.lifications are necessary to obtain a construction permit, 
NcGregor will also submit plans and specifications on the modifi
cations. The plans and specifications are to be stamped by a regi
stered professional engineer; 2) McGregor shall complete any work 
necessary to bring the system into compliance with the construction 
permit within 180 days from the date of this Order. Upon completion 
of construction, McGregor shall submit to DHEC a certification from 
the engineer who stamped the plans that construction was completed 
in accordance with the construction permit and request a final 
inspection from the Devartment. The DeparL"llent will issue an 
operating permit after a final inspection has verified that con-

288 



struction was completed in accordance with the construction permit; 
and, 4) McGre<Jor shall pay to the Department a civil penalty of 
five hundred dollars ($500) within thirty (30) days from the date 
of this Order. The abatement of the civil penalty assessment in 
Order 85-65-W is contingent on compliance with the above require
ments; otherwise the rest of the $2000 penalty will be reinstated. 

15. **Consent Order No. 86-70-W 
Date: July 28, 1986 
Facility: Roosevelt Garden Apartments - Orangeburg County 
Res1-1ondent: Carolina Water Service 
Summary: Department investigations and records review reveal that 
the wastewater treati:1ent facility that serves Roosevelt Garden 
Apartments is not being properly operated and maintained which has 
contributed to permit effluent violations and unauthorized dis
charges of wastewater into the envirorunent. This places the Respon
dent in violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South 
Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it has discharged wastewater 
into the environment in contravention of its NPDES permit and in 
that it has failed to properly operate and maintain the facility in 
accordance with the NPDES permit. These violations of the Code 
subject the Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set 
forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent as agreed to: 1) Pay to the Department a 
civil penalty of three thousand dollars ($3,000) for violations of 
effluent limits and unsatisfactory operation and maintenance reports 
since December 15, 1985, and the unauthorized discharge which was 
discovered on March 24, 1986. Penalty shall be paid within fifteen 
(15) days of the effective date of this Order; 2) Insure that the 
waste treatment facility is operated and maintained at all times in 
accordance with the conditions of the NPDES permit; and, 3) On or 
before August 1, 1986 Submit plans and specifications for achieving 
final effluent li1aits including a schedule for implementation of the 
J:iroposal. 

16. **Administrative Order No. 86-71-W 
Date: August 4, 1986 
Facility: Woodlands Country Club - Richland County 
Respondent: Valhalla Company 
Summary: Departinent investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Woodlands Country Club has produced 
an unauthorized discharge of wastewater into the environment as a 
result of a failed effluent spray system. This places the Respon
dent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that it has discharged wastewater into the environ
ment in a manner other than in compliance with a permit issued by 
the Department. This violation of the Code subjects the Respondent 
to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 
48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has been ordered to: 1) Operate and maintain 
the facility in accordance with the conditions listed in Department 
construction permit #3237; 2) Obtain a wastewater treatment operator 
with a "B" certification to operate and maintain the wastewater 
treatment facility and spray irrigation system; and 3) On or before 
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August 15, 1986, 
thousand dollars 
wastewater. 

pay to the Department a civil penalty of eight 
($8,000.00) for the unauthorized discharge of 

17. **Consent Order No. 86-72-W 
Date: August 15, 1986 
Facility: Friarsgate Subdivision/Rawls Creek {B) - Lexington County 
Res_E;ondent: Carolina Water Service, Inc. 
Surrunary: Department investigations and records review reveal that 
the wastewater treatinent facility that serves Friarsgate Subdivision 
is not being operated and maintained sufficiently, to preclude 
effluent permit violations and unauthorized discharges. The re
ceiving stream has been impacted as a result of improper operation 
and maintenance of this facility. 1'his places the Respondent in 
violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South carolina Pollution Control 
Act in that wastewater has been discharged to the environment in a 
manner other than in accordance with a permit issued by the Depart
ment. This violation of the Code subjects the Respondent to the 
assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of 
the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 

1) As to Operation and Maintenance 

A. Properly operate and maintain the existing wastewater 
treatment facility, to include the following: 

1. Employ a full-time, properly certified operator whose 
only responsibility is the satisfactory operation of 
the facility, including visits on Saturday and 
Sunday. 

2. On or before August 25, 1986, develop and implement 
an operational control testing program. The informa
tion and data generated from the program shall be 
utilized to the maximum extent possible to optimize 
facility performance. The program shall incorporate, 
at a minimum, the following tests and calculations 
and shall continue in accordance with the frequencies 
listed for one (1) year after August 25, 1986, which
ever is later: 

a. Settleability (daily) 
b. Sludge blanket depth (two times per day) 
c. Microscopic examination of activited sludge 

(at least weekly) 
d. pH profile through plant (3/week) 
e. Dissolved oxygen profile in oxidation ditch (daily 

till 9/30/86, then 3/week) 
f. Mixed Liquor Suspended Solids/ Mixed Liquor 

Volatile Suspended Solids in aeration basin 
(MLSS/MLVSS) (daily till 9/30/86, then 3/week) 

g. Return waste sludge concentration (5/week till 
9/30/86, then 3/week) 
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4. Attain operational level by May 1, 1987. 

C. The Department is aware that 11 of the construction 
requirements set forth in this Subparagraph II are being 
performed by Agreement between Mungo and carolina, a copy 
of such Agreement having been provided to the Department. 
The Department therefore agrees to carefully review any 
delays, if any, in meeting the schedules set forth in Sub
paragraph II and where such delays are not occasioned by 
the actions or inactions of Carolina, no penalty will be 
imposed. 

3. In addition to the above requirements, on or before August 25, 
1986 Carolina hereby agrees to pay to the Department a civil 
penalty of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) without admitting 
by such agreement and payment that its operation of the 
facility was the underlying cause of the violations that have 
occurred. 

18. Consent Order No. 86-73-W 
Date: August 6, 1986 

19. 

Facility: Celotex Corporation/Baraboard Plant Marion County 
Respondent: Celotex Corporation 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the non-point source 
discharge wastewater disposal system that serves Baraboard Plant in 
Marion County is not being properly operated as permitted by the 
De_t>artment and, as a result, the malfunctioning system has resulted 
in several unauthorized discharges of wastewater into the environ
ment. Groundwater monitoring reports from wells on the plant 
property reveal excessive nitrate above maximum contaminate level. 
This places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act and S .c. Regulation 61-68 in 
that it discharged wastewater to the environment in a manner other 
than in compliance with a Department permit and in that water of 
the State have been measurably affected by the discharges from the 
facility. These violations of the Code subject the Respondent to 
the assessment of civil penalties set forth in Section 48-1-330 of 
the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) On or before August 15, 
1986, submit to the Department a plan of hydrogeologic assessment 
of nitrate contamination to include a proposed schedule of study 
implementation and final report submittal; 2) Depending on severity 
of contamination, the Department may require cleanup by the Respon
dent; 3) The transfer of properties by sale or otherwise in no 
way relieves the Respondent of responsibility to comply with this 
Consent Order; and, 4) Immediately pay to the Department a civil 
penalty of twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00). 

Consent Order No. 86-74-W 
Date: August 20, 1986 
Facility: Buccaneer Motel - Beaufort County 
Respondent: Desai, Inc. 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Buccaneer Motel has been improperly 
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operated and maintained which has resulted in creating an unauthor
ized discharge of wastewater into the environment. This places 
the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that it has discharged wastewater into the 
environment without having a permit to discharge issued by the 
Department. This violation of the Code subject the Respondent to 
the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 
of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Prevent all unauthorized 
discharges into the environment; and, 2) Within fifteen (15) days 
from the issuance of this Order - Pay a civil penalty of five 
thousand dollars ($5,000.00) to the Department. 

20. **Administrative Order No. 86-75-W 
Date: August 13, 1986 
Facility: ECWSA/Johnston #1 Plant - Edgefield County 
Respondent: Edgefield County Water and Sewer Authority 
Summary: Department investigations and records review reveal 
that the wastewater treatment facility that serves a portion of 
Edgefield County is not being properly operated and maintained so 
as to maxunize its present treatment capabilities during the 
facility upgrade process. The lack of attention to routine duties 
associated with the operation and maintenance of the facility has 
resulted in the facility continually exceeding the NPDES permit 
interim effluent limitations. This places the Respondent in vio
lation of Section 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South Carolina Code 
of Laws in that it has discharged wastewater into the environment 
in contravention of its NPDES permit and in that it has failed to 
operate the facility in accordance with its permit to discharge 
issued by the Department. This violation of the Code subjects the 
Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in 
Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has been ordered to: 1) Immediately begin 
to operate and maintain the waste treatment facility as required by 
the NPDES permit, Part II, Section C and Part III, Section A. This 
shall include, but not be limited to the following: 

a. Clean drying beds as necessary. 

b. Remove sludge from imhoff tank to drying bed as necessary. 

c. Remove solids from imhoff tank gas vents as necessary. 
Maintain distribution of wastewater over trickling filter 
media (using recirculation if necessary). 

d. Remove solids from secondary clarifier as necessary (do 
not recirculate during and immediately after sludge 
return as additional hydraulic load affects settling 
in the primary tank). 

e. Use secondary clarifier skimmer to remove sludge clumps on 
surface and to recirculate water to head of plant to in
crease hydrants load to trickling filter during low flow 
periods. 
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f. Improve flow conditions through the chlorine contact basin 
by raising discharge point. 

g. Remove solids from contact basin as necessary. 

h. Accurately document routine daily inspections to include 
the date, time, and name of person making the inspection, 
corrective measures taken, and routine equipment mainten
ance, repair, or replacement performed. Until further 
notice from the Department, begin submitting daily 
inspection checklists on a monthly basis to the District 
Office. 

2) On or before June 30, 1987, complete construction of the facility 
upgrade; 3) On or Lefore September 30, 1987, achieve operational 
level and compliance with final limits set forth in the NPDES 
permit; 4) vlithin thirty (30) days of the effective date of this 
Order, pay to the Department a civil penalty of five thousand 
dollars ($5,000); 5) Provide reports of construction progress with 
the first report being due ninety days after signing of this Order 
and submitted each quarter theredfter. These reports will cite any 
potential delays in achieving the mandates of this Order and provide 
justification for the delays. 

Consent Order No. 86-76-W 
Date: August 18, 1986 
Facility: Peoples Creek and Thicketty Creek Treatment Plants -

Cherokee County 
Respondent: Gaffney Board of Public Works 
Sununary: DeJ:,artment investigations reveal that Peoples Creek and 
Thicketty Creek wastewater treatment plants that serve a portion of 
the Town of Gaffney and the surrounding area are not being operated 
and maintained sufficiently to meet the NPDES permit effluent limi
tations. The facilities are impacted from excessive industrial 
loading as a result of inadequate implementation of the State Pre
treatment Program on industrial users. ·rhis f,laces the Respondent 
in violation of Section 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that it has failed to comply with the 
conditions of the NPDES permits and that it has allowed the un
authorized discharge of wastewater into the environment. 
Action: The Respondent has ageed to: 1) Immediately implement the 
recommendations contained in the Diagnostic Evaluation reports which 
do not require construction improvements but pertain to the general 
operation, maintenance, and repair; 2) Inunediately comply with 
NPDES' s effluent limitations for Thicketty Creek wastewater treat
ment plant and assure future continued compliance; 3) On or before 
September 1, 1986, submit to the Department an approvable plan of 
study, including a schedule of implementation, to correct the defic
iencies noted in the respective Diagnostic Evaluation Reports and 
render the Peoples Creek and Thicketty Creek wastewater treatr.1ent 
plants in compliance with the respective NPDES permits; and, 4) Upon 
Department approval of item 3 above, this Order shall be amended to 
include a further schedule for submission of a PER, plans and speci
fications, start construction, end construction, and attain com
pliance with permits requirements. 
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22. **Consent Order No. 86-77-W 
Date: August 20, 1986 
Facility: Ethox Chemicals, Inc. - Greenville County 
Respondent: Ethox Chemicals, Inc. 
summary: Department investigations reveal numerous instances of 
unauthorized discharges of wastewater into the environment emanating 
from the manufacturing facility. The substances discharged comes 
from leaking valves and produces foam in Huff Creek. This places 
the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that it has allowed the discharge of storm 
water into the environment in a manner not in compliance with any 
permit issued by the Department. According to the Code, this vio
lation subjects the Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties 
as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Whithin fifteen (15) days 
of the issuance of this Order, pay to the Department a civil penalty 
in the amount of six thousand dollars ($6,000.00); 2) On or before 
October 15, 1986, submit to the Department a completed National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit application 
for the storm water discharge from the Ethox plant site. If rainfall 
does not occur in sufficient amounts to facilitate storm water 
sampling before September 1, 1986, the Department is to be notified 
so that the NPDES application submittal date can be changed; 3) On 
or before August 31, 1986, submit to the Department: 

-an approvable report detailing measures that have been taken by 
Ethox in the interim, or that will be accomplished in the 
future to prevent further unauthorized discharges from the 
Ethox facility site. The report should contain specific in
formation (such as line drawings, valve specifications, etc.) 
and a schedule by which any additional work will be accom
plished. Upon approval by the Department, the report and any 
schedule included therein will be incorporated by reference as 
an enforceable part of this Order and hereinafter refered to as 
an attachment to the Order; and, 

-an amended Best Management Practices Plan detailing a program 
of operation and maintenance as necessary to prevent further 
unauthorized discharges from the Ethox facility site. 

and, 4) Now and forever, cease further unauthorized discharges from 
the Ethox facility site. 

23. Consent Order No. 86-78-W 
Date: August 20, 1986 
Facility: Town of Cheraw - Chesterfield County 
Respondent: Town of Cheraw 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves the Town of Cheraw has been unable 
to meet the final effluent limitations contained in the NPDES 
permit. The Town has received a federal grant to upgrade the 
facility and construction is in progress. This places the Respon
dent in violation of Sections 48-2-90 and 48-1-110 of the South 
carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharged wastewater 
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to the environment and operated a waste disposal facility in a 
manner other than in compliance with its NPDES permit to discharge 
issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Operate and maintain 
facility to maximize treatment capabilities; and, 2) Schedule of 
upgrade as follows: 

a. On or before December 1, 1986, complete construction. 
b. Comply with NPDES Permit limits by June 1, 1987. 

24. Consent Order No. 86-79-W 
Date: August 20, 1986 
E'acility: City of Bennettsville - Marlboro County 
Respondent: City of Bennettsville 
Summary: Department inspections reveal that the wastewater treat
ment facility that serves the Town of Bennettsville has consistently 
violated dissolved oxygen and pH effluent limitations contained in 
the NPDES permit. This places the Respondent in violation of 
sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that it discharged wastewater into the environment 
and operated a waste disposal facility in a manner not in compliance 
with its permit to discharge issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Operate and Maintain this 
facility to maximize treatment capabilities; 2) From September 1986 
through February 1987, perform process control tests and submit the 
results to the Department on a monthly basis; 3) On or before 
August 15, 1986, submit Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) to the 
Department addressing correction of the dissolved oxygen violation; 
4) On or before September 2, 1986, submit plans and specifications 
to the Department based on the approved PER; 5) On or before 
November 3, 1986, start construction of approved upgrade; 6) On or 
before January 15, 1987, complete construction of facilities to 
insure dissolved oxygen limitations are achieved; and, 7) Should 
the process control testing conducted in accordance with item #2 of 
this Order show additional deficiencies or needs, a proposal for 
corrective action with schedule will be submitted within ten (10) 
days of the findings and implemented upon Department concurrence. 
E'ailure to make the necessary changes and complete the necessary 
upgrades to achieve final limits by March 15, 1987, will result in 
additional enforcement action, to include the assessment of civil 
penalties. 

25. **Administrative Order No. 86-80-W 
Date: September 3, 1986 
Facility: Beachwood Mobile Home Estates #2 - Beaufort Counry 
Res.l::)Ondent: Donald E. Perry 
summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Beachwood Mobile Home Park is not 
being operated and maintained in , accordance with the conditions 
in the Department issued permit to construct to the extent that 
the facility is discharging unchlorinated wastewater into the 
environment. This places the Respondent in violation of Section 
48-1-90 of the South carolina Pollution Control Act and South 
carolina Regulation 61-9 in that it is discharging wastewater into 
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the envirorunent in a manner contrary to the permit to operate issued 
by the Department and, that it has failed to properly operate and 
maintain the facility. 'rhese violations of the Code of Laws of 
South Carolina subject the Respondent to the assessment of civil 
penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: 'fhe Respondent has been ordered to: (1) Within twenty (20) 
days of the issuance of this Order - Pay a civil penalty of ten 
thousand dollars ($:J_0,000.00) to the Department; and (2) Within 
thirty (30) days of the issuance of this Order - Correct all the 
deficiences cited by Department personnel on the July 18, 1986 
inspection report and continue to properly operate and maintain 
the wastewater treatment system serving the HHP. 

Consent Order No. 86-81-W 
Date: August 27, 1986 
Facility: Amberwood Subdivision - Charleston County 
Respondent: Berkeley-Amberwood Associates 
Surmnary: Department investigations reveal that a wastewater collec
tion system that serves phase I-Bin Amberwood Subdivision was con
structed without obtaining prior Department approval. This places 
the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-110 of the South 
Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it has constructed and 
Ol,Jerated a wastewater collection system without obtaining · prior 
Department approval. '!'his violation of the Code subjects the 
Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in 
Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: Within ten days of the 
issuance of this Order - Pay to the Department a civil penalty of 
two thousand dollars ($2,000.00). 

27. Consent Order No. 86-82-W 
Date: September 4, 1986 
Facility: Shoals of Anderson - Anderson County 
Respondent: Mr. Fred Allen 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Shoals of Anderson is incavable of 
functioning as designed and approved by the Department. 'l'h.is places 
the Res1-1ondent in violation of Section 48-1-110 (d) of the South 
carolina Pollution Control Act in that the facility is not being 
operated in accordance with the conditions contained in the NPDES 
permit issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before September 
1, 1986, submit to the Department final approvable plans and speci
fications for the upgrade of the waste treatment facility; (2) On or 
before November 3, 1986, start construction on the upgrade of the 
facility; and, (3) On or before December 8, 1986, complete construc
tion on the upgrade of the facility. 

28. **Consent Order No. 86-83-W 
Date: September 8, 1986 
F'acility: Sea Pines Public Service District - Beaufort County 
Respondent: Sea Pines Public Service District 
summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves a portion of Hilton Head Island 
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has been operated in a manner, whereby, the effluent flow to Lawton 
Canal has exceeded the limitations imposed by Amendment #2 to 
Department Order #78-84-W dated February 17, 1982. This places 
the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-50 of the South Carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that it has violated the terms of a 
Department order. This violation of the Code subjects the Respon
dent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 
48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Within thirty {30) days 
of the issuance of this Order - Pay to the Department a civil 
pena~ty of ten thousand dollars ($10,000); (2) On or before 
r'ebruary 1, 1987 - Complete construction of the advanced waste 
treatment facility as authorized by Department construction permits 
11,415 and 11,536; (3) On or before September 1, 1987 - Submit to 
the Department the operation and nraintenance manual on the Reuse 
System; ( 4) vii thin 60 days after EPA approval uf the contractor -
Begin construction of the Reuse System; (5) Within one year after 
beginning construction - Complete construction of the Reuse System; 
(6) On or before December I, 1986 - Submit to the Department the 
final report on the Wetlands Study; ( 7) On or before December 1, 
1986 - The Department shall provide waste load allocation projec
tions for the back-up system surface water disposal alternatives; 
(8) Within ninety (90) days of receipt of Department approval of the 
wetlands study and waste load allocations, submit a final PER for 
the selected back-up system alternative. The submittal shall in
clude a _1.Jroposed compliance schedule for submittal of final plans 
and specifications, beginning, and end construction dates. Upon 
written a.t:'.l?roval by the Department, the compliance schedule shall 
become an enforceable part of this Order; and, {9) Within fifteen 
(15) days of the issuance of this Order - Provide the Department 
with a written plan outlining measures to be taken and procedures to 
be followed to ensure that the maximum effluent discharge limit of 
2. 3 MGD into Lawton Canal will not be exceeded. 'l'he plan shall 
identify that the following priority of discharge will be atlhered 
to: 

(a) Spray irrigation to 
approved s_f,ray areas, 

golf courses or other Department 
up to or greater than 1. 45 MGD. 

(b) Wetlands disposal, in addition to item (a} above, up to a 
maximum of 1.0 MGD. 

( c) Lawton canal disposal, in addition to i tern (a) and (b) 
above, up to a maximum of 1.8 HGD. The total discharge to 
Lawton Canal via combined wetlands disposal and direct 
discharge shall not exceed 2. 3 11GD. 

The plan shall identify those conditions (i.e., freezing weather, 
rainfall) which may i>reclude meeting the 2.3 MGD discharge limit to 
Lawton Canal or a flow rate to the facility of 3. 25 MGD. The plan 
must be substantiated by copies of the contractual agreements 
between the Respondent and the spray site owners in which the spray 
site owners obligate themselves to accept a combined seven (7) day 
average of 1.45 l1GD of effluent. The plan shall identify those 
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weather conditions (i.e., rainfall, temperatures at or below 25°F) 
which may preclude meeting the Lawton Canal discharge limit of 2.3 
MGD and a method of prior notification to the Department of the 
anticipated exceedance of this limit. 

29. consent Order No. 86-84-W 
Date: September 8, 1986 
F'acility: Town of Whitmire - Newberry county 
Respondent: Town of Whitmire 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater treat
ment facility that serves the Town of Whitmire and the surrounding 
area has experienced numerous problems, including poor operation 
and maintenance, inadequate sampling and laboratory procedures, and 
effluent violations. Additionally, the Town has experienced 
numerous lift station overflows and the laboratory is not certified 
to analyze all permit parameters. This places the Respondent in 
violation of Section 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that wastewater is being discharged into 
the environment in a manner other than in compliance with a permit 
issued by the Department, and the facility is not being properly 
operated and maintained and the pretreatment program is not being 
administered properly. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Cease unauthorized 
discharges at the north pump station inunediately. A civil penalty of 
two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) (minimum) will be imposed for each 
unauthorized discharge that occurs after the issuance of this Order; 
(2) Submit the Discharge Monitoring Reports in a correct fashion, 
i.e., include weekly average information; (3) Continually operate 
and maintain the facility in accordance with the conditions listed 
in NPDES permit #SC0022390; (4) Utilize proper sampling techniques, 
i.e., flow proportional sampling to obtain representative samples 
for laboratory analysis; (5) Obtain a certified laboratory to 
analyze samples from this facility for biochemical oxygen demand and 
fecal coliform on or before September 1, 1986. Continue to utilize 
this certified laboratory until the certification for Whitmire' s 
laboratory is reacquired; and, (6) With regard to the Pretreatment 
Program: 

a. Submit the pretreatment program audit response on or 
before September 1, 1986 (audit was originally conducted 
on March 25, 1986). 

b. Submit the pretreatment report for February - April, 1986, 
on or before September 1, 1986. 

c. Pay to the Department a civil penalty of five hundred 
dollars ($500.00) each time a deadline is missed for 
submission of items 6 (a & b above). 

30. **Consent Order No. 86-85-W 
Date: September 12, 1986 
Facility: Georgia-Pacific/Russellville Plant Berkeley County 
Respondent: Georgia-Pacific 
Summary: This Order was issued as a Settlement Agreement between 
the Department and the Respondent in lieu of the Department pro-
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ceeding with the enforcement of Administrative Order 86-51-W issued 
on June 25, 1986. Department inspections revealed that the Respon
dent failed to complete a wastewater treatment plant upgrade in 
accordance with the schedule contained in Department Consent Order 
82-13-W (as amended) dated July 3, 1984. This places the Respondent 
in violation of Sections 48-1-50 and 48-1-90 of the South Carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that it has violated the terms of a 
Department Order and that it has discharged wastewater into the 
environment in a manner other than in compliance with a permit 
issued by the Department. These violations of the Code subject 
the Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth 
in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: 1'he Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before September 
15, 1986, pay to the Department a civil penalty of fifteen thousand 
dollars ($15,000.00). 

Consent Order No. 86-80-W 
Date: September 8, 1986 
Facility: Nucor Steel Corporation - Darlington County 
Res~ondent: Nucor Steel Corporation 
Surrunary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Nucor Steel has consistently 
failed to achieve compliance with the final effluent limitations 
contained in the NPDES permit. Additionally, the facility has not 
received proper operation and maintenance to ensure treatment 
cai,abilities are maximized. This places the Respondent in violation 
of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South Carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that it has discharged wastewater into the environ
ment in a manner other than in compliance with its permit to dis
charge issued by the Department, and that it has operated and 
maintained a waste disposal facility in violation of the conditions 
of its NPDES i,ennit. These violations of the Code subject the 
Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in 
Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to (1) Operate and maintain 
facility to maximize treatment capabilities; (2) Submit to the 
Department monthly process control report beginning September 15, 
1986, through February 15, 1986, including the following tests and 
calculations: 

a. Settlometer - daily 
b. Sludge blanket depth - daily 
c. Dissolved oxygen profile in the aeration basin - daily 
d. Microscopic examination - one every 2 weeks 
e. Mixed Liquor Suspended Solids (MLSS) - twice per week 
f. Select and utilize at least one of the following three 

activated sludge process control techniques: 

Control Technique Frequency Determination 

Constant F:tJJ. 
Constant 
Constant 

rJJ.LVSS 
MCRT 

F:M 
MLVSS 
MCH'i' 

2/w~ek Based on 5 day moving avg. 
2/week Volatile solids inventory 
2/week Based on 3 to 5 day moving 

= Food to lJJ.icroorganism Ratio 
= Mixed Liquor Volatile Suspended Solids 
= Mean Cell Residence Time 
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Utilize the data generated in the above tests to make necessary 
OfJeration and maintenance corrections to assure optimum treatment; 
(3) Have certified engineer submit to the Department on or before 
Se~tember 15, 1986, a flow monitoring system to include an approvable 
proposal for equalization of flow; (4) Submit to the Department on 
or before Se}'ternber 15, 1986, a method of sludge disposal; and, 
(5) Immediately pay to the Department a civil penalty of four 
thousand dollars ($4,000.00). 

32. Consent Order No. 86-87-vJ 
Date: September 8, 1986 
Facility: Carowin Farms - Spartanburg County 
kespondent: 1'rr. Gerry A. Gaines 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the fruit packing 
operation at Carowin E'arms is emitting unauthorized discharges 
of process wastewater into the environment. This places the Respon
dent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that it has allowed the discharge of wastewater into 
the environment in a manner other than in compliance with the 
conditions of a permit issued by the Department. 
Action: The Res.i;,ondent has agreed to: (1) \vithin sixty (60) days 
of the issuance of this Order, eliminate all unauthorized point
source discharges emanting from the !?acking shed operation at Carowin 
Farms. The method chosen and completion of construction for the 
point-source E::limination must be verified and approved by the 
Department's district office. 

33. **Consent Order No. 86-88-W 
Date: September 11, 1986 
Facility: Elrod's Dairy - Anderson County 
Respondent: Mr. C.C. Elrod 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the waste Manage
ment facility that serves Elrod' s Dairy is not being properly 
operated and maintained to the extent that unauthorized discharges 
of wastewater have occurred into a stream adjacent to the dairy 
property. 1'his places the Respondent in violation of sections 
48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act 
in that he has discharged wastewater into the environment in a 
manner other than in compliance with a permit issued by the Depart
ment and in that it has failed to operate and maintain the facility 
in accordance with the conditions contained in a permit issued by 
the Department. These violations of the Code subject the Respon
ctent to the assessment of civil penal ties as set forth in Section 
48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before November 
30, 1986, make improvements to the 1,>ump station to include the 
installation of an additional pump; and, the weatherization of the 
pum}! station for protection from cold weather damage. The Respon
dent should coordinate with the Anderson District Office prior to 
the installation of the additonal pump in order to assure that the 
type pump and method of installation are approvable. After the 
pum}! station improvements are complete and approvable the Depart
ment will grant a Permit to Operate for the entire waste treatment 
system; and, (2) Pay a civil penalty to the Department in the amount 
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35. 

of fifteen hundred dollars ($1,500.00) according to the following 
schedule. Three (3) payments of five hundred dollars ($500.00) each 
on: 

1. October 15, 1986 
2. November 15, 1986 
3. December 15, 1986 

Administrdtive Order No. 86-89-W 
Date: September 26, 1986 
Facility: A-1 Septic Tank Cleaning Service - Georgetown County 
Resr,ondent: Mrs. Lucile and Ervin Ackerman 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that A-1 Septic Tank 
Service has peq.,etrated unauthorized discharges of wastewater into 
the area of Boety Bay Hunting Club. This places the Respondent 
in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Con
trol Act in that it has discharged wastewater into waters of the 
State in a manner other than in compliance with a permit issued by 
the Department. This violation of the Code subjects the Respondent 
to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 
48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: 1~e Respondent has been ordered to: (1) Immediatley cease 
and refrain from any and all future unauthorized discharges of 
wastewater to the environment; and, (2) On or before November 1, 
1986, pay to the Department a civil penalty of five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00). 

Consent Order No. 86-90-W 
Date: September 29, 1986 
Facility: ~iCRSA/Taylors Plant - Greenville County 
Respondent: Western Carolina Regional Sewer Authority 
Swrnnary: Department investiyations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment facility that serves a portion of Greenville 
County has consistently failed to meet the final effluent limita
tions for total suspended solids contained in the NPDES permit 
issued by the Department. Additionally, the Respondent has failed 
to enforce the Department approved industrial pretreatment program 
whose discharges have inhibited the WCRSA/'raylor Plant. This 
places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South 
Carolina Pollution Control Act in that discharges of wastewater 
into the environment in a manner other than in compliance with its 
permit to discharge issue<1 by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before December 
15, 1986, submit to the Department a vreliminary engineering report 
for the upgrade of the Taylors facility to include a schedule which, 
upon Def,artment approval, shall be incorporated into this Order; 
(2) On or before Novmnber 15, 1986, idenitfy all regulated 
industries, other than Horton Thiokol, Inc., if any, which are not 
complying with any applicable pretreatment permit and submit an 
enforceable schedule for any corrective actions, if any, to be taken 
by or against any such industries; (3) Require compliance by Morton 
Thiokol, Inc. which has been out of compliance with its permit on 
total suspended solids and other limitations in the permit. Morton 
Thiokol has been negotiating with WCRSA concerning some interim 
solutions, design or construction requirements and a compliar ~e 
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schedule, but to date this has not been resolved. In the event 
WCRSA and Morton Thiokol, Inc. do not reach an understanding by way 
of a consent order on or before October 15, 1986, WCRSA shall 
proceed with its Rule to Show Cause proceeding and require Morton 
Thiokol to show cause why it should not take interim corrective 
action including reduction of production, precipitation of solids 
and removal from the site or other methods, which will bring it 
into compliance with its permit and prevent any adverse impact on 
the Taylors Plant, and why it should not take such action to design 
and construct improvements or additions to its pretreatment facility 
as will achieve a permanent and final solution to existing problems 
and full compliance with its pennit; (4) The Taylors Plant shall be 
in compliance with the total suspended solids NPDES permit limita
tion on or before thirty (30) days after completion of construction; 
and, ( 5) In the consent order WCRSA shall require Morton Thiokol, 
Inc. to immediately take interim actions to achieve full compliance 
with its current pretreatment permit. Morton Thiokol, Inc. shall be 
required to supply a schedule setting forth the earliest possible 
date for the implementation of such actions, which schedule shall 
be submitted for approval to WCRSA and to the Department not later 
than November 1, 1986 and which upon approval shall become a part of 
this Order. 

Administrative Order No. 86-91-W 
Date: September 30, 1986 
Facility: City of Columbia - Richland County 
Respondent: City of Columbia 
Summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment facility that serves the City of Columbia and 
surrounding area is consistently violating the final effluent 
limitations contained in the NPDES permit which can be attributed 
to improper operation and maintenance of the facility. This places 
the Respondent in violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the 
South carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharges waste
water into the environment of the State in a manner not in com
pliance with a permit issued by the Department and in that it is 
not operating and maintaining the facility in accordance with a 
permit issued by the Department. These violations of the Code 
subject the Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as 
set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has been ordered to: (1) Properly operate 
and maintain the Metro wastewater treatment facility and continually 
meet the effluent limitations contained in NPDES Pennit #SC0020940 
(2) Submit to the Department on a monthly basis, DMR's and a status 
report concerning the operations and maintenance activities at the 
Metro Plant starting on November 1, 1986 with the status report 
submission continuing for one (1) year after the date of issuance of 
this Order; (3) Submit to the Department a corrective action plan 
that assures the effluent limitations will be met on a consistent 
basis. This submittal is due on November 15, 1986; and, (4) Pay to 
the Department the sum of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) on or 
before November 15, 1986. 
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37. Consent Order No. 86-92-W 
Date: September 30, 1986 
Facility: Hermitage, Inc. - Kershaw County 
Respondent: Hermitage, Inc. 
Summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment facility that serves Hermitage, Inc. has con
sistently failed to meet the final effluent limitations contained 
in the NPDES permit issued by the Department. This places the 
Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that it has discharged wastewater into the 
environment in a manner not in compliance with a permit issued by 
the Department. This violation of the Code subjects the Respondent 
to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 
of the Code. 
Action: '11he Respondent has agreed to: (1) Properly operate and 
maintain the wastewater treatment facility and continually meet the 
effluent lLmitations contained in NPDES Permit #SC0002518; (2) Submit 
to the Dei:,artment a corrective action plan that assures the effluent 
limitations will be met on a consistent basis. This submittal is due 
on Nc.,vember 15, 1986; and, (3) Pay to the Department the sum of three 
thousand dollars ($3,000.00) on or before November 15, 1986. 

38. **Consent Order No. 86-93-W 
Date: September 29, 1986 
Facility: Greenwood Hills, Inc./Edisto Plant - Orangeburg County 
Respondent: Greenwood Mills, Inc. 
Summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment plant which serves the Greenwood Mills/Edisto 
Plant has, as a result of faulty operation and improper plant 
design, discharged wastewater into the environment in violation of 
the effluent limitations contained in its NPDES permit. The company 
was cited in Department Consent Order No. 82-23-W dated April 8, 
1982 for some of the same offenses that appear in this Order. This 
places the Respondent in violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 
of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharged 
wastewater into the environment of the State in a manner other than 
in compliance with a permit issued by the Department and in that it 
has failed to properly operate and maintain the facility as stipu
lated in the permit to discharge. These violations of the Code of 
Laws of South Carolina subject the Respondent to the assessment of 
civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Within fifteen (15) days 
of the effective date of this Order, submit a report to the Depart
ment l_.Jroposing interim r,LE:asures to improve the overall operation of 
the facility. The report shall include, but not be limited to, the 
following: (a) Changes in the sludge spray field operation which 
will correct sludge disposal deficiencies and bring the spray 
field into compliance with the con<.litions of the Permit to Construct 
(#7, 376) ; (b) Establishment of an, adequate record-keeping program 
for all operations; (c) A comprehensive process control testing 
program to be utilized on a continuing basis at the wastewater treat
ment plant; (d) Other procedural changes which will improve the 
overall wastewater treatment facility and sludge disposal perform
ance; and (e) A schedule(s) for accomplishing any necessary action. 
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Upon approval by the Department, the plan of action and schedule(s) 
shall become a part of this Order. 2) On or before October 1, 1986, 
submit an approvable Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) which will 
address any modifications or additions necessary to achieve compli
ance with NPDES permit effluent limits. The PER shall include a 
1->roposed schedule of compliance. Upon Department approval, the 
dates of the schedule and the PER shall become a part of this Order; 
3) On or before October 1, 1986, subnit to the Department a report 
summarizing the groundwater monitoring data collected in accordance 
with Permit to Construct #7,376. The report shall: (a) Evaluate the 
adequacy of the present groundwater monitoring program; (b) Identify 
any necessary corrective action including, but not limited to, 
additional groundwater monitoring well construction, well location, 
sampling protocols, and additional parameters; and, (c) Identify a 
schedule for accomplishing any necessary action. Upon approval by 
the Department, the plan of action and schedule shall become a part 
of this Order. 4) Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of 
this Onler, pay to the Department fifteen thousand dollars 
($15,000.00) in civil penalties. 

Consent Order No. 86-94-W 
Date: September 29, 1986 
Facility: Lobeco Products, Inc. - Beaufort County 
Respondent: Lobeco Products, Inc. 
Summary: Department investiyations dnd records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment facility that serves Lobeco Products, Inc. is 
not able to meet the toxicity requirements contained in its NPDES 
permit. An instream assessment of campbell Creek confirms increased 
stress to }>Ortions of the hard-substrate conununities and increased 
water quality impairment in recent months. This places the Respon
dent in violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South 
Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharged wastewater into 
the environment in a manner contrary to the permit to operate issued 
by the Department and, in that it has failed to properly operate and 
maintain the facility. 'l'hese violations of the Code of Laws of 
South Carolina subject the Respondent to the assessment of civil 
penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Within thirty (30) days 
from the issuance of this Order - Pay a civil penalty of ten 
thousand dollars ($10,000) to the Department; and, 2) Within thirty 
(30) days from the issuance of this Order - Resubmit a plan of study 
on the discharge toxicity to include a. vror,osal for a wastewater 
trc:atr,1ent system ui-,grade, incluuing arrunonia removal and disinfection 
along with other a1Jpropriate functions. 

Consent Order No. 86-95-iv 
Date: September 17, 1986 
Facility: Ladies Island Elementary School - Beaufort County 
Resi,ondent: Beaufort County School District 
Summary: Deparbnent investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment plant that serves Ladies Island Elementary School has 
been operating without Department approval. Department approval 
was denied because the facility was not constructed in accordance 
with the Department issued pennit to construct. Additionally, the 
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unapproved facility was not properly operated and maintained causing 
a contaminated area around the plant and spray field. This places 
the Respondent in violation of S~ctions 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that the facility is being 
operated without a permit issued by the Department and the facility 
was constructed contrary to the Department issued permit to con
struct. These violations of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 
subJect the Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set 
forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) WLthin fifteen (15) days 
of the issuance of this Order - Pay a civil penalty of two thousand 
dollars ($2,000.00) to the Department; 2) Within .thirty (30) days of 
the issuance of this Order - Submit a report to the Department which 
discusses measures taken or to be taken to correct the deficiencies 
cited by the Department or facility inspection reports. All 
deficiencies not covered by requirement #3 of this Order must be 
corrected within 45 days from the issuance of this Order; and, 3) On 
or before October 1, 1986 - Subrnit "as built" plans and specifi
cations and a construction permit application to the Department. All 
correspondence from the Department concerning approval of the "as 
built" plans shall be responded to in a timely and appropriate 
manner. Upon Department ai,;proval of the "as built" plans, a Permit 
to Construct shall be issued. Following the issuance of the Permit 
to Construct, receipt of a letter from the Respondent's engineer 
certifying that the treatment system has been built in accordance 
with the approved plans and specifications, and Coastal Council 
approval, the Department shall conduct a final inspection and shall 
issue a Permit to Operate if construction has been completed 
properly. 

Settlement Agreement No. 86-96-W 
Date: October 6, 1986 
Facility: Savannah River Plant - Aiken, Allendale & Barnwell Counties 
Respondent: U.S. Department of Energy 
Summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
Liquid Effluent Treatment Facility that serves M.-Area at the 
Savannah River Plant has been upset on at least eight (8) occasions 
since July 24, 1985. ·rhis posture has resulted in untreated or 
partially treated wastewater and sludge to be intentionally diverted 
to and stored improperly in drums and other containers, modifying 
the approved mode of operation. Additional unauthorized dumping 
of soh!e wastewater resulted from three sumps in building 313-!Vi that 
were not hard piped to the treatment system. This places the 
Respondent in violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharged wastes 
into the environment not in a manner in compliance with a permit 
issued by the Department, and in that it has modified and operated 
1:>art of the waste treatment system without obtaining approval of 
and written permit from the Department. These violations of the 
Code of Laws of South Carolina subject the Respondent to the assess
ment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Immediately ensure that a 
certified Class B operator is assigned the responsibility of ensuring 
proper operation and maintenance of the LE~F, including the authority 
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to halt M-Area production to prevent further generation of wastewater. 
A certified Class B operator is the designated operator-in-charge 
and will routinely visit the facility to ensure compliance with the 
NPDES permit. At all other times certified Class D or Class D 
trainees will be responsible for daily operations. DOE shall 
provide by September 1988 a Class B certified wastewater operator 
whose primary responsibility is the M-Area LETF. This operator-in
charge shall be assigned to the LETF and will be on duty one shift 
per operating day. The operator-in-charge will be on call 24 hours 
a day, seven days a week. DOE shall also ensure that the other 
operators of the M-Area LETF are at least Class D certified or Class 
D trainees actively pursuing certification for proper operation and 
maintenance of the LETF; 2) DOE shall maintain at the LETF facility 
a complete Operations and Maintenance ~ianual, operator schedule, and 
documentation of operator responsibility for the waste treatment 
f.ilant. The manual shall be made available for on-site review 
during normal working hours. The manual shall contain operation and 
maintenance instructions for all equipment and appurtenances 
associated with the waste treatment plant. The manual shall contain 
a general descri~tion of the treatment processes, operating charac
teristics that will produce maximum treatment efficiency and cor
rective action to be taken should operating difficulties be 
encountered; 3) Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of 
this Settlement Agreement, submit to SCDHEC a report identifying 
modifications to the present LETF system necessary to minimize/ 
~revent future upsets. The report shall also address the surcharging 
at the LETF wastewater collection system, whether or not this sur
charging has resulted in discharges to the M-area settling basin and 
necessary measures to prevent future occurrences; 4) DOE shall 
coml-JlY with all NPDES 1->ermit requirements including the reporting 
requirements specifically stated in Part II B, 1-3, of the NPDES 
Permit #SC000175. Within thirty (30) clays of the effective date of 
this Settlement Agreement, DOE shall I_.;rovide SCDHEC with a descrip
tion of inteTnal procedures to be followed for notification should 
the reporting of upsets or bypasses be necessary; and, 5) Within 
thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Settlement Agreement, 
pay twenty-two thousand dollars ($22,000.00) to the Department. 

Consent Order No. 86-97-W 
Date: October 9, 1986 
Facility: Haile's Restaurant - Newberry County 
Respondent: Edgar J. 'l'aylor 
summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment facility that serves Haile' s Restaurant is not 
being properly operated and maintained to the extent that the 
effluent does not meet the standards contained in the NPDES permit. 
'I'his places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it is discharging 
wastewater into the enviromnent in a manner other than in compliance 
with the permit to discharge issued by the Department. This vio
lation of the Cocle of Laws of South Carolina subjects the Respondent 
to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 
48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 
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cations to the chlorine contact chamber as discussed in the August 
18, 1986 meeting, on or before OCtober 1, 1986; 2) Properly operate 
and maintain the facility in accordance with NPDES Permit 
#SC0030058; 3) Submit the operator's daily checklist to the Depart
ment on a monthly basis beginning in September 1986. The first 
checklist is due October 1, 1986; and, 4) Pay to the Department a 
civil penalty of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) on or before 
October 15, 1986. 

Administrative 0-rder No. 86-98-W 
Date: October 10, 1986 
Facility: Guerry & Son Septic Tank Service Berkeley County 
Respondent: Mr. John Guerry 
summary: Department investigations reveal that Guerry & Son Septic 
Tank Service will not cooperate with the Department in determining 
the disposal site he uses to operate his cleaning service. This 
places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-50 of the South 
Carolina Pollution Control Act in that he failed to provide the 
Department with records and other information necessary to conduct 
investigations pertaining to polluting the environment. 
Action: The Respondent has been ordered to: 1) Immediately begin 
ancl continue to dispose of all waste from the operation of the waste 
disposal cleaning service at the Town of St. Stephen's waste treat
ment facility; and, 2) Within ten (10) days of the receipt of this 
Order - Submit the following information to the Department for the 
period January 1, 1984 - September 1986: (a) The dates, locations, 
and number of gallons of waste picked ui:, at each location on each 
separate occasion as a result of the operation of the waste disposal 
cleaning service; and, (b) The site or sites used for the disposal 
of waste, the disposal dates, and the number of gallons deposited on 
each occasion. 

Consent Order No. 86-99-W 
Date: October 16, 1986 
Facility: J.P. Stevens/Walterboro Plant - Colleton County 
Responuent: J.P. Stevens 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater treat
ment facility that serves the J.P. Stevens/WalterLoro Plant has been 
unable to meet the fecal coliform limitation contained in the NPDES 
permit issued by the Department. This places the Respondent in 
violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South carolina Pollution Control 
Act in that it discharged wastewater into the environment in a 
manner other than in compliance with the permit to discharge issued 
by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) On or before November 15, 
1986 - Submit approvable plans and specifications fo1. disinfection 
to the Department; and, 2) On or before February 15, 1987 - complete 
construction of the disinfection facility and attain compliance with 
the fecal coliform effluent limits of NPDES Permit #SC0002135. 

45. Administrative Order No. 86-100-W 
Date: October 17, 1986 
Facility: St. James Estates, Ltd. - Berkeley County 
Respondent: St. James Estates, Ltd. 
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Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that served St. James Estates has not been 
properly closed out, since the discharge was eliminated in 1983. 
1'his places the Respondent in violation of South Carolina Regulation 
61-82 in that it failed to complete the proper closeout of a waste
water treatment facility. 
Action: The Respondent has been ordered to: 1) Submit a closeout 
plan to the Department no later than October 31, 1986; 2) Complete 
the closeout, including a final inspection by the Department, no 
later than January 15, 1987. It shall be the Respondent's responsi
bility to contact the Deparbnent's Trident District Office to arrange 
for a final ins.f:Jection; and, 3) If the Respondent fails to complete 
the closeout by January 15, 1987, it shall pay a civil penalty of 
two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) to the Department within ten days of 
the written notification that the penalty is due. Additional 
_f;enalties shall accrue at the rate of one hundred dollars ($100.00) 
per week, or any part of a week, that the closeout has not been com
pleted after the January 15, 1987 cteadline. These additional 
penalties shall be due within ten days of written notification by 
the De1->artment of the amount due. 

46. Consent Order No. 86-101-W 
Date: October 17, 1986 
Facility: C.R. Bard, Inc. - Berkeley County 
Respondent: C.R. Bard, Inc. 
summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater facility that serves C.R. bard, Inc. has chronically 
violated that total suspended solids limitation contained in its 
NPDI:;S permit. ·rhis places the Respondent in violation of Section 
48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it 
discharyed wastewater into the environment of the State in a manner 
other than in compliance with a permit to discharge issued by the 
Department. 
Action: 'rhe Respondent has agreed to: 1) Submit monthly progress 
reports to the Department on its said petition for rule making. The 
first report shall be ciue on November 15, 1986; and, 2) On or before 
October l!:>, 1986 - Subhtit an engineering report to the Department 
covering Respondent's proposed modifications to the System designed 
to attain com_1Jliance with the effluent limitations of NPDES Permit 
No. SC0035190; and, 3) ~.ithin 120 days of receipt by Respondent 
of approval by the Department of the said engineering report 
submitted by Respondent, as may be modified by agreement between 
Res_i?ohdent and the Department, submit apvrovable plans and speci
fications for modifications to the System and an application for a 
1,ermit to construct such modifications to the Department. Upon 
review and approval of the plans and specifications by the Depart
ment, this Order shall be amended to include a compliance schedule 
for completion of the modifications to the System in accordance 
with the approved plans and specifications. 

47. Consent Order No. 86-102-W 
Date: October 20, 1986 
Facility: Professional Acquisition, Inc. - Richland County 
Respondent: Valhalla Company 
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Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Valhalla Company had been modified to 
discharge treated wastewater to a low lying area on the golf course 
rather than sprayed at a certain rate on specified areas as per
mitted by the Department. This places the Respondent in violation 
of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South Carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that it discharged wastewater into the environment in 
a manner other than in compliance with a permit issued by the 
Department, and in that the system was modified to a configuration 
that was not api,roved by the Department. These violations of the 
Code of Laws of South Carolina subject the Respondent to the 
assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of 
the Code. 
Action: •rhe Respondent has agreed to: 1) Cease all unauthorized 
discharges of wastewater and operate and maintain the facility in 
accordance with the conditions listed in in Department Construction 
Permit #3237; and, 2) On or Lefore November 1, 1986, pay to the 
Department a civil penalty of four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) for 
the unauthorized discharge of wastewater. 

48. **Administrative Order No. 86-103-W 
Date: October 20, 1986 
Facility: Burgess Glen Mobile Home Park/Plants I and II - Sumter Co. 
kesvondent: J\ir. R.A. Burgess 
Summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment facilities that serve Burgess Glen Mobile Home 
Park have been improperly operated and maintained to the extent that 
the facilities are violating the effluent limitations contained in 
the respective NPDES permits. The facilities were previously under 
Devartment Consent Order No. 81-16-W for the same violations. This 
places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South 
Carolina Code of Laws in that it is discharging wastewater into the 
environment and operating and maintaining a treatment facility in a 
manner other than in compliance with a permit issued by the Depart
ment. This violation of the Code of Laws of South Carolina subjects 
the Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in 
Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has been ordered to: 1) Properly operate 
and maintain the aforementioned wastewater treatment facilities and 
continually meet the effluent limitations contained in NPDES permits 
#SC0031925 and #SC0032239; 2) Correct the operational deficiencies 
listed in item '#3 (Findings of Fact) on or before December 1, 1986, 
and notify the Department's Wateree District Office for an inspec
tion when completed; 3) Submit the operation's daily checklist for 
both facilities to the Department on a monthly basis beginning in 
November 1986. 1be first set of checklists are due on December 1, 
1986; 4) Submit DHRs for both facilities to the Department on a 
monthly basis beginning December 1, 1986; and, 5) Pay to the Depart
ment a civil penalty of twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00) on or 
before December 1, 1986. 

49. Consent Order No. 86-104-W 
Date: October 24, 1986 
Facility: Marion County Convalescent Center - Marion County 

309 



50. 

Respondent: Mr. Joseph E. Henderson 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the nonpoint source 
wastewater treatment facility that serves the Marion County Con
valescent Home has experienced poor operation and maintenance, 
effluent violations and unauthorized discharges into the environ
ment. This places the Respondent in violation of Sections 48-1-90 

. and 48-1-110 of the South carolina Pollution Control Act in that it 
discharges wastewater into the environment in a manner other than in 
compliance with a permit issued by the Department. These violations 
of the Code of Laws of South Carolina subject the Respondent to the 
assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of 
the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) On or before November 15, 
1986, pay to the Department a civil penalty of two-thousand dollars 
($2,000.00). 

Consent Order No. 86-105-W 
Date: October 30, 1986 
Facility: Imperial Die Casting Corporation - Greenville County 
Respondent: Inverial Die Casting Corporation 
Summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater tredtlnent facility that serves Imperial Die Casting 
Corporation has failed to consistently meet the final effluent 
limitatior:.s (oil and grease) imi,osed in its NPDES i,ermit. This 
places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South 
Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it has discharged wastewater 
into the environment in a manner other than in compliance wiith the 
permit to discharge issued by the Department. This violation of the 
Code of Laws of South carolina subjects the Respondent to the 
assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of 
the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Within fifteen (15) days 
of the issuance of this Order, pay to the Department a civil penalty 
in the amount of seven thousand five hundred dollars ($7,500.00); 2) 

.on or before November 15, 1986, submit to the Department any addi
tional drawings, specifications or other information as requested 
and which may be necessary for the issuance of a Department con
struction permit; 3) On or before December 15, 1986, begin con
struction on the upgrade of the waste treatment facility; 4) On or 
}Jefore February 15, 1987, complete construction on the treatment 
plant upgrade project; and, 5) Prior to resuming discharge to the 
receiving stream, assure that the effluent is in compliance with all 
applicable NPDES permit limitations and conditions. 

51. Consent Order No. 86-106-W 
Date: October 30, 1986 
Facility: CP Chemicals, Inc. - Sumter County 
Respondent: CP Chemicals, Inc. 
Summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment facility that serves CP Chemicals, Inc. has 
consistently failed to meet the final effluent limitations contained 
in its NPDES permit. Additionally, the facility has not been 
properly operated and maintained and the system has been modified 
without Department approval. This places the Respondent in vio-

310 



lation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South carolina Pol
lution Control Act in that it has discharged wastewater into the 
envirorunent in a manner other than in compliance with its permit to 
discharge issued by the Department, and in that it has neglected to 
properly operate and maintain the facility, and in that it has 
constructed treatment components without acquiring the required 
permits from the Department. These violations of the Code of Laws 
of South Carolina subject the Respondent to the assessment of civil 
penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Within fifteen (15) days 
of the issuance of this Order, pay to the Department a civil penalty 
of twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00); 2) On or before November 1, 
1986 - Submit an updated NPDES permit application form (2c). This 
application must include details on any cooling water discharge and 
collection and flow of stormwater generated at the site; 3) On or 
before October 30, 1986 - Submit a Preliminary Engineering Report 
(PER) in accordance with S.C. Regulation 61-67 for treatment of the 
wastewater to achieve tJPDES permit effluent limitations. A plan for 
connection of the process wastewater to the City of Sumter may be 
submitted in lieu of the PER for upgrade if an agreement for the 
City can be reached by the date for submission of the PER. Any plan 
for connection to the City must address ammonia stripping, clarifier 
modification, elimination of facilities scheduled for abandonment, 
permit applications, and engineering submittals for piping or pump 
station upgrades required of the Respondent; 4) Secure twenty-four 
hour composite samples for all effluent parameters to include 
ammonia for any further discharges from the facility and report 
results to the Department twice monthly. A negative report shall be 
required for periods of no-discharge. An effluent ammonia limita
tion of 1.1 mg/1 is assigned for the protection of water quality. 
Violations occurring in interim will be analyzed by Department 
technical staff and detenninations on penalty assessment made based 
on significance of the violation, progress toward implementation of 
the Order requirements, interim measures taken to mitigate the 
effects of any discharge, and environmental impact of the discharge 
of the receiving stream; 5) On or before November 15, 1986 - Submit 
plans and specifications, permit applications, and any associated 
information to the Department on the selected alternative; 6) Within 
forty-five (45) days of Department approval of plans and specifi
cations Start construction of the upgrade of the wastewater 
treatment facility or other necessary actions to connect the waste
water discharge to the City; 7) Within forty-five (45) days of 
initiation of construction upgrade or work to connect to city sewer, 
complete the facility upgrade to meet final effluent limits or 
connect to city sewer; and 8) Failure to meet the deadlines pre
scribed in this Order will result in the immediate assessment of a 
five thousand dollar ($5,000.00) penalty for each deadline. Such 
penalties are payable immediately upon Department notification. 

52. **Consent Order No. 86-108-W 
Date: November 7, 1986 
Facility: A-1 Septic Tank Cleaning Service - Georgetown County 
Respondent: Mrs. Lucille and Ervin Ackerman 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the Respondent 
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deliberately emptied septage from a septic tank truck into the area 
of Boety Bay Hunting Club located in Georgetown County, South 
Carolina. This places the Respondent in violation of Section 
48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it dis
charged wastewater into the environment of the State in a manner 
other than in compliance with a permit issued by the Department. 
This violation of the Code of Laws of South Carolina subject the 
Res!Jonctent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in 
Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: 'l'he Respondent has agreed to: 1) Utilize only approved 
methods of disr.;osal for any future disposal of septage wastes; 2) 
Irnmediatley cease and refrain from any and all future unauthorized 
discharges of wastewater to the environment; and, 3) By signing this 
Order, agree to withdraw any appeal filed contesting any previous 
Order issued to him by this Department. Administrative Order 
86-89-W is vacated based on the payment of one thousand dollars 
($1,000.00). 

53. Consent Order No. 86-109-~~ 
Date: 1'.iovernber 6, 1986 
Facility: Riverhill Homeowners Association Richland County 

·kespondent: Riverhill Homeowners Association 
Summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment facility that serves the Riverhill Condominium 
Complex in Richland County, South carolina, is unable to meet the 
iinal effluent limitations contained in its NPDES permit. •rhis 
places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South 
Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it is discharying wastewater 
into the environment of the State in a manner other than in compli
ance with its i:,ermit to uischage issueu by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Continually operate and 
maintain the facility in accordance with the conditions listed in 
NPDES permit *SC0032506 until the facility is tied-on to the City's 
sewer system; 2) Aahere to the following schedule of compliance for 
the connection of the facility to the City's sewer system: 

a. 
b. 
c. 

Submit plans and S!Jecifications 
Begin construction 
Bnd construction 

January 15, 1987 
February 15, 1987 
Harch 31, 1987 

3) Contact the Department's Central Midlands District office for a 
final inspection when construction and close-out are complete; and, 
4) Close out the facility within ninety (90) days of tie-on to the 
City in accordance with Regulation 61-82 of the Code. 

54. **Consent Order No. 86-110-\-J 
Date: November 14, 1986 
Facility: Lancaster County Water and Sewer District/Rum Creek -

Lancaster County 
Respondent: Lancaster County Water and Sewer District 
Sununary: This order is the result of negotiations between the 
Department and the Respondent for the payment of a civil penalty 
legislated in Aaministrative Order No. 86-45-W issued Ly the Depart
ment on May 27, 1986. ·rhe penalty was imposed for the failure of 
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55. 

56. 

the Respondent to complete the upgarde of the Rum Creek lift station 
in a timely manner agreed upon in Consent Order No. 85-82-W dated 
October 8, 1985. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) The District will pay to 
DHEC a civil penalty of $7500 within twenty (20) days from the date 
of this Order; 2) The District will report any further unauthorized 
discharges of wastewater to DHEC; and 3) The District will ensure 
that qualified personnel are available to respond twenty-four (24) 
hours a day when notification is received of a system malfunction. 

Consent Order No. 86-111-W 
Date: November 17, 1986 
Facility: Town of Ware Shoals - Greenwood County 
Respondent: Town of Ware Shoals 
Summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment facility that serves the Town of \i.Jare Shoals 
and the surrounding area is unable to meet the final effluent limi
tations contained in its NPDES permit. This places the Respondent 
in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that it has discharged wastewater into the environ
ment of the State in a manner other than in compliance with the 
J:>ermit to discharge issued by the Department. 
Action: 'l'he Respondent has agreed to: 1) On or before December 31, 
1986, the Respondent shall submit to the Department a ComJ:>osite 
Correction Plan (CCP) for bringing its wastewater treatment system 
into compliance as soon as possible. ·rhe CCP shall include: (a) A 
discussion/explanation of the cause(s) of noncompliance, to include 
both the treatment facility and collection system; (b) A discussion 
of the corrective steps necessary to achieve compliance, their cost, 
and the proi:'osed method of financing those steps, including whether 
there is: 1) A f!lan of operation that identifies annual operation 
and maintenance costs. 2) A financial management system that ade
quately accounts for revenues and expenditures. 3) A user charge/ 
revenue system that generates sufficient revenues to operate, main
tain, and replace the treatment works; (c) An expeditious schedule 
for completing the required stei-,s and for achieving compliance; and, 
2) Upon Department review and written approval of the CCP, the 
schedule contained therein shall be deemed incorporated into and a 
part of this Order. 

Consent Order No. 86-112-W 
Date: November 19, 1986 
Facility: Ti-Caro-Knit Incorporated - Chesterfield County 
Respondent: •ri-Caro-Knit Incorporated 
Summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment plant that serves Ti-Caro-Knit Incorporated 
has not been able to consistently meet the final effluent limi
tatious contained in its NPDES :permit. 'rhis places the Respondent 
in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that it discharged wastewater into the environment 
of the State in a manner other than in com.1Jliance with its permit to 
discharge issued by the Department. This violation of the Code of 
Laws of South Carolina subjects the Respondent to the assessment of 
civil i-,enalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
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Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) On or before December 1, 
1986, furnish to the Department a proposed groundwater study designed 
to determine if the unlined lagoons are contributing to any contami
nation of groundwater or if the possibility of groundwater contami
nation exists. The proposal shall include a schedule of implemen
tation. Upon approval by the Department, this schedule of study 
implementation shall become a part of this Order; 2) Should the 
1-1roposal determine the likelihood or existence of groundwater con
tamination, an implementation schedule for correcting and/or pre
vention of .the contamination will be proposed and upon Department 
approval made a part of this Order; 3) On or before February 2, 1987, 
submit to the Department a P~R addressing measures for achieving com
pliance with all effluent parameters. The report will include but 
not be limited to: (a) A Preliminary Engineering Report, including 
all modifications of the waste treatment system specifying any 
control or operating changes as well as chemical and/or equipnent 
changes to the system; (b) An evaluation of the sludge accumulation 
and r~ma.ining sludge capacity of lagoons; and, 4) On or before 
January 5, 1987, pay to the Department a civil penalty of ten 
thousand dollars ($10,000.00}. 

57. Consent Order No. 86-113-W 
Date: November 20, 1986 
Facility: Nycoil Company, DM Division - Greenville County 
Responctent: Nycoil Company 
Summary: Department investigations revealed the presence of an 
unauthorized discharge of non-contact cooling water into a nearby 
stream. .This places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 
of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharged 
wastewater into the environment of the State in a manner other than 
in compliance with a permit to discharge issued by the Department. 
'l'his violation of the Code of Laws of South Carolina subject the 
Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in 
Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 1) Within fifteen (15) days 
of the issuance of this Order, pay to the Department a civil penalty 
in the amount of three thousand dollars ($3,000.00). 

58. Consent Order No. 86-114-W 
Date: November 20, 1986 
Facility: Lower Dorchester Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Respondent: Dorchester County 
Summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
Respondent has failed to develop pretreatment programs required by 
federal and state laws. This places the Respondent in violation of 
the General Pretreatment Regulations for Existing and New Sources 
40 CFR 403. 
Action: 'l'he Respondent has agreed to: (1) Submit an approvable 
Phase IA report to the Department by January 15, 1987; (2) Submit an 
approvable Phase IB report to the Department by February 15, 1987; 
(3) Submit an approvable Phase II report to the Department by March 
15, 1987. It shall be the Respondent's responsibility to respond 
to Department comments in a timely manner to ensure final approval 
of the pretreatment program no later than May 15, 1987; and (4) 
Implement the ap.f->roved pretreatment program no later than August 
15, 1987. 
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59.**Consent Order No. 86-115-W 
Date: November 26, 1986 
Facility: City of Walterboro 
Respondent: City of Walterboro 
Summary: Department investigations reveal recurring instances of 
unauthorized discharge of wastewater from the facility and improper 
operation and maintenance of the waste treatment plant. This places 
the Respondent in violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: 

(1) J:.leet the following effluent limits until July 1, 1988: 

Discharge Limitation Monitoring Requirements 
Monthly Weekly Measurement Sample 

Parameter Average Average Frequency Type 

Flow (.tviGD) 3.5 3.5 Continuous 

DO (mg/1) 2.0 minimum 1/week Grab 

BOD (mg/1) 30.0 45.0 1/week Composite 

·rss (mg/1) 45.0 67.5 1/week Composite 

Fecal Coliform 200/100 ml 1/week Grab 

The pH of the effluent shall not be less than 6 standard units 
nor greater than 9. 0 standard units and shall be monitored daily by 
grab sample. 

(2) Properly operate and maintain the existing waste treatment system. 
·rhis shall include, but not be limited to: 

a. Prompt repair of any sewage collection system problems; 
b. Maintenance of lift station and influent pumps; 
c. Maintenance of barscreen and grit removal systems; 
d. Maintenance of proper aeration in the aeration basin 

and removal, as appropriate, of solids build-up in the 
aeration basin; 

e. Leveling of the final clarifier weir; 
f. Maintenance of sludge removal system and maximize use of 

drying beds; 
g. Maintenance of daily operations and maintenance log; 
h. Promptly notifying the Department of any equipnent 

failures as required in the NPDES permit, 
i. Elimination of plant bypasses and prompt notification 

of the Department if bypasses occur or are contemplated; 
j. Maximizing the use of operational control testing 

and preventative maintenance programs. 

(3) Within thirty (30) days of the issuance of this Order - Submit 
to the Department a report to include: 
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a. An Operational Control Testing and Preventive Maintenance 
Program. The program shall outline the operational control 
tests and maintenance activities to be performed and the 
frequence of these activities; 

b. A listing of personnel employed to operate the waste treat
raent system. The report shall include, but not be limited 
to: 

1. 'rhe names, certification number, and certifica
tion level of all personnel who have been certi
fied by the South carolina Board of Certification 
of Environmental Systems Operators as waste 
treatment operators; 

2. The work schedule of each waste treatment operator 
including identification of daytime, night time, and 
weekend personnel; and, 

3. An evaluation of additional staffing needs to ensure 
adequate staffing and the proper operation and main
tenance of the waste treatment and collection system. 

(4) Within thirty (30) days of the issuance of this Orcler - Submit 
to the Deparbnent an evaluation of the pump station located 
near the intersection of highways US 17-A and 63. The evalua
tion shall identify any necessary corrective work and, if 
apvropriate, a proposed compliance schedule for completion of 
that work. Upon review and written response by the Department, 
the schedule of necessary corrective action shall become an 
enforceable part of this Order. 

(5) Com}'lete the upgrade of the waste treat1aent plant in accordance 
with the following schedule: 

a. On or before December 1, 1986 - Submit the information 
re~uested by Deparbnent letter of July 30, 1986 concerning 
the plans and specifications. 

b. On or before January 1, 1987 - Open project for bids. 
c. On or before March 15, 1987 - Award bid. 
d. On or before April .1, 1987 - Begin construction. 
e. On or before July 1, 1988 - Complete construction. 

(6) Within thirty (30) days of the issuance of this Order - Begin 
to measure: 

a. Actual daily discharge flow from the treatment plant in a 
manner ap};Jroved Ly the Department; 

b. Actual daily influent flows to the treatment plant in a 
manner api-,roved by the Department. 

Accurate flow measuring devices shall be used for both influent 
and effluent flows. Following the collection of appropriate 
influent flow data collected during both wet and dry weather, 
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an infiltration/inflow report shall be provided to the Depart
ment within two weeks of completion of the study. A status 
report describing the progress of the infiltration/inflow study 
shall be provided to the Department on a monthly basis begin
ning December 15, 1986. The effluent flow measurement, at a 
minimum, shall be maintained and remain in use until the waste
water treatment plant upgrade is complete and the old system is 
taken out of service. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED AND CONSENTED TO that there shall be 
a moratorium on additional taps to the Respondent's wastewater 
treatment system until upgrade of the treatment plant has been 
completed with the following exceptions: 

a. single family dwellings and small businesses with a flow 
equivalent to single family dwellings; 

b. N&N Industries, a Food Lion store and a Burger King 
Restaurant; 

c. an additional 15,000 gpd of flow, utilization of which is 
to be determined by the Respondent. The Respondent shall 
notify the Department in writing of those projects 
selected to receive the additional flow allocation. 

The Department shall within thirty (30) days of submission, 
review the influent/effluent flow report described in item 6 of 
this Order. Additional flows shall be approved by the Depart
raent when all of the following conditions are met: 

a. '.l'he present system 
described in item 2 

b. The effluent limits 
being met. 

c. The present system 
receiving stream. 

60. Consent Order No. 86-116-W 
Date: December 4, 1986 

is 
of 
as 

is 

being operated and maintained 
this Order. 
set out in item 1 of this Order 

causing no adverse impacts to 

Facility: Rock's Texaco Truck Center - Florence County 
Respondent: Maurice Raines 

as 

are 

the 

Summary: Department investigations reveal that the land application 
system serving the Truck Center was being improperly operated 
resulting in an unauthorized discharge to the environment. This is 
a violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the Code of Laws of 
South carolina and subjects the Respondent to the assessment of 
civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before December 1, 
1986, submit to the Der,artment a civil i;enalty of two thousand 
dollars ($2,000.00); and (2) Operate and maintain this facility in a 
manner to maximize treatment capabilities. 

61. Consent Order No. 86-117-W 
Date: December 4, 1986 
Facility: .Meadowbrook Subdivision - Spartanburg County 
Responclent: Spartanburg Sanitary Sewer District 
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Summary: Department records reveal that Meadowbrook Subdivision has 
consistently failed to meet the NPDES permit effluent limitations. 
It has been determined that the violations are the result of past 
design deficiencies; however, failure to meet NPDES permit require
ments places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act. 
Action: 1'he Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before January 15, 
1987, submit to the Department an approvable preliminary engineering 
report for the facility improvements/modifications necessary to 
attain compliance with NPDES permit limitations. Include a schedule 
to complete the project; and (2) Upon Department approval of the 
preliminary engineering report, this Order will be amended to 
include a continuing schedule to complete the project. 

62. **Consent Order No. 86-118-W 
Date: December 3, 1986 
Facilities: Bondale/Hickory Hill/Mountainbrook Subdivisions 
Surruuary: Department records reveal that the above facilities have 
been unable to meet effluent limitations of their respective NPDES 
permits. Previous Consent Orders addressed these violations and 
required upgrades; however, it has now been determined that these 
facilities may be eliminated by construction of an interceptor sewer 
line. Based on violations of Section 48-1-90 of the Code of Laws of 
South Carolina and the fact that interceptor lines can be con
structed by the Federally mandated July 1988 date, a new Consent 
Oruer has been issued. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Continue proper 
operation and maintenance of the existing facilities in order to 
maximize treatment capabilities; (2) On or before December 15, 1986, 
submit an approvable draft 201 addendum; (3) On or before April 1, 
1987, submit to the Department approvable plans and specifications 
for tPA project C450-371-05; (4) On or before October 1, 1987, start 
construction of EPA project C450-371-05; (5) On or before July 1, 
1988, eliminate the wastewater discharges from the Bondale, Hickory 
Hill and Mountainbrook Subdivisions wastewater treatment facilities; 
and (6) On or before November 1, 1988, closeout the Bondale, Hickory 
Hill and Nountainbrook wastewater treatment facilities in accordance 
with South Carolina Regulation 61-68. 

63. Consent Order No. 86-119-W 
Date: December 10, 1986 
F'acility: Jerrold Watson Peach Farm - Saluda County 
Respondent: Jerrold Watson 
Summary: The Respondent has failed to provide adequate waste 
handling facilities for an unauthorized discharge of wastewater from 
his peach packing operation. This is a violation of Section 48-1-90 
of South Carolina Pollution Control Act. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before December 31, 
1986, secure all necessary permits to construct across the highway 
right-of-way. The Respondent shall notify the Department in writing 
that this requirement has been completed; and (2) Proceed with con
struction of the project as per conditions of the Permit to Con
struct. Construction shall end and receive Department approval prior 
to April 30, 1987. 
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64. **Consent Order No. 86-120-W 
Date: December 10, 1986 
Facility: Little Pee Dee Wastewater Treatment Facility - Dillon Co. 
Respondent: Town of Dillon 
sununary: A previous order issued to the Respondent has not been 
complied with due to delays in construction site acquisition and 
the need for design of a dechlorination system due to Department 
changes in disinfection requirements. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before February 20, 
1987 - commence construction; (2) On or before May 15, 1988 - com
plete construction; (3) On or before June 15, 1988 - obtain opera
tional level and meet final effluent limits; and' (4) On or before 
June 1, 1987, and every three (3) months thereafter until completion 
of construction, submit a report of construction progress. In case 
of failure to meet requirements to provide justification for the 
delays and any information concerning failure to meet future data. 

65. **Consent Order No. 86-121-W 
Date: Deceml.ier 10, 1986 
Facility: Haple Swamp Wastewater Treatment Facility - Dillon County 
Responaent: Town of Dillon 
summary: A previous order issued to the Respondent has not been 
complietl with due to delays in construction site acquisition and the 
need for design of a dechlorination system due to Department changes 
in disinfection requirements. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before February 20, 
1987 - commence construction; (2) On or before May 15, 1988 - com
plete construction; (3) On or before June 15, 1988 - obtain opera
tional level and meet final effluent limits; and (4) On or before 
June 1, 1987, and every three (3) months thereafter until completion 
of construction, submit a report of construction progress. In case 
of failure to meet requirements to provide justification for the 
delays and any information concerning failure to meet future data. 

66. Consent Order No. 86-122-W 
Date: December 1~, 1986 

67. 

Facility: M.etoKote Corporation - Sumter County 
Resi,ondent: MetoKote Corporation 
Summary: A Department investigation revealed that the Respondent 
has constructed an industrial pretreatment facility without 
acquiring the required Department construction permit. This is a 
violation of section 48-1-110 of the South Carolina Pollution 
Control Act and subjects the Respondent to the assessment of civil 
penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Act. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Pay to the Department a 
civil penalty of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) on or before 
December 31, 1986; and (2) Contact the Department's Wateree District 
office for a final inspection for permission to operate when all 
permits are obtained. 

Consent Order No. 86-123-W 
Date: December 10, 1986 
Facility: Daughrity Septic Tank Company - Sumter County 
Respondent: James E. Daughrity 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the Respondent had 

319 



discharged the contents of his pumper truck to the environment in an 
unapproved manner. This is a violation of Section 48-1-90 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act and subjects the Respondent to 
the assessment of penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the 
Act. 
Action: 'l'he Respondent has agreed to: (1) Immediately cease and 
refrain from any and all future unauthorized discharges of waste
water to the environment; (2) On or before December 31, 1986, submit 
to the Department proof of financial hardship; (3) On or before 
January 15, 1987, pay to the Department a civil penalty of one 
thousand dollars ($1,000.00) unless it can be demonstrated that 
Daughrity is financially incapable of paying the penalty; and (4) 
Upon Department determination that additional unauthorized discharge 
has occurred, Daughrity shall pay maximum penalties associated with 
the ctischarge and if unable to pay the penalty will forfeit all 
licenses and/or pennits associated with the handling of waste 
materials and liquidate equipment with proceeds forfeited to the 
Department for payr,ient of penalty. 

68. Consent Order No. 86-124-W 
Date: December 16, 1986 

69. 

Facility: C.L. Clark Peach Farm - Edgefield County 
Respondent: C.L. Clark 
Summary: The Respondent has failed to provide adequate waste 
handling facilities for an unauthorized discharge of wastewater from 
his peach packing operation. This is a violation of Section 48-1-90 
of South Carolina Pollution Control Act. 
Action: ·rhe Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before December 
31, 1986, notify the Department in writing of the method by which 
the unauthorized point-source discharges will be eliminated from the 
packing operation; and (2) Upon Department approval, the Respondent 
shall begin construction of the project. Construction of the pro
ject shall end and receive Department approval prior to March 31, 
1987. 

Consent Order No. 86-125-W 
Date: December 19, 1986 
Facility: Hardee's Restuarant - Beaufort County 
Responcient: Maybeck, Inc. 
Summary: Deparbnent investigations reveal that an unauthorized dis
charge of wastewater was leaving the Respondent's business and 
entering the environment via a stonn drain. This is a violation of 
Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act and 
subjects the Respondent to assessment of civil penalties as set forth 
in Section 48-1-330 of the Act. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Within thirty (30) days 
of the issuance of this Order - Pay to the Department a civil 
penalty of four thousand dollars ($4,000.00); and (2) Connect the 
Hardee' s restaurant wastewater discharge to the City of Beaufort's 
sewer system within sixty (60) days after a line becomes available. 

70. Consent Order No. 86-126-W 
Date: December 12, 1986 
Facility: Pearlstine Distributors, Inc. - Jasper County 
Respondent: Pearlstine DistruLutors, Inc. 
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Summary: Department investigations reveal that the Respondent's 
facility was not being operated and maintained in accordance with 
the NPDES permit issued to the facility and that an unauthorized 
discharge of wastewater was occurrin9. These are violations of 
sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South carolina Pollution 
Control Act and subjects the Respondent to civil penalties as set 
forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Act. 
Action: The Respondent has ayreed to: (1) On or before January 15, 
1987 - Pay to the Department a civil penalty of one thousand dollars 
($1,000.00); and (2) Within ten (10) days of the issuance of this 
order - Have the Department conduct an inspection to confirm that 
the repairs to the wastewater treatment system have been satis
factorily completed. If deficiencies in the system are found by 
Department personnel, they must be corrected within ten (10) days of 
the inspection. It shall be the ResI:Jondent's responsibility to 
contact the Department's Low Country District Office to arrange for 
the inspection(s). 

71. Consent Order No. 86-127-W 
Date: December 19, 1986 
Facility: Gilbert Elementary School - Lexington County 
Respondent: Lexington County School District One 
summary: Department investigations reveal that the Respondent's 
waste treatment facility cannot consistently meet NPDES permit 
effluent limitations. This is a violation of Section 48-1-90 of the 
Pollution Control Act for the State of South Carolina. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Operate and maintain the 
existing facility at Gilbert Elementary in a manner as to minimize 
effluent violations; (2) On or before June 30, 1987, submit to the 
De_l?artment a I:Jreliminary engineering report (PER) , including 
schedule, on the modifications necessary to improve the quality of 
the effluent at the Gilbert Elementary facility; and (3) Monitor 
effluent quality at least weekly for the first ninety (90) days 
after Gilbert High is added to the system and proceed with 
additional upgrade of this lagoon if limits cannot be met. 
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72. **Consent Order No. 87-01-W 
Date: January 6, 1987 
Facility: Hardwicke Chemical Company - Kershaw County 
Respondent: Hardwi\:!ke Chemical Company 
summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment facility that serves Hardwicke Chemical Company 
is unable to meet the final effluent limitations contained in its 
NPDES permit. This places the Respondent in violation of Section 
48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it 
discharged wastewater into the environment of the State in a manner 
other than in compliance with its permit to discharge issued by the 
Department. Additionally, the Respondent is in violation of Code 
I:egulation 61-68 (c) (2) (d) in that toxic or other deleterious sub
st.a1~ces werE. d.iscl1&:t:<:;ed into the receiving waters of the State in 
concentrations hamful to aq_uatic life. These violations of the 
Code of Laws of South Carolina subjects the Respondent to the 
assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of 
the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Pay to the Department 
the sum of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) on or before 
December 31, 1986; (2) On or before January 30, 1987, submit a plan 
of study to the Department, including schedule (s), which identify 
procedures for the evaluation of cyanide in the effluent from the 
Wateree site. Upon Department approval, the plan and schedule (s) 
will become an enforceable part of this Order; and (3) Keep waste
water treatment plants in compliance with the limits of NPDES permit 
#SC0002682 and cease all violations. 

73. **Consent Order No. 87-02-W 
Date: January 6, 1987 
Facility: Town of Batesburg - Lexington County 
Responaent: Town of Batesburg 
Summary: Department inspections and available records reveal that 
the wastewater treatment facility that serves the Town of Batesburg 
and the surrounding area is unable to consistently meet the final 
effluent limitations imposed in its NPDES permit. Additionally, the 
facility is not receiving the operation and maintenance necessary to 
achieve optimum treatment capabiltiy. This places the Respondent in 
violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control 
Act in that it is discharging wastewater into the environment of the 
State and operating and maintaining the facility in a manner other 
than in compliance with its permit to discharge issued by the 
Department. These violations of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 
subject the Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set 
forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Continually operate and 
maintain the facility in accordance with the conditions listed in 
NPDES permit #SC0024465 to provide the best treatment possible; (2) 
Replace the faulty butterfly valves with the correct valves in the 
influent line at the wastewater treatment plant on or before January 
15, 1987; (3) Submit a Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) to the 
L>eJJartment to address wet weather equalization and sludge handling 
problems u~on future notification from the Department. This noti
fication will be based on the performance on the aforementioned 
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influent valves; and (4) Pay to the Department a civil penalty of 
five thousand uollars ($5,000.00) on or before January 30, 1987. 

74. **Consent Order No. 87-03-W 
Date: January 8, 1987 
Facility: Georgia~Pacific Corporation/Russellville Complex 

Berkeley County 
Respondent: Georgia-Pacific Corporation 
Summary: Department investigations and available records reveal 
that the wastewater treatment facility that serves the Georgia
Pacific/Russellville Complex is unable to consistently meet the 
final effluent limitations imposed in its NPDES permit. This places 
the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that it discharges wastewater into the 
environment of the State in a manner other than in compliance with 
its permit to discharge issued by the Department. 
Action: ~'he Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before January 15, 
1987 - suhnit to the Department a remedial action plan which dis
cusses the action(s) to be taken to bring the wastewater treatment 
system into compliance with the requirements of NPDES permit 
#SC0003115. The plan shall include, but not be limited to: (a) An 
Operational Control Testing and Preventive Maintenance Program. The 
program shall outline the operational control tests and maintenance 
activities to be performed and the frequence of these activities; 
(b) A listing of personnel employed to operate the waste treatment 
system. The report shall include, but not be limited to: (1) The 
names, certification number and certification level of all personnel 
who have been certified by the South Carolina Board of Certification 
of Environmental Systems Operators as waste treatment operators, (2) 
The work schedule of each waste treatment operator including identi
fication of daytime, night time, and weekend personnel, (3) An 

evaluation of additional staffing needs to ensure adequate staffing 
and the proper operation and maintenance of the waste treatment and 
collection system; and (2) On or before March 1, 1987 - Meet the 
final effluent limits of NPDES permit #SC0003115. 

75. Consent Order No. 87-04-W 
Date: December 19, 1986 
Facility: True Temper Corporation - Anderson County 
Respondent: True Temper Corporation 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the Respondent has 
consistently failed to submit discharge monitoring reports to the 
Department as required by its NPDES permit issued by the Department. 
This places the Responuent in violation of Section 48-1-110 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it has failed to comply 
with the requirements of its permit to discharge issued by the 
Department. This violation of the Code subjects the Respondent to 
the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 
of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Within fifteen (15) days 
of the issuance of this Order pay to the Department a civil penalty 
in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00); and (2) Immedi
ately comply with all NPDES permit requirements regarding effluent 
monitoring, including the submittal of discharge monitoring reports 
to the Department. 
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76. Consent Order No. 87-05-W 
Date: January 9, 19.87 

77. 

Facility: Western Carolina Regional Sewer Authority/Slater-Marietta 
Greenville County 

Respondent: Western carolina Regional Sewer Authority 
summary: Department investigations reveal· that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves the Slater-Marietta area of 
Greenville County is unable to meet the final effluent limitations 
contained in its NPDES permit issued by the Department. This places 
the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that it discharges wastewater into the 
environment of the State in a manner other than in compliance with 
its permit to discharge. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before March 27, 
1987, submit to the Department for approval the final 201 Facilities 
Plan for the Slater-Marietta waste treatment facility; (2) On or 
before February 16, 1987, submit to the Department for approval a 
plan addressing sludge handling and disposal at Slater-Marietta in 
the interim and until the facility's new sludge handling equipment 
is constructed and operational. The plan should identify the 
specific temporary measures by which WCRSA will waste and dispose of 
sludge from the waste treatment facility as necessary to maintain 
compliance with the interim limits contained herein or the final 
NPDES limits as applicable. The plan, when approved, will become an 
enforceable part of this Order; (3) On or before June 1, 1987, 
submit to the Department for approval plans and specifications for 
the Slater-Marietta upgr&0e project; (4) On or before January 1, 
1988, start construction on the upgrade project; (5) On or before 
March 15, 1988, complete construction on improvements to the 
aeration basin and other treatment processes as necessary to achieve 
compliance with all final NPDES permit limits; (6) On or before May 
15, 1988, achieve compliance with all final effluent limits and 
conditions set forth in the NPDES permit; and (7) On or before 
September 1, 1988, complete any remaining construction (on the 
upgrade of the sludge handling capability) at the facility. 

Consent Order No. 87-06-W 
Date: January 9, 1987 
Facility: Amphenol Corporation - Richland County 
Respondent: Amphenol Corporation 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the groundwater 
beneath the Amphenol Corporation plant site containes an excessively 
high level of volatile organic compounds caused by the discharge of 
industrial waste into a percolation pit. This places the Respondent 
in violation of South Carolina Regulation 61-68D (2) of the S.C. 
Pollution Control Act in that it allowed the unpermitted periodic 
discharges of solvent containing TCE into the groundwater of the 
State resulting in the pollution of this water in contravention of 
the Department's standards. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Submit an approvable 
proposal for the continued sampling of the one (1) existing and four 
(4) proposed groundwater monitoring wells and two (2) springs for 
'l'CE on or before January 30, 1987. 'rhe proposal may contain a 
schedule which allows for decreasing frequency of sampling after 

324 



some period of time if a downward trend of TCE levels is 
established. The monitoring wells should be installed on or before 
March 1, 1987, provided Amphenol has been able to obtain the access 
or easement agreements referenced in Paragraph 3 below; ( 2) Submit 
an approvable groundwater recovery program proposal if the levels of 
TCE increase by greater than fifty percent (50%) over the average 
level determined from the first four quarters of monitoring results 
from the monitoring wells designated above. ·rhis proposal should be 
submitted to the Department within forty-five (45) days after 
Arophtmol' s receipt of notification from the Department that such 
proposal is required by the Department; (3) Submit appropriate 
access or easement agreements from affected landowners to the 
Department on or before December 31, 1986, or if these access or 
easement agreements cannot be acquired by the aforementioned date, 
submit evidence that Amphenol has made and is continuing to make 
reasonable efforts to obtain these agreements from the affected 
landowners; and (4) Tie on to a municipal sewer system when 
available. 

78. Consent Order No. 87-07-W 
Date: January 13, 1987 
Facility: Town of Olanta - Florence county 
kesponaent: •rown of vlanta 
Summary: Department investigations reveal 
treatrnent facility that serves the 'I'mm of 
rounding area is unable to meet the final 
imposed in its Nl:'DES permit. Ad<li tionally, 
being properly operated and maintained. This 
in violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 

that the wastewater 
Olanta and the sur
ef fluent limitations 
the facility is not 

places the Respondent 
of the South Carolina 

Pollution Control Act in that it discharges wastewater into the 
environment of the State and the facility does not receive adequate 
operation and maintenance which renders the facility in noncom
pliance with its permit to discharge issued by the Departuent. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Operate and maintain 
this facility in order to maximize treatment capabilities; (2) Be 
subject to a moratorium restricting the issuance of any further 
permits for coustruction excluding single service tavs for resi
dential dwellings; (3) On or before May 15, 1987, furnish to the 
Department an apvrovable Preliminary Engineering keport; (4) On or 
before August 17, 1987, furnish to the Department Plans and Specifi
cations; (5) On or before November 16, 1987 - start construction; 
(6) On or before ~.iarch 15, 1988 - complete construction; and (7) On 
or before April 15, 1988 - meet final limits. 

79. Consent Order No. 87-08-W 
Date: January 12, 1987 
Facility: Pelion Elementary School - Lexington County 
Res1->ondent: Lexington County School District One 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Pelion Elementary School is unable to 
meet the final effluent limitations contained in its NPDES permit. 
·rhis places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the 
south Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharges waste
water into the environment of the State in a manner other than in 
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80. 

compliance with a permit issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Operate and maintain the 
existing facility at Pelion Elementary in a manner as to minimize 
effluent violations; (2) On or before June 30, 1987, submit to the 
Department a preliminary engineering report (PER) , including 
schedule, on the modifications necessary to improve the quality of 
the effluent at the Pelion Elementary facility; and (3) Monitor 
effluent quality at least weekly for the first ninety (90) days 
after Pelion High is added to the system and proceed with additional 
upgrade of this lagoon if limits cannot be met. 

Consent Order No. 87-09-W 
Date: January 14, 1987 
Facility: Parris Island Recruit Depot - Beaufort County 
Respondent: United States Marine Corps 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Parris Island Recruit Depot is unable 
to meet the final effluent limitations contained in its NPDES permit. 
'£his places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharges waste
water into the environment of the State in a manner other than in 
compliance with a permit issued by the Department. 
Action: 'rhe Respondent has agreed to: (1) PI 307M - Repair sludge 
digesters; (2) PW 47-85 - Repair trickling filter and circulation 
pipiny; (3) PW 33-85 - Repair grit collector; (4) PI 750-R - Con
struct oil/water separator for building 864; (5) PI 509-M - Rehabili
tation of sanitary sewer; and (6) PW 5-87 - Complete construction 
of dual chlorination facilities and dechlorination facility. 

81. **Administrative Order No. 87-10-W 
Date: January 13, 1987 
Facility: Pine Valley Estates - Horry County 

.Respondent: Mr. Leon D. Todd 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Pine Valley Estates has been ne
glected due to the Respondent's failure to assume proper operation 
and maintenance of the facility to the extent that it creates a 
potential heal th hazard in that system failure results in inade
quately treated wastewater containing human wastes. Additionally, 
the Respondent has violated the terms of Department Consent Order 
No. 85-101-W issued on November 21, 1985. This places the Respon
dent in violation of Sections 48-1-50, 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act. 
Action: The Respondent has been ordered to properly maintain the 
Pine Valley waste treatment facility, including but not limited to 
insuring that electrical service continues uninterrupted, and shall 
properly operate the Pine Valley waste treatment facility, including 
but not limited to obtaining the services of a certified waste 
treatment plant operator and insuring that all operating conditions 
set forth in NPDES Permit No. SC0032450 are met. 

b2. Consent Order No. 87-11-W 
Date: January 22, 1987 
Facility: Oneita Industries/Fingersville Plant - Spartanburg County 
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Respondent: Oneita Industries 
Summary: Department investigations and records reveal that the 
wastewater treatment facility that serves Oneita Industries Finger
ville Plant is not being operated and maintained as authorized in 
the Department Permit to Construct which has contributed to the 
facility not being able to meet the final effluent limitations 
contained in its NPDES permit. This places the Respondent in vio
lation of Sections 48-1-110 and 48-1-90 of the South carolina Pol
lution Control Act in that it is discharging wastewater into the 
environment of the State in a manner other than in compliance with 
the ~ermit to discharge issued by the Department. These violations 
of the Code of Laws of South carolina subjects the Respondent to the 
assessment of civil penal ties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of 
the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Operate and maintain the 
existing facility to maximize treatment capabilities; (2) Within ten 
(10) days of receipt of this fully executed Order, pay to the 
Department a civil penalty in the amount of fifteen thousand dollars 
($15,000.00); (3) Within ninety (90) days of receipt of this fully 
executed Order, subr,1it to the Department an approvable preliminary 
engineering report that contains a plan of action and a timetable 
for the improvements/ modifications necessary to render the facility 
in compliance with State permits; (4) Commensing with the January 
19b7 submittal of the monthly Discharge Monitoring Reports and 
lasting through April 1987 include, under a separate letter, the 
monthly daily production level of the plant; and (5) Upon the 
receipt and Department approval of item #3 above, this Order will be 
ainended to include a further schedule to complete the recomrnenda
tions approved by the Department. 

83. Consent Order No. 87-12-W 
Date: January 21, 1987 
Facility: P'rL Heritage Village - York County 
Respondent: PTL Heritage Village 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves P'l'L Village is unable to meet the 
final effluent limitations contained in its NPDES permit which can 
be 1>artially attributed to the lack of proper operation and main
tenance. 'Ibis places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 
of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharges 
wastewater into the environment of the State in a manner other than 
in compliance with the permit to discharge issued by the Department. 
This violation of the Code of Laws of South Carolina subjects the 
Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in 
Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Immediately, ensure that 
a certified operator is assigned full time duties to operate and 
maintain the wastewater treatment plant; (2) Within ten (10) days of 
receipt of this fully executed Order, pay to the Department an eight 
thousand dollar ($8,000.00) civil penalty; (3) On or before ninety 
(90) days of receipt of this fully executed Order, replace/modify 
the existing aerator system to ensure increased reliability. Any 
alteration to the existing aeration system must receive prior 
Department approval; and (4) The Department will withhold approvitg 
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a plant 
facility 
factory 
rently, 

expansion beyond the one million gpd capacity until the 
can demonstrate three (3) consecutive months of satis

State operation and maintenance inspections and concur
three (3) consecutive months of no effluent violations. 

84. Administrative Order No. 87-13-W 
Date: January 21, 1987 

85. 

Facility: Shaw Air Force Base - Sumter County 
Respondent: United States Air Force 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Shaw Air Force Base is unable to meet 
the final effluent limitations contained in its NPDES permit to the 
extent that an adverse impact on the macroinvertebrate communities 
of the receiving waters is evident. This places the Respondent in 
violation of Section 48-1-90 and Regulation 61-68(C) (2) (d) of the 
South Carolina Code of Laws in that it discharges wastewater into 
the environment of the State in a manner other than in compliance 
with the permit to discharge issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has been ordered to: (1) Properly operate 
and maintain the wastewater treatment facility and continually meet 
the effluent limitations contained in NPDES permit #SC0024970; (2) 
Immediately discontinue the practice of filter bypassing and per
manently seal or remove, in a manner approved by the Department, the 
diversion to the outfall line which allows for this activity; (3) 
Complete and submit the application for a new NPDES permit, in
cluding Form 2(c) and sludge permit on or before February 16, 1987; 
(4) Submit to the Department a Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) 
on the proposed upgrade of the wastewater treatment facility 
including schedules, on or before February 16, 1987. Once approved 
by the Department, the scheduled upgrade will become incorporated 
into this Order; and (5) Pay to the Department a civil penalty of 
fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) on or before February 16, 1987. 

Administrative Order No. 87-14-W 
Date: January 21, 1987 
Facility: Dutch Boy Bus Lines - Aiken County 
Respondent: Mr. F. Harold McElmurray 
Sununary: Department investigations reveal that wastewater from the 
bus holding tanks is being emptied into the storm drainage system 
adjacent to U.S. Highway 25, near North Augusta. This places the 
Respondent in violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that wastewater has been 
discharged into the environment of the State in a manner not in 
compliance with a permit issued by the Department. This violation 
of the Code of Laws of South Carolina subjects the Respondent to the 
assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of 
the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has been ordered to: (1) Immediately cease 
the unauthorized dumping of bus holding tank wastes and/or rinse 
water from the wash down of these tanks; (2) Within ten (10) days of 
the effective date of this Order, the Respondent shall provide the 
Department with written notification of the (approvable) method of 
disposal being used to dispose of the bus waste; and (3) Within 
thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, pay to the 
Department a penalty of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) for the 
unauthorized discharge of wastewater. 
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86. **Consent Order No. 87-15-W 
Date: February 2, 1987 
Facility: Edgefield Co. Water & Sewer Authority/Johnston #1 
Respondent: Edgefield County Water & Sewer Authority 
Summary: 'I'his order was issued as a result of a compromise settle
ment of the requirements contained in previously issued Department 
Administrative Order #86-75-W. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) At the time of this 
Order, Petitioner has paid to the Department a penalty in the amount 
of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00); (2) In lieu of payment of the 
remaining four thousand dollars ($4,0UO.OO) of the penalty (require
ment #4 of Order No. 86-72-W), Petitioner will use four thousand 
dollars ($4,000.00) for the purchase of laboratory and/or process 
control testing equipment for its wastewater program. This equip
ment will be in adcii tion to equipment necessary to meet minimum 
analytical and reporting requirements for NPDES permits. Petitioner 
will obtain approval from the Department prior to the purchase of 
the equipment. Petitioner will purchase the equipment by April 1, 
1987; (3) Requirements 1, 2, 3 and 5 of Order No. 86-72-W remain 
in effect and will be complied with by Petitioner; and 
(4) Petitioner's administrative appeal of Order No. 86-72-W is 
hereby ended. 

87. Consent Order No. 87-16-87 
Date: E'ebruary 3, 1987 
Facility: City of Columbia/Metro Plant - Richland County 
Respondent: City of Columbia 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment plant serves the City of Columbia and the surrounding 
area has experienced numerous NPDES permit effluent violations 
to the extent that odor complaints have been received and varified 
by the Department. Additionally, Department operation and main
tenance inspections confirm that the facility is not being vroperly 
attended and that system components are in disrepair. 11his places 
the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that it failed to properly operate and 
maintain the facility, and in that it discharged wastewater into the 
environment in a manner not in cornpl iance with its permit to dis
chc1r9e issued by the Department. These violations of the Code of 
Laws of South carolina subjects the Respondent to the assessment of 
civil 1:>enalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Properly operate and 
maintain the Metro wastewater treatment facility and continually 
meet the effluent limitations contained in NPDES Permit #SC0020940; 
(2) Submit to the Department on a monthly basis, DMR' s and a status 
report concerning the operations and maintenance activities at the 
Metro Plant starting on E'ebruary 1, 1987, with the status revort 
submission continuin9 through February 1, 1988; (3) Submit to the 
Departr.1ent a corrective action plan that assures the effluent limi
tations will be met on a consistent basis. This submittal is due on 
March l, 1987; and (4) Pay to the Dei,artment the sum of thirty-five 
thousand dollars ($35,000.00) on or before March 1, 1987. 
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88. Consent Order No. 87-17-W 
Date: February 17, 1987 

89. 

Facility: Magnetic Resonance Imaging Facility - Greenville County 
Respondent: Greenville Hospital System 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that a wastewater collec
tion system has been constructed and placed into operation without 
obtaining prior Department approval and permit. The collection 
system serves the Respondent's Magnetic Resonance Imaging Facility. 
This places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-110(1) (3) of 
the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it constructed and 
operated a wastewater collection system prior to obtaining the 
necessary permits from the Department. This violation of the Code 
of Laws of South Carolina subjects the Respondent to the assessment 
of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: 'l'he Respondent has agreed to: (1) Immediately cease the 
construction and operation of wastewater collection systems without 
prior Department approval, and shall henceforth comply with all 
Department permitting requirements; (2) Within fifteen (15) days of 
the issuance of this Order, submit to the Department for approval, 
as-built plans and specifications for the project; (3) Within thirty 
(30) days of the issuance of the Department construction permit, 
certify that the construction is complete according to the approved 
plans and specifications and request a Department final inspection 
for the pur1,1ose of obtaining a permit to operate the wastewater 
collection system; and (4) Within fifteen (15) days of the issuance 
of this Order, the Respondent shall pay to the Department a civil 
penalty in the amount of four thousand dollars ($4,000.00). 

Consent Order No. 86-18-w 
Date: February 17, 1987 
Facility: Specialty Industrial Products, Inc. - Spartanburg County 
Res1_..>onuent: Specialty Industrial Products, Inc. 
Summary: Deparbnent investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Specialty Industrial Products is 
unable to meet the final effluent limitations contained in its NPDES 
r,ermit. This places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 
of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharges 
wastewater into the environment of the State in a manner other than 
in compliance with its permit to discharge issued by the Department. 
Action: 'rhe Respondent has agreed to: (1) Within sixty (60) days 
of the Department issued permit to construct, start construction in 
accordance with the Department permit; (2) Within sixty (60) days 
after start construction, complete construction and request Depart
ment ap_f.,roval for a 1-1ermit to operate; (3) Attain compliance with 
final effluent limitations within thirty (30) days of receipt of a 
Der,artment permit to operate; and (4) In the meantime until the 
filters are operable, the Respondent will cease all discharges of 
wastewater into the environment. In the event the facility no 
longer has holding capacity, the Spartanburg District Office shall 
be contacted for approval to discharge treated wastewater on a 
case-by-case basis. 

90. Consent Order No. 87-19-W 
Date: February 23, 1987 
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Facility: Bent Tree Subdivision - Oconee County 
Responuent: Artistic Builders, Inc. 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the no discharge 
lagoon wastewater treatment plant that serves Bent Tree Subdivison 
is not being properly operated and maintained and the facility is 
emitting a point source discharge into the environment. This places 
the Respondent in violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act. These violations of the Code 
of Laws of South Carolina subject the Respondent to the assessment 
of civil :i:,enalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Be assessed a civil 
penalty of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00), with payment of one 
thousand dollars ($1,000.00) to the Department within fifteen (15) 
days of receipt of the fully executed Order. Two thousand dollars 
($2,000.00} of the assessed penalty shall be suspended upon the 
completion of those i terns that are required within 60 days of 
issuance of this Order. An additional two thousand dollars 
($2,000.00) of the assessed penalty shall be suspended upon the 
completion of, and adherence to all of the remainder of the Order 
requirements; ( 2) \Hthin sixty (60) days of the issuance of this 
Order, submit to the Department, an agreement signed by the 
Resi;,ondent and the Oconee County Sewer Commission (OCSC) which 
states the terms under which the Bent Tree Subdivision sewer line 
would be tied onto OCSC's sewer line; (3) Within ninety (90) days of 
the issuance of the Order, submit to the Department for approval, a 
Preliminary E.ngineering Report (PER),. to include a schedule of 
implementation addressing the construction project necessary to 
connect the Bent Tree Subdivision sewer line to the OCSC trunk line. 
The schedule should also address the close-out of the Bent Tree 
Subdivision lagoon accorcting to Department standards and procedures; 
(4) In the event of the occurrence of any unauthorized discharge 
from the Bent 'I'ree SD lagoon, the Respondent shall, upon notifi
cation by the Department, pay a civil penalty in the amount of two 
thousand dollars ($2,000.00) for each unauthorized discharge (5) 
Upon the Department's determination that the Respondent has violated 
the conditions of this Order, the previously suspended penalties, as 
applicable, shall immediately become due and payable to the Depart
ment; (6) upon Department approval, the PER and schedule referred to 
in Item #3 above shall be deemed a part of this Order, and the 
Respondent shall accom:i:,lish the items outlined in the PER according 
to the Department approved schedules included therein. 

91. **Consent Order No. 87-20-W 
Date: February 2, 1987 
Facility: Town of Clinton - Laurens County 
Respondent: Town of Clinton 
Summary: This order was issued as a result of a settlement of a 
pending a<.ijuuicatory hearing on the Administrative Order 86-65-W. 
The Respondent has complied with all order requirements with the 
exce1Jtion of a two thousand dollar ($2,000.00) penalty provision. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Pay to the Department 
a penalty of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00); (2) Comply with all 
Department permitting requirements; and (3) Withdraw an admini
strative a1Jpeal filed August 20, 1986. 
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92. Consent Order 87-21-W 
Date: March 6, 1987 

93. 

94. 

Facility: Torrington, Inc. - Laurens County 
Respondent: Pressure Filtration Specialists, Inc. - Torrington, CT 
Summary: The Respondent applied for and received a Department 
permit for a portable sludge dewatering system on January 15, 1986. 
This permit stipulated that the pennittee was to obtain written 
ap_fJroval from the Department prior to start up. A sludge dewatering 
process was initiated on December 9, 1986, without Departmental 
ap}'roval and during the coarse of the overation an unauthorized 
discharge of wastewater occurred. This places the Respondent in 
violation of Sections 48-1-~0 and 48-1-110 of the Pollution Control 
Act for the State of South Carolina and subjects the Respondent to 
i,enalties under Section 48-1-330 of the Act. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Be assessed a civil 
penalty of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00); and (2) Immediately 
comply with Department permit #11,835. 

Consent Onier No. 87-22-vi 
Date: March 5, 1987 
Facility: honsanto Company - Greenwood County 
Resl_Jondent: Monsanto Company 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the Respondent has 
constructed a wastewater }'retreatraent facility without the required 
Department permit. This places the Respondent in violation of 
Section 48-1-110 (1) of the Pollution Control Act for the State of 
South Carolina and subjects the Respondent to penalties under Section 
48-1-330 of the Act. 
Action: '£he Respondent has agreed to: (1) Be assessed a penalty of 
two thousand dollars ($2,000.00); (2) Immediately comply with all 
Department permit requirements; and (3) Certify that construction 
is completed in accordance with the Department Construction permit. 

Consent Order No. 87-23-~~ 
Date: r-iarch 20, 1987 
1''acility: Dorchester County d/b/a Sprucewood S/D - Dorchester Co. 
Res_fJoncient: Dorchester County 
Summary: The Respondent acquired the Sprucewood Subdivision waste
water treatment system and connected the wastewater discharge to 
the regional sewer system in 1984. To date the abandoned facility 
has not been closed out in accordance with Department requirements. 
Failure to complete the closeout places the Respondent in violation 
of Regulation 61-82. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Submit an approvable 
proposal for the closeout no later than April 16, 1987; and 
(2) Complete the closeout no later than August 17, 1987. 

95. **Consent Order No. 87-24-W 
Date: March 6, 1987 
Facility: ABCO Industries, Inc. - Spartanburg Co. 
Respondent: ABCO Industries, Inc. 
Summary: Self-monitoring reports submitted by the permittee reveal 
violations of its NPDES permit limitations for total suspended 
solids and ammonia. '£he permittee has installed equipment designed 
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to improve effluent efficiency independent of Department require
ments. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before February 4, 
1987, submit approvable plans and specifications; (2) On or before 
April 2, 1987, or within thirty (30) days of Department permit to 
construct, start construction; (3) On or before June 15, 1987, or 
within sixty (60) days of start construction, complete construction 
and obtain De.i:,artment approval to operate; (4) On or before July 
15, 1987, or within thirty (30) days of receipt of a Department 
1,;ermit to or,erate, attain compliance with NPDES effluent limi
tations; and (5) Upon completion of item #4, the Respondent will 
be subject to the assessment of civil penalties for all future 
effluent violations in accordance with Section 48-1-330 of the 
~outh Carolina Code of Laws. 

96. Consent Order No. 87-25-W 
Date: Narch 10, 1987 

97. 

Facility: Bennett Trailer Park - Beaufort County 
ResJ_.,ondent: Hodney b. Bennett <l/b/a Bennett's 'rrailer Park 
Summary: Department investigations have revealed the Respondent has 
constructed a portion of a waste treatment system without the 
required permit and allowed an unauthorized discharge from the 
system. This places the Respondent in violation of Sections 48-1-90 
and 48-1-110 of the Pollution Control Act for the State of South 
Carolina and subjects the Respondent to penalties under Section 
48-1-330 of the Act. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to:. (1) On or before March 10, 
1987 - Pay to the Department a civil penalty of two thousand dollars 
($2,000.00); (2) Immediately remove the portable pump and hoses and 
cease all unauthorized discharges into the environment; (3) On or 
before March 10, 1987 - Submit approvable plans and specifications 
to the Department for the collection lines necessary for connection 
of all trailers in the Park to the City of Beaufort's sewer system; 
and (4) Within 60 days of the completion of construction of the lift 
station by the City of Beaufort - Complete all necessary construc
tion and connect the Park to the City of Beaufort's sewer system. 
It shall be the Respondent's responsibility to contact the Depart
ment's Low Country District Office to arrange for a final inspection 
and receive a Permit to Operate before making the final connection 
to the City's sewer system. 

Consent Order No. 87-26-W 
Date: M.arch 25, 1987 
Facility: Kaufman brothers, Inc. - Greenville County 
Res_lJondent: Kaufman Brothers, Inc. 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that wastewater con
taining motor oil and volatile organics was being discharged from 
Kaufman Brother's auto parts business into a storm drain to Richland 
Creek. 'r:his r,laces the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 
of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharged 
wastewater into the environment in a manner other than in compliance 
with any permit issued by the Department. This violation of the 
Code of Laws of South Carolina subjects the Respondent to the assess
ment of civil r,enalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the 
Code. 
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Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Immediately cease the 
practice of discharging wastewater to the environment in an un
authorized manner, and hereafter comply with all Department regu
lations regarding the disposal of wastewater; and (2) Within fifteen 
(15) days of the issuance of this Order pay to the Department a 
civil penalty in the amount of four thousand dollars ($4,000.00). 

Consent Order No. 87-27-W 
Date: March 30, 1987 
F'acility: Clemson University/Soccer Stadium Pickens County 
Res.1:>ondent: Clemson University 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that a wastewater col
lection line that serves a portion of Clemson University had been 
constructed by the Respondent prior to obtaining the appropriate 
De_l)artment permits. This places the Respondent in violation of 
Section 48-1-llO(a) of the South carolina Pollution Control Act in 
that it failed to obtain the appropriate Department construction 
permit prior to constructing a wastewater collection line. This 
violation of the Code of Laws of South Carolina subjects the Respon
dent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 
48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Immediately cease the 
practice of installing wastewater collection systems without Depart
ment approval, · and comply with all Department permitting require
ments; (2) \,ithin fifteen (15) days of the issuance of this Order, 
submit to the Department approvable plans and specifications for the 
wastewater collection line; (3) Upon issuance of the Department 
permit to construct and completion of construction, sul::mit to the 
Department certification from the registered professional engineer 
who signed the plans that construction was completed in accordance 
with the Dei,artrnent issued permit to construct and request a Depart
ment final inspection; and (4) Within ten (10) days of the date of 
this Order, pay to the Department a two thousand dollar ($2,000.00) 
civil penalty. 

9SI. **Consent Order No. 87-28-W 
Date: April 6, 1987 
Facility: Torrington/Clinton Bearing - Laurens County 
Resf>undent: Torrington Company, Inc. 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves the Clinton Bearing plant is unable 
to meet the final effluent limitations imposed in its NPDES permit. 
Additionally, the Respondent has failed to abide with the conditions 
contained in Consent Order No. 84-11-W, amendment #2, and the Depart
ment has determined that unauthorized construction has occurred at 
the wastewater treatment facility. This places the Respondent in 
violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South Carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that it discharged wastewater into the 
environment of the State in a manner other than in compliance with 
its permit to discharge issued by the Department and, in that it has 
constructed and Of>erated modifications to the facility prior to 
obtaining the necessary permits from the Department. Additionally, 
the Respondent has violated Section 48-1-50 of the South Carolina 
Code of Laws in that it failed to comply with the requirements 
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101. 

contained in a previous Department order. These violations of the 
Code of Laws of South Carolina subject the Respondent to the assess
ment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Within thirty (30) days 
of the effective date of this Order, pay a civil penalty of $75,000 
to the Department for violations of the Pollution Control Act; and 
(2) Complete the PER within 30 days of adoption of the pretreatment 
standards by the Laurens County Water Resources Commission. 

Consent Order No. 87-29-W 
Date: April 14, 1987 
Facility: Exide Corporation - Sumter County 
Respondent: Exide Corporation 
summary: Department investigations reveal that the Respondent has 
failed to comply with its NPDES permit requirements and eliminate 
its point-source discharge by tieing onto the City of Sumter col
lection system. The Department has determined that an order is 
necessary to provide interim effluent limitations until a new 
schedule of elimination is formulated. The Respondent is in vio
lation of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control 
Act in that it discharged wastewater into the environment contrary 
to the conditions contained in its permit to discharge issued by the 
Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Be allowed to discharge 
treated wastewater from outfall 011 until NPDES permit #SC0001856 is 
modified; and (2) During permit modification, interim effluent 
limitations will be in effect in addition to all other provisions of 
its NPDES permit. 

Consent Order No. 87-30-W 
Date: April 14, 1987 
Facility: City of North Augusta - Aiken County 
Respondent: City of North Augusta 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that since December 1983 
numerous valid complaints of overflowing manholes have occurred in a 
section of sewer line known as the Southwest Interceptor. This 
places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South 
Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharged wastewater into 
the environment of the State in a manner not authorized by the 
Departrnent. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Within fifteen (15) days 
of the effective date of this Order provide the De}:)artment with a 
plan of preventative maintenance to be taken to assure no future 
overflows of the Southwest Intercetpor. This plan is to include, 
but is not limited to the following: (a) A chronology of maintenance 
work taken from October 1986 to February 1987, (b) Identify those 
actions currently being undertaken, their progress, and expected 
completion dates, (c) Plan and schedule of routine maintenance to be 
utilized after the initial work on the line clearance is completed; 
and (2) Within thirty (30) days fo the effective date of this Order, 
pay an eight thousand dollar ($8,000.00) penalty for violating the 
Pollution Control Act. 
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Consent Order No. 87-31-vi 
Date: April 21, 1987 
Facility: Town of calhoun Falls - Abbeville County 
Respondent: Town of Calhoun Falls 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves the Town of Calhoun Falls and the 
surrounding area is not being properly operated and maintained suf
ficiently to meet the final effluent limitations in its NPDES 
permit. 'I'his places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 
of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that the facility is 
not being properly operated and maintained and that it is dis
charging wastewater into the environment in a manner other than in 
compliance with its perrnit to discharge issued by the Department. 
Action: Tne kesI_:.>ondent has a9n,ed to: (1) Cn or before April 30, 
1987, the Respondent shall submit to the Department a Composite 
Correction Plan (CCP) for bringing its wastewater treatment system 
into compliance as soon as possible. '!'he CCP shall include: (a) A 
discussion/explanation of tne cc1.use(s) uf noncompliance, to include 
both the treatment facility and collection system, (b) A discussion 
of the corrective ste.£:,s necessary to achieve compliance, their cost, 
and the proposed method of financing those steps, including whether 
there is: ( 1) A plan of oi:,eration identifies annual operation and 
maintenance costs; (2) A financial management system that adequately 
accounts for revenues and exvenditures; (3) A user charge/revenue 
system that generates sufficient revenues to operate, maintain, and 
replace the treatment works: (c) An exr,editious schedule for com
pleting the required steps and for achieving compliance; (2) In 
ctevelo.i:,ing the CCP, the Diagnostic Evaluation shall be used as a 
guide and its recommendations addressed in the plan; and (3) Upon 
De.l?artment review and written approval of the CCP, the schedule 
contained therein shall be deemed incorporated into and a part of 
this Order. 

Consent Order No. 87-32-W 
Date: April 8, 1987 
Pacility: ·rown of Hampton - Hampton County 
Respondent: ·rown of Hampton 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
tredtrnent plant and associated collection system is not being 
properly operated and maintained to the extent that manholes are 
overflowing in the ·1'own~ 'rhis places the Respondent in violation of 
Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South Carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that unauthorized <iischarges of wastewater are 
occurring into the environment of the State contrary to any permit 
issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Within sixty (60) days 
of the issuance of this Order - Submit plans and specifications to 
DHEC for an effluent measuring device and modifications to the sewer 
lines in the Bullard Street area; and (2) Within one hundred and 
twenty (120) days of DHEC approval of the plans and specifications -
complete construction. 

104. Consent Order No. 87-33-W 
Date: April 17, 1987 
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Facility: s.c. Department of Highways/I-26E, I-26W, I-95 - Richland Co. 
Respondent: South Carolina Department of Highways and Public Trans-

portation 
Sununary: Department investigations reveal that the Highway Depart
ment wastewater treatment J:>lants that serve the above referenced 
rest areas are being improperly operated and maintained to the 
extent that effluent violations persist contrary to the NPDES permit 
issued by the Department. This places the Respondent in violation 
of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in 
that it discharged wastewater into the environment of the State in a 
manner other than in compliance with its permit to discharge. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Operate and maintain all 
highway rest area wastewater treatment facilities in accordance with 
their associated NPDES permits; (2) Contact the Department's Central 
Iviictlancis District Office for a final inspection of the afore
mentioned sewer line and permission to operate when all permits are 
obtained and construction is completed; (3) Complete the upgrade of 
the wastewater treatment facility serving the rest areas at I-26E 
and I-26V~ in Calhoun County in accordance with Department con
struction permit #11,709 issued on December 2, 1985. This upgrade is 
to be completed on or before December 1, 1987. hhen construction is 
completed, contact the Department's Central Midlands District Office 
for a final inspection and permission to operate; (4) On or before 
May 15, 1987, submit to the Department a Preliminary Engineering 
Report (Pt;R) which reviews the perfonaance capabilities of the I-26E 
facility in Newberry County and the I-95 facility in Sumter County. 
The PER shall include, at a minimum, a review of the operation and 
maintenance at these facilities and the adequacy of design of the 
systems. The PER shall identify all deficiencies and propose cor
rective action as well as a corrective action schedule. Following 
Department review and approval of the PER(s), the corrective action 
schedule(s) shall become an enforceable part of this Order; and (5) 
Violation of any requirement of this Order will subject the Respon
dent to a civil penalty payable upon notification from the Depart
ment. 

Consent Order No. 87-34-w 
Date: April 17, 1987 
Facility: Coastal Carolina College - Horry County 
Resf>Ondent: Coastal Carolina College 
Surrunary: Department investigations reveal that a wastewater col
lection system has been constructed to serve a student housing 
project without obtaining a Department permit to construct. This 
places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-110(1) (3) of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it constructed a waste
water collection system prior to obtaining a permit from the Depart
ment. This violation of the Code of Laws of South Carolina subjects 
the Responaent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in 
Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has ageed to: (1) Immediately pay to the 
Department a civil penalty of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00); (2) 
Upon completing all construction, request final inspection from 
District Office and, if appropriate, receive a Department Permit to 
Operate; and (3) Cease and desist the practice of construction or 
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operating wastewater systems 
final inspection, ur Permit to 
ment permitting requirements. 

106. Consent Order No. 87-35-W 
Date: April 17, 1987 

without prior Department approval, 
Operate and comply with all Depart-

Facility: Kerr Finishing Company - Greenville County 
Respondent: Kerr Finishing Company 
summary: Department investigations reveal the Respondent allowed 
the unauthorized discharge of wastewater from the facility. This 
places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South 
Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharged wastewater into 
the environment of the State in an unauthorized manner contrary to 
any permit issued by the Department. This violation of the Code of 
Laws of South carolina subjects the Respondent to the assessment of 
civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Within fifteen (15) days 
of the issuance of this Order submit to the Department for approval, 
a report including a schedule, detailing measures which will be put 
in place to prevent further unauthorized discharges from the site. 
The report and schedule, upon Department approval, will become an 
enforceable part of this Order; and (2) Within fifteen (15) days of 
the issuance of this Order, pay to the Department a civil penalty in 
the amow1t of three thousand dollars (!;>3,000.00). 

107. Consent Order No. 87-36-W 
Date: April 17, 1987 
Facility: Renosol Corporation - Greenville County 
Respondent: Renosol Corporation 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Renosol Corporation is not being 
properly operated and maintained, whereby, the facility is unable to 
consistently meet the final effluent limitations contained in its 
NPDES permit. This places the Respondent in violation of Sections 
48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in 
that it discharges wastewater into the environment of the State in a 
manner other than in compliance with its permit to discharge issued 
by the Department. 'l'his violation of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina subjects the Respondent to the assessment of civil 
penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Within fifteen (15) days 
of the issuance of this Order, pay to the Department a civil penalty 
in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00); and (2) On or 
before J.1,Jay 29, 1987, submit to the Department an engineering report 
actciressing the integrity of the waste treatment system and any 
necessary improvements which are needed to achieve and maintain 
compliance with permit conditions. The report should contain a 
schedule for the correction of any deficiencies noted, which upon 
api-,roval will become an enforceable part of this Order. Renosol 
shall continue to maintain a program of proper operation and main
tenance of the waste treatment system as required to maintain com
pliance with permit conditions. 
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108. Consent Order No. 87-37-W 
Date: April 23, 1987 
Facility: Bent Pines Mobile Home Park - Beaufort County 
Respondent: Mr. Eric Monson 
Sununary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Bent Pines Mobile Home Park has been 
improperly operated and maintained. Additionally, the no-discharge 
facility was still discharging wastewater into the environment from 
the previous discharge outfall. This places the Respondent in 
violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control 
Act in that it discharged wastewater into the environment of the 
~tate in an unauthorized manner without a permit to discharge issued 
by the Department. This violation of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina subjects the Respondent to the assessment of civil 
penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Continue to properly 
operate and maintain the wastewater treatment system which serves 
the Park. This shall include, but not Le limited to, correction of 
deficiencies cited by the Department on future inspection reports 
within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the report; and (2) On or 
before May 16, 1986: (a) Extend fencing at gate to pond six feet; 
(b) Submit to the Department an approvable plan, to include a 
proposed compliance schedule, for building up the south east corner 
of the pond dike. Upon Department review and approval of the plan 
and compliance schedule, the plan shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved schedule. It shall be the Respondent's responsi
bility to contact the Department's Low Country District Office to 
arrange for a final inspection; and (c) Pay to the Department a 
civil penalty of three thousand dollars ($3,000.00). 

109. **Administrative Order No. 87-38-W 
Date: April 23, 1987 
Facility: City of Columbia/Sewerage System Richland County 
Respondent: City of Columbia 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that portions of the 
wastewater collection system that serve the City of Columbia are 
inadequate to handle increased flow during periods of wet weather. 
As a result, sewage overflows occur at various manholes along the 
system. Additionally, the Columbia Metro Wastewater Treatment Plant 
exceeds the permitted discharge flow limit during periods of heavy 
rainfall. This places the Respondent in violation of Section 
48-1-90 of the south Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it has 
discharged wastewater into the environment of the State in a manner 
other than in accordance with a permit issued by the Department. 
Action: 1'he Respondent has been ordered to: (1) Address the sewage 
collection system overflow problem and the Metro wastewater 
treatment plant flow problem by submitting a preliminary engineering 
report (PER) to cover short-term or interim solution as well as a 
long range solution. The PER shall include, at a minimum, a wet 
weather operational control strategy designed to minimize or 
eliminate collection system overflows on an interim basis. It 
should include on-going sewer inflow/infiltration (I/I) evaluation 
and correction. The PER is due on or before June 15, 1987 and 
should include any associated schedules. Once approved, the 
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strategy(ies) and implementation schedules will become an 
enforceable part of this Order; and (2) Submit to the Department a 
plan of study to address dry weather :flow data over a one {1) year 
period. The first report, based on the February 3, 1987 meeting, 
and the plan of study, are d~e on or before June 15, 1987. 
Subsequent quarterly reports which are to be addressed in the plan 
of study are due on the following dates: August 15, 1987; November 
15, 1987; February_15, 1988; and May 15, 1988. 

Consent Order No. 87-39-W 
Date: April 27, 1987 
Facility: Walker's Agriculture Facility - Anderson County 
Hespondent: Hr. David vialker 
summary: Department investigations reveal that the no-discharge 
wastewater disposal system that serves Walker's Agriculture Facility 
had been purposely drained into Hurricane Creek. Numerous other 
overflows of various nature have occurred into Hurricane Creek. 
This places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 and 
48-1-110 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it 
promoted the unauthorized discharge of wastewater into the environ
ment of the State in a manner other than in compliance with a permit 
issued by the Department, and in that he operated a waste disposal 
facility in violation of its permit to operate issued by the Depart
ment. These violations of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 
subject the Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set 
forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before April 30, 
1987, submit to the Department a Personal and Business financial 
capability statement. The statement should reflect income, assets 
and liabilities associated with the agricultural facility as well as 
any uther uusiness (es) which M.r. Walker has ownership in, is 
associated with and/or derives income from. The statement should 
also include the names of the owners and officers of the 
business (es) with which br. Walker has association. The statement 
should be completed by an independent accountant and certified as a 
true and correct statement of Hr. Walker's financial capability; (2) 
Pay a civil penalty to the Department in the amount of two thousand 
dollars ($2,000.00) in equal installments of $1,000.00 to be paid on 
June 15, 1987 and July 15, 1987. 'rhe civil penalty may be assessed 
in full, reduced or suspended at the discretion of the Department. A 
decision on the disposition of the penalty will be based upon the 
Department's review of the information required in Item #1 above; 
(3) Immediately cease, now and forever, the practice of discharging 
wastewater to the environment, except as in compliance with a permit 
issued by the Department; and (4) On or before August 31, 1987, 
complete permanent improvements to the facility, as approved by the 
Soil Conservation Service and the Department, as deemed necessary to 
assure that the waste management plan is complied with in the 
future. In the interim, take the necessary measures to prevent 
further unauthorized discharges from the agricultural facility, its 
ap1,,urtenances and the waste treatment system. 

111. Consent Order No. 87-40-W 
Date: May 1, 1987 
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Facility: AVM of South carolina, Inc. - Marion County 
Respondent: AVM of South Carolina, Inc. 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves AVM of South Carolina has failed to 
consistently meet the final effluent limitations contained in its 
NPDES permit issued by the Department. Additionally, it has failed 
to comply with Department Consent Order No. 86-56-W in that it has 
not submitted a Preliminary Engineering Report to the Department. 
This places the Respondent in violation of Sections 48-1-50 and 
48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it has 
not complied with a Department Order and in that it has discharged 
wastewater into the environment in a manner other than in compliance 
with its permit issued by the Department. These violations of the 
Code of Laws of South Carolina subject the Respondent to the assess
ment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: ( 1) Operate and maintain 
waste treatment in a manner to maximize its treatment capabilities; 
(2) On or before May 15, 1987, submit to the Department a plan of 
quarterly biological monitoring which when approved will establish 
dates for submital and become an enforceable part of this Order; (3) 
On or before July 1, 1987, obtain a written commitment from the Town 
of Mullins to start construction of sewer line by August 1, 1987. 
If unable to obtain the necessary commitment, submit plans and 
specifications for upgrade of present waste treatment facility on or 
before November 2, 1987. The subnittal will include a schedule of 
implementation for completion of upgrade, which shall become an 
enforceable part of this Order; (4) On or before December 31, 1988, 
tie on to Town of Mullins sewage system; (5) During the interim 
period prior to completion of Town of Mullins sewage line, meet the 
following interim effluent limits (page 4); and (6) Immediately pay 
to the Department a civil penalty of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) 
for failure to comply with Order #86-56-W. 

112. **Consent Order No. 87-41-W 
Date: April 30, 1987 
Facility: East Richland County Public Service District - Richland Co. 
Respondent: East Richland County Public Service District 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
collection system that serves a portion of the East Richland County 
Public Service District experiences unauthorized discharges of 
wastewater from overflowing manholes. Additionally, the facility 
has sludge disposal problems in the form of excessive solids 
inventory. The facility was under a previous Department Consent 
Order No. 84-59-W dated July 19, 1984, for unauthorized discharges 
of wastewater into the environment. This places the Respondent in 
violation of Sections 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that wastewater was discharged into the environment 
in a manner other than in compliance with a permit issued by the 
Department and in that the facility was not properly operated and 
maintained in accordance with the conditions contained in the permit 
to discharge issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Cease all unauthorized 
discharges within the wastewater collection system immediately; 
(2) Properly operate and maintain the wastewater treatment facility 
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in order to eliminate effluent violations and sludge handling 
problems; (3) On or before February 27, 1987, submit to the Depart
ment a PER which describes corrective action to be taken and a 
corrective action schedule to be followed to prevent future over
flows from occurring within the wastewater collection system. Upon 
Department ap,L)roval of the PER, the proposed schedule will become 
an enforceable part of this Order; (4) On or before February 16, 
1987, submit to the Department a request for the proper disposal of 
sludge; (5) On or before July 1, 1987, submit to the Department a 
PER describing. the· future upgrade of the wastewater treatment 
facility for hydraulic load; and (6) On or before May 15, 1987, pay 
to the Department a civil penalty of ten thousand dollars 
($10,000.00). 

Based on the District's assurances that overflows from the 
collection system have been eliminated and no overflows occurred 
during the late November or early December rain events, the Depart
ment will allow the issuance of permits for construction of col
lection systems. Should future overflows that can be attributed to 
system failures occur, a moratorium on taps and construction permits 
for additional flows to the collection system will be immediately 
reinstated upon notification from the Department. This moratorium 
will remain in effect until it can be demonstrated that overflows 
have been permanently eliminated. 

Consent Order No. 87-42-W 
Date: May 7, 1987 
Facility: Crown Metro, Incorporated - Greenville County 
Respondent: Crown Metro, Incorporated 
summary: Department investigations reveal that on several occasions 
the Respondent allowed the unauthorized discharge of wastewater into 
the environment at Crown Metro, Incorporated. Additionally, the 
Department has determined that the groundwater contamination 
identified in December 1983 requires additional site work to fully 
ascertain the extent and severity of the groundwater contamination. 
'rhis places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it allowed the un
permitted discharge of wastewater into the environment of the State. 
This violation of the Code of Laws of South Carolina subject the 
Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in 
Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The i{espondent has agreed to: (1) Within fifteen (15) days 
of the issuance of this Order, pay to the Department a civil penalty 
in the amount of six thousand dollars ($6,000.00); (2) On or before 
~i.ay 30, 1987, submit to the Department a report to include a 
schedule addressing the improvements necessary to the control of 
stormwater, fire water and/or other contaminated water runoff from 
the facility site. The report, which may be in the form of a Best 
Management Practice Plan, shall include a site plan detailing 
measures that are already in place and any proposed site improve
ments that will be made in order to }?revent further unauthorized 
discharges. The report and schedule will, upon Department approval, 
become an enforceable part of this Order and the work identified 
therein will be accomplished according to the Department approved 
schedule; and (3) On or before June 30, 1987, submit to the Depart-
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ment a proposed groundwater assessment plan to determine the extent 
and severity of the documented groundwater contamination at the 
Crown Metro site. The plan should include the following elements: 
(a) the number, location and depth of proposed wells, as well as a 
rationale for each; (b) a sampling and analytical method plan which 
will ensure the quality of the anal}•tical results for the requested 
study and required future monitoring; (c) evaluation procedures, 
including any use of previously gathered groundwater or wastestream 
quality information; and (d) a schedule of implementation. 

Consent Order No. 87-43-W 
Date: May 7, 1987 
Facility: Crosby Enterprises, Inc. - Colleton County 
Respondent: Crosby Enterprises, Inc. 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the Respondent was 
observed discharging a full load of wastewater from a septic tank 
pumper truck. '£he discharge location was approximately 200 feet 
from the edge of the Edisto River and the effluent was observed 
draining directly into the backwaters of the river. This places the 
Resi,ondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that it discharged waste into the environ
ment not authorized by any pennit issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Permanently go out of the 
business of collecting and disposing of sewage and other wastes 
within thirty (30) days of the issuance of this Order. This ban on 
collection, hauling, and disposal of sewage and other wastes shall 
extend to: (a) All of the Respondent's officers and the immediate 
families of those officers; and (b) Any separate corporation or 
business enterprise which the Respondent's officers and their 
irmaediate family members may desire to establish in the future; (2) 
Submit to DHEC within thirty (30) days fo the issuance of this Order 
an approvable remedial action plan, including a compliance schedule, 
which addresses the clean up of the disposal site. Upon review and 
approval of the plan and its compliance schedule, the Respondent 
shall carry out the plan in accordance with the approved schedule; 
and (3) On or before May 11, 1987, pay to the Department a civil 
penalty of four thousand dollars ($4,000.00). If, based on 
financial hardship, the Respondent wishes to seek suspension of all 
or part of the penalty, it must submit to DHEC on or before May 11, 
1987, its audited financial statements, to include the auditor's 
note, for the past three years (1984-1986). DHEC staff will review 
the records and make a detennination of the amount, if any, of the 
penalty to be suspended. Payment of the penalty or modified penalty 
shall be due within thirty days of written notification by DHEC. 

Consent Order No. 87-44-W 
Date: April 29, 1987 
Facility: Buckhorn Ranch Restaurant and Motel - Sumter County 
Respondent: Mr. B.A. Graham 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Buckhorn Hanch Restaurant and Motel 
is not being properly operated and maintained to the extent that the 
facility is not meeting the final effluent limitations contained in 
its NPDES permit. This places the Respondent in violation of 
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Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that 
wastewater is being discharged into the environment in a manner 
other than in compliance with a permit issued by the Department and, 
in that it is not properly operating and maintaining the facility as 
prescribed in its permit to discharge. 
Action: '!'he Respondent has agreed to: ( 1) Properly operate and 
maintain the existing wastewater treatment facility in accordance 
with NPDES permit #SC0027936; (2) Obtain a wastewater treatment 
operator of at least a grade "B" certification on or before May 1, 
1987; (3) Submit to the Department DMR's on a monthly basis in 
accordance with the NPDES permit beginning May 1, 1987; (4) On or 
before May 1, 1987, submit to the Department a financial statement 
showing that a civil penalty cannot be paid. The Department will 
review the submittal and advise the Respondent as to its disposition 
concerning a civil penalty when the review is completed; (5) Attain 
compliance with NPDES effluent limitations and O&M ·requirements on 
or before July 1, 1987; and (6) Upon notification from the Depart
ment, pay a civil 1,>enalty of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) 
if compliance with NPDES requirements are not attained by July 1, 
1987. 

116. **Administrative Order No. 87-45-W 
Date: Nay 8, 1987 
Facility: Jl.1cAffee Trailer Park - York County 
Respondent: Mrs. M.H. Lyle . 
Summary: Deparbnent investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves McAffee Trailer Park is not being 
properly operated and maintained. Additionally, the facility has 
been altered to bypass a portion of the permitted treatment system 
which has resulted in producing an unauthorized discharge. This 
places the Respondent in violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 
of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharged 
wastewater into the environment in a manner other than in compliance 
with its permit to discharge and, in that the facility is not being 
properly operated and maintained and the facility has been modified 
without Department approval. These violations of the South carolina 
Code of Laws subject the Respondent to the assessment of civil 
penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The li'.espondent has been ordered to: ( 1) Irrunediately begin 
and continue proper operation and maintenance of the existing 
facility to maximize treatment capabilities and ensure that the 
facility complies with the NOPES permit requirements on a continuing 
basis; (2) Within ninety (90) days of receipt of this fully executed 
Order, complete the following items to render the facility in com
pliance with State permits: (a) Render all required aerators 
operational and functional on a daily basis; (b) Maintain an 
or-,eration logbook at the site on a continuing basis and ensure that 
a certified operator vi&its the facility daily; (c) Render the 
chlorination system functional to include, but not be limited to, 
proper housekeeping, system cleaned out, sanuril repaired, outfall 
line repaired, and keep tablets in the sanuril; (d) Install a 
Deparbnent approved flow measuring device; (e) Eliminate the 
unauthorized discharges of wastewater from the facility and return 
the facility to its designed and approved mode of operation; (f) 
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117. 

Ensure that Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs) accurately reflect 
facility conditions and that DNRs are submitted to the Department on 
a monthly basis; and (g) Ensure that an all weather access road to 
the facility is maintained, and (3) Within thirty (30) days of the 
issuance of this Order - Pay to the Department a civil penalty of 
fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00). If based on financial 
hardship the Respondent wishes to seek suspension of all or part of 
the penalty, it must submit to the Department within thirty (30) 
days of issuance of this Order, its audited financial statements, to 
include the auditor's note for the past three years (1984-1986) • 
Department staff will review the records and make a determination of 
the amount, if any, of the penalty to be suspended. Pa~nent of the 
modified penalty shall be due within thirty (30) days of written 
notification by the Department. 

Administrative Order No. 87-46-W 
Date:- May 15, 1987 
Facility: Fisherman's Cove Restaurant - Sumter County 
Hesponcient: Mr. Wallace J. Green 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves F'isherman' s Cove Restaurant is not 
being adequately operated and maintained which resulted in the 
facility not meeting the final effluent limitations contained in its 
NPDES permit. 'I'his places the Respondent in violation of Section 
48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it 
discharged wastewater and failed to properly operate and maintain 
the facility in a manner other than in compliance with its pennit to 
discharge issued by the Department. These violations of the Code of 
Laws of South Carolina subject the kespondent to the assessment of 
civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has been ordered to: (1) Properly operate 
and maintain the wastewater treatment facility by obtaining a "B" 
certified operator by June 15, 1987, and perform proper O&M by July 
15, 1987; (2) Submit to the Department a preliminary engineering 
report describing improvements to the facility (incluuing schedule) 
by August 1, 1987. When approved, the schedule will become an 
enforceable }?art of this Order; and (3) Pay to the Department a 
civil penalty of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) by August 1, 
1987. 

118. Consent Order No. 87-47-W 
Date: May 12, 1987 
Facility: F'ox Fire Village - Horry County 
Respondent: I1s. Helen Thompson 
summary: Department investigations reveal that the Respondent 
constructed and operated a wastewater treatment system without 
obtaining a Department permit to construct and a permit to operate. 
This places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-110 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it failed to obtain 
.l::'rior Department approval before constructing and operating a 
wastewater treatment system. This violation of the Code of Laws of 
South Carolina subjects the Resi,ondent to the assessment of civil 
penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Immediately pay to the 
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Department a civil penalty of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00); 
(2) On or before June 15, 1987, submit approvable revised plans and 
specifications to the Department; (3) On or before August 15, 1987, 
start construction of approved renovations and/or modifications to 
assure construction of the system in accordance with plans and 
specifications; (4) On or before April 1, 1988, complete construc
tion, request final inspection from the Department and obtain Permit 
to 01,>erate; (5) Submit to the Department a construction progress 
report every thirty (30) days from August 15, 1987 until completion 
of construction; (6) Prior to final inspection by the Department, 
the Respondent will assure that its consulting engineer submit to 
the Department a letter certifying that the system was built in 
accordance with approved plans and specifications; and (7) Cease and 
desist the practice of construction or operating wastewater systems 
without prior Department approval, final inspection, or Permit to 
Operate and comply with all Department permitting requirements. 

119. Consent Order No. 87-48-W 

120. 

.· Date: May 13, 1987 
Facility: Anderson Heal th Care Center, Inc. - Anderson County 
Respondent: Anderson Health Care Center 
Summary: Department investigations revealed the construction of a 

. wastewater collection system by the Respondent at the Anderson 
Health Care Center without prior Department permitting approval. 
Thi!:; places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-110 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it failed to obtain a 
Department construction permit prior to constructing a wastewater 
collection system. This violation of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina subjects the Respondent to the assessment of civil 
penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The ReSJ?Ondent has agreed to: (1) Immediately cease the 
practice of installation of wastewater collection systems without 
Department approval, and comply with all Department permitting 
requirements; (2) Submit to the Department approvable as-built plans 
and specifications for the wastewater system; (3) Upon issuance of 
the Department permit to construct and completion of construction, 
submit to the Department certification from the registered profes
sional engineer who signed the plans that construction was completed 
in accordance with the Department issued permit to construct and 
request a Department final inspection; and (4) Within ten (10) days 
of the date of this Order, pay to the Department a two thousand 
dollar ($2,000.00) civil penalty. 

Consent Order No. 87-49-W 
Date: May 12, 1987 
Facility: Rivermont West - Richland County 
Respondent: The Pilot Corporation 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Riverraont West is obligated to tie
on to the City of Columbia in accordance with the area 208/201 
plan and therefore must eliminate the facility. The facility 
is also unable to meet the final effluent limitations contained in 
its NPDES permit. 'l'his places the Respondent in violation of 
Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that 
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122. 

wastewater is being discharged into the environment in a manner 
other than in compliance with its permit to discharge issued by 
the Department. 
Action: 'l'he Respondent has agreed to: (1) Properly operate and 
maintain the existing wastewater treatment facility in accordance 
with the expired NPDES permit (#SC0032476) requirements until it is 
eliminated; (2) Comply with the following schedule of compliance for 
the eventual elimination of the existing wastewater treatment 
facility: 

Submit plans and specifications June 1, 1987 
Commence construction August 15, 1987 
Complete construction October 1, 1987 
Place system into operation October 15, 1987 

*Close out existing WWTP December 15, 1987 

*Close out of wastewater treatment facilities must be done in accor-
dance with Regulation 61-82 of the Code. 

and (3) Contact the Department's Central Midl.ands District Office 
for a final inspection when the facility is closed out. 

Consent Order No. 87-50-W 
Date: AI,,ril 20, 1987 
Respondent: City of Denmark 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the Respondent has 
not acknowledged Department issued Notices of Violation for effluent 
violations and the failure to submit Discharge Monitoring Reports as 
required by its NPDES permit. This places the Respondent in vio
lation of Section 48-1-90 of the South carolina Pollution Control 
Act in that it discharged wastewater and failed to submit the 
required reports to the Department in accordance with the conditions 
contained in its 1Jermit to discharge issued by the Department. 
These violations of the Code of Laws of South carolina subject the 
Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in 
Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Comply with requests for 
written responses to Notice of Violation within the time frame 
specified in that Notice; (2) Immediately begin to sample and report 
the discharge monitoring data as required by the NPDRS permit; and 
(3) Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, pay 
to the Department a civil penalty of two thousand dollars 
($2,000.00) for violating the Pollution Control Act. 

Consent Order No. 87-51-W 
Date: l"1ay 18, 1987 
Facility: Cone Mills/carlisle Finishing Plant Union County 
ReS1JOndent: Cone Hills Corporation 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Cone Mills/Carlisle Finishing Plant 
is unable to consistently meet the final biological oxygen demand 
limitation contained in its NPDES permit. This places the Respon
dent in violation of Section 48-1-90 of the South carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that it discharges wastewater into the environment in 
a manner other than in compliance with a permit issued by the 
De1Jartment. 
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Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Continue to operate and 
maintain the existing wastewater treatment facility to maximize 
treatment capabilities; (2) On or before May 1, 1987, start up the 
Department approved pilot plant; (3) Submit to the Department on or 
before October 1, 1987, an acceptable report of study on sludge 
loading to include a schedule for achieving compliance with the 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) permit limitations. Pending 
Department approval of the submitted schedule, the schedule will 
become a r,art of this Order; and (4) Commensing June 1, 1987, submit 
to the Department monthly progress reports of the activities 
directed toward achieving permit compliance. 

123. Consent Order No. 87-52-W 
Date: Hay 26, 1987 

124. 

Facility: Buzzard's Roost Marina, Inc. - Charleston County 
Respondent: Buzzarci' s Roost Marina, Inc. 
Swnmary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Buzzard.' s Roost Marina has failed to 
consistently meet the final coliform effluent limitation contained 
in its NPDES permit. 'l'his places the Hespondent in violation of 
Section 48-1-90 of the South carolina Pollution Control Act in that 
it discharges wastewater into the environment in a manner other than 
in compliance with a permit issued by the Department. 
Action: 'rhe Respondent has agreed to: ( 1) Properly operate and 
maintain the treatment system so as to maximize treatment capa
bilities. 'rhis shall include, but not be limited to: (a) daily 
visits by the certified wastewater treatment operator; and 
(b) maintenance of an operation and maintenance log on-site. 
Information recorded in the log shall include daily flow and total 
residual chlorine measurements and twice daily inspections of the 
chlorination system. A copy of the daily log shall be submitted 
to the Department n1onthly with the Discharge Monitoring Report; 
(2) Submit plans and specifications to the Department for connection 
to the City of Charleston's sewer system no later than July 1, 1987; 
and (3) Eliminate the discharge by connection to the City of 
Charleston's sewer system within thirty (30) days after notification 
from the Department that regional sewer is available. It shall be 
the Respondent's resvonsibility to acquire the required permits to 
construct and to operate from the Department and to contact the 
Department's ·rrident District Office to arrange for a final 
inspection. 

Consent Order No. 87-53-W 
Date: Hay 26, 1987 
Facility: Town of St. Stephen - Berkeley County 
Res~ondent: Town of St. Stephen 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that a pump station 
that serves the Town of St. Ste}?hen chronically overflows into the 
environment. This places the Respondent in violation of Section 
48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it 
discharges wastewater into the environment in a manner not in 
compliance with a permit issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Continue to promptly 
resvond to reports of overflows from pump station #1, to include 
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repair of the station and disinfection of the area where the over
flows occur; and (2) Upgrade pump station #1 in accordance with the 
following scheaule: (a) Submit plans and specifications to the 
Uepartment by July 15, 1987; (b) Begin construction by December 15, 
1987; and (c) Complete construction by April 15, 1988. 

125. Consent Order No. 87-54-W 
Date: May 26, 1987 

126. 

Facility: Greenville Finishing Company - Greenville County 
Respondent: Greenville Finishing Company 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the Respondent 
ctischar<:Jed waste (sludge) from a wastewater treat.'llent system onto 
the ground adjacent to the facility site. The discharge site is not 
~ermitted by the Department and is unacceptable for the disposal of 
waste. This places the Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-90 
of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it discharged 
waste sludge and contaminated water into the environment of the 
State in a manner not in compliance with a permit issued by the 
Department. This violation of the South Carolina Code of Laws 
subJects the Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set 
forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Within sixty (60) days of 
receipt of a fully executed Order, pay to the Department a civil 
penalty in the amount of twelve thousand dollars ($12,000.00); and 
(2) Within fifteen days of the issuance of the Order, Greenville 
Finishing Company shall complete the removal and disposal of the 
sludge and contaminated soils from the site. 

Cousent Order No. 87-55-W 
Date: May 14, 1987 
Facility: :CZE Manufacturing, Southeast - Greenville County 
Res!-'ondent: E.t'..E hanufacturing, Southeast 
Surrunary: Department inspection reveal that the Respondent con
structed and placed into operation a wastewater pretreatment system 
without receiving prior Department approval. This places the 
Res_fJondent in violation of Section 48-1-110 of the South Carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that it failed to obtain the appropriate 
Department permits prior to constructing and operating the waste
water pretreatment system at EZE Manufacturing, Southeast. This 
violation of the Code of Laws of South Carolina subjects the 
Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in 
Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Immediately cease the 
practice of installation and operation of wastewater treatment 
systems without De}:!artment approval, and henceforth comply with all 
Department _l)ermitting requirements; (2) Upon issuance of the 
Department permit to construct and completion of construction, 
sul:mit to the Department certification from the registered pro
fessional engineer who signed the plans that construction was 
completed in accordance with the DeJ?artment issued Permit to 
Construct and request a Department final inspection. Obtain a 
Department Permit to Operate; and (3) within ten (10) days of the 
date of this Order, flay to the Department a four thousand dollar 
($4,000.00) civil ~enalty. 
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127. Consent Order No. 87-56-W 
Date: May 26, 1987 
Facility: McDaniel Creekside - Greenville 
Respondent: Creative Builders, Inc. 
sununary: Department investigations reveal that the Respondent 
placed a sewer line into operation without requesting and obtaining 
a Department issued permit to operate. This places the Respondent 
in violation of Section 48-1-110 of the South Carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that it failed to obtain a permit to operate from the 
Department prior to placing the McDaniel Creekside sewer line into 
service. This violation of the South Carolina Code of Laws subjects 
the Res~ondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set forth in 
Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Immediately cease the 
operation of wastewater collection systems prior to obtaining 
Department approval and henceforth comply with all Department 
permitting req_uirements; and (2) Within fifteen (15) days of the 
issuance of this Order, pay to the Department a two thousand dollars 
($2,000.00) civil penalty 

128. Consent Order No. 87-57-W 
Date: May 26, 1987 

129. 

Facility: Town of St. Matthews - Calhoun County 
.kespondent: 'rown of St. Matthews 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment system that serves the 'l'own of St. Matthews is exceeding 
its design flow capacity. This places the Respondent in violation 
of Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in 
that it discharges wastewater into the environment in a manner other 
than in compliance with a permit issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before June 1, 
1987, submit a progress report to the Department on the sewer system 
evaluation; (2) On or before July 15, 1987, submit a Preliminary 
Engineering Re1>ort to the De}:Jartment summarizing the results of the 
sewer system evaluation to include: (a) Quantity and location of 
infil traticm/inflow 1->resent in the system; (b) Cost-effectiveness 
analysis com_b)aring sewer rehabilitation versus plant expansion; (c) 
Re-evaluation of hydraulic capacity of the lagoon based upon the 
recent change to design criteria for the Rich System; (d) Proposed 
method of corrective action to bring the facility back into com
pliance; including a schedule of implementation, which once 
a_pproved, will become an enforceable part of this Order. ( 3) .tt.iake 
necessary improvements to chlorination flow measurement and grinder 
to ensure their proper operation. Implementation of these measures 
shall be immediately; and (4) Respondent shall operate and maintain 
this facility so as to maximize its treatment capability, especially 
during periods of excessive flows. 

Consent Order No. 87-58-W 
Date: June 1, 1987 
Facility: City of Hanahan - Berkeley 
Responaent: City of Hanahan 
Summary: Department investigations 
treatment facility that serves the 
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130. 

131. 

consistently meet the final effluent limitations contained in its 
NPDES permit. This places the Respondent in violation of Section 
48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it has 
discharged wastewater into the environment of the State in a manner 
other than in compliance with a permit issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Continue to properly 
operate and maintain the wastewater treatment system so as to 
maximize treatment capabilities. This shall include, but not be 
limited to, extra precautionary measures to minimize washouts during 
periods of heavy rain; and (2) Submit to the Department the final 
report, to include a proposed compliance schedule, on its sewer 
system rehabilitation project by August 1, 1987. Upon Department 
review and approval of the report, this order shall be amended to 
include a compliance 'schedule. 

Consent Order No. 87-59-W 
Date: June 1, 1987 
Facility: Town of Bamberg - Bamberg County 
Res!:Jondent: Town of Bamberg 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves the Town of Bamberg is not being 
properly operated and maintained in that the groundwater monitoring 
data is not being submitted to the Department as required in its 
permit issued by the Department. This places the Respondent in 
violation of Section 48-1-110 of the South Carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that it has operated an approved waste disposal 
facility in violation of the conditions of its permit to construct. 
'rhis violation subjects the Respondent to the assessment of civil 
penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: ·rhe Respondent has agreed to: (1) Immediately comply with 
the special conditions of construction permits #4859 and #10, 580, 
specifically to include the following: (a) Sul::mit groundwater 
monitoring data from the 12 wells, 8 parameters each on a quarterly 
basis. Quarterly is defined as sampling in January, April, July and 
October, and submitting that data by the 28th day of the succeeding 
month; (b) Include with the second quarter 1987 data (due May 28, 
1987) the measured total depth of each of the 12 wells. This is on 
a one-time basis only; (c) Upon Department review of all required 
information and/or accumulated data, comply with Department requests 
for modifications to the present program; (2) Within thirty (30) 
ciays of the effective date of this Order, pay to the Department a 
civil penalty of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) for violations of 
the Pollution Control Act. 

Consent Order No. 87-60-W 
Date: June 1, 1987 
Facility: Town of Saluda - Saluda County 
Respondent: Town of Saluda 
Summary: Department investigaitons reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves the ·rown of Saluda is unable to meet 
the final effluent limitations imposed in the NPDES permit. As a 
result of the effluent violations, a survey of the Little Saluda 
River showed severe degradation in the water quality due to the 
discharge from the Town. This places the Respondent in violation 
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of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South Carolina Pollution 
Control Act in that it has operated a wastewater facility and 
discharged wastewater in contravention of the permit to discharge 
issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) On or before June 1, 
1987, Respondent shall achieve compliance with the seconclary limits 
as specified on page 5. All other requirements of the expired NPDES 
i,ermit shall remain in effect until the reissued permit becomes 
effective; (2) Should secondary limits not be achieved on or before 
June 1, 1987, the Respondent shall submit an approvable engineering 
report to the Department on or before June 15, 1987. This report is 
to include reasons for the noncompliance, steps to be taken to 
correct and/or mitigate the problems, and a timely schedule for 
implementing those measures. Upon review of this report, the 
Department will either state its approval, by which the schedule 
l>ecomes an enforceable 1:>art of this Order, or disapproval, which may 
result in further enforcement action; (3) Respondent shall operate 
and maintain the facility as to maximize its treatment capability 
and minimize its impact on the Little Saluda River; (4) Respondent 
shall obtain a current Industrial Wastewater Questionnaire to 
include effluent monitoring from each Industrial user. This 
information will be used to determine the impact, if any, of the 
industrial user discharges on the waste treatment plant. Copies of 
the y_uestionnaire shall be submitted to the Department on or before 
June 15, 1987. Upon determination of significant impact, the 
Rest-'onuent shall take expeditious steps to develop a pretreatment 
program. This Order may be amended to include a schedule for 
development and implementation of the pretreatment lJrograrn; and (5) 
Un or before July 31, 1987, the Respondent shall develop and submit 
a Municipal Compliance Plan (NCP) . The ~1CP will show how the 
Respondent will meet the advanced treatment limits specified in the 
reissued NPDES 1,errnit. The plan is to include: (a) The treatment 
technology needed to achieve compliance, as well as estimates of 
ca.1:,ital requirements and O&M costs; (b) The financial mechanisms to 
be used to fund construction and operation/maintenance/replacement; 
(c) A provosed coml,'liance schedule, to include dates for start and 
completion of construction, attainment of or,erational levels, and 
achievement of compliance with effluent limits. Once the MCP is 
approved by the Deparbnent, the schedule provided will be incorpor
ated into this Order through an Order amendment. 

Consent Order No. 87-61-,J 
Date: June 16, 1987 
Facility: Duke Power/Oconee Nuclear Plant - Oconee 
Respondent: Duke Power Comi,any 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Oconee Nuclear Power Plant has been 
operated in a manner other than approved by the Department in that 
it was adding lake water to the wastewater treatment system. This 
places the respondent in violation of Section 48-1-110 of the South 
Carolina Pollution Control Act in that it has altered the method or 
effect of disposing sewage. This violation of the Code of Laws of 
.South Carolina subjects the Respondent to the assessment of civil 
penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
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Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) agree to desist from 
adding lake water to the lagoon without prior approval; and (2) 
within fifteen (15) days of the issuance of this Order, pay to the 
Department a civil penalty in the amount of three thousand dollars 
($3,000.00). 

Consent Order No. 87-62-W 
Date: June 18, 1987 
Facility: Town of Eastover - Richland County 
Respondent: Town of Eastover 
summary: Department investigations and records review reveal that 
the wastewater treabnent facility that serves the Town of Eastover 
is not being properly operated and maintained, consequently, the 
facility is unable to meet the final effluent limitations contained 
in its NPDES permit. This places the Respondent in violation of 
Section 48-1-90 of the South Carolina Pollution Control Act in that 
it is discharging wastewater into the environment of the State in 
a manner other than in compliance with its permit to discharge 
issued by the Department. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Properly operate and 
maintain the existing wastewater treatment facility; (2) Submit to 
the Department DMR' s on a monthly basis in accordance with NPDES 
_[;ermit #SC0038237 beginning :t,t;ay 1, 19!;7; (3) Develop and implement 
an operational control testing program on or before July 1, 1987. 
The information and data generated from the program shall be 
utilized to the maximum extent possible to optimize facility per
formance; (4) On or before June 1, 1987, submit to the Department a 
financial statement showing that a civil penalty cannot be paid. 
'I'he DeJ:,arbnent will review the submittal and advise Bastover as to 
its disposition concerning a civil penalty when the review is com
pleted. (5) On or before June 15, 1987, submit to the Department a 
preliminary engineering report (PER) detailing the removal of sludge 
from the existing facility along with schedules; (6) Attain com
pliance with NPDES effluent limitations and O&M requirements on or 
before July l, 1987r and (7) Upon notification from the Department, 
pay a civil penalty of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if com
pliance with NPDE.S requirements is not attained by July 1, 1987. 
Three thousand dollars ($3,000.00) will be earmarked for the 
operation and maintenance of the wastewater treatment facility. Two 
thousand dollars ($2,000.00) will be paid directly to the 
Department. 

134. **Administrative Order No. 87-63-W 
Date: June 26, 1987 
Facility: Lower Dorchester Wastewater Treatment Plant-Dorchester Co. 
Respondent: Dorchester County 
summary: Department investigations reveal that the Respondent has 
failed to coraply with the res_uirements of Consent Order #86-114-W 
issued on November 20, 1986 for the development and implementation 
of an approved pretreatment program. This places the Respondent in 
violation of Section 48-1-50 of the South carolina Pollution Control 
Act in that it failed to comply with a Der-,artment issued Consent 
Order. This violation of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 
subjects the Respondent to the assessment of civil penalties as set 
forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
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Action: The Respondent has been ordered to: (1) Submit to the 
Department approvable Phase IA, Phase IB and Phase II pretreatment 
reports no later than August 14, 1987. It shall be the Respondent's 
responsibility to respond to Department comments in a timely manner 
to ensure final approval of the pretreatment program by October 14, 
1987; (2) Implement the approved pretreatment program no later than 
December 15, 1987; (3) Pay to the Department a civil penalty of ten 
thousand dollars. Six thousand dollars ($6,000.00) of the penalty 
shall be due within thirty (30) days of the issuance of this Order. 
Four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) of the penalty shall be suspended 
if requirements 1 and 2 above are completed in a timely manner. If 
not, the remaining four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) shall be due 
within thirty (30) days of written notification from the Department 
that it is due; and (4) There shall be a moratorium on all industrial 
taps of a non-domestic characteristic until the pretreatment program 
has received final approval from the Department and has been imple
mented by the Respondent. 

135. **Administrative Order No. 87-64-W 
Date: June 25, 1987 
Facility: Marsh Harbor Utilities, Inc., - Beaufort County 
Resvonctent: Harsh Harbor Utilities, Inc. 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment facility that serves Marsh Harbor is not being properly 
operated and maintained which has resulted in the facility not 
meeting the NPDES permit effluent limit conditions.· This places the 
Respondent in violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the 
South Carolina Pollution Control Act. These violations of the Code 
of Laws of South Carolina subject the Respondent to the assessment 
of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has been ordered to: (1) Correct all 
deficiencies at the facility within ten (10) days of the issuance of 
this Order. It shall be the Respondent's responsibility to contact 
the Department's Low Country District Office to arrange an 
inspection; (2) Correct all deficiencies cited on future Department 
inspection reports within thirty. (30) days of receipt of the report 
or notification of the deficiencies. It shall be the Respondent's 
res.l!onsibility to contact the Department, in writing, to explain any 
delays beyond the thirty (30) day period such as having to order 
equipnent. The letter must be accompained by proof that equipment 
has been ordered; and (3) Within fifteen (15) days of the issuance 
of this Order, };Jay to the Department a civil penalty of ten thousand 
dollars ($10,000.00). 

136. Consent Order No. 87-65-W 
Date: June 25, 1987 
Facility: Tenneco Resins, Inc. - Beaufort County 
Resr:,ondent: •renneco, American Color, and Lobeco 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the Respondent is 
responsible for the groundwater contamination that has affected 
Campbell Creek and the surrounding area. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: Within thirty (30) days of 
the issuance of this Order - Submit to the Department a plan of 
study, including an implementation schedule, which addresses the 
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137. 

138. 

action(s} to be taken to determine the full extent and degree of 
contamination at the Lobeco site, including the abandoned lagoon and 
discharge pipe area, the old drum storage area, the abandoned burn 
site, the sediments in the branch of campbell Creek in the vicinity 
of the discharge pipe, and a section of the marsh southwest of the 
inters~ction of the clischarge piJ!e and County Road 301 where a leak 
may have previously occurred. Upon Department approval of the plan, 
including the implementation schedule, it shall become an 
enforceable part of this Order, and the Respondents shall carry out 
the ap_E.,roved plan in accoraance with the approved schedule. The 
results of the study shall be submitted to the Department in accor
dance with the approved schedule and shall include a remedial action 
plan, as well as a proposed schedule for site remediation. 

Consent Orcter No. 87-66-W 
Date: June 25, 1987 
Facility: Riverland Place - Charleston County 
Respondent: Destefano - Rugheimer company 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater col
lection system that serves Riverland Place was placed into operation 
without obtaining prior Department approval. This places the 
Respondent in violation of Section 48-1-110 of the South Carolina 
Pollution Control Act. This violation of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina subjects the Respondent to the assesement of civil 
penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of the Code. 
J'~ction: The Respondent has agreed to: ( 1) Obtain the appropriate 
permits to construct and to operate from the Department for all 
future ~rojects, including the uncompleted portion of Riverland 
Place. It shall be the Respondent's responsibility to assure that 
all the requirements of the permits are met in a timely manner; and 
(2) Pay a civil penalty of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00} to the 
Department no later than thirty (30} days from the date hereof. 

Consent Order No. 87-67-W 
Date: June 25, 1987 
Facility: Screen Print Incorporated - York County 
Respondent: Screen Print, Incorporated 
Summary: Department investigations reveal that the wastewater 
treatment and disposal system that serves Screen Print was operated 
in an unapproved manner in that a pipe had been installed through 
the side of the dike producing an unauthorized discharge of waste
water into the environment of the State. This places the Respondent 
in violation of Sections 48-1-90 and 48-1-110 of the South Carolina 
Pollution Control Act in that it discharged wastewater into the 
environment without a permit and operated the treatment facility in 
a manner not approved by the Department. These violations of the 
Code of Laws of South Carolina subject the Respondent to the 
assessment of civil penalties as set forth in Section 48-1-330 of 
the Code. 
Action: The Respondent has agreed to: (1) Operate and maintain the 
existing wastewater treatment and disposal system to maximize treat
ment capability in accordance with Department approved permits; (2) 
On or before July 15, 1987, submit to the Department a Ground Water 
Assessment Plan to include, but not be limited to, areas around the 
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lagoons, sprayfield and catch basins. In the Ground Water Assess
ment Plan, include a schedule with dates for completion of the 
assessment plan. Upon approval 0y the Department, this groundwater 
schedule will become an enforceable part of this Order. If the 
results of the groundwater assessment reveal contamination, this 
Order will be amended with a further schedule of remedial action; 
(3) On or before July 15, 1987, submit to the Department the results 
of analyses of the plant waste stream, to include analyses for color, 
priority pollutant metals, priority pollutant volatile organics and 
base/neutral/acid extractable organic priority pollutants; (4) On or 
before September 1, 1987, submit to the Department an engineering 
r:eiJOrt addressing the capability of the present wastewater treatment 
facility to adequately dispose industrial waste. If deemed appro-
1,riate, the engineering report should address the need for an NPDES 
discharge permit and the upgrade of the present facility; (5) Sixty 
(60) days _E,rior to completion of construction of any necessary 
upgrade, furnish to the Department an operation and maintenance 
manual for the wastewater treatment facility; (6) Inunediately notify 
the Department's District Office and the Department prior to any 
contemplated oischarge of wastewater due to treatment system 
failure; and (7) On or before August 14, 1987, pay to the Department 
a civil penalty of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00). Failure to 
comply with any provision or schedule contained in this Consent 
Order or resulting from this Consent Order will constitute an 
additional penalty of twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00) payable 
upon notification by tne Department. 

356 


	DHEC_AnnualReport_1986-1987
	DHEC_Annual_Report_1986-1987-2



